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ALLIANCE ONE INTERNATIONAL, INC.
8001 Aerial Center Parkway
Morrisville, North Carolina 27560

Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders
To be Held August 16, 2007

Dear Shareholder:
: FINANCIg
You are cordially invited to attend the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Alliance One International,
Inc. (the “Company”), to be held at the North Raleigh Hilton Hotel, Ballroom G, 3415 Wake Forest Road, Raleigh,
North Carolina, on Thursday, August 16, 2007 at 10:00 a.m. to:

(a) elect four directors for a three-year term expiring in 2010, and one director for a one-year term
expiring in 2008;

(b) ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s independent auditors for the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2008;

(<) approve the Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan; and
(d) transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.
Shareholders of record at the close of business on June 15, 2007 wilt be entitled to vote at the meeting.

The Company’s proxy statement and proxy are enclosed, as is the Annual Report to shareholders for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Henry C. Babb
Secretary

July 13, 2007

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT TO US. PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY IN
THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING.
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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

When and how was Alliance One International, Inc., formed?
On May 13, 2005, we completed the merger (the “Merger”) of Standard Commercial Corporation (“Standard
Commercial™) with and into DIMON Incorporated (“DIMON”). Immediately following the Merger, DIMON
changed its name to Alliance One International, Inc. (*“Alliance One” or the “Company”).

Who is soliciting my proxy?
The Board of Directors is soliciting your proxy for the annual meeting of shareholders to be held on Thursday,
August 16, 2007, in order to provide you the opportunity to vote on all matters scheduled to come before the
meeting, whether or not you attend the meeting in person.

Who pays for the solicitation of proxies?
Alliance One bears the cost of soliciting proxies, and will reimburse banks, brokerage firms and other custodians,
nominees and fiduciaries for expenses reasonably incurred by them in sending proxy material to the beneficial
owners of stock. The Company may utilize employees to solicit proxies by mail, in person or by telephone. 1f
necessary, the Company may engage the services of a proxy solicitor and would also bear the cost of such firm’s
services and out-of-pocket expenses.

Who is entitled to vote?
You may vote if you owned shares of Alliance One common stock on June 15, 2007 the date established by the
Board for determining shareholders entitled to vote at the annual meeting. On that date there were 88,729,899
shares of common stock outstanding and entitled to vote, with each such share having the right to one vote.

Which shares can be voted?
You may vote all shares owned by you as of the close of business on June 15, 2007. This includes:

= Shares held directly in your name as the shareholder of record.

s Shares of which you are the beneficial owner but not the shareholder of record, such as those held for you
through a bank, broker or trustee.

Will my shares be voted if 1 do not return my proxy card or instruction form?
If you are an Alliance One shareholder whose stock was registered as of the close of business on June 15, 2007,
directly in your name with American Stock Transfer & Trust Company (“American Stock Transfer”), our
transfer agent, your shares will only be voted if your proxy is signed and returned, or you attend the meeting and
vote in person.

If you are an Alliance One shareholder whose stock was held as of the close of business on June 15, 2007,
through an account with a bank or broker, your shares may be voted even if you do not provide voting
instructions on your instruction form. Brokerage firms have the authority under the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE™) rules to vote shares on behalf of their customers on certain “routine” matters. The election of
directors is considered a routine matter for which brokerage firms may vote shares without voting instructions
from the customer. The approval of the Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan is not considered a
routine matter. When a proposal is not a routine matter and the brokerage firm has not received voting
instructions from the beneficial owner of the shares with respect to that proposal, the brokerage firm cannot vote
the shares on that proposal. This is called a broker non-vote.

What does it mean if I receive more than one proxy card or instruction form?
It means that you have multiple accounts with our transfer agent and/or banks or brokers. Please vote all of
the shares. For assistance consolidating your accounts to the extent possible, you may contact our transfer agent,
American Stock Transfer, at 1-866-627-2656.

May I vote at the meeting?
If you are a registered shareholder and attend the meeting, you may vote your shares in person. If you hold your
shares through a bank or broker and want to vote your shares in person at the meeting, you must contact your
bank or broker and obtain a legal proxy. Even if you plan to attend the meeting we encourage you to vate your
shares by proxy.



Can I change my vote after returning my proxy card or instruction form?
If you are a registered shareholder you may revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted. A proxy can be
changed or revoked by voting in person at the meeting, delivering another later dated proxy, or notifying
Alliance One’s Secretary in writing that you want to change or revoke your proxy.

If you hold your shares in nominee or “street name” through a bank or broker, you must follow the instructions
provided by your bank or broker, or contact your bank or broker regarding the revocation of your proxy. If you
have obtained a legal proxy from your bank or broker giving you the right to vote your shares, you may change
your vote by attending the meeting and voting in person.

All signed proxies that have not been revoked will be voted at the meeting.

How many votes are needed to hold the meeting?
A quorum is necessary to conduct business at the annual meeting. A quorum is a majority of the issued and
outstanding shares of Alliance One common stock as of June 15, 2007, either present in person or represented by
proxy at the meeting. Abstentions, withheld votes and shares held by a broker or bank on behalf of their
customers that are voted on any matter are counted for purposes of establishing a quorum at the meeting.

If a quorum is not present, the meeting may be adjourned from time to time by the vote of a majority of the
shares present without notice other than announcement at the meeting,

What items of business will be conducted at the meeting?
*  The election of five members to the Board of Directors; four directors to serve until the 2010 annual meeting
and one director to serve until the 2008 annual meeting, or until the election of their respective successors.

*  The ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s independent auditors for the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2008,

= The approval of the Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan.
®  Any other business properly brought before the meeting.

How many votes are needed to elect the nominees for director?
The election of each nominee for director requires a plurality of the votes cast by shareholders entitled to vote at
the meeting. Because directors are elected by a plurality, abstentions, withheld votes and broker non-votes will
have no effect on their election.

How many votes are needed to ratify the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s independent
auditors?
The selection of Deloitte & Touche, LLP as the Company’s independent auditors will be ratified if the votes cast
“For” exceed the votes cast “Against.” Abstentions and broker non-votes will not be included in the vote totals
for the ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s independent auditors.

How many votes are needed to approve the Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan?

The approval of the Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan requires the affirmative vote of a
majority of the shares of Common Stock cast on this proposal; provided that the total votes cast on the proposal
represents more than 50% of the number of shares entitled to vote on the proposal. Pursuant to applicable NYSE
requirements, abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted as being entitled to vote on the proposal to
approve the Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan. Abstentions will be treated as votes cast on
this proposal, but broker non-votes will not be treated as votes case on this proposal. As a result, broker non-
votes will have no effect on the proposal to approve the Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan,
provided that the total votes cast on this proposal represents more than 50% of the number of shares entitled to
vote on this proposal. Abstentions will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal to approve the
Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan.




What if I do not specify how I want my shares voted?
Unless you specify to the contrary, all of your shares represented by valid proxies will be voted “FOR” the
election of all director nominees, “FOR” ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the
Company’s independent auditors, “FOR” the approval of the Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive
Plan, and in accordance with the discretion of the proxy holders on any other matter that properly comes before
the annual meeting.

What if a nominee for director becomes unavailable for election?
In the event that any nominee becomes unavailable for election, the Board may either reduce the number of
directors or choose a substitute nominee. If the Board selects a substitute nominee, shares represented by proxy
will be voted for the substitute nominee.

How will proxies be voted on other matters that are properly brought before the meeting?
The Company is not aware of any other business to be presented at the meeting. However, if any other matter is
properly brought before the meeting, the proxies received will be voted on those items in accordance with the
discretion of the proxy holders.

Will the directors be present at the meeting?
It is Alliance One’s policy that directors attend the annual meetings of sharcholders and we currently expect all
of our directors to be in attendance at the 2007 Annual Meeting.

Will shareholders have an opportunity to ask questions at the meeting?
Yes. Foltowing the business portion of the meeting, Company representatives will be available to answer
shareholder questions.

GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Board fosters and encourages an environment of strong corporate governance, including disclosure controls and
procedures, internal controls, fiscal accountability, high ethical standards and compliance with applicable policies,
laws and regulations. Re-examining Company practices and setting new standards is an ongoing process as the area
of corporate governance continues to evolve. Therefore, the Board fully expects its governance practices and
documents to be reviewed and modified as needed upon the recommendation of the Governance and Nominating
Committee.

Shareholder Access to Governance Documents

Website

All of the Company’s governance-related documents are available on its website at www.aointl.com. Available
documents include the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and charters of the
Audit, Executive Compensation, Finance and Governance and Nominating Committees. When changes are made to
any of these documents, updated copies are posted on the website as soon as practical thereafter.

Written Request
Copies of the Company’s governance documents are also available, free of charge, by written request addressed to:

Corporate Secretary, Alliance One I[nternational, Inc., 8001 Aerial Center Parkway, P. O. Box 2009, Morrisville,
North Carolina 27560.

Communications to the Board of Directors

Shareholders and interested parties may communicate with the Board of Directors, any commitiee of the Board, the
Lead Independent Director or any individual director as appropriate. Communications must be made in writing to
the Corporate Secretary, Alliance One International, Inc., 8001 Aerial Center Parkway, P. O. Box 2009, Morrisville,
North Carolina 27560. The Secretary will determine in his good faith judgment which communications to relay to
the applicable directors.

See the paragraphs entitled “Shareholder Nominations” and “Shareholder Proposals” for guidelines specific to
those types of communications with the Board.




Code of Business Conduct

Alliance One has a Code of Business Conduct that clearly defines the Company’s expectations for legal and ethical
behavior on the part of every Alliance One director, officer, employee and agent. The Code of Business Conduct
also governs Alliance One’s principal financial officer and principal accounting officer. It is designed to deter
wrongdoeing and promote honest and ethical business conduct in all aspects of the Company’s affairs. Any waiver of
the Code of Business Conduct for any director or executive officer would require approval by the Board of Directors
and would be disclosed immediately thereafter to shareholders via the Company’s website, www.aointl.com.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Alliance One Corporate Governance Guidelines, in conjunction with the charters of key Board committees,
inform shareholders, employees, customers and other constituents of the Board’s principles as a poverning body.
The Guidelines are reviewed at least annually by the Board.

Determination of Independence of Directors

For a director to be deemed “independent,” the Board of Directors of Alliance One must affirmatively determine
that the director has no material relationship with Alliance One either directly or as a partner, shareholder or officer
of an organization that has a relationship with Alliance One. In making this determination, the Board applies the
following standards:

= A director who is an emplayee, or whose immediate family member is an executive officer of Alliance One,
is not independent until three years after the end of such employment relationship. Employment as an
interim Chairman or Chief Executive Officer will not disqualify a director from being considered
independent following such employment.

= A director who receives (or whose immediate family member serving as an executive officer receives) more
than $100,000 per year in direct compensation from Alliance Ong is not independent until three years afler
he or she ceases to receive more than $100,000 per year in such compensation (excluding director and
committee fees and pensions or other forms of deferred compensation for prior service, provided such
compensation is not contingent in any way on continued service). Compensation received by a director for
former service as an interim Chairman or Chief Executive Officer will not count toward the
$100,000 limitation.

* A director who is affiliated with or employed by (or whose immediate family member is affiliated with or
employed by} a present or former internal or external auditor of Alliance One is not independent until three
years after the end of either the affiliation or the employment or auditing relationship.

® A director who is employed (or whose immediate family member is employed) as an executive officer of
another company where any of Alliance One’s present executives serve on that company’s compensation
committee is not independent until three years after the end of such service or employment relationship.

" A director who is an executive officer or an employee (or whose immediate family member is an executive
officer) of a company that makes payments to, or receives payments from, Alliance One for property or
services in an amount which, in any single fiscal year, exceeds the greater of $1 million or 2% of such other
company’s consolidated gross revenues is not independent until three years after falling below
such threshold.

Governance and Nominating Committee Process

Alliance One’s Board of Directors has a Governance and Nominating Committee composed entirely of independent
directors and governed by a charter. As stated in the charter, it is the responsibility of the Committee to identify and
evaluate potential candidates to serve on the Board. Candidates may be identified through a variety of means,
including professional or personal contacts of directors, shareholder recommendations or a third party firm engaged
in the recruitment of directors.



Candidates are assessed by the Committee in view of the responsibilities, qualifications and independence
requirements set forth in the Corporate Governance Guidelines. Candidate assessment begins with a review of the
candidate’s background, education, experience and other qualifications. Candidates viewed favorably by the
Committee then meet, either individually or collectively, with the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the
Governance and Nominating Committee and other directors as appropriate, prior to being recommended for election
to the Board.

An invitation to join the Board of Directors is extended only after a candidate’s qualifications have been reviewed
by the Committee, the Committee has formally recommended the candidate to the Board for approval, and the Board
has approved the candidate’s election by a majority vote. Invitations are extended on behalf of the Board by
the Chairman.

The Committee may engage the services of a third party to assist in the recruitment of directors as necessary. To
date, the Commuittee has not engaged the services of such a firm.

Minimum Director Qualifications

In order to qualify for service on the Alliance One Board of Directors, an individual must possess the following
characteristics: integrity; the ability to actively participate in and contribute to the deliberations of the Board; the
capacity and desire to represent the balanced, best interests of the shareholders; and sufficient time available to
devote to the responsibilitics of a director. Determination of whether an individual meets these qualifications is
made in the business judgment of the Board.

Shareholder Nominations — 2008 Annual Meeting

Any shareholder entitled to vote in the election of directors generally may nominate at a meeting one or more
persons for election as a director if written notice of such nomination or nominations is delivered or mailed to the
Secretary of the Corporation in accordance with the Company’s Bytaws, which state that such notification must
include:

= the name, age and address of each proposed nominee;

s the principal occupation of each proposed nominee;

*  the nominee’s qualifications to serve as a director;

= the name and residence address of the notifying shareholders; and
*  the number of shares owned by the notifying shareholder.

Te be received in accordance with the Company’s Bylaws, nominations for the 2008 Annual Meeting must be
received not earlier than June 2, 2008 nor later than June 27, 2008. The Secretary of the Corporation will deliver all
such notices to the Governance and Nominating Committee which will consider such candidates. The Governance
and Nominating Committee shall thereafter make its recommendation to the Board of Directors, and the Board of
Directors shall in turn make its determination with respect to whether such candidate should be nominated for
election as a director.

Shareholder Proposals — 2008 Annual Meeting

To be considered for inclusion in the Company’s proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting, shareholder
proposals must be submitted in writing to the Secretary of the Corporation by March 15, 2008, and must be
submitted in accordance with Rule 14a-8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the laws of the Commonwealth of
Virginia and the Bylaws of the Company.

Pursuant to the Bylaws of the Company, in order for any business not included in the proxy statement for the 2008
Annual Meeting to be brought before the Annual Meeting by a shareholder, the proposal must be submitted in
writing by May 14, 2008. The notice must include as to each matter the shareholder proposes to bring before the
Annual Meeting:

*  a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the Annual Meeting and the reasons for
conducting such business at the Annual Meeting;




®  the name and record address of the sharcholder proposing the business;
® the number of shares beneficially owned by the shareholder; and
= any material interest the shareholder has in such business.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PROPOSAL ONE
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s Bylaws provide that the Board of Directors will consist of thirteen directors, divided into three
classes as nearly equal in number as possible. Typically, each class of directors serves for three years and one class
is elected at each annual meeting. However, in connection with Mr. Harker's planned retirement from the Board of
Directors effective at the conclusion of the 2007 Annual Shareholders” Meeting, and in order to rebalance the
membership of the Board among the existing classes of directors, four directors (Messrs. Robert E. Harrison, Albert
C. Monk II1, B. Clyde Preslar and Norman A. Scher) have been nominated for election at the 2007 annual meeting
to serve three-year terms as Class I directors, and one director (Mr. C. Richard Green, Ir.), has been nominated for
election at the 2007 annual mecting to serve a one-year term as a Class Il director. The Governance and Nominating
Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors has approved, each of the
nominees for election to the Board of Directors. Each nominee is currently a director of Alliance One; and, with the
exception of Robert E. Harrison, President and Chief Executive Officer of Alliance One, each nominee has been
determined by the Board to be independent from management. All nominees have consented to serve if elected.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE “FOR” THE
ELECTION OF EACH OF THE NOMINEES LISTED ABOVE.

Director Biographies
The following information is furnished with respect to the Company’s directors and nominees:
Class 1
Nominees for the Term Expiring in 2010
Robert E, Harrison — Age 53, Director since 2005
President and Chief Executive Officer of Alliance One since January 1, 2007. President and Chief Operating
Officer of Alliance One from May 13, 2005 to December 31, 2006. President and Chief Executive Officer of

Standard Commercial from August 1996, and Chairman of the Board of Directors from August 2003 to May 13,
2005.

Albert C. Monk, Ill - Age 67, Director since 1995

Retired since January 2001. Consultant to DIMON from January 2000 to December 2000. Vice Chairman of the
Board of DIMON from March 1999 to December 1999. President of DIMON from April 1995 to February 1999.

B. Clyde Preslar — Age 53, Director since 2005

Private consultant since December 1, 2006. Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Cott
Corporation, a manufacturer of beverage products, from August 2005 to December 2006. Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Lance, Inc., a manufacturer, marketer and distributor of snack food products, from February
2002 to August 2005, and Secretary of Lance from April 1996 to August 2005. Prior thereto, Director of Financial
Services with Black & Decker Corporation, a manufacturer of power tools and accessories.

Other directorships: Forward Air Corporation.



Norman A. Scher — Age 89, Director since 1995

Vice Chairman of the Board of Tredegar Corporation, a manufacturer of plastic films and aluminum extrusions,
since March 2006. President and Chief Executive Officer of Tredegar from September 2001 through February
2006. Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Tredegar from July 1989 to September 2001.

Other directorships: Tredegar Corporation.

Class 11
Nominee for the Term Expiring in 2008

C. Richard Green, Jr. - Age 63, Director since 2003

Non-Executive Director of ITC Limited, a company in India engaged in operating hotels, agricultural exports and
manufacturing cigarettes and paperboard, since July 1999. Regional Director of British American Tobacco, a
multinational tobacco company, from January 1999 to April 2002.

Other directorships: ITC Limited,

Class 11
Directors with Terms Expiring in 2008

Brian J. Harker — Age 57, Director since 1999

Chairman of Alliance One since January 1, 2007, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Alliance One from May
13, 2005 to December 31, 2006. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of DIMON from March 2003 to May 13,
2005. President and Chief Executive Officer of DIMON from May 1999 to February 2003. Mr. Harker will retire
as planned from the Company’s Board of Directors at the conclusion of the 2007 Annual Meeting.

Nigel G. Howard — Age 61, Director since 2005

Retired since December 2003. Deputy Chief Executive of The Morgan Crucible Company plc, a designer,
developer and supplier of products made from carbon, ceramic and magnetic materials, from September 2002 to
December 2003, and Director of The Morgan Crucible Company from September 1992 to December 2003. Deputy
Chairman, Assam Carbon Products, Lid., India, March 1977 to August 2005. Non-Executive Chairman of
Zotefoams PLC, a manufacturer of industrial foams, from January 2007 to present, and Non-Executive Director of
Zotefoams since January 2006.

Other directorships: Zotefoams PLC

Joseph L. Lanier, Jr. — Age 75, Director since 1995

Retired since August 2006, Chairman of the Board of Dan River, Inc,, a textile manufacturer, from November 1989
to August 2006. Chief Executive Officer of Dan River, Inc. from November 1989 to February 2005. Non-
Executive Chairman of the Board of DIMON from May 1999 to February 2003.

Other directorships: Flowers Foods, Inc.; Torchmark Corporation

William 8. Sheridan — Age 53, Director since 2005

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Sotheby’s, an auctioneer of fine arts and antiques, since 1996.
Prior thereto, Mr. Sheridan was a partner at the accounting and consulting firm of Deloitte & Touche.



Class 111
Directors with Terms Expiring in 2009

John M. Hines -~ Age 67, Director since 1995

Private investor and consultant since 1996. Director of Glen Raven, Inc., a private textile manufacturing company,
since May 2001. Consultant to DIMON from July 1996 to June 1998. Executive Vice President of DIMON from
April 1995 to June 1996.

Other directorships: Glen Raven, Inc.

Mark W. Kehaya — Age 39, Director since 2005

Partner at Meriturn Partners, LLC, an investment firm specializing in restructurings and turnarounds of middle-
market companies, since January 2002. President, CEQ and COO of Eturn Communications, Inc., a software
solutions provider, from November 2000 to October 2001. Employed by Standard Commercial beginning in April
1993, serving variously as Assistant to the President, Finance Director of the Tobacco Division, Vice President-
Planning, and as Chief Executive Officer of Standard Commercial’s tobacco processing facility in St. Petersburg,
Russia, until March 2000,

Other directorships: Bamacle Seafood, Inc.; Dunn Paper/ Valentine, Inc.; Irving Tanning, Inc.; Johnston Textiles,
Inc.

Gilbert L. Klemann, Il — Age 56, Director since 2005

Senior Vice President and General Counsel of Avon Products, Inc., a direct seller of beauty and related products,
since January 2001. Prior thereto, served as an Executive Vice President, General Counsel and a Director of Fortune
Brands, Inc. (formerly American Brands, Inc.), a diversified consumer products company, and as a partner in the law
firm of Chadbourne & Parke LLP.

Other directorships: North American Galvanizing & Coatings, Inc.

Martin R. Wade, 1H - Age 58, Director since 2001

President and Chief Executive Officer of Broadcaster, Inc. (formerly International Microcomputer Software Inc.), an
internet entertainment network, since September 2006, and Chief Executive Officer of International Microcomputer
Software Inc., since September 2001. Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Digital Creative
Development Corporation (IXC2), a developer of entertainment content companies focusing on broadband content
delivery and providing Internet-related business-to-business services, from May 2001 to August 2001. Director and
Executive Vice President of DC2 from June 2000 to April 2001. Managing Director of Prudential Securities, Inc., a
global securities firm, from May 1998 to June 2000.

Other directorships: Advaxis, Inc., Broadcaster Inc.; Command Security Corporation; Nexmed, Inc.

Independence

The Board has affirmatively determined that the directors and nominees listed herein, with the exception of Messrs.
Harker and Harrison, are independent, as that term is defined under the Corporate Governance Standards of the New
York Stock Exchange. The Board has adopted categorical standards, which are discussed above under “Governance
of the Company,” to assist it in making its independence determinations and, with the exception of Messrs. Harker
and Harrison who are employees of the Company, each director and nominee listed above meets such categorical
standards.



Board Committees and Membership

The Board has standing Audit, Executive, Executive Compensation, Finance and Governance and Nominating
Committees. With the exception of the Executive Committee, each committee operates under a charter approved by
the Board. Such charters, containing descriptions of the committees’ responsibilities, are available on our website,
www.acintl.com. All members of the Audit, Executive Compensation and Governance and Nominating Committees
meet the requirements for independence set forth by the New York Stock Exchange in Section 303A.02 of the Listed
Company Manual.

The following table indicates the membership of, and number of meetings held during fiscal year 2007 by, each
committee of the Board:

Executive Executive Finance Governance
Compensation and
Nominating

Name Audit

| Mr. Green

| Mr. Harker

| Mr. Harrison
| Mr. Hines

| Mr. Howard
[ Mr. Kehaya
| Mr, Klemann
[ Mr. Lanier

[ Mr. Monk

I Mr. Preslar
['Mr. Scher

| Mr. Sheridan
| Mr. Wade

FY 2007
Meetings

X*

X*

X*

X*

—_~,__._.__..___.__,____.__..‘%4_.~m~_.mu‘m_
i) ey iy S ey )y ) ] Wity ity i mimmimin] smmnny
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*

*Chair

The Audit Committee currently consists of Mr. Preslar (Chairman), Mr. Green, Mr. Klemann and Mr. Wade. This
Committee’s principal responsibilities include overseeing accounting policies, auditing and reporting practices;
selecting, overseeing, evaluating, compensating and replacing independent auditors; overseeing the internal audit
function; evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and risk management policies; overseeing
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; providing for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints
regarding internal accounting controls or auditing matters; and preparing a committee report for inclusion in the
annual proxy statement.

The Executive Committee currently consists of Mr. Sheridan (Chairman), Mr. Harker, Mr. Harrison and Mr. Monk.
This Committee meets on call and has the authority to act in behalf of the Board when the full Board is not in
session.

The Executive Compensation Committee currently consists of Mr. Scher (Chairman), Mr. Howard and Mr. Lanier.
This Committee’s principal responsibilities include reviewing and approving incentive compensation and equity-
based plans consistent with shareholder approved plans; where appropriate, making recommendations to the Board
with respect to new incentive compensation plans and equity-based plans for Board or shareholder approval;
reviewing and approving salaries and incentive awards for executive officers; reviewing and approving corporate
goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”); evaluating CEO
performance; recommending to the independent directors the compensation of the CEO, including base salary and
incentive awards; and preparing a committee report on executive compensation for inclusion in the annual proxy
statement.




The Finance Committee currently consists of Mr. Kehaya (Chairman), Mr. Hines and Mr. Wade. This Committee’s
principal responsibility is to assist the Board with regard to the Company’s financial policies and practices.

The Governance and Nominating Committee currently consists of Mr. Lanier {(Chairman), Mr. Hines and Mr.
Sheridan. This Committee’s principal responsibilities include analyzing the structure, size and composition of the
Board; developing and monitoring director selection criteria; identifying, recruiting, evaluating and recommending
to the Board qualified nominees for election to the Board of Directors at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders;
reviewing and recommending to the Board Corporate Governance Guidelines; overseeing the adoption and periodic
review of conimittee charters; overseeing the Company’s Compliance Program; recommending to the Board, when
appropriate, the removal of a director; recommending to the Board directors to serve as Chairman, Lead Independent
Director, committee chairs and committee members; recommending to the Board the retirement policy and
remuneration of non-employee directors; providing for Board and committee self-evaluations; and reporting to the
Board its conclusions regarding the Board’s effectiveness and performance.

Board Meetings

Alliance One’s non-management directors, all of whom are independent as that term is defined by the Corporate
Governance Standards of the New York Stock Exchange, meet regularly in executive session. In accordance with
Alliance One’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Lead Independent Director presides at executive sessions of
non-management directors. During fiscal year 2007, Mr. Sheridan served as Lead Independent Director. The Board
typically makes the Lead Independent Director determination at the first meeting of the Board of Directors
following the annual shareholders’ meeting in conjunction with committee assignments.

During fiscal year 2007, there were seven meetings of the Board of Directors. Each director attended at least 75%
of the total meetings of the Board and committees of which he was a member, other than Mr. Monk, who attended
approximately 63% of the meetings held. It is our policy that directors attend the annual meetings of shareholders.
All thirteen directors then in office attended the 2006 annual meeting.

Compensation of Non-Employee Directors

Directors who are employees of the Company or its subsidiaries or who serve as paid consultants to the Company
are not compensated for their services as director. The following table represents the compensation received by the
non-employee directors for fiscal year 2007:

Director Compensation
Change in Pension
Value and
Nonqualified
Deferred
Fees Earned or Stock Awards Compensation
Name Paid in Cash(1) ($¥2) Earnings (3) Total ($)
C. Richard Green $40,590 $15,760 $0 $£56,260
John M. Hines $36,500 $15,760 50 $52,260
Nigel G. Howard $38,500 $15,760 $0 $54,2600
Mark W. Kehaya $35,000 $15,760 $0 $50,760
Gilbert L. Klemann, I1 $42.000 $15,760 50 $57,760
Joseph L. Lanier, Jr. $43.500 $15,760 $72,014 $131,274
Albert C. Monk, 111 $27,000 $15,760 $0 $42,760
B. Clyde Preslar $42.250 $15,760 $0 $58,010
Norman A. Scher $41,500 $15,760 $0 $57,260
William 8. Sheridan $47,500 $15,760 $0 $63,260
Martin R. Wade, Il $44,500 $15,760 30 $60,260
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(1) Non-employee directors (directors who are neither employees nor paid consultants of the Company) receive an annual cash
retainer, as follows:

Type of Service ' Annual Retainers -
Board Member £20,000
Audit Committee Chair +$ 5,000
Executive Compensation Committee Chair +§ 3,600
Audit Committee Member +§ 3,000
Executive Committee Chair +$ 2,600
Governance & Nominating Committee Chair +3 2,000
Finance Committee Chair +§% 2,000
Lead Independent Director +8$10.000

Non-employee directors also receive a fee of 81,500 for each board meeting attended in person or by phone, and $1,600 for
each committee meeting attended in person or by phone.

(2) Pursuant to the Incentive Plan approved by shareholders on November 6, 2003 (the 2003 Incentive Plan”}, non-employee
directors may be granted common stock, performance shares or options to purchase common stock for a per share exercise
price equal to the fair market value of one share of common stock on the date of the grant. On August 17, 2006, pursuant
to the 2003 Incentive Plan and upon approval by the Board, each non-employee director was awarded 4,000 shares of
restricied stock. The restricted stock has a vesting date of one year from the date of grant. The values shown for the
restricted stock reflect the grant date fair value calculated in accordance with SFAS 123R associated with these restricted
shares on the date of grant.

(3} Alliance One’s non-employee directors previously were eligible to participate in a Compensation Deferral Plan, which was
approved by the Board on June 23, 2003, but frozen as of December 31, 2004. Mr. Lanier is the only remaining participant
in the plan. No deferrals were made during the year, and no future deferrals may be made to such plan. Under the
Compensation Deferral Plan, a non-employee director could elect to defer all or any portion of the cash or equity based
compensation received and have the deferred amount credited to a notional account under such plan. Cash compensation
deferred is adjusted monthly for investment gains and losses using the 10-year Treasury Bond Index as a benchmark.
Stock based compensation deferred is adjusted monthly for gains and losses using the month-end closing price of Alliance
One commen stock as a benchmark. The Compensation Deferral Plan is unfunded. Withdrawals from the plan are not
permitted until the termination of a participating director’s service on the Board. The value in this column reflects the
change in the value of Mr. Lanier’s account under the plan, including the gains in the closing price of Alliance One
common stock, from April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007.

Other Agreements and Business Relationships

Messrs. Hines and Monk had employment agreements with the Company prior to their retirements, effective July 1,
1996 and December 31, 1999, respectively. Under his employment agreement, Mr. Hines was entitled to receive an
annual retirement benefit of $180,000 through 2008. Effective July 1, 2003, with the approval of the Board’s
Executive Compensation Committee, the Company and Mr. Hines agreed to decrease the amount of those payments
but continue to pay them for a longer term. As a result, Mr. Hines is now entitled to receive annual payments of
$120,000 through October 31, 2011. Based on a present value calculation by independent consultants, the present
value of the modified payments is substantially equivalent to Mr. Hines’ prior benefits. Mr. Monk is entitled to
receive an annual retirement benefit of $190,000 through 2009 under the terms of his employment agreement.
Thereafter, Mr. Monk will be entitled to his SERP retirement benefit.

Mr. C. Richard Green, Jr. is a non-executive director of ITC Limited, a company in India in which British American
Tobacco has a minority interest and with which Alliance One does an immaterial amount of business.




OWNERSHIP OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table sets forth the only persons known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5%
of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company as of the dates set forth in the footnotes to the table, with
percentage of ownership calculated using the number of outstanding shares of common stock on the dates noted
below.

Number of Shares

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Beneficially Owned  Percent of Class'"
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP @ 7,567,587 8.53%
1299 Ocean Avenue

Santa Monica, CA 90401

Wachovia Corporation 6,717,499 1.57%
One Wachovia Center
Charlotte, NC 28288-0137

Barclays Global Investors, NA ¢ 5,908,616 6.66%
Barclays Global Fund Advisors

Barclays Global Investors, Ltd.

45 Fremont Street

San Francisco, CA 94105

Franklin Resources, Inc. © 4,785,700 5.39%
Charles B. Johnson

Rupert H. Johnson, Jr.

One Franklin Parkway

San Mateo, CA 95503

and

Franklin Advisory Services, LLC

One Parker Plaza, 9% Floor

Fort Lee, NJ 07024

(U} All percentages are based on 88,729,899 shares of Alliance One common stock outstanding on May 31, 2007,
which number does not include shares owned by wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company which are not
entitled to vote their shares or to receive any dividends with respect to such shares.

@ Based solely on an amended Schedule 13G filed on February 9, 2007, reporting information as of December 31,
2006, that indicates Dimensional Fund Advisors Inc. is the beneficial owner of 7,567,587 shares and has sole
voting power over 7,567,587 shares and the sole dispositive power over 7,567,587 shares.

4 On February 5, 2007, Wachovia Corporation filed an amended Schedule 13G reporting information as of
December 31, 2006, that indicated that Wachovia Corporation was the beneficial owner of 7,417,499 shares and
had sole voting power over 7,417,499 shares, the sole dispositive power over 3,897,590 shares and the shared
dispositive power over 3,519,909 shares. These shares included 3,519,909 shares in certain trusts of which Mr.
Mark W. Kehaya, a director of the Company, is a co-trustee, and with respect to which Wachovia Corporation is
being reported as having shared investment power. Since December 31, 2007, such trusts have sold 700,000
shares (the “Disposition Shares”). Therefore, the number of shares beneficially owned by Wachovia
Corporation as of December 31, 2006 has been reduced by the number of Disposition Shares, and such reduced
number of shares is reflected in the table.

™ Based sotely on a amended Schedule 13G filed on January 23, 2007, reporting information as of December 31,
2006, that indicates Barclays Global Investors, NA is the beneficial owner of 5,908,616 shares and has sole
voting power over 5,702,890 shares and the sole dispositive power over 5,908,616 shares.
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®  Based solely on an amended Schedule 13G filed on February 5, 2007, reporting information as of December 31,
2006, that indicates Franklin Resources, Inc. is the beneficial owner of 4,785,700 shares and has sole voting
power over 4,785,700 shares and the sole dispositive power over 4,785,700 shares.

Stock Ownership of Management

The following table provides information as of May 31, 2007, with respect to the direct and indirect ownership of
common stock by (1) each director and nominee for director; (2) each of the Company’s named executive officers;
and (3) all directors, nominees and executive officers of the Company as a group. On May 31, 2007, there were
88,729,899 shares of Alliance One common stock outstanding, which number does not include shares owned by
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company which are not entitled to vote their shares or to receive any dividends

with respect to such shares.

Number of

Shares with Number of

Sole Voting Shares with Number of

and Shared Voting Shares Percent of
Investment and Investment Beneficially Class
Name of Beneficial Owner Power Power Owned"? {2

Henry C. Babb 86,523 0 86,523 *
James A. Cooley 156,992 22 157,014 *
Steven B. Daniels” 155,873 168 156,041 *
C. Richard Green, Jr. 22,000 0 22,000 *
H. Peyton Green, III 232,424 2,472 234,896 *
Brian J. Harker 416,689 2,125 418,814 *
Robert E. Harrison 416,139 0 416,139 *
John M. Hines 18,609 12,000 30,609 *
Nigel G. Howard 12,716 0 12,716 *
Hilton Kappaun 58,250 0 58,250 *
Mark W. Kehaya 1,048,874 2,836,273 3,885,147 4.38%
Gilbert L. Klemann, Il 22,801 9,000 31,801 *
Joseph L. Lanier, Jr. 59,427 0 59,427 *
Michael K. McDaniel 81,046 0 81,046 *
Albert C, Monk, [ 636,196 0 686,196 *
William D. Pappas 49,584 0 49,584 *
B. Clyde Preslar 46,112 3,000 52,112 *
Noman A. Scher 42,463 0 42 463 *
William S. Sheridan 60,611 0 60,611 *
J. Pieter Sikkel 19,464 0 19,464 *
Martin R. Wade, 111 37,700 0 37,700 *
Executive Officers, Directors and 3,733,493 2,865,060 6,598,553 7.44%

Nominees For Director as a Group
(includes 21 people total} >

* Less than 1%.

) Includes shares of common stock that may be acquired upon exercise of options that are currently exercisable or
will become exercisable within sixty days of May 31, 2007, as follows: Mr. Babb, 28,500 shares; Mr, Cooley,
75,981 shares; Mr. Daniels, 0 shares; Mr. C.R. Green, 4,500 shares; Mr. H.P. Green, 20,000 shares; Mr. Harker,
55,500 shares; Mr. Harrison, 116,500 shares: Mr. Hines, 14,500 shares; Mr. Howard, 0 shares; Mr. Kappaun,
38,250 shares; Mr. Kehaya, 10,875 shares; Mr. Klemann, 3,375 shares; Mr. Lanier, 46,500 shares; Mr.
McDaniel, 28,500 shares; Mr. Monk, 74,500 shares; Mr. Pappas, 32,250 shares; Mr. Preslar, 10,875 shares; Mr.
Reynolds, 16,000 shares; Mr. Scher, 21,500 shares; Mr. Sheridan, 10,875 shares; Mr. Sikkel, 0 shares; Mr.
Wade, 14,500 shares; and the officers, directors and nominees as a group, 623,481 shares.
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Also includes restricted shares of common stock held as of May 31, 2007, as follows: Mr. Babb, 23,469 shares;
Mr. Cooley, 57,500 shares; Mr. Daniels, 0 shares; Mr. C.R. Green, 4,000 shares; Mr. H.P. Green, 32,500 shares;
Mr. Harker, 210,000 shares; Mr. Harrison, 195,368 shares; Mr. Hines, 4,000 shares; Mr. Howard, 4,000 shares;
Mr. Kappaun, 17,500 shares; Mr. Kehaya, 14,537 shares; Mr. Klemann, 5,710 shares; Mr. Lanier, 4,000 shares;
Mr. McDaniel, 19,905 shares; Mr. Monk, 4,000 shares; Mr. Pappas, 15,000 shares; Mr. Preslar, 19,487 shares;
Mr. Reynolds, 7,500 shares; Mr. Scher, 4,000 shares; Mr. Sheridan, 19,487 shares; Mr. Sikkel, 19,464 shares;
Mr. Wade, 4,000 shares; and the officers, directors and nominees as a group, 685,427 shares.

The restricted shares awarded to executive officers in fiscal 2006 and 2007 are restricted for three years from the
date of the award, provided the recipient remains in the employ of the Company. The restricted shares awarded
to non-employee directors remain restricted for one year from the date of the award, provided the recipient
remains on the Board of the Company. Each of the recipients retains the right to vote the shares and receive any
dividends on the shares until the shares are forfeited. The restricted shares cannot be transferred or assigned
before they vest.

The restricted shares awarded to former executive officers of DIMON prior to the Merger are restricted for three
years from the date of the award, provided the recipient remains in the employ of the Company. The restricted
shares awarded to former executive officers and non-employee directors of Standard Commercial prior to the
Merger are restricted, depending on the type of restricted shares held by the individual, for either four years from
the date of the award, three years from the date of the award provided the recipient remains employed by the
Company, or until the recipient retired from the Board. Each of the recipients retains the right to vote the shares
and receive any dividends on the shares until the shares are forfeited. The restricted shares cannot be transferred
or assigned before they vest.

This number also includes shares owned by minor child(ren} of the reporting person, or held in a trust or other
estate planning vehicle over which the reporting person is understood to have sole voting and investment power.

@ Includes shares owned by the spouse of the reporting person, either directly, jointly with the reporting person or
as custodian for the minor child({ren) of the reporting person.

3 Mr. Daniels’ employment terminated on June 30, 2006. The amounts in this table reflect his beneficial
ownership upon the termination of his employment, including 65,000 shares of common stock that could be
acquired upon exercise of options that were exercisable or became exercisable within sixty days thereafter. We
are not able to verify the extent to which Mr. Daniels has increased or decreased his beneficial ownership of
shares since such date.

@ Includes 2,819,909 shares as of May 31, 2007, in certain trusts of which Mr, Kehaya is a co-trustee, and with
respect to which Wachovia Corporation is being reported as having shared investment power.

3} Includes the shares beneficially owned by Mr. Steven B. Daniels immediately following the termination of his
employment with the Company on June 30, 2006.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The Company believes that during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, all reports for the Company’s executive
officers and directors that were required to be filed under Section 16{a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 were
filed on a timely basis, except that two reports reflecting fifteen transactions for Mr. Mark W. Kehaya were not filed
on a timely basis.

AUDIT MATTERS

Audit Committee Members and Meetings

Alliance One’s Board of Directors has an Audit Committee that is composed of Mr. Preslar (Chairman) and Messrs.
Green, Klemann and Wade. The Board has determined that each of the Audit Committee members meets the
requirements for independence set forth by the New York Stock Exchange in Section 303A.02 of the Listed
Company Manual and by the SEC in Exchange Act Rule 10A-3. The Committee met seven times during fiscal year
2007.
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Audit Commirttee Charter

The Audit Commitice is governed by a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Appendix A. [n addition, the Audit Committee’s charter is currently available on the Company’s
website, www aointl.com.

Financial Literacy and Expertise

The Board, upon recommendation of the Governance and Nominating Committee, has determined that each member
of the Audit Committee is financially literate as that term is interpreted by the Board in its business judgment. The
Board has further determined that Mr, Preslar meets the requirements of an audit committee financial expert, as that
term is defined by the SEC in Item 401(h) of Regulation $-K. As stated above, Mr. Preslar has been determined to
be independent from management.

Other Audit Committee Service

The Company currently does not limit the number of audit committees on which its Audit Committee members may
serve. However, the Audit Committee charter approved by the Board stipulates that, if an Audit Committee member
simultancously serves on the audit committee of more than three public companies, the Board must determine that
such simultaneous service would not impair the ability of the director to effectively serve on the Company’s Audit
Committee and disclose such determination in the annual proxy statement. None of the Audit Committee members
currently serves on more than three audit committees of public companies.

Audit Committee Functions

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with
respect to the Company’s accounting and financial reporting practices, and the quality and integrity of the
Company’s financial reports. This includes the oversight of Alliance One’s financial statements provided to any
governmental or regulatory body, the public or other users; the effectiveness of Alliance One’s internal control
process; and Alliance One’s engagement of independent auditors. The Committee’s functions are described more
fully in the section entitled “Board Committees,” and in the charter attached as Appendix A.

Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee oversees the Company’s financial reporting process on behalf of the Board of Directors.
Management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements and the reporting process, including the
systems of internal controls. In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities the Committee reviewed with management
the audited financial statements in the Annual Report, including a discussion of the quality, not just the
acceptability, of the accounting principles; the reasonableness of significant judgments; and the clarity of disclosures
in the financial statements.

The Committee reviewed with the independent auditors, who are responsible for expressing an opinion on the
conformity of those audited financial statements with generally accepted accounting principles, their judgments as to
the quality, not just the acceptability, of the Company’s accounting principles and such other matters as are required
to be discussed with the Committee under generally accepted auditing standards, including Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 6!, and the Committee has discussed any items required to be communicated to it by the independent
auditors in accordance with regulations promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board and standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Independence Standards Board.

The Committee has received from the independent auditors a letter describing any relationships with the Company
that may bear on their independence and has discussed with the independent auditors the auditors’ independence
from the Company and its management. The Committee has pre-approved all fiscal year 2007 audit and permissible
non-audit services provided by the independent auditors and the fees for those services. As part of this process, the
Committee has reviewed the audit fees of the independent auditors. It has also reviewed non-audit services and fees
to assure compliance with regulations prohibiting the independent auditors from performing specified services that
might impair their independence as well as compliance with the Company’s and the Committee’s policies.
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The Committee discussed with the Company’s internal and independent auditors the overall scope and plans for
their respective audits, The Committee meets with the internal and independent auditors, with and without
management present, to discuss the results of their examinations, their evaluations of the Company’s internal
controls, and the overall quality of the Company’s financial reporting,

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Committee recommended to the Board of Directors
that the audited financial statements be included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Audit Committee:

B. Clyde Preslar, Chairman
C. Richard Green, Jr.
Gilbert L. Klemann, 11
Martin R. Wade, 111

Policy for Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services

The Audit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services to be provided by the
independent auditors. These services include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services.
Pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of service and is subject to a specific budget. The
Audit Committee requires the independent auditors and management to report at Audit Committee meetings
throughout the year on the actual fees charged for each category of service.

During the year, circumstances may arise when it may become necessary to engage the independent auditors for
additional services not contemplated in the original pre-approval. In those instances the Audit Committee requires
specific pre-approval before engagement. The Audit Committee has delegated pre-approval authority to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee for those instances when pre-approval is needed prior to a scheduled Audit
Committee meeting. The Chairman of the Audit Committee must report on such pre-approvals at the next scheduled
Audit Committee meeting.

Independent Auditors

Subsequent to the completion of the Merger, the Company issued a Request for Proposal to several independent
audit firms for the conduct of a full-scope integrated audit of the Company’s financial statements, including reviews
of unaudited interim financial information and of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting for the
year ending March 31, 2007. Following such competitive process, the Audit Committee dismissed its prior
independent auditor, Emst & Young LLP (“Ernst & Young™), as of August 25, 2005, and engaged Deloitte &
Touche LLP (“Deloitte & Touche™), on August 31, 2003, as its independent auditor for fiscal year 2006, effective
with the quarter ended September 30, 2005. Thereafter, Deloitte & Touche audited the Company’s accounts for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2007; and, as more fully described below in Proposal Two, has been selected by the
Audit Committee to serve as Alliance One’s independent auditors for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008.

The reports issued by Emst & Young on the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2004 and March 31, 2005, the two most recent fiscal years prior to their dismissal, did not contain an adverse
opinion or a disclaimer of opinion, or any qualification or modification as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting
principies. Further, during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004 and March 31, 2005, the two most recent fiscal
years prior to the dismissal, and through August 25, 2005, the date of dismissal, there were no disagreements with
Emst & Young on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope
or procedure, which, if not resolved to the satisfaction of Emst & Young, would have caused Emnst & Young to
make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with its reports.
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Audit and Non-Audit Fees

Set forth below are the fees billed to the Company by Emst & Young in connection with services rendered during
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 until their dismissal on August 25, 2005, and by Deloitte & Touche in
connection with services rendered during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006 and March 31, 2007:

FY 2006 FY 2007

Ernst & Deloitte & Total Deloitte &

Young Touche Touche
Audit Fees!! $681,399 $3,923,870 $4,609,769

$4,165,074

Audit-Related Fees® 277,599 1439 285,038 6,599
Tax Fees™ 27,780 86,719 114,499 68,489
All Other Fees™ — 386 386 -
Total $987,278 $4,018,414 $5,005,692 $4,240,162

O Audit Fees. Audit Fees consist of professional services rendered in the audit of the Company’s annual financial
statemnents, review of the Company’s quarterly financial statements, as well as work that generally only the
independent auditor can reasonably be expected to provide, such as comfort letters, statutory audits, attest services,
consents and assistance with reporting requirements.

D dudit-Related Fees. Audit-Related Fees consist of assurance and related services performed by the independent
auditor that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of financial statements and may include,
among others, employee benefit plan audits, due diligence related to mergers and acquisitions, internal control
reviews, consultation regarding financial accounting and reporting standards, and services provided in conjunction
with the Merger.

3) Tax Fees. Tax Fees consist of services performed by the independent auditor for tax compliance, tax planning
and tax advice.

@Y Alf Other Fees. Amounts paid to Deloitte & Touche during fiscal year 2006 relate to the preparation of a study
analyzing the cost of living in Malawi. There were no fees billed or services rendered by Deloitte & Touche during
fiscal year 2007 and fiscal year 2006, or by Emst & Young during fiscal year 2006, other than those described
above.

PROPOSAL TWO
RATIFICATION OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE AS INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has selected the firm of Deloitte & Touche to serve as the Company’s independent auditors
for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008, and has directed that management submit the selection of independent
auditors to the shareholders for ratification at the Annual Meeting. Deloitte & Touche has audited the Company’s
accounts for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006, and previously audited the accounts of
Standard Commercial since 1988. Representatives of Deloitte & Touche are expected to attend the shareholder
meeting, will have an opportunity to make a statement if they so desire, and will also be available to respond to
appropriate questions.

Shareholder ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche as the Company’s independent auditors is not required
by the Company’s bylaws or otherwise. However, we are submitting the selection of Deloitte & Touche to the
shareholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. If the appointment of Deloitte & Touche is not
ratified by the shareholders, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether or not to retain Deloitte & Touche. Even
if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee in its discretion may direct the appointment of a different
independent audit firm at any time during the year if it is determined that such a change would be in the best
interests of the Company and its sharcholders.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE “FOR” THE
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE AS THE COMPANY’S
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2008.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Alliance One is principally engaged in purchasing, processing, storing, and selling leaf tobacco in the United States,
Africa, Europe, South America and Asia. The strategy behind the Merger with Standard Commercial and the
creation of Alliance One is simple: to create a strategic leaf supply company with the footprint and scale necessary
to drive efficiency, sustainability and long-term sharcholder value in an intensely competitive, cyclical and
challenging industry with a significant degree of global complexity and risk. Given this environment, the
experience, continuity, and contribution of the executive leadership team is critical to the near term and long-term
success of the Company.

Compensation Philosophy and Core Principles

The Company believes that its ability to attract and retain senior executives is significantly influenced by the quality
and competitiveness of our compensation and benefits programs. The primary objectives of Alliance One’s
compensation and benefit programs are:

to enhance the recruitment and retention of executive talent;

to support a pay-for-performance culture which encourages and rewards the achievement of Company and
personal objectives; and

to reinforce Alliance One’s commitment to enhance long-term shareholder value.

We seek to accomplish these objectives while maintaining a cost-effective structure that is aligned with the interests
of our shareholders. To meet these objectives, the compensation programs must be competitive and reflect an
appropriate balance of “at risk” vs. fixed and cash vs. equity compensation. The Executive Compensation
Committee (the “Committee™) of the Board of Directors periodically reviews the compensation mix to ensure
alignment with market practices as well as the Company’s operating strategy, cost control imperatives, and long-
term value creation objectives. Accordingly, the compensation mix may vary over time and among executives.
Overall compensation levels are targeted at the median of competitive practice, but actual pay earned varies based
on Company and personal performance.

Process and Procedure for Determining Compensation of Executive Officers

The Board of Directors has charged the Committee with the responsibility for establishing executive compensation
policies and overseeing the development and management of total compensation levels and programs for the CEO
and other executive officers. As part of this responsibility, the Committee, along with the Board of Directors, also
evaluates the performance of the CEQ and determines the compensation for the CEO based on the performance
assessment as well as Alliance One’s compensation philesophy.

Under its charter, the Committee is responsible for selecting and retaining its objective advisors. For fiscal 2007, the
Committee has retained Mercer Human Resource Consulting (“Mercer” or the “Consultant™) as a third party advisor
to provide objective advice, research and evaluation related to executive compensation. In this capacity, Mercer
reports directly to the Committee and meets regularly with the Committee Chair and Committee both with and
without management present. Based on independent data provided by Mercer, the CEO makes a reconunendation to
the Committee for the compensatton of all executive officers, other than his own. The CEO and the Senior Vice
President of Human Resources also provide the Committee with additional market data and individual performance
results to gauge overall compensation.

In determining and assessing the compensation levels and structure, the Committee reviews and considers market
data and information provided by Mercer, individual compensation tally sheets prepared by the Company showing a
summary total of all elements of compensation, and recommendations from the CEQ. The market data provided by
Mercer is obtained from independent published compensation surveys as well as a select group of peer companies of
similar size and operating characteristics to the Company. The Committee uses a consistent approach for all
executive officers but also exercises appropriate business judgment in how it applies these standard approaches to
the facts and circumstances associated with each executive. Overall, the Committee uses the competitive benchmark
data as a tool, not the absolute guideline, for establishing compensation levels, mixes and pay practices.
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Elements of Compensation

The core elements of the compensation for the executive officers, including the Named Executives, of Alliance One
are described in the following table:

Element Description Objective
Base salary Fixed compensation typically set = Provides base economic
within range of market median security at a level consistent

: 0/ &0
E;{g:aggniglﬁ;?oﬁ)percem of with competitive practices
= Reflects role and responsibility

of executive

= Impacted by individual
performance, experience and
level of responsibility

Annual incentives Variable cash compensation linked = Provides alignment to annual
. to corporate and individual ting strategy through
(typically 25% - 30% of target o -O'P d individua operating strategy throug
. objectives corporate objectives
compensation)
Includes threshold, target, and » Aligns with personal
maximum objectives performance via individual
cbjectives
Long-term incentives Long-term equity compensation » Provides link to shareholder
. . . lue creation
(typically 20% to 30% of For 2007, compensation provided vat
target compensation) via stock options and service-based = Strengthens mutuality of
restricted stock interests between Named
Executives and shareholders
= Motivates and rewards for
financial performance over a
sustained period
» Vesting period fosters
retention of key employees
Benefits and Perquisites Healthcare » Ensure employee health,

. L Ifare, and reti t ]
Life and Disability Insurance wetre, etirement nccd

) . « Fosters retirement and savings
Retirement and Pension Plans . . &

planning for Executives
Basic benefit participation offered

» Provides retirement securi
to other employees ty

Base Salaries

Base salary levels represent a moderate percentage of overall compensation opportunity to the executive officers.
However, base salaries serve as a foundation of our compensation program, as the majority of other compensation
elements are determined as a percentage of base salary. Base salary levels are targeted to approximate the median
salary of those presented in competitive market data. However, each individual salary’s comparisen to market will
depend on a number of individual factors, including the role and nature of the job relative to market information as
well as individual performance and characteristics. Base salaries are adjusted periodically (typically in April at the
start of the fiscal year), based on competitive market changes, individual and corporate performance, modifications
in job responsibilities, the executive’s position within his or her respective salary range and the executive’s future
potential and value to the Company.

For fiscal 2007, at the request of executive management, base salaries for executive officers were not increased from
the level established at the time of the Merger (May 13, 2005) as part of the overall effort to achieve key cost
synergies and focus on controlling fixed expenses. Effective January 1, 2007, Mr. Robert E. Harrison was elected
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He has served as President and Chief Operating Officer
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since the Merger and previously served as Chairman, President and CEQ of Standard Commercial. Mr. Harrison’s
salary was not adjusted at the time of his promotion, but the Committee utilized market data for comparable
positions provided by Mercer and factored this into his review for fiscal 2008.

Incentives

Alliance One places more emphasis on performance-driven pay delivered through short- and long-term incentives.

Annual Incentives

The purpose of the annual incentive is to provide competitive annual cash compensation for executive officers that
rewards the achievement of key corporate and operating unit objectives as well as overall individual performance
and leadership. For 2007, the Committee adopted the Management Incentive Plan (the “MIP”} pursuant to which
executive officers were eligible for cash bonus awards. Annual incentive opportunities under the MIP are targeted
at the median of competitive market data and are closely calibrated to the level of performance achieved. Annual
incentives under the MIP are structured to provide for varying payments expressed as a percentage of annual base
compensation with the percentage increasing the higher an executive officer’s position is within the Company.

Each year management presents to the Board an operating strategy and financial plan for the year. The Committee,
with input from management, utilizes the operating strategy and financial plan in establishing and approving the
MIP’s key performance measures and corporate goals for the year. The performance goals are expressed as
“threshold,” “target,” and “maximum” objectives for the executives and serve as a benchmark for assessing each
executive’s performance for the fiscal year. The Commitiee generally intends to set Company performance targets
so that the difficulty of achieving the target is consistent from year to year with a 30% - 50% probability that target
performance will be achieved. If the applicable financial plan goal is exceeded, the executive is eligible for more
than a target bonus. In addition to the operating performance goals of the Company, the executive officer’s annual
incentive bonus is also subject to the achievement of key performance objectives or milestones related to individual
performance. The Committee generally approves payments of the annual performance-based benuses during the
first quarter of the year following the performance year.

For fiscal 2007, the MIP tied 70% of each executive’s award opportunity to overall Company performance and 30%
to individual performance objectives. Company performance was measured using an equally weighted combination
of (a) underlying consolidated earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT") and (b} a consolidated “economic profit”
measure based on earnings less the opportunity cost of the net assets employed in the business. In addition,
Company performance objectives were subject to a minimum Underlying Net Income per Common Share threshold
(the “UEPS Threshold™) required in order to trigger any potential payouts. Individual performance was measured
against key performance objectives established for each executive at the beginning of the year. Although individual
performance objectives are customized to each executive’s roles and responsibilities, for 2007, these generally
included measures related to leadership development and succession planning following the Merger, capital
budgeting and planning, debt reduction and improved operating efficiencies. Should the minimum UEPS Threshold
for the Company performance component not be attained, the Committee would have had sole discretion to
determine the individual performance payouts. Potential target payouts ranged from 45% - 75% of base salary with
maximum payouts ranging from 76.5% to 127.5% of base salary., Maximum bonus opportunities reflected a 200%
of target payout potential on the Company performance component and 100% of target payout potential on the
individual performance component.

In fiscal 2007, the UEPS Threshold was attained and Company and individual performance resulted in annual
incentive award levels between target and maximum for each of the executive officers. This is the first year since
the Merger that the Company performance component of the program yielded an incentive award to executives. In
addition to attaining the UEPS Threshold, key accomplishments in fiscal 2007 included sizeable debt reduction,
continued cost control and reorganization of the management team. The Company believes that, overall, results
continue to demonstrate improvements resulting from execution of the Company’s operating strategy, including the
anticipated cost reduction and synergies resulting from the Merger.
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Long-Term Incentives

Long-term incentives comprise a significant portion of an executive’s compensation. The purpose of long-term
incentives is to closely align the interests of management and shareholders by creating a long-term view of
performance and value creation.

The Committee administers the Company’s incentive plan that was approved by the shareholders in 2003 as the
principal means to provide long-term incentives to the Company’s executive officers and certain other officers and
key employees. Typically, the Committee focuses on the judicious use of equity and monitoring the overall dilution
level and run-rate of shares issued under the plan. Historically, the Committee has targeted an annual run-rate of
less than 1.5% of common shares outstanding. All equity grants are approved by the Committee before being
issued. The Committee approves stock option and restricted stock grants at the Committee meeting coinciding with
the annual meeting of sharcholders in August of each year, The Company does not time or plan to time its release of
material non-public information for the purpose of affecting the value of executive compensation. The grant price
of options is the closing price of the stock on date of grant.

For fiscal 2007, the Company granted both stock options and restricted stock as long-term incentives. The
Committee typically awards long-term incentives in amounts it believes appropriate to attain an overall mix of target
compensation for a particular executive in line with the midpoint in target compensation for executive in its peer
group companies. However, in fiscal 2007, the Committee scaled back its equity grants to a certain extent in light of
the total number of remaining shares available for issuance pursuant to its 2003 Incentive Plan. Options comprised
approximately 33% - 50% of the individual long-term grant value and restricted stock comprised approximately
50% - 66%. Options were granted with a ten-year term and four-year ratable vesting. Restricted stock was granted
with cliff vesting at the end of the third year following the date of the grant (provided the recipient remains an
employee in good standing). Upon vesting, 100% of the restricted stock awards, net of taxes, must be held until the
earlier of (a) reaching age 60, (b) termination of employment, or (c) seven years from the date of vesting. Consistent
with the Company’s custotnary practices, awards were made in August of 2006.

Merger-Related Special Long-Term Incentive Plan

In connection with the execution of the merger agreement between DIMON and Standard Commercial on November
7, 2004 (the “Merger Agreement”), the Compensation Committee of DIMON’s Board of Directors designed a
Special Long-Term Incentive Plan (SIP) for key executives. The objective of the Special Long-Term Incentive Plan
was to create an incentive opportunity for Alliance One’s management team to achieve targeted cumulative earnings
pet share and specific projected savings and synergies over the two-year period following the completion of the
Merger (fiscal year 2006 and fiscal year 2007). As such, 75% of the incentive payout pursuant to the plan is based
on cumulative Underlying Net Income per share and 25% of the incentive payout is based on cumulative savings
and synergies.

Based on cumulative performance during the two-year period, the portion tied to Underlying Net Income per share
was not achieved but the portion tied to synergies and cost savings was achieved at the maximum performance level.
The earnings per share component was not achieved primarily due to unexpected economic and weather related
factors in the first year of the two-year program. The following table provides the maximum oppottunity established
for each Named Executive Officer at the beginning of the performance period and the amount earned and approved
by the Committee based on the financial results achieved:

Name Maximum 2-year 2-year Special
Special Incenitve Incentive Plan
Plan Opportunity Earned and
Approved
Robert E. Harrison $1,100,000 $275,000
James A, Cooley $525,000 $131,250
H. Peyton Green $525,000 $131,250
Henry C. Babb $325,000 $81,250
Michael K. McDaniel $325,000 $81,250
Brian J. Harker $1,100,000 $275,000
Steven B. Daniels $525,000 30
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Other Benefits for Chief Executive Officer and Executive Officers

In order to provide competitive total compensation, Alliance One provides the CEO and other named executives
with the same benefit package available to all salaried employees. The benefits package includes a cash balance
pension plan and a qualified 401(k) plan. Executive officers participate in these plans on the same terms as other
salaried employees. The ability of executive officers to participate fully in these plans is limited under Internal
Revenue Code and ERISA requirements. As is commonly the case among its peer group, the Company offers to
executive officers nonqualified restoration programs and enhanced pension benefits, a nonqualified deferred
compensation plan and split-dollar life insurance coverage as reflected in the “Summary Compensation Table.”

Alliance One provides other limited perquisites, the value of which is generally modest. The primary perquisites
provided to executives are relocation benefits under the Alliance One relocation policy (which are also offered to
other employees of the Company), which do allow for gross-ups on certain benefits paid under the policy. As a
result of the Merger and the relocation of Alliance One’s headquarters to Morrisville, North Carolina, the Company
has incurred and executives have received recent payments under the program. The Committee believes a market
based relocation policy is important for an international company with a presence in more than 40 countries and
employees that are frequently asked to move to other locations.

Employment Agreements

The Company currently has employment agreements with three of the Named Executives — Messrs. Harrison,
Harker and Babb. Mr. Green also had an employment agreement prior to his termination, These contracts generally
address the individual’s role and responsibilities as well as their rights to compensation and benefits. These
contracts also contain termination provisions and related compensation in the event of a change in control,
severance, and involuntary termination. These contracts were provided prior to, or in connection with, the Merger
of Standard Commercial and DIMON.

In all cases, the agreements stipulate that the executive may not compete with the Company for a defined period
following termination of employment or disclose confidential information. Additionally, Messrs. Harrison, Harker
and Babb’s employment agreements include a “double trigger” change in control provision. That is, for the change
in control benefits and other provisions in the employment agreements to apply, there must be both (1) the
consummation of change in control event, as well as (2) a termination by the Company without cause or a
resignation by the executive for good reason.

Change in Control (“CIC™) Policy and Severance Agreemenis

The Company also has entered into Change in Control agreements with Messrs. Cooley and McDaniel. Mr. Daniels
was provided a change in control agreement in connection with the Merger. As noted above, these agreements
require a “double trigger” termination event to trigger payment. These agreements exclude tax gross-up benefits and
specifically require payments to be reduced if the amount would result in 280G excise tax penalties under
Section 280G of the Code. Ali of the Company’s employment and change in control agreements were entered into
prior to the Merger.

Fiscal 2008 Compensation Planning

During fiscal 2007 and into fiscal 2008, the Committee has been working with Mercer which has provided
assistance with a competitive analysis of the Company’s executive compensation programs. Specifically, Mercer,
the Committee and management are reviewing Alliance One’s compensation programs in light of the strategic goals
and operating strategy of the newly combined Alliance One, recent accounting changes and legislation proposals,
competitive market practices, and emerging issues within the compensation landscape. The overall purpose of this
review is to ensure Alliance One’s compensation programs continue to align with the core compensation principles
and objectives of the Company while maintaining a cost-effective structure that is aligned with the interests of our
shareholders.
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The following is a summary of the plan design changes that have either been made or are in the process of being
made for fiscal 2008:

Long-Term Incentive Program

® A new equity plan and share reserve is being submitted for shareholder approval (see the section entitled
“Proposal Three — Approval of the 2007 Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan,” for
additional information regarding the proposed Plan)

s+  The new plan, which the Committee believes reflects prevailing market practices and new regulations, will
allow the Company to provide market-competitive and shareholder-aligned incentive opportunities to key
teaders globally; and will fully update the plan to reflect prevailing market practices and new regulations

+ Equity awards in fiscal 2008 will be comprised of 75% stock options and 25% restricted stock {(with long-
term holding requirements beyond vesting — see below)

Executive Ownership Policies
¢ Holding periods will continue on restricted stock; requiring that 100% of the net shares be held until the
earlier of (a) reaching age 60, (b) termination of employment, or (¢) 7 years from the vesting date
e New minimum stock ownership guidelines have been adopted requiring Executive Officers to own between
50,000 and 250,000 shares within five years
s  Company’s insider trading policy continues to prohibit the hedging of shares by executive officers

Executive Retirement Program
e A new defined contribution program will replace a variety of existing defined benefit programs, which the
Company believes will result in generally lower but consistent benefit levels that are market competitive
and cost effective (e.g. reduce cost and expense variability, comply with 409A tax regulations, etc.)

Tax and Accounting Considerations

The Committee reviews projections of the estimated accounting (pro forma expense) and tax impact of all material
elements of the executive compensation program. Alliance One and the Committee intend to administer the
compensation plans in a manner that maintains an appropriate cost structure and is aligned with shareholder
interests.

Generally, the Company realizes a tax deduction upon payment to/realization by the executive. Section 162{m) of
the Internal Revenue Code generally provides that publicly held corporations may not deduct in any one taxable year
certain compensation in excess of $1 million paid to the Chief Executive Officer and the next four most highly
compensated executive officers. The Committee uses, where practical, compensation policies and programs that
preserve the tax deductibility of compensation; however, the Committee at its sole discretion may approve payment
of nondeductible compensation from time to time if it deems circumstances warrant.

Report of the Executive Compensation Committee

The Executive Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the foregoing Compensation Discussion and
Analysis with management. Based on this review and discussion, the Executive Compensation Committee has
recommended to the full Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this
proxy statement.

Executive Compensation Committee:
Norman A. Scher, Chairman

Nigel G. Howard
Joseph L. Lanier, Jr,
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Executive Compensation Tables

The following tables reflect the compensation for the current CEOQ, the current Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) and
the three other most highly compensated executive officers who were serving as such at March 31, 2007.
Additionally, the tables include information for the following two individuals who would have been among the three
most highly compensated executive officers had they continued in their prior roles through March 31, 2007: (i) Mr.
Brian J. Harker who served as Chief Executive Officer through December 31, 2006 and continues to serve as the
Chairman of the Board until the annual meeting of sharcholders in August, 2007; and (ii) Mr. Steven B. Daniels,
former Executive Vice President of Operations (see Notes 8 and 9). Collectively, the above individuals are the

Named Executives.

Summary Compensation Table

Nonqualified
Non-Equity Deferred
[ncentive Plan Compensation All Other
Fiscal Stock Awards  Option Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation
Name and Principal Position  Year  Safary ($) 5™ [tk e (s e Total ($)
Robert E. Harrison,
Principal Executive Officer ® 2007 $525,000 $324 414 $74,019 $725,397 $480,324 $4,400 $2,135,561
James A, Cooley,
Principal Financial Officer 2007 $290,000  $216,148 $37.435 $346,869 $144,790 $81,566 $1,118,815
H. Peyton Green, IH,
Executive Vice President -
Salas 2007  $260,000 $318,129 $59,203 $307,407 $0 $747,600  $1,714,445
Henry C. Babb, ’
Senior Vice President,
Chief Legal Cfficer and
Secretary 2007 $284,200 ~ $69,058 $16,757 $227,539 $40,018 $4,400 $643,980
Michael K. McDaniel,
Senior Vice President -
Human Resources 2007  $190,000 $57,054 $16,757 $179,051 $22,781 $80,629 $548,278
Brian J. Harker, -
Chairman and former
Chief Executive Officer ® 2007  $550,000 $992,433 $233,711 $746,845 $0 $66,936 $2,591,932
Steven B. Daniels,
former Executive Vice
President -Operations © 2007 $90,000 $1,130,481 $0 $0 $193,939 $1.224,441  §2 640,868

(1) This column reflects the dollar amount recognized by Alliance One for financial statement reporting for fiscal year 2007

2)

(3

with respect to restricted stock awards granted to the Named Executive in fiscal year 2007 and prior years, determined in
accordance with SFAS 123R, including with respect to acceleration of vesting upon termination for certain officers. For
information on the assumptions used in valuing restricted stock awards, refer to note K of Alliance One’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year in which the award was granted. For further information on the terms and conditions of
the grants, see the “Girants of Plan-Based Awards Table.” The amounts in this column do not necessarily represent the
value of the awards granted, nor are they a prediction of the actual value that wil! be realized by the Named Executive.

This column reflects the dollar amount recognized by Alliance One for financial statement reporting for fiscal year 2007
with respect to options granted to the Named Executive in fiscal year 2007 and prior years, determined in accordance with
SFAS 123R, including with respect to acceleration of vesting upon termination for certain officers. For information on the
assumptions used in valuing option grants, refer to note K of Alliance One’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year in which the
option was granted. These amounts in this column do not necessarily represent the value of the option grants, nor are they
a prediction of the actual value that will be realized by the Named Executive.

This column includes the payment of performance-based annual cash incentive awards to the Named Executive pursuant to
the Management Incentive Plan {MI1P) for services performed during fiscal year 2007 as well as special payments issued
under the Merger-Related Special Long-Term Incentive Plan (SIP) for services performed during the two fiscal years
ending March 31, 2007. Additional information is provided in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis. Cash incentive
award payments pursuant to each of the MIP and SIP bonus amounts for each Named Executive are provided in the
following table:
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Name MIP Payout | SIP Payout Total

Robert E. Harrison $450,397 $275,000 $725,397
James A. Cooley $215,619 $131,250 $346.869
H. Peyton Green, ll| $176,157 $131,250 $307,407
Henry C. Babb $146,289 $81,250 $227 539
Michael K. McDaniel $97.801 $81,250 $179,051
Brian J. Harker $471,845 $275,000 $746,845
Steven B. Daniels $0 50 50

(4} This column reflects the aggregate change in the actuarial present value of the Named Executive’s accumulated pension

(s

—

benefits in fiscal year 2007. See the “Pension Benefits Table” for additional information. For Mr. Green, the aggregate
change in the actuarial present value of accumulated pension benefits in fiscal year 2007 was a decrease in value of $22,251
due to his employment terminating March 31, 2007. For Mr. Harker, the aggregate change in the actuarial present value of
accumulated pension benefits in fiscal year was a decrease in value of $35,274 due to his pending retirement in August 2007,
None of the Named Executives earned above-market returns on deferred compensation during 2007.

The following table lists all amounts included in the “All Other Compensation” column of the Summary Compensation
Table:

401(k) Split $ Life  Termination
Company Relocation Insurance Related Postretirement

Match Expenses Premiums Payments Medical Benefits
All Other Compensation o) ) el o o Total
Robert E. Harrison $4,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,400
James A, Cooley $4,400 $53,746 $23,420 $0 %0 $81,566
H. Peyton Green, Il $4,400 $257,995 $25,831 $445,385 $13,897 $747,609
Henry C. Babb $4,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,400
Michael K. McDaniel $3,800 $76,829 $0 50 $0 $80,629
Brian J. Harker $4,400 $324 $48,187 $0 $13,025 $66,936
Steven B. Daniels $1,800 $0 $12,243 $1,210,399 30 $1,224,441

(a) This column lists company matching coniributions allocated to the Named Executive’s account pursuant to the
Alliance One Savings and Profit Sharing Plan.

(b) This column reflects relocation reimbursements and allowances paid to the Named Executives in connection with
Alliance One’s relocation of its headquarters to Morrisville, North Carolina. This amount includes payment or
reimbursement, as applicable, of (i) certain costs associated with the sale of the executive's prior principal
residence, (ii} house hunting and moving expenses, (iii) new home closing costs, {iv} a relocation allowance, (v)
loss on the sale of the prior home, and (vi) associated tax payments for these expenses. For Mr. Green, includes a
loss incurred by the Company on the sale of his prior home in the amount of $170,000.

(c)  This column reflects split-dollar life insurance policy premiums paid by the Company.

{d) In connection with his termination of employment on March 31, 2007, Mr. Green became entitled to $445,385 in
cash severance or separation payments. Of this amount, $165,389 will be paid in October 2007, and the remainder
will be paid in 12 equal menthly installments of $23,333 commencing in November 2007.

In connection with his termination of employment on June 30, 2006, and pursuant to the terms of his Change in
Control agreement, Mr. Daniels received a cash severance payment of $1,193,082 and other cash payments of
$17,317 during fiscal year 2007 (of this amount, $6,927 constituted a reimbursement for taxes.)

(e) This column reflects the incremental expense recognized by Alliance One in fiscal year 2007 with respect to post-
retirement health care benefits promised to the Named Executive under his employment agreement, The amounts
were determined in accordance with SFAS 106, but only to the extent the benefits promised to the Named
Executive under his employment agreement are more generous than post-retirement health care benefits provided to
other Alliance One salaried employees who retire after satisfying applicable retirement criteria. See the “Potential
Payments upon Termination/Change-In-Control” table for additional information, including the present value
assumptions used in determining the incremental expense.
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(6) Mr. Harrison was elected Chief Executive Officer on January 1, 2007. From May 13, 2005 through December 31, 2006,
Mr. Harrison was Alliance One’s President and Chief Operating Officer.

(7) Mr. Green's employment terminated on March 31, 2007,

(8) Mr. Harker served as Chief Executive Officer of the Company until December 31, 2006.

(%) Mr. Daniels' employment terminated on June 30, 2006. Upon his termination, Mr. Daniels forfeited outstanding stock
options with an exercise price greater than the fair market value of a share of Alliance One common stock as of the close of
business on June 30, 2006. For financial reporting purposes and in accordance with SFAS 123R, Alliance One recorded and
reversed $26,659 in fiscal year 2007 stock option expense associated with these forfeited stock awards.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

The following table provides information regarding grants of plan-based awards to the Named Executives in fiscal

year 2007:
Grants of Plan Based Awards
All Other
Stock All Other Full
Awards: Option Grant
Number Awards: Exercise or Date Fair
of Shares| Number of Base Price of Value of
of Stock | Securities Option Option
Grant | Estimated Future Payouts Under Non- { or Units | Underlying Awards Awards
Name Date " Equity Incentive Plan Awards © #® |options (#)®  ($/Sh) ot
Threshold ($) Target ($) Maximum ($)
Robert E. Harrison 8/17/2006 70,000 70,000 $3.94 $144,900
$0 $393,750 $669,375
James A. Cooley 8/17/2008 20,000 30,000 $3.04 $62,100
S0 $188,500 $320,450
H. Peyton Green, Il 8/17/2006 10,000 20,000 $3.94 $41,400
%0 $154,000 $261,800
Henry C. Babb ’ 8/17/2006 ‘ 7.500{ 15,000 $3.94 $31,050
$0 $127,890 $217.413 \
Michael K. McDaniel 8/17/2006 7.500 15,000 $3.94 $31,050
30 $85,500 $145,350
Brian J. Harker 81772006 70,000 70,000 $3.94 $144,900
$0 $412,500  $701,250
Steven B. Daniels $0 $198,000  $336,600 0 0 $0.00 $0
(1) Stock awards are granted during August of each year, coinciding with the Executive Compensation Committee meeting

2

3)

held in connection with the annual meeting of shareholders. Awards are granted under the 2003 Incentive Plan.

The amounts in the threshold, target and maximum columns represent the potential amounts that were payable based on
the MIP targets and goals approved by the Executive Compensation Committee. With respect to each corporate goal, a
minimum, target and maximum performance level is specified, the attainment of which determines the amount paid for
each performance goal (generally 0%, 100%, and 200%). With respect to individual performance, payment levels can
only be achieved up to target performance and are subject to certain minimum requirements. See “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis” for additional information.

This column reflects the number shares of restricted stock granted. Restricted stock awards vest 100% at the end of the
third year following the date of the grant, provided the recipient remains in the employment of the Company. Upon
vesting, 100% of the fiscal 2007 restricted awards, net of taxes, must be held until the carlier of (a) reaching age 60, (b)
termination of employment, or {c) seven years from the date of vesting. Each of the recipients retains the right to vate the
shares and receive any dividends on the shares until the shares are forfeited. The restricted shares cannot be transferred
or assigned before they vest.
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(4)

{5)

This column represents non-qualified and incentive stock options. Option grants have a ten-year term and become
exercisable with respect to one-fourth of the grant on each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant
date. Stock options have an exercise price equal to the grant date closing price.

The values shown for the stock options reflect the grant date fair value calculated in accordance with SFAS 123R
associated with these options on the date of grant. Utilizing the Black-Scholes valuation method, a value of $2.07 per
share was determined. The Black-Scholes Model is a complicated mathematical formula widely used to value exchange
traded options. However, stock options granted under the plan differ from exchange traded options in three key respects:
the options are long-term, nontransferable and subject to vesting restrictions, while exchange traded options are short-
term and can be exercised or sold immediately in a liquid market. In applying the Black-Scholes pricing model, the
Company has assumed an expected life of 6.25 years, an annual dividend yield for the Company’s common stock of 0%,
a riskless rate of return of 4.83%, and a stock price volatility of 47%. No adjustment has been made to reflect the non-
transferability of incentive stock options or the limited transferability of non-qualified stock options granted under the
plan. Consequently, because the Black-Scholes Model is adapted to value the options set forth in the table and is
assumption-based, it may not accurately determine the grant date present value. The actual value, if any, an optionee will
realize will depend on the excess of the market value of the common stock over the exercise price on the date the option
is exercised. The values reflect the accounting expense and may not reflect the actual value realized by the Named
Executive.

Mr. Daniels’ employment terminated on June 30, 2006; therefore, he did not receive grants of restricted stock or stock
options during fiscal 2007, His bonus opportunity under the MIP was effective as of April 1, 2006, prior to his
termination of employment and was included as termination-related payments under “Summary Compensation Table -
Other Compensation — Termination Payments.” Pursuant to his Change in Control Agreement, Mr. Daniels received a
pro-rata portion of the annual incentive award for the year in which termination occurred, assuming he would have
received an award equal to the higher of his target bonus for such year, or the actual bonus received for the most recently
completed fiscal year.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table

The following table presents information regarding unexercised stock options and granted but unvested restricted
stock awards held by the Named Executives,

Qutstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Option Awards Stock Awards
Market
Number of Number of Number of | Value of
Securities Securities Shares or | Shares or
Underiying Underlying Units of | Units of
Unexercised| Unexercised Option | Option | Stock that | Stock that
Options {#) | Optlons {#) Exercise | Expiration | Have Not | Have Not
Name Exercisable | Unexercisable Price ($) Date Vested | Vested "
Robert E. Harrison 36,000 $5.8300| 81472011
36,000 $6.3000( 8/13/2012
27,000 9,000 (2| $5.8000| &/11/2013
17,500 52,500 (3| $3.9600| 8/30/2015

70,000 (4] $3.9400| 8/17/2016
3,045] $28,105 (&)
52,323 $482941 (7
70,000] $646,100 @
70,000] $646,100 (9

James A. Cooley 4,481 $22.3125| 8/21/2007
6,500 39.2500] B/27/2008

40,000 $7.4400] 8/23/2011

17,500 $6.9500] 8/26/2013

17,500 )| $6.4500) 11/10/2014

7,500 22,500 @| $3.9600] &/30/2015

30,000 (| $3.9400] BM7/2016
17,500| $161,525 (10
20,000) $184,600 (8)
20,000| $184,600 (@)
H. Peyton Green, Il 10,000 $22.3125] 8/21/2007
10,000 $9.2500| 8/27/2008
12,500 (5] $6.4500| 11/10/2014
15,000 (3| $3.9600| 8/30/2015
20,000 (4| $3.9400| 8/17/2016
12,500] $115,375 (10)
10,000f  $82,300 (8
10,000 $92300 @&

Henry C. Babb 9,060 $5.8300| 81472011
9,000 $6.3000{ 8/13/2012
6,750 2,250 (2 $5.8000| 6/11/2013
3,750 11,250 (3] $3.9600| B/30/2015

15,000 @] $3.9400} 8/17/2016
1,659 $15313 (6
6,810 $62,856 (7}
7,500 $69,225 (&)
7500 $69.225 (9

Michael K. McDaniel 9,000 $5.8300| 8/14/2011
9,000 $6.3000 8M13/2012
6,750 2,250 (3| $5.8000| 6/11/2013
3,750 11,250 (3| $3.9600| 8/30/2015

15,000 ()| $3.9400| 8/17/2016
882 $8,141 (8
4,023 337132 M
7,500 $69,225 (g
7,500 $69.225 (9

Brian J. Harker 18,000 $22.3125| 8/21/2007
20,000 $8.2500| 8/27/2008

70,000 (5| $6.45060| 11/10/2014

17,500 52,500 (3)| $3.9600| 8/30/2015

70,000 (4)] $3.9400] 8/17/2016
70,000f $646,100 (10)
70,000f $646,100 (8)
70,000f $646,100 (9
Steven B. Daniels (11} 0 0 $0.0000 g 0 $0
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The market value of stock awards is based on the closing price of Alliance One stock on March 30, 2007, which was
$9.23 per share.

Awards granted on 6/11/2003 which were assumed in the Merger. Twenty-five percent of the grant vests on each of the
first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

Awards granted on 8/30/2005. Twenty-five percent of the grant vests on each of the first, second, third and fourth
anniversaries of the grant date.

Awards granted on 8/17/2006. Twenty-five percent of the grant vests on each of the first, second, third and fourth
anniversaries of the grant date.

Award granted on 11/§0/2004. Award vests 11/10/2007.
Awards granted on 6/11/2003, Awards were assumed in the Merger and vest 6/11/2007.

Awards granted on 8/10/2004. Awards were assumned in the Merger and vest on 8/10/2007. Upon vesting, 100% of the
awards, net of taxes, must be held until the earlier of (a) reaching age 60, (b) termination of employment, or {¢) seven
years from the date of vesting.

Awards granted on 8/30/2005. Awards vest on 8/30/2008. Upon vesting, 100% of the awards, net of taxes, must be held
until the earlier of (a) reaching age 60, (b) termination of employment, or (c) seven years from the date of vesting.

Awards granted on 8/17/2006. Awards vest on 8/17/2009. Upon vesting, 100% of the awards, net of taxes, must be held
until the earlier of () reaching age 60, (1) termination of employment, or (c) seven years from the date of vesting.

Awards granted on 11/10/2004. Awards vest on 11/10/2007.

Mr. Daniels” employment terminated on June 30, 2006 under the provisions of his change-in-control agreement. At this
time, all of his stock options with an exercise price above the then current stock price were forfeited and cancelled. Aill
other options became immediately vested and Mr. Daniels was required to exercise these shares before December 31,
2006, All unvested restricted shares accelerated on his termination date.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table

The following table provides information for the Named Executives with respect to stock option exercises and the
vesting of restricted shares for fiscal year 2007. Restricted shares are subject to additional holding peried
requirements (see discussion in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis™).

Option Exercises and Stock Vested
Option Awards Stock Awards ¥
Number of
Number of Shares Value
Shares Acquired Value Realized on | Acquired on  Realized on
Name on Exercise (#) Exercise (§) @ Vesting (#)  Vesting ($) ¥
Robert E. Harrison 0 $0 5,670 $23,203
James A, Cooley 100,000 $434,610 17,500 $68,775
H. Peyton Green, Il ¥ 122,500 $380,506 12,500 $51,188
Henry C. Babb 0 $0 3,118 $12,759
Michael K. McDaniel 0 30 1,615 $6,610
Brian J. Harker @ 330,000 $959,805 72,500 $284,925
Steven B. Daniels " 65,000 $243,604 57,500 $255,300
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(1) Share vesting and dollar value reflect amounts on a pre-tax basis. The 2003 Incentive Plan permits the withholding of
shares upon vesting to pay applicable income taxes.

) Calculated by subtracting the exercise price from the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of exercise
and multiplying the difference by the number of shares exercised.

(3) Calculated by multiplying the number of shares vesting by the closing price of the Company’s commeon stock on the date

of vesting,

{4) On March 12, 2007, Mr. Cooley exercised 100,000 stock options as detailed below:

(5) On March 16, 2007, Mr. Green exe!

Grant Exercise Options Exercise Market
Date Date Exercised Price Price
5/24/1999 3/12/2007 20,000 $5.50 $9.07
8/24/2000 3212007 40,000 $2.81 $9.07
8/26/2002 311212007 40,000 $6.25 $9.07
reised 122,500 stock options as detailed below:
Grant Exercise Options Exercise Market
Date Date Exercised Price Price
5/24/1999 316/2007 20,000 $5.50 $8.61
8/24/2000 3/16/2007 30,000 $2.81 $8.61
8/23/2001 3/16/2007 25,000 §7.44 $8.61
8/26/2002 3/16/2007 30,000 $6.25 $8.81
8/26/2003 316/2007 12,500 $6.95 $8.81
8/30/2005 3/16/2007 5,000 $3.96 $8.61
(6) On March 13, 2007, Mr. Harker exercised 330,000 stock options as detailed below:
Grant Exercise Options Exercise Market
Date Date Exercised Price Price
5/24/1999 3/13/2007 50,000 $5.50 $8.72
8/24/2000 311372007 70,000 $2.81 $8.72
8/23/2001 3/13/2007 70,000 $7.44 $8.72
8/26/2002 3/13/2007 70,000 $6.25 $8.72
8/26/2003 3/13/2007 70,000 $6.95 $8.72

(7) Mr. Daniels’ employment terminated on June 30, 2006 under the provisions of his change-in-control agreement. At this
time, all of his stock options with an exercise price above the then current stock price were forfeited and cancelled. All
other optiens became immediately vested and Mr. Daniels was required to cxercise these shares before December 31,

2006. All unvested restricted shares accelerated and became immediately exercisable on his termination date.

December 29, 2006, Mr. Daniels exercised 65,000 stock options as detailed below:

Grant Exercise Options Exercise Market
Date Date Exercised Price Price
8/24/2000 12/29/2006 40,000 $2.81 $7.00
8/30/2005 12/29/2006 25,000 $3.96 $7.00

30

On




Nongualified Deferred Compensation Table

The following table presents information on the Company’s deferred compensation program, which provides for the
deferral of compensation earned by the Named Executives on a basis that is not tax qualified, as of March 31, 2607.
Other than the Key Executive Life Insurance and Deferred Compensation agreements (“Dibrell Agrecments™)
established by Dibrell Brothers, Inc., a predecessor company, for Mr. Green in 1978 and 1980, Alliance One does
not maintain for its Named Executives any nonqualified deferred compensation programs.

8}

2

3)

(4)

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation
Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate
Contributions in Contributions in Earnings in Last Balance at Last
Name LastFY (5)!"  LastFy (§)® FY {$) © FYE ($}*
Rabert E. Harrison $0 30 $0 $0
Jamas A. Cooley $0 $0 $0 $0
H. Peyton Green, |1l $2,400 $4095 $0 $72.892
Henry C. Babb $0 50 $0 $0
Michael K. McDaniel §0 30 50 $0
Brian J. Harker $0 30 $0 $0
Steven B. Daniels $0 30 $0 30

Each of the Dibrell Agreements provides that Mr. Green will defer $200 per month so long as the Dibrell Agreements
remain in effect and he remains employed by the Company. These deferrals are credited to a bookkeeping account for
Mr. Green. The amount shown in this column is included in Mr. Green’s salary as shown in the “Summary
Compensation Table.”

A “Supplemental Amount” is credited to Mr. Green’s account as of his termination of employment in accordance with
the Dibrell Agreements. The “Supplemental Amount” is equal to the present value of the additional benefit Mr. Green
would have received under the Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Plan had Mr. Green not deferred any of his
compensation under the Dibrell Agreements, as determined by the actuary for the Pension Plan using the methodology
and material assumptions described in Note M to the financial statements in Alliance One’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended March 31, 2007. The amount shown in this column represents the increase in the
“Supplemental Amount” for fiscal year 2007.

Under the Dibrell Agreements, Mr. Green forfeited the accumulated earnings as of March 31, 2007, because of the
termination of his employment prior to age 65.

The aggregate account balance shown in this column is the total amount credited to Mr. Green’s account under the
Dibrell Agreemenis as of March 31, 2007, affer deducting accumulated camings forfeited upon his termination of
employment on such date. Pursuant to the Dibrell Agreements, the account balance will be paid to Mr. Green in equal
annual installments of $7,289.20 over ten years, without interest, commencing May 1, 2007.

Of the amount shown as Mr. Green's aggregate balance at March 31, 2007, $66,900 represents the total amount
deducted from his salary over the life of the Dibrell Agreements. Of this amount, $64,500 has been included as a part
of Mr. Green’s salary in prior “Summary Compensation Tables” or would have been so included had Mr. Green been
considered a Named Executive Officer in all years.
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Pension Benefits Table

The following defined terms are used in the disclosure regarding pension benefits in this section:

“AQI SERP” refers to the AOQ{ Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

“AOI PEP” refers to the AQI Pension Equity Plan

“AQI Pension Pian” refers to the Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Plan

“SCC SERP” refers to the Standard Commercial Corporation Supplemental Retirement

The following table presents information as of March 31, 2007, concerning each of the Company’s defined benefit
plans that provide for payments to be made to the Named Executives at, following or in connection with retirement.
No pension benefits were paid to any of the Named Executives during the last fiscal year.

Pension Benefits
Number of Years Present Value of
Credited Service  Accumulated
Name Plan Name #) Benefit {$) "
IRcbert E. Harison  AOI Pension Plan @ 11.75 188,693
AOI SERP & 11.75 1,313,546
SCC SERP ¥ 10.50 272,804
1,775,043
James A. Cooley AOI Pension Plan @ 26.00 173,130
AOI SERP™ 25.00 464,794
AQI PEP ® 25.00 720,469
1,358,303
IH. Peyton Green, Il AOI Pension Pian @ 35.83 399,456
AOI PEPY 35.83 1,251,438
Employment Agreement™® N/A 207,457
1,948,351
Henry C. Babb AOI Pension Plan @ 9.25 272,191
SCC SERPH 8.08 79,899
352,090
Michael K. McDaniel AO! Pension Plan @ 10.33 169,069
169,069
Brian J. Harker AOI Pension Plan @ ) 16.92 145,159
AOI SERPT 20.00 0
Employment Agreement®”’ 20.00 6,397,382
6,542,541
Steven B. Daniels  AOI Pension Ptan 24.50 155,747
AOI SERP® 2450 155,548
AQI PEP® 24.50 1,204,649
1,515,944

{1) Pension benefits shown in the above table were determined using the methodology and material assumptions described in
Note M to the financial statements in Alliance One’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2007,
except as described in the footnotes below.

(2) Present values for the AOI Pension Plan have been determined by assuming a retirement age of 65 (the normal retirement
age specified in the Pension Plan).

(3) Present values for the net AQI SERP benefits have been determined by assuming a retirement age of 65 (the normal
retirement age specified in the AOI SERP). For Mr. Harrison and Mr. Cooley, the accumulated AOI SERP benefit as of
March 31, 2007 is based on compensation and service through such date and the value of offsetting benefits (such as the
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AOI Pension Plan, the SCC SERP and the AOI PEP) determined as of the same date. For Mr. Daniels, the amount shown
is based on the final determination of his AOI SERP benefit as of his termination of employment on June 30, 2007. For
Mr. Harker, see note 7 below.

(4) The SCC SERP was frozen as of December 31, 2005. The present value calculations are based on the frozen benefit,
assuming a retirement age of 65.

(5) For Mr. Cooley, present value of his net AQI PEP benefit has been determined by assuming a retirement age of 60. Mr.
Cooley’s accumulated AOI PEP benefit as of March 31, 2007 is based on his compensation and service through such date
and the value of offsetting benefits (such as the AQI Pension Plan) determined as of the same date. For Mr. Daniels,
present value is based on the final determination of his net AOI PEP benefit as of his termination of employment on June
30, 2007, assuming a retirement age of 55. For Mr. Green, present value is based on the final determination of his A
PEP benefit as of his termination of employment cn March 31, 2007, and an April 1, 2007 AOI PEP retirement and
benefit commencement date.

{6) The present value of the supplemental retirement benefit payable under Mr. Green’s Employment Agreement has been
determined assuming a March 31, 2007 retirement date, and is based on the final determination of the benefit as of his
termination of employment on that date. The present value calculations assume a benefit commencement date of
November 20, 2008.

{7) Mr. Harker has accrued a benefit under the AQI SERP. However, Mr. Harker’s benefit under the AOl SERP is fully
integrated with a similar, enhanced SERP benefit under his Executive Contract. The present value of Mr. Harker's
accumulated SERP benefit is reported as zero in the table above because the entire accumulated benefit is reflected as part
of Mr. Harker’s Executive Contract benefit. If Mr. Harker had retired on March 31, 2007, he would have forfeited his
benefit under the AOI SERP, but the forfeited benefit would have been replaced by the enhanced SERP benefit payable
under the Executive Contract.

Ignoring the Executive Contract, and assuming a retirement age of 65 under the AOI SERP, the present value of Mr.
Harker’s accumulated AOI SERP benefit as of March 31, 2007 was $3,276,656. The accumulated AOI SERP benefit as
of March 31, 2007 is based on Mr. Harker’s compensation and service through such date and the valug of offsetting
benefits (such as the AQOI Pension Plan} determined as of the same date.

Mr. Harker's Executive Contract provides two separate retirement benefits. The first is an early retirement benefit
payable from his retirement date through age 65. The second is a benefit enhancement supplementing the AOE SERP.
The amount shown in the table above is the sum of the present values of these two benefits, assuming a March 31, 2007
retirement age. The early retirement benefit is based on Mr. Harker’s base salary and target annual bonus for fiscal year
2007. The enhanced SERP benefit is based on Mr, Harker’s compensation and service through March 31, 2007 and the
value of offsetting benefits (such as the AOI Pension Plan) determined as of the same date,

Any amount paid under the AOI SERP will reduce the enhanced SERP benefit payable under the Executive Contract,
dollar for doltar. If a retirement age of 65 is assumed for both the AOI SERP and the enhanced SERP benefit under the
Executive Contract, the present value of the accumulated AQI SERP benefit would be $3,276,656 and the present value
of the total benefit accumulated under the Executive Contract would be $3,120,725.

Plan Summaries/Provisions

Pension Benefits under Employment Agreement with Brian Harker

As noted above in footnote 7 to the Pension Benefits Table, Mr, Harker’s Executive Contract provides two separate
retirement benefits. The first is an annual early retirement benefit equal to 50% of the sum of his base salary and his
fiscal year 2007 target annual bonus., The early retirement benefit is payable in monthly installments beginning in
the month following his separation from all positions with Alliance One, and ending in the month before his 65"
birthday. However, any amounts payable within six months after Mr. Harker’s separation from service will be
withheld and paid, with interest, in the seventh month after separation.

The second retirement benefit provided under Mr. Harker's Executive Contract is a benefit enhancement
supplementing the AOI SERP. The enhanced SERP provision provides an annual retirement benefit equal to 50%
of Mr. Harker’s compensation. For this purpose, Mr. Harker’s compensation is defined as his base salary as of his
termination date, plus the greater of (1) his average target annual bonuses for the fiscal years ending in 2006 and
2007, or (2) his average annual bonuses actually paid for the fiscal years ending in 2006 and 2007, The enhanced
SERP benefit is offset by the amounts actually paid to Mr. Harker under the AOI SERP, and by all or a portion of
the retirement benefits payable to him under certain other arrangements, including Alliance One’s Pension Plan,
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Mr. Harker is fully vested in the enhanced SERP benefit, but the benefit is subject to forfeiture if Mr. Harker
violates the non-compete in his Executive Contract. The enhanced SERP benefit is payable in the form of an
annuity for the life of Mr. Harker, with menthly payments commencing at age 65 {or actual retirement if later).
However, any amounts payable within six months after Mr. Harker’s separation from service will be withheld and
paid, with interest, in the seventh month after separation.

If Mr. Harker is married when enhanced SERP benefit payments begin and his spouse survives him, his surviving
spouse will receive monthly payments for her life in an amount equal to 50 percent of the monthly payments Mr.
Harker was receiving. If Mr. Harker dies before retirement, his surviving spouse will receive a pre-retirement death
benefit.

Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Plan

The Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Plan (the “AOI Pension Flan™) is a funded and tax-qualified defined
benefit pension plan that provides benefits under a “cash balance” formula. Under this formula, pension benefits are
based on the participant’s notional account balance. As of the last day of each calendar year, the participant’s
notional account balance is credited with a notional retirement credit equal to a percentage of eligible compensation
for the year. The percentage is based on the participant’s age and years of service, as follows:

Ape plus Service  Retirement Credit

Under 40 3.5%
40-49 4.0%
50-59 5.0%
60-69 6.0%
70-79 7.0%

80 or more 8.0%

As of March 31, 2007, combined age and credited service for Messrs. Harrison, Cooley, Green, Babb, McDaniel,
Harker and Daniels equaled 64, 81, 92, 71, 67, 72 and 72, respectively.

Eligible compensation generally includes all taxable earnings paid in cash plus the participant’s pre-tax 401(k) and
cafeteria plan contributions for the year, However, eligible compensation does not include commissions and extra
pay for foreign service. In addition, compensation in excess of the applicable IRS limit ($225,000 for calendar year
2007) is ignored.

The participant’s notional account balance is also credited with annual interest credits. The annual interest crediting
rate for each calendar year is equal to the average rate paid on One Year Treasury Constant Maturity Bonds for the
month of November in the preceding year, plus 1%. The interest crediting rate for calendar year 2007 is 6.01%.

As of March 31, 2007, the AOI Pension Plan covered all full-time, salaried employees of Alliance One and its
subsidiaries who have completed 30 days of employment, as well as part-time salaried employees who have
completed a year of service. Benefits earned under the AQI Pension Plan vest after five years of service, or upon
attaining age 65 while actively employed.

A terminated participant may elect to receive the actuarially equivalent value of his or her vested accrued benefit in
the form of a lump sum payment or an immediate or deferred annuity commencing at any time following
termination of employment.

The AOQI Pension Plan preserves certain early retirement rights for participants whose benefits include benefits
earned under pension plans merged into the AQI Pension Plan. These provisions will not have a material affect on
benefit payments for any of the Named Executives

AQOI Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

The Alliance One International, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “AOI SERP”) was amended and
restated on March 30, 2007. The AQOI SERP is an unfunded, nonqualified pension plan for selected current and
former management employees. The AQI SERP provides an annual retirement benefit equal to 50 percent of the
employee’s final average compensation. Benefits payable to an employee under the AOI SERP are offset by all or a
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portion of the retirement benefits payable to the employee under certain other arrangements, including the
Company’s domestic and foreign pension plans, the AOI PEP, social security-type programs of foreign countries,
and profit-sharing accounts originally funded by a Company predecessor. AQOI SERP benefits are also offset by
supplemental retirement benefits payable under the terms of an employment agreement, unless the terms of an
employment agreement provides otherwise.

Under the AOI SERP, final average compensation is defined as the average of the three highest fiscal years’ cash
compensation during the ten preceding fiscal years. Compensation does not include commissions, extra pay for
foreign service, amounts paid as special incentive bonuses in connection with the Merger, or severance benefits.
Under the SERP, the employee’s final average compensation is frozen as of March 31, 2007. However, the value of
the offsetting benefits is not frozen, and will not be determined until the employee’s termination of employment.

An employee will vest in his full AOI SERP benefit by remaining employed with the Company until the earlier of
March 31, 2012, or the date the employee has attained age 60 and the sum of his age and years of service equal at
least 80. An employee who terminates before full vesting but after a change in control is entitled to a pro-rated
benefit. However, an employee who is terminated for cause will forfeit any benefits otherwise payable under the
AOQI SERP. Prior to a change in control, an employee’s benefits are also subject to forfeiture if the employee
violates the AQI SERP’s non-compete provisions.

The vested AQI SERP benefit is payable in the form of an annuity for the life of the retired employee, with monthly
payments commencing at age 65 (or actual retirement if later). However, any ameounts payable within six months
after the retired employee’s separation from service will be withheld and paid, with interest, in the seventh month
after separation.

If the retired employee is married when AQI SERP benefit payments begin and his spouse survives him, his
surviving spouse will receive monthly payments for her life in an amount equal to 50 percent of the monthly
payments the retired employee was receiving. If a married employee dies before retirement but after satisfying the
AOI SERP’s vesting provisions (or after age 30, if earlier), his surviving spouse will receive a pre-retirement death
benefit equivalent in value to the 50 percent survivor benefit the spouse would have received if the employee had
survived to age 65.

As of March 31, 2007, Messrs. Harrison, Cooley, Green, Harker and Daniels were participants in the AOl SERP.
Messrs. Babb and McDaniel were not participants in the AOI SERP.

AQ{ Pension Equity Plan

The Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Equity Plan (the “AQI PEP”) was amended and restated on March 30,
2007. The AOI PEP is an unfunded, nonqualified pension plan for selected current and former management
employees. The AOI PEP provides an annual retirement allowance equal to 1.1% of the employee’s credited service
times the employee’s final average compensation. Benefits payable to an employee under the AOI PEP are offset by
all or a portion of the retirement benefits payable to the employee under certain other arrangements, including the
Company’s domestic and foreign pension plans.

Under the AOI PEP, final average compensation is defined as the highest average of five consecutive fiscal years’
cash compensation during the ten preceding fiscal years. Compensation does not include commissions, extra pay for
foreign service, amounts paid as special incentive bonuses in connection with the Merger, or severance benefits.
Under the AQI PEP, final average compensation is frozen as of March 31, 2007. However, the value of the
offsetting benefits is not frozen, and will not be determined until the employee’s termination of employment,

Credited service is the employee’s total period of service with the Company plus future service the employee would
earn if he remained employed with the Company until age 65.

An employee will vest in his full AQI PEP benefit by remaining employed with the Company until the earlier of
March 31, 2012, or the AQI PEP normal retirement date. The AOl PEP normal retirement date is the date the
employee has attained age 60 and the sum of his age and years of service equal at least 85. 1f the employee had the
title of Senior Vice President or above with DIMON (or one of its predecessors} prior to July 1, 1995, the
employee’s AQI PEP normal retirement date is the date the employee has attained age 55 and the sum of his age and
years of service equal at least 85, An employee who terminates before full vesting but after a change in conirol is
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entitled to a pro-rated benefit. However, an employee wheo is terminated for cause will forfeit any benefits otherwise
payable under the AOI PEP.

An unmarried employee will receive his vested AOI PEP retirement allowance in the form of a life annuity with
monthly payments starting on his AOI PEP normal retirement date (or actual retirement if later). If the employee is
married, he will begin receiving his vested AQI PEP retirement allowance at the same time but in the form of an
actuarially equivalent joint and 50% survivor annuity with the spouse as the contingent annuitant. Any amounts
payable within six months after the retired employee’s separation from service will be withheld and paid, with
interest, in the seventh month after separation (this provision does not apply to Mr. Green).

If a married employee dies before retirement but after satisfying the AOI PEP’s vesting provisions (or after age 50,
if earlier), his surviving spouse will receive a pre-retirement death benefit equal to the survivor benefit the spouse
would have received if the employee had survived and started receiving benefits under a joint and 50% survivor
annuity.

As of March 31, 2007, Messrs. Cooley, Green and Daniels were participants in the AOI PEP. Messrs. Harrison,
Babb, McDaniel and Harker were not participants in the AOI PEP,

Standard Commercial Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan

The Standard Commercial Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan (the “SCC SERP”) provided benefits that
would otherwise have been provided under Standard Commercial’s tax-qualified pension plan but for Internal
Revenue Code limitations on amounts which could be paid out of a tax-qualified plan. Benefits under the SCC
SERP were frozen as of December 31, 2005,

As of March 31, 2007, Messrs. Harrison and Babb were participants in the SCC SERP. Messrs. Cooley, Green,
McDaniel, Harker and Daniels were not participants in the SCC SERP.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
as of March 31, 2007
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Number of Securities to be Woeighted-Average Future Issuance Under Equity

Issued Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Cutstanding Options, Cutstanding Options, (excluding securities reflected
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights in column (a})
Plan Category {a) (b "
Equity Compensation
Plans Approved by
Security Holders 2,798,831 6.94 1,768,724
Equity Compensation
Plans Not Approved
by Security Holders 0 Not Applicable 0
Total 2,798,831 6.94 1,768,724
L v

" The 2003 Incentive Plan allows for certain of these shares to be issued in the form of restricted stock grants.
Further, the Number of Securities Remaining Available for Future [ssuance as set forth in this column (c) will
increase by the Number of Securities to be Issued (as reflected in column (a)) which are associated with options,
rights and warrants that are forfeited from time to time.
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Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control

The following tabie presents the information on certain potential payments and benefits the Named Executives other
than Mr. Green and Mr. Daniels would be entitled to receive on account of their termination of employment,
assuming that their empleyment terminated on March 31, 2007 under the listed scenarios. Mr. Green and Mr.
Daniels terminated employment on March 31, 2007 and June 30, 2006, respectively, and the table shows the values

of their termination benefits as of their respective termination dates.

The table includes the value of termination benefits payable under employment and change-in-control agreements,
nonvested equity awards, the AOI SERP, the AQI PEP, the SCC SERP, deferred compensation agreements, and

split-dollar life insurance plans.

Except as specifically noted, the table does not include the value of benefits

payable under the Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Plan or group insurance programs, or benefits that might
be realized upon the Named Executive’s exercise of equity awards that were vested as of March 31, 2007.

Termination Scenario

Voluntary Termination Tnvoluntary
Termination fellowing | Termination
without Good Change-in-  Termination without Cause
Name Bonefit Reason Digablity Death Control " with Cause @
Robert E. Harrison 2 Severance or Salary Continuation Payments & nfa na nfa  $2,756,250 nfa $2,296,875
Stock Options nia $677,845 $677,845 $677,845 nia $677,845
Rastricted Stock " nfa  §1,803,247  $1.803247  $1,603,247 nia $1,803,247
AOI SERP ™ nia nia $705,056  $1,402,759 nfa $1,402,750
scc Serp $272,804 $272,804 $371,703 $272,804 $272,804 $272,804
Welfare Benefits *® n/a /a n/a $44 000 n/a n/a
§272.804  $2.753,896  $3.557,.851  $6,956,905 $272.804  $5.453,530
James A. Cooley Severance or Salary Continuation Payments a n/a n/a na $957,000 n/a n/a
Stock Gptions ™ na na na  $325925 n/a n/a
Restricted Stock nfa $530,725 $530,725  $530,725 n/a na
AOIPER® n/a n/a $419,987 $821,579 na $821,579
AOI SERP® na na $235,849 $455,156 nia $455,156
Split-Dollar Life Insurance ™ $117.915 $117.915 na  $117.915 nia $117,915
Wefare Banefits nia nia na $29.170 nia nfa
$117.915 $648640  §1.106,561  $3,237,470 $0  $1.384,650
H. Payton Green, IIl *% Severance or Salary Continuation Payments ™ nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa $445,385
Executive Contract Supplemantal Retirement ' nia n/a nfa nia nia $297,474
Stock Options *! nia nfa nia na n/a $219,600
Restricted Stock * nfa nfa n/a nfa nfa $299,975
AQIPEP® nfa n/a nia nfa nia $1,211,588
Dibre!l Deferred Compensation '™ nia va nia wa n/a $56,812
Split-Dollar Life Insurance ™ nfa n/a na na nla $112,038
Weltare Benefits ¥ n/a nia n/a nia nla $203,089,
nfa nfa n/a nia /e $2,845,961
{Henry C. Babb Severanca or Salary Continuation Payments ¥ nfa n/a na $624,180 n/a wa
Stock Options ** n/a nfa wa $146,355 n/a nfa
Restricted Stock nfa $216,619 $216,619  $216,619 wa na
SCC SERP ™ $70,809 $79,899 $53,883 $79,899 $79,899 $79,900
Weifare Benefits @ n/a nia na $29.170 n/a al
579,899 $296,518 $270,502 §1,206,229 $70,809 $70,900)
Michael K, McDaniel Severance or Salary Continuation Payments ™ nia nia nia $561,000 nia nia
Stock Options ™ nfa nia nia $146,355 na n/a
Restricted Stock ' nia $183.723 $183,723 $183,723 na nia
Welfare Benefits n/a n/a na $29.170 na n/af
$0 $183.723 $183.723  $910,248 50 50
Brian J, Harker % Executive Contract Supplemental Retirement "2 $6.397.381  $6,397,381 $402,658  $3,120,725 n/a $3,120,725
Severanca or Salary Continuation Payments ™ na $229,167 nfa wa wa wal
Stock Options ' $841,575 $841,575 $841,575 3841,575 na $841,575
Restricted Stock * $1.938.300  $1938,300  $1,938,300  $1,938,300 na $1,038,300
AQ| SERP # nja wa  $2282637 $3,276.656 n/a $3,276,656
Split-Dotlar Life insurance © $231,332 $231,332 na $231,332 nfa $231,332
Welfare Benafits $190,723 $190.723 $190.723 $190,723 n/a $150.723
$9,509,311  $9,828.475  §5745,893  $9,500.311 S0 59,599,311
Staven B. Danlels "'? Severance or Salary Continuatien Payments ©! nfa nfa nfa  $1,193,082 nia ia
Stack Options " nia nia nfa $77,200 nta nfa
Restricted Stock nfa nia nfa $255,300 nla n/a
ACISERP @ nia nia na $155,548 na n/a
AOI PER® nfa nia na  $1.170,699 nla na
Spiit-Dodlar Life Insurance &7 nfa na nfa $114,822 na na
Watfare Banefits ¥ na na na $29,170 na na
nfa na wa  $2.992.821 nfa nia
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Amounts shown in this column represent benefits payable in the event of the Named Executive’s termination following a
change in control, provided that the termination is either a voluntary termination by the Named Executive for good
reason, or an involuntary termination by Alliance One without cause. For Mr. Harrison, the amounts in this column also
reflect payments that would be made upon voluntary termination for good reason in the absence of a change in control.

Amounts shown in this column reflect benefits payable in the absence of a change in control.

The single sum severance benefits shown for Messrs. Harrison, Cooley, Babb and McDaniel are based on muitiples of
their base salary in effect on March 31, 2007, and their target annual bonus for fiscal year 2007. Note that the 2005
merger of DIMON and Standard Commercial is not considered a change in control for purposes of determining Mr.
Harrison’s severance or salary continuation benefits under his employment agreement.

For Messrs. Cooley, Babb and McDaniel, the 2005 merger of DIMON and Standard Commercial is considered a change
in control for purposes of determining their severance or salary continuation benefits under their 2004 change in control
agreements. Accordingly, a single sum severance benefit would be payable under those agreements if they voluntarily
terminated with good reason or they were terminated without cause on March 31, 2007,

For Mr. Harker, if he had terminated due to disability as of March 31, 2007, he would have been entitled to salary
continuation through August 30, 2007,

With the exception of Mr, Daniels, stock option and restricted stock values are estimated based on the closing price of
Alliance One stock on March 31, 2007. For Mr. Daniels, values are estimated based on the closing price of Alliance One
stack on June 30, 2006, Upon death or disability of the Named Executive, all equity awards become immediately vested
in accordance with the provisions of the grant agreements. Note that upon the Named Executive’s termination of
employment (other than a for cause termination by Alliance One) after satisfying the eligibility requirements for
retirement under the Alliance One Pension Plan, all shares of restricted stock become immediately vested.

Values reflect the present value of the accumulated benefit obligation for the applicable Named Executive. Present
values were determined using the same assumptions as described in the “Pension Benefits Table.” Benefits under the
AO! SERP, AOI PEP and SCC SERP are payable only in the form of an annuity, as described above in the paragraphs
entitled “AOI Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP),” “AQI Pension Equity Plan (PEP)” and “Standard
Commercial Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan (SCC SERP).”

Amounts shown for welfare benefits for Messrs. Harrison, Cooley, Babb, McDaniel and Daniels reflect the value of
Alliance One’s obligation to provide post-termination coverage under Alliance One’s employee welfare benefit plans, to
the extent such coverage is not made available generally to all salaried employees on a nondiscriminatory basis, valued
using current COBRA rates.

The amounts shown reflect the estimated present value of continued participation in the split dollar life insurance
arrangement following termination of employment. The estimated present value is based on the difference between (a)
the projected amount of total premiums Alliance One will have paid over the term of the split dollar agreement, and (b}
the present value as of March 31, 2007,with the exception of Mr. Daniels, which reflects present value as of June 30,
2006 (assuming a discount rate of 5,9%) of the amount Alliance One expects to receive out of the policy cash value at
maturity. Alliance One’s projected premiums have been calculated based on projected term costs. The estimates assume
that Alliance One does not exercise any available rights to take out policy loans.

Messrs. Green and Harker are entitled to special lifetime health care benefits under their employment agreements. The

" welfare benefit amounts shown in the table above for Messrs. Green and Harker reflect the estimated present value of

Alliance One’s obligation to provide post-termination coverage under Alliance One’s medical plan for salaried
employees, to the extent such coverage is not made available generally to all salaried employees on a nondiscriminatory
basis.

‘Mr. Harrison’s employment agreement contains special rules that apply if retirement, severance and other benefits
payable to Mr. Harrison are “parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code. 1f
the total parachute payments would be less than 110% of the amount that would cause Mr. Harrison to incur an excise tax
liability under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code, his benefits are reduced to the maximum amount that can be
paid without triggering such excise tax liability. If the total parachute payments exceed 110% of the amount that would
cause Mr. Harrison to incur an excise tax liability under Section 4999, his benefits will not be reduced and Alliance One
will be obligated 1o pay Mr, Harrison an additional amount so that the total benefits he receives after payment of Section
4999 excise taxes will be equal in value to the benefits he would have received if the excise tax had not been imposed.

The amounts shown in the table above for Mr. Green reflect the present values of benefits offered to him in connection
with his termination of employment on March 31, 2007, as well as the present values of Mr. Green’s retirement benefit
under the AQI PEP, his termination bencfit under the Dibrell deferred compensation agreements and continued
participation in a split dollar life insurance arrangement.

Mr. Harker’s employment agreement contains special rules that apply if retirement, severance and other benefits payable
to Mr, Harker are “parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code. The

provisions are substantially the same as those applicable to Mr. Harrison, as described above in footnote 9. However,
Mr. Harker will be retiring after the Board meeting in August 2007, and consequently it is unlikely that the parachute
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payment provisions will ever be applicable to him. Note that the benefits reflected in the Executive Contract
Supplemental Retirement row are the suppiemental pension benefits payable under Mr. Harker’s employment agreement,
as described in the narrative accompanying the “Pension Benefits Table.”

(12) The amounts shown in the table above for Mr. Daniels reflect the actual values of benefits payable to him on account of
his termination of employment on June 30, 2006

Employment Agreements

In connection with the Merger, Alliance One entered into an employment agreement with Robert E, Harrison to
serve as President and Chief Operating Officer of Alliance One, which agreement became effective as of the closing
date of the Merger. As announced on December 14, 2006, reflecting the successful completion of the merger
integration process, the Board of Directors confirmed the appointment of Mr. Harrison as Chief Executive Officer as
of January 1, 2007.

Pursuant to the employment agreement, the Company is obligated to continue compensation and benefits to Mr,
Harrison for the scheduled term of the agreement. If the employment agreement is terminated by Mr. Harrison
without “good reason,” the Company is generally obligated to pay compensation and benefits only to the date of
termination. “Good reason” is defined to include a breach of the agreement, a diminution or change in the
Executive’s title, duties, or authority, or a relocation of the Company’s principal offices. If Mr. Harrison’s
employment is terminated without Cause or he resigns for Good Reason, he will be entitled to receive a multiple of
his annual base salary and target bonus amount in severance, accelerated vesting of equity, and continued
participation in Alliance One’s welfare plans.

Also, in connection with the Merger, Alliance One entered into a new employment agreement with Brian J. Harker
effective as of the closing date of the Merger. The employment agreement provided that Mr. Harker will serve as
Alliance One’s Chief Executive Officer through March 31, 2007, and as Chairman of the Board of Directors through
the 2007 annual meeting of sharcholders. As announced on December 14, 2006, reflecting the successful
completion of the Merger integration process, Mr. Harker retired as Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation
effective December 31, 2006. Mr. Harker will continue to serve as Chairman of the Board until the Company’s
annual shareholder meeting in August 2007,

Both agreements also contain a world-wide non-competition provision for three years following termination of
employment other than by the Company without Cause or by Mr. Harrison or Mr, Harker with Good Reason. In
addition, both will be subject to a prohibition on solicitation of Alliance One’s employees, customers and vendors
for a period of one year after such termination,

Mr. Babb also has an employment agreement with the Company that contains provisions relating to termination,
disability, death, and changes-in-control of the Company. A “change-in-control” is generally deemed to occur when
(i) a person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 30% or more of the Common Stock; (ii} during any period of
two consecutive years, individuals who at the beginning of such period constitute the Board, and cease for any
reason to constitute a majority of the Board; or (iii) the shareholders approve a liquidation or sale of substantially all
of the assets of the Company or certain merger and consolidation transactions.

Each Named Executive also participates in various benefit and pension programs (as discussed under the “Pension
Benefits” section). In the event that a participant’s employment with the Company is terminated within two years of
a “change-in-control” of the Company other than for death, disability or cause, or a participant terminates his
employment during such peried for “good reason,” the participant becomes 100% vested in his retirement benefits
and is entitled to receive a either a lump-sum amount or annual installment payments as defined under the plan. A
“change-in-control™ shall generally occur under the same circumstances as described above.

Change-in-Control Agreements; Termination of Change-in-Control Window following Merger

In considering the Merger, DIMON and Standard Commercial’s board of directors determined that it was essential
that Alliance One be managed and operated efficiently and effectively through the Merger and the subsequent
integration of the two companies. To provide an incentive for certain key executive officers to remain in Alliance
One’s employ through the Merger and post-Merger integration process, immediately prior to the execution of the
Merger Agreement, DIMON entered into change-in-control agreements with Messrs. Cooley and Daniels and other
members of Alliance One’s management team.
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Such change-in-control agreements provide that if such individuals’ employment is terminated by Alliance One
without cause or if such individual resigns for good reason within the 24 month period immediately following a
change-in-control, he shall be entitled to receive:

* aone-time payment equal to two times the sum of his annual base salary plus the greater of his target
or actual bonus;

» full compensation through the date of termination, including pro-rated annual incentive bonus equal to
the greater of his target or actual bonus for the partial year; and

¢ continued welfare benefits for 24 months following the date of termination.

In addition, all unvested options to purchase Alliance One common stock with an exercise price less than the
common stock’s fair market value and restricted stock awards owned by such employees will automatically vest and
become exercisable. Options with an exercise price greater than the common stock’s fair market value will be
canceled. The amounts payable to such executives are subject to reduction in order to avoid excise tax liability
pursuant to Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Company maintains similar change-in-control agreements with other members of management; however, those
agreements provide for benefits based on either 2.0 or 1.0 times annual base salary, and the greater of target or
actual bonus compensation and 24 or 12 months of welfare benefits continuation.

On May 13, 2007, the two-year change-in-control window surrounding the merger of Standard Commercial and
DIMON expired. As a result, the Merger is no longer a qualifying change-in-control event under the Named
Executives’ employment agreements or change-in-control agreements; however, the change-in-control provisions of
such agreements remain in effect with respect to a future change-in-control event.

PROPOSAL THREE
APPROVAL OF THE ALLIANCE ONE INTERNATIONAL, INC.
2007 INCENTIVE PLAN

The Board of Directors recommends that shareholders approve the Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive
Plan (the “2007 Plan™).

Based upon the recommendation of the Executive Compensation Committee, the Board of Directors unanimously
adopted the 2007 Plan, subject to shareholder approval at the annual meeting. The Board believes that long-term,
predominantly equity-based incentives remain critical to attracting, motivating, and retaining the level of talent
needed to successfully manage the Company and create shareholder value.

As with the Company’s prior equity compensation plans, the 2007 Plan is an “omnibus” plan that provides the
flexibility to grant a variety of equity awards; including stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards, stock
units, performance awards and incentive awards. A maximum of 5,000,000 shares may be issued under the 2007
Plan. Upon approval of the 2007 Plan, no further grants will be made under the 2003 Incentive Plan.

In addition to providing the needed flexibility to continue awarding market-competitive and shareholder-aligned
long-term incentive compensation opportunities to key talent throughout the world, the 2007 Plan has been updated
to reflect prevailing market practices and many institutional shareholder considerations, including:

Prohibiting any form of re-pricing without shareholder approval

Prohibiting the granting of discounted stock options

Requiring a minimum vesting period of three years on service-based awards

Requiring a minimum performance period of one year on performance awards

Prohibiting an increase in the available shares for shares tendered to exercise an option or to pay taxes.

The following is a summary of the 2007 Plan. The full text of the 2007 Plan is attached as Appendix B to this proxy
staternent, and the following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the 2007 Plan.
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Plan Administration

The Executive Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) will select the individuals who participate in the 2007
Plan, will determine the level of participation of each participant and will approve the terms and conditions of all
awards. Each member of the Committee will be a “non-employee director” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and an “outside director” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code.
The Committee will have the discretionary authority to interpret the 2007 Plan, to prescribe, amend and rescind rules
and regulations relating to the 2007 Plan, and to make all other determinations necessary or advisable for the
administration of the 2007 Plan. Awards under the 2007 Plan that are made to non-employee Directors will be
subject to the final approval of the full Board.

Share Authorization

A maximum of 5,000,000 shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to awards under the 2007 Plan.

Shares delivered under the 2007 Plan will be authorized but unissued shares of Company common stock. To the
extent that any award payable in shares 1s forfeited, cancelled, returned to the Company for failure to satisfy vesting
requirements or upon the occurrence of other forfeiture events, or otherwise terminates without payment being
made, the shares covered thereby will be available for future awards under the 2007 Plan. In addition, awards
settled in cash will not be counted against the maximum share reserve under the 2007 Plan.

The 2007 Plan does not contain “liberal share counting” provisions. Any shares exchanged by a participant or
withheld from a participant as full or partial payment to the Company of the exercise price of an option or the tax
withholding upon exercise or payment of an award will not be added to the number of shares available for issuance
under the 2007 Plan. The maximum number of shares that may be issued under the 2007 Plan will be adjusted to
reflect stock dividends, stock splits, share consolidations or other changes in the Company’s capitalization. In that
event similar changes will be made in the individual grant limitations (described below) and the terms of outstanding
awards.

Eligibiiity and Participation

All full-time employees of the Company and its affiliates, as well as the Company’s non-employee Directors, will be
eligible to participate in the 2007 Plan. The Committee (or as 1o non-employee Directors, the Board) determines
who will be granted awards, the number of shares subject to such grants and all other terms of awards.

Types of Plan Awards

The 2007 Plan provides for the grant of various forms of equity and equity-based incentives. The types of awards
that may be issued under the 2007 Plan are described below,

Stock Options

Stock options granted under the 2007 Plan may be either nonqualified stock options or incentive stock options
qualifying under Section 422 of the Code. No individual may be granted options in any calendar year for more than
400,000 shares of Company common stock. The exercise price of an option granted under the 2007 Plan may not be
less than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date the option is granted. The exercise price
may be payable in cash, by the surrender of shares of Company common stock (including attestation), through a
broker-assisted cashless exercise or as otherwise permitted by the Committee.

The Committee determines the terms of each stock option at the time of the grant including the vesting requirements
and the effect of termination of service of a participant. The Committee has discretion to prescribe an option term of
up to ten years. Vesting may be based on the continued service of the participant for specified time periods or on the
attainment of specified business performance goals established by the Committee or both. Compensation Options
(other than options granted to non-employee Directors), that vest or become exercisable solely on the basis of
continued service cannot be fully vested before the third anniversary of the grant. The Committee may accelerate
the vesting of options, in whole or in part, on account of a change in control or termination of service.
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Stock Appreciation Rights

A stock appreciation right (or SAR) entitles the participant, upon exercise, to receive a payment equal to the excess
of the fair market value of a share of Company common stock on the date of exercise over the base price of the
SAR, multiplied by the applicable number of shares of common stock. SARs may be granted on a stand-alone basis
or in tandem with a related stock option. The base price may not be less than the fair market value of a share of
Company common stock on the date of grant. No individual may be granted SARs in any calendar year with respect
to more than 400,000 shares of Company common stock.

The Committee determines the terms of each SAR at the time of the grant including the vesting requirements and the
effect of termination of service of a participant. The Committee has discretion to provide that SARs will have a
term of up to ten years. Vesting may be based on the continued service of the participant for specified time periods
or on the attainment of specified business performance goals established by the Committee or both. SARs (other
than SARs granted to non-employee Directors), that vest or become exercisable solely on the basis of continued
service cannot be fully vested before the third anniversary of the grant. The Committee may accelerate the vesting
of SARs, in whole or in part, on account of a change in control or termination of service. SARs may be payable in
cash or in shares of Company commeon stock or in a combination of both.

Stock Awards and Stock Units

A stock award is shares of Company common stock that are issued subject to restrictions on transfer and vesting
requirements as determined by the Committee. Vesting requirements may be based on the continued service of the
participant for specified time periods or on the attainment of specified business performance goals established by the
Committee or both. Stock awards (other than stock awards granted to non-employee Directors), that vest and
become transferable based solely on continued service cannot become fully vested and transferable before the third
anniversary of the grant. The vesting period for other stock awards must be at lcast one year. The Committee may
provide that stock awards will vest and become transferable, in whele or in part, upon a change in control or
termination of service. Subject to the transfer restrictions and vesting requirements of the award, the participant will
have all of the rights of a Company sharehoider, including all voting and dividend rights, during the restriction
period. No individual may receive stock awards in any calendar year for more than 150,000 shares of Company
common stock.

A stock unit award represents the participant’s right to receive a payment based on the value of a share of Company
common stock. Stock units may be subject to such vesting requirements, restrictions and conditions to payment as
the Committee determines are appropriate. Vesting requirements may be based on the continued service of the
participant for a specified time period or on the attainment of specified business performance goals established by
the Committee or both. Stock units (other than stock units granted to non-employee Directors), that vest based
solely on continued service cannot become fully vested before the third anniversary of the grant. The vesting period
for other stock units must be at least one year. The Committee may provide that stock units will vest, in whole or in
part, upon a change in control or termination of service. Stock units are payable in cash or in shares of Company
common stock or in a combination of both. Stock units may be granted with related dividend equivalent rights but a
participant does not have any rights as a shareholder under a stock unit award. No individual may be awarded more
than 150,000 stock units in any calendar year.

Performance Shares

A performance share represents the participant’s right to receive a share of stock (or its cash equivalent) conditioned
on the attainment of specified business performance goals established by the Committee. The period in which the
performance goals are measured must be at least one year. The Committee may provide that performance shares
will be earned, in whole or in part, upon a change in control or termination of service. No individual may be granted
more than 150,000 performance shares in any calendar year.
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Incentive Awards

An incentive award represents a participant’s right to receive a benefit (payable in cash or stock) conditioned on the
attainment of specified business goals established by the Committee. The period in which the performance goals are
measured must be at least one year. The Committee may provide that incentive awards are eamed, in whole or in
part, upon a change in control or termination of service. No individual may receive an incentive award payment in
any calendar year that exceeds $2,000,000 (if the performance period was one year) or the product of (i} $125,000
times (ii) the number of months in the performance period (for incentive awards with a performance period longer
than one year). Incentive awards are payable in cash or in shares of Company common stock or in a combination of
both.

Code Section 162(m)

For any stock award, stock units, performance shares or incentive award that is intended to qualify as "performance-
based compensation,” within the meaning of Section 162(m), the committee shall establish performance goals with
reference to one or more of the following:

Revenue

Gross Profit
Operating Income
Operating Ratio
EBITDA

EBIT

Net Income

Return on Equity
Return on Assets
Return on Capital
Return on Investment
Economic Profit
Operating Cycle
Cash Flow

Debt Reduction
Eamings per Share
Total Shareholder Return
Stock Price

Performance goals may be established on a Company-wide basis or with respect to one or more business units or
Affiliates and may be expressed in absolute terms, as a goal relative to performance in prior periods, or as a goal
compared to the performance of one or more comparable companies or an index covering multiple companies.
When establishing performance goals for a performance period, the committee may exclude any or all extraordinary
items, including, without limitation, the charges or costs associated with restructurings of the Company,
discontinued operations, other unusual or nonrecurring items, and the cumulative effects of accounting changes.

Transferability

Unless the Committee provides otherwise, all awards granted under the 2007 Plan are nontransferable except by will
or the laws of descent and distribution. The Committee may allow the transfer of options {other than incentive stock
options), SARs, performance shares and incentive awards to the participant’s children, grandchildren, spouse, a trust
benefiting those family members or a partnership in which those family members are the only partners.
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Term, Amendment and Termination

The 2007 Plan will have a term of ten years, unless terminated earlier by the Board of Directors. The Board may at
any time and from time to time and in any respect amend or modify the 2007 Plan. However, no amendment will be
effective without the approval of shareholders if shareholder approval is required by applicable law or the listing
requirements of the exchange on which the Company common stock is listed for trading. For example, an
amendment or modification that would constitute an option repricing will not be effective unless it is approved by
shareholders. No amendment or modification of the 2007 Plan may adversely affect any outstanding award without
the consent of the participant or the permitted transferee of the award.

Change in Control

The 2007 Plan provides that outstanding awards may become exercisable, vested or earned, in whole or in part, upon
a change in control (as defined in the 2007 Plan). The 2007 Plan also provides that the Committee, without
obtaining the consent of participants, may take certain actions with respect to outstanding awards upon a change in
control. For example, the Committee may provide for outstanding awards to be replaced with substitute awards
issued or granted by the surviving corporation. Alternatively, the Committee may provide for the cancellation of
outstanding awards in exchange for a payment based on the per share consideration received by the Company’s
shareholders in the control change transaction (or the excess of that value over the option price or base value in the
case of options and SARs). Finally, the Committee may prescribe that outstanding options and SARs, to the extent
that they are exercisable on or before the change in control, will be cancelled if they are not exercised on or before
the completion of the change in control.

The 2007 Plan further provides that the benefits or amounts payable under awards will be reduced to avoid
parachute payment excise taxes unless the participant will receive greater after-tax benefits by receiving all of his
awards and paying the excise tax. This limitation will not apply, however, if the award agreement or another
agreement provides that the Company will indemnify the participant from any parachute excise tax liability.

New Plan Benefits

The Company cannot ¢stimate or determine the awards that will be made under the 2007 Plan because awards will
be determined in the discretion of the Committee (and subject to final approval of the full Board in the case of
awards to non-employee Directors). For the same reason, the Company cannot describe the awards that would have
been made under the 2007 Plan during the prior fiscal year if the 2007 Plan had been in effect for that year.

Federal Income Taxes

The Company has been advised by counsel regarding the federal income tax consequences of the 2007 Plan. No
income is recognized by a participant at the time an option is granted. If the option is an incentive stock option, no
income will be recognized upon the participant’s exercise of the option, Income is recognized by a participant when
the participant disposes of the shares acquired upon the exercise of an incentive stock option.

The exercise of a nonqualified stock option generally is a taxable event that requires the participant to recognize
ordinary income. The ordinary income recognized by the participant is the difference between the shares’ fair
market value on the date of exercise and the option price.

No income is recognized upon the grant of an SAR. The exercise of an SAR is generally a taxable event. A
participant generally recognizes ordinary income equal to any cash that is paid and the fair market value of any
shares of Company common stock received in settlement of the SAR.

A participant will recognize ordinary income on account of a stock award on the first day that the shares are either
transferable or not subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. The amount of income recognized by the participant is
equal to the fair market value of the Company common stock on that date, less any amount that the participant paid
for the shares.

No income is recognized on account of the grant of stock units, performance shares or an incentive award. A
participant will recognize income on account of the settiement of the stock units, performance shares or incentive
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award. A participant will recognize income equal to any cash that is paid and the fair market value of Company
common stock (on the date that the shares are first transferable or not subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture) that
are received in settlement of the award.

The employer (either the Company or its affiliate) will be entitled to claim a federal income tax deduction on
account of the exercise of a nonqualified stock option or SAR, the vesting of a stock award and the settlement of
stock units, performance shares and incentive awards. The amount of the deduction is equal to the ordinary income
recognized by the participant. The employer will not be entitled to a federal income tax deduction on account of the
grant or exercise of an incentive stock option. The employer may claim a federal income tax deduction on account
of certain dispositions of common stock acquired upon the exercise of an incentive stock option.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE “FOR” THE
PROPOSAL TO APPROVE THE 2007 INCENTIVE PLAN.,

OTHER MATTERS

On this date, the Company is not aware of any matters to be presented for action at the meeting other than as stated
in this notice. However, if any other matters requiring a vote of shareholders are properly presented at the meeting,
it is intended that proxies in the accompanying form will be voted on such other matters in accordance with the
Jjudgment of the persons voting such proxies.

ANNUAL REPORT

The annual report, including consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2007, is being mailed to shareholders with this proxy statement on or around July 13, 2007,

By Order of the Board of Directors:

Tovgy S

Henry C. Babb
Secretary
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APPENDIX A

ALLIANCE ONE INTERNATIONAL, INC,
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Charter and Mandates

PURPOSE

The primary function of the Audit Committee (the "Committee") of the Board of Directors (the "Board")
of Alliance One International, Inc. ("Alliance One") is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities with respect to the integrity of the financial statements of the company, the company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the independence and qualifications of the
independent auditor, and  the performance of the company’s internal audit function and independent
auditors. Further, the Committee is charged with preparing the report of the Audit Committee to be
included in the Company’s annual proxy statement,

AUTHORITY

The Committee is formed by Board Resolution pursuant to Article V1 Section 2 of the Bylaws. Changes
to the Committee’s Charter and Mandates must also be made by Board Resolution. The Committee will
act only as a committee, with individual members possessing no power to act on their own,

The Committee shall be given the resources and authority to conduct investigations into any matters
within the scope of its responsibilities. The Committee shall have the authority to call before it
management and other employees of Alliance One involved in financial or internal control matters.
Further, the Committee shall have the authority and resources necessary to engage financial and internal
control experts, including independent public accountants other than Alliance One's independent auditor,
counsel, including counsel other than Alliance One's regular counsel, and other consuitants as it deems
reasonably necessary to assist it in carrying out its responsibilities. The Committee shall also be provided
with the funding for ordinary administrative expenses of the audit committee that are necessary or
appropriate in carrying out its duties,

MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA

The Committee shall be composed of not less than three members of the Board. All members of the
Committee shall meet the requirements of the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE"), the SEC and any
other applicable legal or regulatory requirement concerning (1) independence (including restrictions
concerning employment relationships, business relationships, family relationship, and cross compensation
committee links), and (2) financial literacy. Further, at least one member of the committee shall have the
accounting or related financial management expertise to be considered a financial expert.

Determination that a director meets the financial literacy and/or financial expert requirements for audit
committee service will be made by the Board in its business judgment. In making such determinations,
the Board will consider the financial expert qualifications set forth in SEC Release 33-8177 and related
pronouncements.
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APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS AND CHAIRMAN

The Board of Directors will appoint both the members and the Chairman of the Committee. The
appointments will be made at each Annual Meeting of the Board or when successors are required.

If an Audit Committee member simultancously serves on the audit committee of more than three public
companies, the Board must determine that such simultaneous service would not impair the ability of the
director to effectively serve on the Company’s Audit Committee and disclose such determination in the
annual proxy statement.

REMOVAL OF MEMBERS AND CHAIRMAN

In accordance with Article VI Section 7 of the Bylaws, any member of the Committee, including the
Chairman, may be removed by majority vote of the Directors then in office.

VACANCIES

In accordance with Article VI Section 8 of the Bylaws, any vacancy may be filled by majority vote of the
Directors then in office.

MEETINGS

Frequency — To perform its oversight function, the Committee shall meet at least four times annually or

more frequently as circumstances dictate. The Committee shall meet separately periodically in executive

session with each of the independent auditor, the internal auditor and management. The Committee shall

meet privately as a committee as necessary to discuss any matters that the Committee believes should be

discussed without the presence of management,

Notice — In accordance with Article V Section 6 of the Bylaws, notice of Committee meetings will be
provided at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. Meetings may be held at any time without
notice if the members waive the notice requirement by attendance at the meeting or otherwise.

Forum — The Committee may meet in person, by telephone, or by other communication’s facility.

Quorum — A quorum shall consist of a majority of the Committee members. Action by a majority of the
members shall constitute action by the Committee.

Chairman — In the absence of the Chairman, the Committee will designate by majority vote of the
members present another member to serve as Acting Chairman of the meeting.

REPORTING

Minutes of each meeting shall be prepared and distributed to the Committee. The Committee shall report
on cach of its proceedings to the Board at the next regular meeting of the Board.

MINUTES

The Secretary of the Company, or his designate, will keep minutes of all Committee meetings.
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MANDATES

To fulfill its purpose, the committee shall have the following basic duties and such other activities the
Committee deems necessary:

Financial Reporting

Management and the independent auditor shall review with the Committee the audited
financial statements to be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (or
the Annual Report to Sharcholders if distributed prior to the filing of Form 10-K). This
review will include the company’s disclosure under “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™.

The Committee shall review and consider with the independent auditor the matters
required to be communicated to the Committee by Statement of Auditing Standards
("SAS"} No. 61 “Communication with Audit Committees” (as it may be modified or
supplemented) including matters related to the conduct of the audit.

The Committee shall review and discuss with management and the independent auditor
any significant accounting matters that arise on an interim basis as well as the unaudited
financial statements to be included in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
This review will include the company’s disclosure under “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.

The committee will review with the independent auditor 1) all critical accounting policies
and practices used, including any significant changes in accounting principles, 2} all
alternative treatments of financial information within generally accepted accounting
principles that have been discussed with management and the ramification of such
treatment, and the treatment preferred by the independent auditor, and 3) other material
communications between the independent auditor and management such as the
management letter and any accounting adjustments proposed.

The Committee shall review and discuss with management its policies and practices
regarding earnings press releases, as well as financial information and earnings guidance
provided to analysts and rating agencies.

Independent Auditor
The Committee shall be guided by the premise that the independent auditors are ultimately
accountable to the Committee. The Committee is directly responsible for selecting,
overseeing and evaluating, compensating and, where appropriate, replacing the independent
auditor.

The Committee shall pre-approve all audit engagement fees and terms as well as all
statutory engagements performed by any audit firm and all permissible non-audit services
to be provided by the independent auditors.

The Committee shall evaluate the independent auditors qualifications, performance and
independence. As part of such evaluation, at least annually, the Audit Committee shall:

> obtain and review a report from the independent auditor describing the firm’s
internal quality control procedures; any material issues raised by the firm’s
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most recent quality control review or peer review of the firm or an inquiry or
investigation by any governmental or professional authority in the preceding
five years with respect to any audit carried out by the firm, and any actions
taken by the firm to handle any such issues raised.

> obtain and review a report from the independent auditor delineating all
relationships between the independent auditor and Alliance One .

> assess if the performance of permissible non-audit services is compatible
with their independence.

» review and evaluate the lead partner of the independent auditor and ensure
that rotation of the independent auditors’ partners satisfies regulatory
requirements.

The Committee shall set clear hiring policies for employees or former employees of the
independent auditors.

Internal Audit

The Committee shall review annually the scope of activities, staffing, results and
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal Audit function and advise management of such
changes to the Internal Audit function as the Committee deems appropriate.

Further, the Committee shall review periodically the qualifications of the Internal Audit
function and concur in the appointment, replacement, reassignment or dismissal of
Alliance One's Chief Audit Executive. The Committee shall review the Internal Audit
function as to its independence and authority of its reporting obligations.

The Committee shall also review the department’s annual audit plan and the results of the
audits and obtain explanations for any significant deviations from the original plan.

Internal Control and Risk Management Matters

Management, the independent auditor and the Company’s internal auditors shall review
with the Committee the adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting and financial
controls of the Corporation. The Committee shall elicit recommendations for the
improvement of such internal control procedures or particular arcas where new or more
detailed controls or procedures are desirable.

Management, the independent auditor and the Company’s internal auditors shall discuss
with the Committee significant financial risks or exposures. Further, the Committee will
discuss policies with management with respect to risk assessment and risk management
and shall assess the steps management has taken to minimize such risks to the Company.

The independent auditor and internal auditors shall review with the Committee any
significant findings and recommendations together with management’s response. The
Committee shall satisfy itself that management has taken any necessary corrective actions
on a timely basis.
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Compliance

Management shall review with the Cormmitiee the effectiveness of the Company’s system
for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the results of management's
investigation and follow-up (including disciplinary action) on any instances of
noncompliance.

Management, general counsel, and the tax director shall periodically update the
Committee regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

The Committee shall be satisfied that all regulatory compliance matters have been
considered in the preparation of the financial statements.

The Committee shall review the findings of any examinations by regulatory agencies.

Management shall review with the Committee the code of conduct and the plan to ensure
that all employees are aware of it, as well as the program for monitoring compliance.

The Committee shall periodically obtain updates from management and the Company’s
general counsel regarding compliance with the Company’s code of conduct.

The Committee will establish procedures covering the receipt, retention and treatment of
complaints received by the company regarding internal accounting controls or auditing
matters and the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding
questionable accounting or auditing concerns.

The Committee shall review with the Company’s counsel, any legal matters that could
have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

The internal auditor shall review with the Committee the Executive Officers’ expense
accounts and use of corporate assets.

Other Responsibilities

e The Committee will meet periodically in separate executive sessions with  management,
the internal auditors and the independent auditors.

¢ The Committee will report to the full board any issues that arise with respect to the quality
and integrity of the company’s financial statements, the company’s compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the performance of the independent auditors and the performance of
the internal auditors.

e The Committee shall perform a review and evaluation of the Committee’s own performance.

¢ The Committee shall annually review the provisions of this Charter and recommend to the
Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee any appropriate changes.

o The Charter as revised periodically will be published on the Company’s public website.
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CONSISTENCY WITH ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, BYLAWS

To the extent that any provision or section of this Charter may be inconsistent with any article, provision
or section of the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws of the Corporation, the Articles of Incorporation
or the Bylaws, as appropriate, shall fully control.

February 16, 2006
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ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

1.01. Affiliate.

Affiliate means any “subsidiary corporation” or “parent corporation” as such terms are defined in
Section 424 of the Code or any other trade or business that would be a “parent corporation” or a
“subsidiary corporation” if it was organized as a corporation.

1.02.  Agreement.

Agreement means a written agreement (including any amendment or supplement thereto)
between the Company and a Participant specifying the terms and conditions of an Award granted to such
Participant.

1.03.  Award.

Award means an Option, SAR, Stock Award, Stock Unit Award, Performance Share Award, or
Incentive Award granted under this Plan.

1.04. Board.
Board means the Board of Directors of the Company.

1.05. Change in Control.

Change in Control means any of the following:

(a) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d)(2) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of Company
securities representing more than 30% of the aggregate voting power of ail classes of the Company’s
voting securities on a fully diluted basis, after giving effect to the conversion of all outstanding warrants,
options and other securitics of the Company convertible into or exercisable for voting securities of the
Company {(whether or not such securities are then exercisable);

(b) The sharcholders of the Company consummate a plan of merger, consolidation or share
exchange between the Company and an entity other than a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, unless the Company shareholders immediately before the completion of such transaction
will continue to hold at least 50% of the aggregate voting power of all classes of voting securities of the
surviving or resulting entity;

(c) The shareholders of the company consummate a proposal with respect to the sale, lease,
exchange or other disposition of all, or substantially all, of the Company’s property, unless the Company
shareholders immediately before the completion of such transaction will continue to hold, directly or
indirectly, at least 50% of the aggregate voting power of all classes of voting securities of the transferee;
or

(d) During any period of two consecutive years (which period may be deemed to begin prior
to the date of this Agreement), individuals who at the beginning of such period constituted the Board,
together with any new members of the Board whose election by the Board or whose nomination for
election by the Company’s shareholders was approved by a majority of the members of the Board then
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still in office who either were directors at the beginning of such period or whose nomination or election
was previously so approved, cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the Board.

1.06. Code.
Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and any amendments thereto.
1.07. Committee.

Committee means a committee of the Board appointed to administer the Plan. The Committee
shall be comprised of two or more members of the Board; all of whom shall be “non-employee directors”
as defined in Securities Exchange Commission Rule 16b-3 as in effect from time to time and “outside
directors” as defined in Code section 162(m) as in effect from time to time; provided, however, that the
failure of the Committee to satisfy the “non-employee director” or “outside director” requirements shall
not affect the validity of any Award.

1.08. Common Stock.

Common Stock means the common stock of the Company.

1.09. Company.

Company means Alliance One International, Inc..

1.10. Corresponding SAR.

Corresponding SAR means an SAR that is granted in relation to a particular Option and that can
be exercised only upon the surrender to the Company, unexercised, of that portion of the Option to which
the SAR relates.

1.11. Date of Exercise.

Date of Exercise means (i) with respect to an Option, the date that the Option price is received by
the Company and (ii) with respect to an SAR, the date that the notice of exercise is received by the
Company.

1.12.  Fair Market Value.

Fair Market Value means, on any given date, the closing price of the Common Stock as reported
on an established stock exchange on which the Common Stock is listed. If the Common Stock was not
traded on such exchange on such date, then the Fair Market Value is determined with reference to the
preceding day that the Common Stock was so traded. If the Common Stock is not listed on an established
stock exchange, then the Fair Market Value shall be determined by the Committee using any reasonable
method in good faith.

1.13. Incentive Award.

Incentive Award means an award, denominated in dollars which, subject to such terms and
conditions as may be prescribed by the Committee, entitles the Participant to receive a cash payment,
shares of Common Stock or a combination of cash and Common Stock from the Company or an Affiliate
upon the achievement of performance objectives.
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1.14. Incentive Stock Option.

Incentive Stock Option means an Option designated as an Incentive Stock Option within the
meaning of Code Section 422 or any successor provision thereto.

1.15.  Imitial Value.

Initial Value means, with respect to an SAR, the Fair Market Value of one share of Common
Stock on the date of grant.

1.16. Option.

Option means a stock option that entitles the holder to purchase from the Company a stated
number of shares of Common Stock at the price set forth in an Agreement.

1.17. Participant.

Participant means an employee of the Company or of an Affiliate or member of the Board, who
satisfies the requirements of Article IV and is selected by the Committee to receive an Award.

1.18. Performance Share.

Performance Share means an Award, in the amount determined by the Committee and specified
in an Agreement, stated with reference to a specified number of shares of Common Stock, that entitles the
holder to receive shares of Common Stock, a cash payment, or a combination of Common Stock and cash,
upon achievement of performance objectives in accordance with the provisions of Article VIII. The
Committee, in its discretion, will determine whether a Performance Share will be settled with shares of
Common Stock, cash or a combination of Common Stock and cash.

1.19. Plan.
Plan means the Alliance One International, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan,

1.20.  SAR.

SAR means a stock appreciation right that entitles the holder to receive, with respect to each
share of Common Stock encompassed by the exercise of such SAR, the excess of the Fair Market Value
on the Date of Exercise, payable in cash, shares of Common Stock or a combination of Common Stock
and cash at the discretion of the Committee, over the Initial Value. References to “SARs” include both
Corresponding SARs and SARs granted independently of Options, unless the context requires otherwise.

1.21.  Stock Award.
Stock Award means Common Stock awarded to a Participant under Article VIL

1.22.  Stock Unit Award.

Stock Unit Award means a right to receive one or more shares of Common Stock (or cash of an
equivalent value) in the future awarded to a Participant under Article VIIL.
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1.23.  Substitute Award.

Substitute Award means an Award granted in assumption of, or in substitution or exchange for,
an award previously granted, or the right or obligation to make a future award, by a corporation or other
trade or business acquired by the Company or an Affiliate or with which the Company or an Affiliate
combines.

ARTICLE I1
PURPOSES

The Plan is intended to assist the Company in recruiting and retaining employees and members of
the Board with ability and initiative by enabling such persons to participate in its future success and to
associate their interests with those of the Company and its shareholders. The Plan is intended to permit
the grant of Options, SARs, Stock Awards, Stock Unit Awards, Performance Share Awards, and
Incentive Awards. Both Incentive Stock Options and Options not so qualifying can be granted. No
Option that is intended to be an Incentive Stock Option shall be invalid for failure to qualify as an
Incentive Stock Option,

ARTICLE 111
ADMINISTRATION

3.01. Administrative Authority.

Except as provided in this Article III, the Plan shall be administered by the Committee; provided,
however, that awards to members of the Board who are not employed by the Company or an Affiliate, the
terms of such awards and the settlement of such awards shall be subject to the final approval of the Board.
The Committee shall have authority to grant Awards upon such terms (not inconsistent with the
provisions of this Plan) as the Committee may consider appropriate. Such terms may include conditions
(in addition to those contained in this Plan) on the exercisability of all or any part of an Option or SAR or
on the transferability or forfeitability of a Stock Award. Notwithstanding any such conditions (but
subject to the express provisions of the Plan), the Committee, in its discretion, may accelerate the time at
which any Option or SAR may be exercised or the time at which any other Award may become
transferable or nonforfeitable. In addition, the Committee shall have complete authority to interpret all
provisions of this Plan; to prescribe the form of Agreements; to adopt, amend, and rescind rules and
regulations pertaining to the administration of the Plan; to prescribe the form of agreements and
documents used in connection with the Plan; and to make all other determinations necessary or advisable
for the administration of this Plan. The express grant in the Plan of any specific power to the Commmittee
shall not be construed as limiting any power or authority of the Committee. Any decision made, or action
taken, by the Committee in connection with the administration of this Plan shall be final and conclusive.
No member of the Committee shall be liable for any act done in good faith with respect to this Plan or any
Agreement, or Award. All expenses of administering this Plan shall be borne by the Company.

To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Committee, in its discretion, may delegate to one
or more officers of the Company all or part of the Committee’s authority and duties with respect to
Participants who are not subject to the reporting and other provisions of Section 16 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as in effect from time to time. In the event of such delegation, and as to matters
encompassed by the delegation, references in the Plan to the Commiitee shall be interpreted as a reference
to the Committee’s delegate or delegates. The Committee may revoke or amend the terms of a delegation
at any time but such action shall not invalidate any prior actions of the Committee’s delegate or delegates
that were consistent with the terms of the Plan and the prior delegation.
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3.02.  Agreements.

All Awards granted under this Plan shall be evidenced by Agreements which shall be subject to
the applicable provisions of this Plan and to such other provisions as the Committee may adopt.

3.03. Employment or Service.

In the event that the terms of an Agreement provide that the Participant must complete a stated
period of employment or service as a condition of exercising, eaming or retaining an Award, the
Committee may decide to what extent leaves of absence for government or military service, illness,
temporary disability, or other reasons shall not be deemed interruptions of continuous employment or
service.

ARTICLE 1V
ELIGIBILITY

Any employee of the Company or of any Affiliate (including any corporation or trade or business
that becomes an Affiliate after the adoption of this Plan) or member of the Board is eligible to participate
in this Plan if the Committee, in its sole discretion, determines that such person has contributed or can be
expected to contribute to the profits or growth of the Company or an Affiliate. The Committee will
designate individuals to whom Awards are to be made and will specify the type of Award and the number
of shares of Common Stock subject to each Award.

ARTICLE V
STOCK SUBJECT TO PLAN

5.01. Source of Shares.

Shares of Common Stock issued under the Plan shall be authorized but unissued shares.

5.02. Maximum Number of Shares.

The maximum aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued pursuant to
Awards under this Plan is 5,000,000 shares. Shares of Common Stock underlying Awards that are settled
in cash, and shares of Common Stock underlying Substitute Awards, shall not reduce the number of
Shares available for Awards.

The maximum aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under this Plan
shall be adjusted as provided in this Article V and Article XII.

5.03. Forfeitures, etc.

To the extent that an Award involving the issuance of shares of Common Stock is forfeited or
otherwise terminates without the delivery of shares, the shares of Common Stock allocated to such Award
may be reallocated to other Awards to be granted under this Plan, provided that this provision shall not be
applicable with respect to (i) the cancellation of a Corresponding SAR upon the exercise of the related
Option or (ii) the cancellation of an Option upon the exercise of the Corresponding SAR.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, shares of Common Stock which are tendered (actually or by

attestation), by a Participant or withheld by the Company to pay the option price or satisfy the
Participant’s tax withholding obligations in connection with the exercise or settlement of an Award may
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not be reallocated to other Awards to be granted under this Plan. Furthermore, if an SAR is exercised and
settled, in whole or in part, with Common Stock then the number of shares available for grant shali be
reduced by the total number of shares for which the SAR was exercised (rather than the number of shares
of Common Stock issued),

ARTICLE VI
OPTIONS AND SARs

6.01. Award.

In accordance with the provisions of Article IV, the Committee will designate each individual to
whom an Option or SAR is to be granted and will specify the number of shares of Common Stock
covered by the award. An Option may be granted with or without a related SAR. An SAR may be
granted with or without a related Option. No Participant may be granted Incentive Stock Options or
related SARs (under all incentive stock option plans of the Company and its Affiliates) which are first
exercisable in any calendar year for stock having an aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of the
date an option is granted) exceeding the amount prescribed by Section 422(d) of the Code as in effect
from time to time. No Participant may be granted Options in any calendar year for more than 400,000
shares of Common Stock, subject to adjustment as provided in Article XII. No Participant may be
granted SARs that are not related to an Option in any calendar year for more than 400,000 shares of
Common Stock , subject to adjustment as provided in Article XII. For purposes of the two preceding
sentences, an Option and any Corresponding SAR related to the Option shall be treated as a single award.

6.02. Option Price.

The price per share for Common Stock purchased on the exercise of an Option shall be
determined by the Committee on the date of grant; provided, however, that the price per share for
Common Stock purchased on the exercise of any Option shall not be less than the Fair Market Value on
the date the Option is granted. Except for adjustments authorized under Article XII, no Option or SAR
may be repriced, replaced, regranted through cancellation, repurchased, or modified without shareholder
approval, if the effect would be to reduce the option price or Initial Value, as applicable, for the shares
underlying such Award.

6.03. Maximum Period.

The maximum period in which an Option or SAR may be exercised shall be determined by the
Committee on the date of grant except that no Option or SAR shall be exercisable after the expiration of
ten years from the date the Option or SAR was granted. The terms of any Option or SAR may provide
that it is exercisable for a period less than such maximum period.

6.04. Nontransferability.

Except as provided in Section 6.05, Options and SARs granted under this Plan shall be
nontransferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. In the event of any such
transfer, the Option and any Corresponding SAR that relates to such Option must be transferred to the
same person or persons or entity or entities. Except as provided in Section 6.05, during the lifetime of the
Participant to whom the Option or SAR is granted, the Option or SAR may be exercised only by the
Participant. No right or interest of a Participant in any Option or SAR shall be liable for, or subject to,
any lien, obligation, or liability of such Participant.
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6.05. Transferable Options and SARs.

Section 6.04 to the contrary notwithstanding, if the Agreement provides, an Option or SAR may
be transferred by a Participant to the Participant’s children, grandchildren or spouse, one or more trusts
for the benefit of such family members or a partnership in which such family members are the only
partners. Options and SARs may not be transferred to third parties for consideration without shareholder
approval. The holder of an Option or SAR transferred pursuant to this section shall be bound by the same
terms and conditions that governed the Option or SAR during the period that it was held by the
Participant; provided, however, that such transferee may not transfer the Option or SAR except by will or
the laws of descent and distribution. In the event of any such transfer (by the Participant or his
transferee), the Option and any Corresponding SAR that relates to such Option must be transferred to the
$ame person or persons or entity or entities.

6.06. Exercise.

An Option or SAR granted under this Plan shall be deemed to have been exercised on the Date of
Exercise. Subject to the provisions of this Article VI and Article XIII, an Option or SAR may be
exercised in whole at any time or in part from time to time at such times and in compliance with such
requirements as the Committee shall determine. The preceding sentence to the contrary notwithstanding
and except as provided in Section 6.10, an Option or SAR that becomes exercisable solely on account of
the Participant’s continued employment shall not become fully exercisable before the third anniversary of
the date of grant. The preceding sentence shall not apply to Options and SARs granted to Participants
who are members of the Board but are not employees of the Company or an Affiliate on the date of grant.
A Corresponding SAR that is related to an Incentive Stock Option may be exercised only to the extent
that the related Option is exercisable and only when the Fair Market Value exceeds the option price of the
related Option. An Option or SAR granted under this Plan may be exercised with respect to any number
of whole shares less than the full number of whole shares for which the Option or SAR could be
exercised. A partial exercise of an Option or SAR shall not affect the right to exercise the Option or SAR
from time to time in accordance with this Plan and the applicable Agreement with respect to the shares
remaining subject to the Option or related to the SAR. The exercise of either an Option or Corresponding
SAR shall result in the termination of the other to the extent of the number of shares with respect to which
the Option or Corresponding SAR is exercised.

6.07. Payment of Option Price.

Unless otherwise provided by the Agreement, payment of the Option price shall be made in cash
or a cash equivalent acceptable to the Committee. If the Agreement provides, payment of all or part of
the Option price may be made by surrendering shares of Common Stock to the Company or by attesting
to such ownership of shares. If Common Stock is used to pay all or part of the Option price, the shares
surrendered or attested must have an aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of the day preceding the
Date of Exercise) that, together with any cash or cash equivalent paid, is not less than the option price for
the number of shares for which the Option is being exercised.

6.08. Determination of Payment of Cash and/or Common Stock Upon Exercise of SAR.

At the Committee’s discretion, the amount payable as a result of the exercise of an SAR may be
settled in cash, Common Stock, or a combination of cash and Common Stock. A fractional share shall
not be deliverable upon the exercise of an SAR but a cash payment will be made in lieu thereof.
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6.09. Shareholder Rights.

No Participant shall have any rights as a shareholder with respect to shares subject to an Option
or SAR until, and then only to the extent that, the Option or SAR is exercised and Common Stock is
issued to the Participant.

6.10. Termination of Employment; Change in Control.

Section 6.06 to the contrary notwithstanding, the Committee may provide that an Option or SAR
shall be or shall become exercisable, in whole or in part, upon a termination of the Participant’s
employment or service or a Change in Control. The Committee’s determination under this Section 6.10
may be made at the time the Option or SAR is granted or thereafter (but before the expiration or forfeiture
of the Option or SAR).

ARTICLE VII
STOCK AND STOCK UNIT AWARDS

7.01. Award.

In accordance with the provisions of Article IV, the Committee will designate each individual to
whom a Stock Award or Stock Unit Award is to be made and will specify the number of shares of
Common Stock covered by the Award; provided, however, that no Participant may be awarded Stock
Awards or Stock Unit Awards in any calendar year for more than 150,000 shares of Common Stock,
subject to adjustment as provided in Article XII.

7.02. Vesting.

As provided in this Section 7.02, but subject to Section 7.04, the Committee, on the date of the
award, shall prescribe that a Participant’s rights in a Stock Award or Stock Unit shall be forfeitable or
otherwise restricted for a period of time set forth in the Agreement. By way of example and not of
limitation, the restrictions may postpone transferability of the shares or may provide that the shares will
be forfeited if the Participant separates from the employ or service of the Company and its Affiliates
before the expiration of a stated term or if the Company, the Company and its Affiliates or the Participant
fail to achieve stated objectives. Stock Awards and Stock Units that become vested and transferable
solely on account of the Participant’s continued employment shall not become entirely vested and
transferable before the third anniversary of the date of grant and other Stock Awards and Stock Units
shall not become entirely vested and transferable before the first anniversary of the date of grant. The
preceding sentence shall not apply to Stock Awards and Stock Units granted to Participants who are
members of the Board but are not employees of the Company or an Affiliate on the date of grant. A
Stock Award or Stock Unit Award shall become vested and nontransferable only to the extent that the
Commiittee first certifies that any restrictions or objectives have been satisfied.

7.03. Shareholder Rights.

Prior to their forfeiture in accordance with the terms of the Agreement and while Stock Awards
are nonvested, nontransferable or both, a Participant will have all rights of a shareholder with respect to a
Stock Award, including the right to receive dividends and vote the shares; provided, however, that (i) a
Participant may not sell, transfer, pledge, exchange, hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of a Stock Award,
(ii) the Company shall retain custody of the certificates evidencing shares of Common Stock issued as a
Stock Award, and (iii) the Participant will deliver to the Company a stock power, endorsed in blank, with




respect to each Stock Award. The limitations set forth in the preceding sentence shall not apply after the
shares become vested and transferable.

No Participant shall, as a result of receiving a Stock Unit Award, have any rights as a shareholder
until, and then only to the extent that, the Stock Unit Award is earned and Common Stock is issued to the
Participant. Stock Unit Awards may be granted together with a dividend equivalent right with respect to
the shares of Common Stock subject to the Award, which may be paid currently, accumulated, or deemed
reinvested in additional Stock Unit Awards, as determined by the Committee and set forth in the
Agreement,

7.04. Termination of Employment: Change in Control.

Section 7.02 to the contrary notwithstanding, the Committee may provide that a Stock Award or
Stock Unit shall be or shall become vested and transferable, in whole or in part, upon a termination of the
Participant’s employment or service or a Change in Control. The Committee’s determination under this
Section 7.04 may be made at the time a Stock Award or Stock Unit is granted or thereafier (but before the
forfeiture of the Stock Award of Stock Unit).

ARTICLE VIII
PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARDS

8.01. Award.

In accordance with the provisions of Article IV, the Committee will designate individuals to
whom an award of Performance Shares is to be granted and will specify the number of shares of Common
Stock covered by the Award; provided, however, that no Participant may be awarded Performance Shares
in any calendar year for more than 150,000 shares of Common Stock, subject to adjustment as provided in
Article XII.

8.02. Eaming the Award.

Subject to Section 8.08, the Committee, on the date of the grant of Performance Shares, shall
prescribe that the Performance Shares, or a portion thereof, will be eamed, and the Participant will be
entitled to receive payment pursuant to the award of Performance Shares, only upon the satisfaction of
performance objectives or such other criteria as may be prescribed by the Committee and set forth in the
Agreement. Subject to Section 8.08, a performance period of at least one-year will be established for any
Performance Shares and no payments will be made with respect to Performance Shares unless, and then
only to the extent that, the Committee certifies that such objectives have been achieved.

8.03. Issuance of Shares.

To the extent that a Performance Share Award is settled with Common Stock, the shares of
Common Stock earned shall be issued to the Participant as soon as practicable after the Committee
certifies the number of Performance Shares earned by the Participant; provided, however, that such shares
must be issued by March 15 of the year after the year in which the Performance Share is earned. A
fractional share shall not be issuable under this Article VIII but instead will be settled in cash.

8.04. Settlement in Cash.

To the extent that a Performance Share Award is settled in cash, the payment will be made in a
single sum as soon as practicable after the Committee certifies the number of Performance Shares earned




by the Participant; provided, however, that such cash payment must be made by March 15 of the year
after the year in which the Performance Share is earned. To the extent that a Performance Share Award is
settled in cash, the amount of cash payable under a Performance Share Award shall equal the Fair Market
Value of the number of shares of Common Stock equal to the number of Performance Shares earned on
the date that the Committee certifies the Participant’s right to receive the payment.

8.05. Shareholder Rights.

No Participant shall, as a result of receiving an award of Performance Shares, have any rights as a
shareholder until and then only to the extent that the Performance Shares are earned and Common Stock
is issued to the Participant.

8.06. Nontransferability.

Except as provided in Section 8.07, a Participant may not transfer a Performance Share award or
the right to receive payment thereunder other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. No
right or interest of a Participant in any Performance Share award shall be liable for, or subject to, any lien,
obligation, or liability of such Participant.

8.07. Transferable Performance Shares.

Section 8.06 to the contrary notwithstanding, the Committee may grant Performance Shares that
are transferable to the Participant’s children, grandchildren or spouse, one or more trusts for the benefit of
such family members or a partnership in which such family members are the only partners; provided
however, that the Participant may not receive any consideration for the transfer without shareholder
approval. The holder of a Performance Share transferred pursuant to this section shall be bound by the
same terms and conditions that governed the Performance Share award during the period that it was held
by the Participant; provided, however, that such transferee may not transfer the Performance Share award
except by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

8.08. Termination of Employment; Change in Control.

Section 8.02 to the contrary notwithstanding, the Committee may provide that a Performance
Share Award shall be or shall become earned, in whole or in part, upon a termination of the Participant’s
employment or service or a Change in Control. The Committee’s determination under this Section 8.08
may be made at the time a Performance Share is awarded or thereafter (but before the forfeiture of the
Performance Share Award).

ARTICLE IX
INCENTIVE AWARDS

9.01. Award.

The Committee shall designate Participants to whom Incentive Awards are made. All Incentive
Awards shall be finally determined exclusively by the Committee. With respect to an Incentive Award
based on a performance period of one year, no Participant may receive an Incentive Award payment in
any calendar year that exceeds $2,000,000. With respect to an Incentive Award based on a performance
period of more than one year, no Participant may receive an Incentive Award payment in any calendar
year that exceeds the product of (i) $125,000 and (ii} the number of months in the performance period.




9.02. Terms and Conditions.

The Committee, at the time an Incentive Award is made, shall specify the terms and conditions
which govern the award, Such terms and conditions shall prescribe that the Incentive Award shall be
earned only to the extent that the Company achieves performance objectives or such other criteria as may
be prescribed by the Committee and set forth in the Agreement. Except as provided in Section 9.08, the
performance period of an Incentive Award shall be at least one year.

9.03. Nontransferability.

Except as provided in Section 9.04, a Participant may not transfer an Incentive Award or the right
to receive payment thereunder other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. No right or
interest of a Participant in an Incentive Award shall be liable for, or subject to, any lien, obligation, or
liability of such Participant.

9.04. Transferable Incentive Awards.

Section 9.03 to the contrary notwithstanding, the Committee may grant Incentive Awards that are
transferable to the Participant’s children, grandchildren or spouse, one or more trusts for the benefit of
such family members or a partnership in which such family members are the only partners; provided,
however that the Participant may not receive any consideration for the transfer without shareholder
approval. The holder of an Incentive Award transferred pursuant to this section shall be bound by the
same terms and conditions that governed the Incentive Award during the period that it was held by the
Participant; provided, however, that such transferee may not transfer the Incentive Award except by will
or the laws of descent and distribution.

Q.05. Issuance of Shares.

To the extent that an Incentive Award is settled with Common Stock, the shares of Common
Stock shall be issued to the Participant as soon as practicable after the Committee certifies the extent to
which the Incentive Award has been earned; provided, however, that such shares must be issued by
March 15 of the year after the year in which the Incentive Award is earned. The issuance of Common
Stock in full or partial settlement of an Incentive Award shall be based on the Fair Market Value on the
date the Committee certifies the extent to which the Incentive Award has been eaned.

9.06. Settlement in Cash.

To the extent that an [ncentive Award is settled in cash, the payment will be made in a single sum
as soon as practicable after the Committee certifies the extent to which the Incentive Award has been
earned; provided, however, that such cash payment must be made by March 15 of the year after the year
in which the Incentive Award is eamed.

0.07. Shareholder Rights.

No Participant shall, as a result of receiving an Incentive.Award, have any rights as a shareholder
of the Company or any Affiliate on account of the Incentive Award until, and then only to the extent that,
the Incentive Award is earned and settled with the issuance of Common Stock.




0.08. Termination of Employment: Change in Control.

Section 9.02 to the contrary notwithstanding, the Committee may provide that an Incentive
Award shall be or shall become earned, in whole or in part, upon a termination of the Participant’s
employment or service or a Change in Control. The Committee’s determination under this Section 9.08
may be made at the time an Incentive Award is granted or thereafter (but before the forfeiture of the
Incentive Award).

ARTICLE X
CHANGE IN CONTROL

10.01. Impact of Change in Control.

In accordance with Sections 6.10, 7.04, 8.08, and 9.08 and to the extent provided by the
Committee thereunder, but subject to Sections 10.02, 10.03 and 10.04, upon a Change in Control, (i) each
Option and SAR shall be exercisable, (ii) each Stock Award and Stock Unit will become transferable and
nonforfeitable, (iii) each Performance Share shall be earned and (iv) each Incentive Award shall be
earned.

10.02. Assumption Upon Change in Control.

In the event of a Change in Control the Committee, in its discretion and without the need for a
Participant’s consent, may provide that an outstanding Option, SAR, Stock Award, Stock Unit,
Performance Share or Incentive Award shall be assumed by, or will be replaced by a substitute award
granted by, the surviving entity in the Change in Control. Such assumed or substituted award shall be of
the same type of award as the original Option, SAR, Stock Award, Stock Unit, Performance Share or
Incentive Award being assumed or substituted. The assumed or substituted award shall have a value, as
of the completion of the Change in Control, that is substantially equal to the value of the original award
(or the difference between the Fair Market value and the option price or Initial Value in the case of
Options and SARs) as the Committee determines is equitably required and such other terms and
conditions as may be prescribed by the Committee.

10.03. Cash-Out Upon Change in Centrol.

In the event of a Change in Control, the Committee, in its discretion and without the need for a
Participant’s consent, may provide that an outstanding Option, SAR, Stock Award, Stock Unit,
Performance Share and Incentive Award shall be cancelled in exchange for a payment. The payment may
be in cash, shares of Common Stock or other securities or consideration received by shareholders in the
Change in Control transaction. The amount of the payment shall be an amount that is substantially equal
to (i) the amount by which the price per share received by stockholders in the Change in Control exceeds
the Option price or Initial Value in the case of an Option and SAR, or (ii) the price per share received by
stockholder for each share of Common Stock subject to a Stock Award, Stock Unit and Performance
Shares.

10.04. Cancellation of options and SARs.

In the event of a Change in Control, the Committee, in its sole discretion and without the need for
a Participant’s consent, may provide that an outstanding Option or SAR that is exercisable on or before
the completion of the Change in Control shall be cancelled and forfeited if not exercised on or before
completion of the Change in Control.
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10.05. Limitation on Benefits.

The benefits that a Participant may be entitled to receive under this Plan and other benefits that a
Participant is entitled to receive under other plans, agreements and arrangements (which, together with the
benefits provided under this Plan, are referred to as “Payments™), may constitute Parachute Payments that
are subject to Code Sections 280G and 4999. As provided in this Article X, the Parachute Payments will
be reduced if, and only to the extent that, a reduction will allow a Participant to receive a greater Net
After Tax Amount than a Participant would receive absent a reduction.

The Accounting Firm will first determine the amount of any Parachute Payments that are payable
to a Participant. The Accounting Firm also will determine the Net After Tax Amount attributable to the
Participant’s total Parachute Payments.

The Accounting Firm will next determine the largest amount of Payments that may be made to
the Participant without subjecting the Participant to tax under Code Section 4999 (the “Capped
Payments”). Thereafter, the Accounting Firm will determine the Net After Tax Amount attributable to
the Capped Payments.

The Participant will receive the total Parachute Payments or the Capped Payments, whichever
provides the Participant with the higher Net After Tax Amount. If the Participant will receive the Capped
Payments, the total Parachute Payments will be adjusted by first reducing the amount of any noncash
benefits (other than Common Stock) under this Plan or any other plan, agreement or arrangement (with
the source of the reduction to be directed by the Participant) and then by reducing the amount of any cash
benefits and Commeon Stock under this Plan or any other plan, agreement or arrangement (with the source
of the reduction to be directed by the Participant). The Accounting Firm will notify the Participant and
the Company if it determines that the Parachute Payments must be reduced to the Capped Payments and
will send the Participant and the Company a copy of its detailed calculations supporting that
determination.

As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Code Sections 280G and 4999 at the time that
the Accounting Firm makes its determinations under this Article X, it is possible that amounts will have
been paid or distributed to the Participant that should not have been paid or distributed under this Article
X (“Overpayments™), or that additional amounts should be paid or distributed to the Participant under this
Article X (“Underpayments”). If the Accounting Firm determines, based on either the assertion of a
deficiency by the Internal Revenue Service against the Company or the Participant, which assertion the
Accounting Firm believes has a high probability of success or controlling precedent or substantial
authority, that an Overpayment has been made, the Participant must repay the Overpayment to the
Company, without interest; provided, however, that no loan will be deemed to have been made and no
amount will be payable by the Participant to the Company unless, and then only to the extent that, the
deemed loan and payment would either reduce the amount on which the Participant is subject to tax under
Code Section 4999 or generate a refund of tax imposed under Code Section 4999. If the Accounting Firm
determines, based upon controlling precedent or substantial authority, that an Underpayment has
occurred, the Accounting Firm will notify the Participant and the Company of that determination and the
amount of that Underpayment, without interest, will be paid to the Participant promptly by the Company.

For purposes of this Article X, the term “Accounting Firm” means the independent accounting
firm engaged by the Company immediately before the Change in Control. For purposes of this Article X,
the term “Net After Tax Amount” means the amount of any Parachute Payments or Capped Payments, as
applicable, net of taxes imposed under Code Sections 1, 3101(b) and 4999 and any State or local income
taxes applicable to the Participant on the date of payment. The determination of the Net After Tax
Amount shall be made using the highest combined effective rate imposed by the foregoing taxes on
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income of the same character as the Parachute Payments or Capped Payments, as applicable, in effect on
the date of payment. For purposes of this Article X, the term “Parachute Payment” means a payment that
is described in Code Section 280G(b)(2), determined in accordance with Code Section 280G and the
regulations promulgated or proposed thereunder.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 10.05, the limitations and provisions of this
Section 10.05 shall not apply to any Participant who, pursuant to an agreement with the Company or the
terms of another plan maintained by the Company, is entitled to indemnification for any liability that the
Participant may incur under Code Section 4999.

ARTICLE X1
PERFORMANCE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Committee may determine whether any Stock Award, Stock Unit Award, Performance Share
Award, or Incentive Award is intended to be “performance-based compensation” as that term is used in
Section 162(m) of the Code. Any Awards designated as “performance-based compensation” shall be
conditioned on the achievement of one or more of the following performance objectives and will be
subject to all other conditions and requirements of Section 162(m): Fair Market Value or the Company’s
revenue, gross profit, operating income, operating ratio, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation-and
amortization, earnings before interest and taxes, return on capital, economic profit, operating cycle, total
shareholder return, return on equity, return on assets, cash flow, debt reduction, return on investments, net
income or earnings per share. Performance objectives may be described in terms of objectives that are
related to the individual Participant or objectives that are Company-wide or related to an Affiliate,
division, department, region, function or business unit and may be measured on an absolute or cumulative
basis or on the basis of percentage of improvement over time, and may be measured in terms of Company
performance (or performance of the applicable Affiliate, division, department, region, function or
business unit) or measured relative to selected peer companies or a market index.

Such terms and conditions also may include other limitations on payment or settlement including,
by way of example and not of limitation, requirements that the Participant complete a specified period of
employment with the Company or an Affiliate or that the Company, an Affiliate, or the Participant attain
stated objectives or goals (in addition to those prescribed in accordance with the preceding sentence) as a
prerequisite to payment under the Award.

The Committee may adjust the performance goals as it deems equitable in recognition of unusual
or non-recurring events affecting the Company, changes in applicable tax laws or accounting principles,
or such other factors as the Committee may determine, excluding any adjustments that would result in the
Company paying non-deductible compensation to a Participant.

ARTICLE XII
ADJUSTMENT UPON CHANGE IN COMMON STOCK

The maximum number of shares that may be issued pursuant to Awards, the per individual
limitations on Awards, and the terms of outstanding Awards (including the option price or Initial Value)
shall be adjusted, as the Committee shall determine to be equitably required in the event that (a) the
Company (i) effects one or more stock dividends, extraordinary cash dividends, stock split-ups,
subdivisions or consolidations of shares or (ii) engages in a transaction to which Section 424 of the Code
applies or (b) there occurs any other event which, in the judgment of the Committee necessitates such
action. Any determination made under this Article XII by the Committee shall be final and conclusive.
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The issuance by the Company of shares of stock of any class, or securities convertible into shares
of stock of any class, for cash or property, or for labor or services, either upon direct sale or upon the
exercise of rights or warrants to subscribe therefor, or upon conversion of shares or obligations of the
Company convertible into such shares or other securities, shall not affect, and no adjustment by reason
thereof shall be made with respect to, the maximum number of shares as to which Awards may be
granted, the per individual limitations on Awards or the terms of outstanding Awards.

The Committee may issue Substitute Awards in substitution for stock awards, stock options,
stock appreciation rights, or similar awards held by an individual who becomes an employee of the
Company or an Affiliate or whose employer becomes an Affiliate in connection with a transaction
described in the first paragraph of this Article XII. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan, the terms
of such Substitute Awards shall be as the Committee, in its discretion, determines is appropriate,

ARTICLE XIIi
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND APPROVAL OF REGULATORY BODIES

No Option or SAR shall be exercisable, no Common Stock shall be issued, no certificates for
shares of Common Stock shall be delivered, and no payment shall be made under this Plan except in
compliance with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations (including, without limitation,
withholding tax requirements) and the rules of all domestic stock exchanges on which the Company’s
shares may be listed. The Company shall have the right to rely on an opinion of its counsel as to such
compliance. Any share certificate issued to evidence Common Stock for which an Award was made or
settled may bear such legends and statements as the Committee may deem advisable to assure compliance
with federal and state laws and regulations. No Option or SAR shall be exercisable, no Common Stock
shall be issued, no certificate for shares shall be delivered, and no payment shall be made under this Plan
until the Company has obtained such consent or approval as the Committee may deem advisable from
regulatory bodies having jurisdiction over such matters.

ARTICLE X1V
GENERAL PROVISIONS

14.01. Effect on Employment or Service.

Neither the adoption of this Plan, its operation, nor any documents describing or referring to this
Plan (or any part thereof) shall confer upon any individual any right to continue in the employ or service
of the Company or an Affihate or in any way affect any right and power of the Company or an Affiliate to
terminate the employment or service of any individual at any time with or without assigning a reason
therefor.

14.02. Unfunded Plan.

The Plan, insofar as it provides for grants, shall be unfunded, and the Company shall not be
required to segregate any assets that may at any time be represented by grants under this Plan. Any
liability of the Company to any person with respect to any grant under this Plan shall be based solely
upon any contractual obligations that may be created pursuant to this Plan. No such obligation of the
Company shall be deemed to be secured by any pledge of, or other encumbrance on, any property of the
Company.
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14.03. Rules of Construction.

Headings are given to the articles and sections of this Plan solely as a convenience to facilitate
reference. The reference to any statute, regulation, or other provision of law shall be construed to refer to
any amendment to or successor of such provision of law.

14.04. Tax Withholding.

The Participant shall be responsible for payment of any taxes or similar charges required by law
to be withheld from an Award or an amount paid in satisfaction of an Award, which shall be paid by the
Participant on or prior to the payment or other event that results in taxable income in respect of an Award.
The Agreement may specify the manner in which the withholding obligation shall be satisfied with
respect to the particular type of Award, which may include procedures to permit or require a Participant to
satisfy such obligation in whole or in part (but only up to the statutory minimum) by having the Company
withhold shares of Common Stock from the shares to which the Participant is entitled. The number of
shares to be withheld shall have a Fair Market Value as of the date that the amount of tax to be withheld is
determined as nearly equal as possible to (but not exceeding) the amount of such obligations being
satisfied. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company, in its sole discretion, may withhold all such
required taxes from any amount otherwise payable to a Participant.

14.05. Governing Law.

The Plan and all rights hereunder shall be subject to and interpreted in accordance with the laws
of the Commonwealth of Virginia, without reference to the principles of conflicts of laws, and to
applicable Federal securities laws.

14.06. Section 409A.

Notwithstanding any provision in the Plan or an Agreement, if any provision of this Plan or an
Agreement contravenes any regulations or guidance promulgated under Section 409A of the Code or
would cause an Award to be subject to additional taxes, accelerated taxation, interest and/or penalties
under Section 409A of the Code, such provision may be modified by the Committee without consent of
the Participant in any manner the Committee deems reasonable or necessary. In making such
modifications the Committee shall attempt, but shall not be obligated, to maintain, to the maximum extent
practicable, the original intent of the applicable provision without contravening the provisions of Section
409A of the Code. Moreover, any discretionary authority that the Committee may have pursuant to the
Plan shall not be applicable to an Award that is subject to Section 409A of the Code to the extent such
discretionary authority would contravene Section 409A of the Code or the guidance promulgated
thereunder.

14.07. Other Compensation and Benefits.

The adoption of this Plan shall not affect any other compensation plans in effect for the Company
or any Affiliate, nor preclude the Company or any Affiliate from establishing any other compensation
plan.

ARTICLE XV
AMENDMENT

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Board may at any time terminate or, from
time to time, amend, modify or suspend the Plan; provided, however, that no amendment or modification
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will be effective without the approval of the shareholders of the Company if such approval is required
under applicable laws or the rules of the exchange on which the Common Stock is listed. No Plan
amendment shall, without a Participant’s consent, adversely affect any rights of such Participant under
any Award outstanding at the time such amendment is made.

ARTICLE XVI
DURATION OF PLAN

No Awards may be awarded or granted under this Plan after August 16, 2017. Awards granted
before that date shall remain valid in accordance with their terms,

ARTICLE XVII
EFFECTIVE DATE OF PLAN

Options, SARs, Stock Unit Awards, Performance Share Awards, and Incentive Awards may be
granted under this Plan upon its adoption by the Board, provided that no Option or SAR will be
exercisable and no Stock Unit Award, Performance Share Award, or Incentive Award will be settled
unless and until this Plan is approved by a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the shareholders of
the Cormnpany, voting either in person or by proxy, at a duty held shareholders’ meeting. Stock Awards
may be granted under this Plan upon its approval by the shareholders of the Company in accordance with
the preceding sentence.
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ALLIANCEOne

Alliance One is a leading independent leaf tobacco merchant serving the world’s large multinational cigarette
manufacturers. We select, purchase, process, pack, store and ship leaf tobacco, as well as provide agronomy
expertise and financing for growing leaf tobacco throughout the world. Our proud heritage, unique strategic

vision, talented employees and superior customer service establishes a strong foundation that enhanced
shareholder value is built on.




DEAR FELLOW INVESTOR:

In this, my first letter to you as the Chief Executive
Officer of Alliance One, | consider myself fortunate
to speak on behalf of all Alliance One employees
around the globe who collectively have made such a
tremendous difference from this time one year ago.

| must also thank our loyal customers for “sticking
with us” during this time and providing much needed
support during this transition, At the end of the day
a successful Alliance One means being a strategic
partner that is both focused and capable of creating
and delivering value within the tobacco supply chain
through a dedicated and professional workforce that
truly spans the globe. That was and stitl remains our
number one objective.

The operating environment this year was equally as
challenging as the past, with the exception that
Alliance One began to truly operate asf;"One,” with
most of the merger “noise” finally behind us. Our
strategy to create a leaf supply partnér with the foot-
print and scale necessary to drive efficiency, sustain-
ability and long-term shareholder vafue in an intensely
competitive industry is the unifying focus that has
helped us to begin to deliver on our value proposition
and will continue to focus us into the future.

The results from operations this past year were
significantly improved from that of the previous year
as a result of improved margins, a better operating
cost structure and reduced SG&A due to higher than
planned merger savings and synergies being
achieved. In addition, total debt was reduced by
$161.6 million year on year and total working capital
declined by $6.9 million, leaving your Company in
much improved financial shape heading into the
coming year focused on the future. In fact, the only
measures that lagged the prior year's performance
were kilo volume sold and total Revenue, both down
12.1% and 6.3% respectively to 584.9 million kilos and
$1,979.1 million, This was due to conscious decisions
taken to either reduce or exit certain historically

At the end of the day a successful Alliance One
means being a strategic partner that is both
focused and capable of creating and delivering
value within the tobacco supply chain through
a dedicated and professional workforce that
truly spans the globe. That was and still

remains our number one objective.

unprofitable crops or not to pursue certain business
relationships that were driven more by price and
volume than by Total Product Integrity. The dedication
to Total Product Integrity is the cornerstone of our
vision to becoming a true strategic partner and
supplier. We feel this will become increasingly
important to the industry.

Global social responsibility programs, good
agricultural practices, agricultural residue testing and
farmer traceability programs, in conjunction with our
seed development science and modern processing
standards, will all lead to product improvements for
the future — and those we believe will be sought by our
customers in expectation of an increasingly regulated
environment for tobacco products.

In addition to the positive improvement in the year-
to-year results, your Company achieved a number of
other important benchmarks that will help put our
post-merger progress in perspective. Firstly, we
believe Alliance One became the first leaf merchant to
utilize off-shoring as part of its Information Technology
development strategy. Developing this capability now
will enable Alliance One to respond more effectively to
the information requirements of tomorrow. Working
with our long-standing partner in India we developed a
platform through which certain future Alliance One IT
initiatives can be off-shored more cost effectively and
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timely when speed to market will become an even
more important differentiator for the future.

Secondly, we were able to monetize over $38 million
of non-core asset sales to reduce debt in our second
year as Alliance One. This was in addition to
substantially reducing total inventories (committed
and un-committed) by $121 million as part of our
strategic adjustment to our global footprint.

Thirdly, this past year your Company was able

to successfully complete a re-financing to take
advantage of favorable market conditions to reduce
interest spreads, extend maturities and increase debt
pre-payment flexibility to enable the acceleration of
our de-leveraging plans.

Finally, we announced the re-atignment of the top of
our management organization to support our growth
plans by promoting our Regional Director of South
America, Hilton Kappaun, to Executive Vice President
(“EVP”) Operations and our Regional Director of Asia,
Pieter Sikkel, to EVP Business Strategy and Global
Relationship Management. These two individuals
have a strong background in this industry and having
them together on our top team will further strengthen
our strategic focus and planning for the future.

Solid earnings performance, substantial debt and
inventory reductions, a successful re-financing to

build flexibility for the future, developing an innovative
IT platform and re-aligning the organization to drive
the business going forward were some of the key
achievements in a very exciting year of transition

for your Company.

Looking forward, our Mission remains unchanged - To
be the preferred supplier of quality tobacco products
and innovative solutions to the world’s manufacturers
and marketers of tobacco products. Our focus is the
customer and through that we will deliver long-term
shareholder value. Fiscal year 2008 will most
certainly offer its share of challenges as customer
consolidation continues, the impact of increasingly
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Looking forward, our Mission remains

unchanged — To be the preferred supplier of
quality tobacco products and innovative
solutions to the world’s manufacturers and
marketers of tobacco products. Our focus is
the customer and through that we will deliver

long-term shareholder value.

uncertain weather patterns on crop sizes and quality
and the foreign exchange impact on US dollar based
pricing - atl unknown variables that may significantly
impact results during the year. Over the long-term,
the value we seek to bring to the global tobacco
supply chain is continuity of supply and the
maintenance of stringent quality standards that will
produce the types of tobacco products neaded by

our customers, Product traceability, seed technology
innovation, rigorous product testing programs,

good agricultural practices and social responsibility
programs within the global community, combined with
global SO certified manufacturing facilities are and
will become even more critical to the products we
market as we move forward. This is both our vision
and our mission and | want to express again a “well-
done” to all Alliance One colleagues around the globe.

Last, but by no means least, | personally want to
express my gratitude to our Chairman, Brian Harker,
who will be retiring from our Board after our August
meeting. His perspective, his guidance and his
unswerving commitment to our original vision when we
first discussed creating Alliance One, was invaluable.
Brian, the mantle you are passing on will not be worn
lightty — Thank you for making Alliance One possible.

[>Y1.

R. E. Harrison
President & CEQ
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

In this section, unless the context indicates otherwise, the terms “Alliance One,” “we,” “us” and "our” refer to the
combined business of DIMON and Standard afier completion of the merger of Standard with and into DIMON on May 13,
2005. The term “DIMON” refers to DIMON Incorporated and its subsidiaries prior to the merger. The term “Standard”
refers to Standard Commercial Corporation and its subsidiaries prior to the merger.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our website address is www.aointl.com. We make available free of charge through our website our annual report on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports as soon as
reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The information contained on our website shall not be deemed part of this annual report on Form 10-K for any
reason,

OVERVYIEW

Alliance One is one of only two global independent leaf tobacco merchants, each with substantially similar global market
shares. We have broad geographic processing capabilities, a diversified product offering and an established customer base,
including all of the major consumer tobacco product manufacturers. We select, purchase, process, store, pack and ship
tobacco grown in more than 45 countries, serving manufacturers of cigarettes and other consumer tobacco products in more
than 90 countries around the world. We process tobacco through a complex mechanized threshing and separating operation
and then dry it to meet precise moisture levels in accordance with the customer’s specifications. The processing of leaf
tobacco facilitates shipping and prevents spoilage and is an essential service to our customers because the quality of
processed leaf tobacco substantially affects the quality of the manufacturer’s end product. In an increasing number of
important markets, we also provide agronomy expertise for growing leaf tobacco.

Alliance One holds a leading position in most tobacco growing regions in the world, including the principal export
markets for flue-cured, burley and oriental tobacco: the United States, Brazil, Malawi, Turkey, Argentina, India and Thailand.
In addition, we process tobacco in more than 50 owned and third party facilities around the world. We sell our processed
tobacco primarily to large multinational cigarette manufacturers, including Philip Morris, Japan Tobacco, British American
Tobacco, Altadis, Imperial Tobacco, R. J. Reynolds Tobacco, Gallaher, Lorniilard, Eastern and others.

Alliance One is a Virginia corporation, and our common stock has been traded on the New York Stock Exchange since
1995, Through our predecessor companies, we have a long operating history in the leaf tobacco industry and have maintained
relationships with many of our major customers for more than 50 years, with some of these relationships beginning in the
early 1900s. Our company was renamed Alliance One International, Inc. on May 13, 2005 concurrent with the merger of
Standard with and into DIMON, the third largest and second largest global independent leaf tobacco merchants, respectively.
Accordingly, the information contained herein regarding our fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 and for any other time prior to
the completion of the merger relates only to DIMON.

Product

The world's large multinational cigarette manufacturers, with one exception, rely primarily on independent leaf tobacco
merchants such as Alliance One to supply the majority of their leaf tobacco needs. Leaf tobacco merchants select, purchase,
process, store, pack and ship tobacco and, in a growing number of markets, provide agronomy expertise. Our revenues are
primarily comprised of sales of processed tobacco and fees charged for processing and related services to manufacturers of
tobacco products around the world. Processing and other revenues are less than 5% of our total revenues. We do not
manufacture cigarettes or other consumer tobacco products.

We deal primarily mm flue-cured, burley, and oriental tobaccos that are used in intemational brand cigarettes.
International brand cigarettes include Virginia cigarettes that contain only flue-cured tobaccos as well as American blend
cigarettes. American blend cigareties contain approximately 50% flue-cured, 35% burley and 15% oriental tobacco, contain
less tar and nicotine and taste milder than locally produced cigareties containing dark and semi-oriental tobacco historically
consumed in certain parts of the world.  Several of the large multinational cigarette manufacturers have expanded their
operations throughout the world, particularly in Asia, Eastern Europe and the former Soviet Union, in order to increase their
access to and penetration of intemational brand cigarette markets.




Product (Continued)

As cigarette manufacturers continue to expand their global operations, we believe that demand will increase for local
sources of leaf tobacco and local tobacco processing and distribution, primarily due to beneficial tariff rates and lower freight
costs. We believe that the international expansion of the large multinational cigarette manufacturers will cause these
manufacturers to place greater reliance on the services of leaf tobacco merchants with the ability to source and process
tobacco on a global basis and to help develop higher quality local sources of tobacco by improving local agronomic practices.

Geographic Regions of Operation

We have developed an extensive international network through which we purchase, process and sell tobacco. We own or
have an interest in processing facilities in Argentina, Brazil, India, Tanzania and the United States, the most significant
exporters of flue-cured tobacco; Brazil, Malawi and the United States, the leading exporters of burley tobacco, and
Kyrgyzstan, Macedonia, Bulgaria and Turkey, the leading exporters of oriental tobacco. We also have processing facilities in
Germany and Indonesia. We have historically contracted with third parties for the processing of tobacco in certain countries
including Argentina, Canada, China, Guatemala, India, Thailand and certain countries of the former Soviet Union. In
addition, we have entered into contracts, joint ventures and other arrangements for the purchase of tobacco grown in
substantially all other countries that produce export-quality flug-cured and burley tobacco, including Argentina, Canada,
China, India, Indonesia and Thailand.

We purchase tobacco in more than 45 countries. During the twelve months ended March 31, 2007, approximately
35%, 12%, 7%, 6%, 6% and 6% of the dollar value of tobacco Alliance One purchased during 2007 was from Brazil, the
United States, Argentina, China, Turkey and Malawi, respectively, The remaining 28% was purchased in more than 39
different countries with no single country accounting for more than 5% of the amount purchased.

The purchasing, processing, selling and storing of leaf tobacco is similar throughout our business. However, we
maintain regional operating and financial management in North America, South America, Europe, Africa and Asia to monitor
our various operations in these areas. In reviewing these operations, we have concluded that the economic characteristics of
South America are dissimilar from the other operating regions. Based on this fact, we are disclosing South America
separately and have aggregated the remaining four operating segments, Africa, Asia, Europe and Nerth America into one
reportable segment “Other Regions.” Qur financial performance is reviewed at this level and these regions represent our
operating segments. See Note N “Segment Information™ to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further
information.

Purchasing

Tobacco is now primarily purchased directly from growers ("direct contract buying") with small quantities still sold at
auction, Prior to the 2004 crop in the United States, flue-cured and burley tobacco crops were purchased at public auction,
but these markets have undergone a fundamental change. In addition to the leaf merchants, a number of our U.S. customers
purchase green tobacco directly from the growers. Although our U.S. facilities continue to process the tobacco purchased
directly from growers by these customers, we no longer take ownership of that tobacco and no longer record sales revenues
associated with its resale. The majority of our purchases of U.S. flue-cured and burley tobacco are made through the direct
contract buying system where we buy the farmer’s entire crop. With respect to tobacco purchased by us through this system
(and to which we still take title), we assume the risk of matching the quantities and grades required by our customers to the
entire crop we must purchase under contract, As a result, we work closely with our customers in advance of the crop to
estimate our customer requirements and use these estimates as the basis to contract tobaccos directly from farmers. However,
this arrangement has increased the possibility that we may accumulate inventories of grades of tobacco that our customers do
not need. When purchases are made from an auction system, tobaccos are purchased primarily to match specific customer
orders.

Principal auction markets include Canada, India and Malawi. We usually purchase tobacco at those auction markets
after receiving specific customer orders or indications of customers' upcoming needs. Our network of tobacco operations and
buyers allows us to cover the major auctions of flue-cured and burley tobacco throughout the world. These buyers are
experts in differentiating hundreds of grades of tobacco based on customer specifications and preferences that take into
account, among other factors, the texture, visual appearance and aroma of the tobacco.




Purchasing (Continuecd)

In non-auction markets such as Argentina, Brazil, Bulgaria, China, Greece, Guatemala, Indonesia, Kyrgyzstan,
Tanzania, Turkey and Zambia, we purchase tobacco directly from growers or from local entities that have arranged for
purchase from growers. We ofien make these direct purchases based upon our projection of the needs of our long-standing
customers rather than against specific purchase orders. Our arrangements with growers vary from locale to locale depending
on our predictions of future supply and demand, local historical practice and availability of capital. For example, in Brazil,
we generally contract to purchase a grower's entire tobacco crop at the market price per grade at the time of harvest based on
the quality of the tobacco delivered. Pursuant to these purchase contracts, we provide growers with fertilizer and other
materials necessary to grow tobacco and may either directly loan or guarantee Brazilian rural credit loans to growers to
finance the crop. Under longer-term arrangements with growers, we may also finance or guarantee financing on growers'
capital assets. In addition, our agronomists maintain frequent contact with growers prior to and during the growing and
curing seasons to provide technical assistance to improve the quality and yield of the crop. In other non-auction markets,
such as Argentina and China, we buy tobacco from local entities that have purchased tobacco from growers and supervise the
processing of that tobacco by those local entities. We believe that our long-standing relationships with our customers are
vital to our purchasing operations outside of the auction markets.

Processing

We process tobacco to meet each customer's specifications as to quality, yield, chemistry, particle size, moisture content and
other characteristics. We own and operate 23 tobacco processing facilities in 14 countries. Unprocessed tobacco is a semi-
perishable commodity that generally must be processed within a relatively short period of time to prevent fermentation or
deterioration in quality. Accordingly, we have located our processing facilities in proximity to our principal sources of
tobacco.

Upon arrival at our processing plants, flue-cured and burley tobacco is first reclassified according to grade. Most of
that tobacco is then blended to meet customer specifications regarding color, body and chemistry, threshed to remove the
stem from the leaf and further processed to produce strips of 1obacco and sieve out small scrap. We also sell a small amount
of processed but unthreshed flue-cured and burley tobacco in loose-leaf and bundle form to certain customers,

Processed flue-cured and burley tobacco is redried to remove excess moisture so that it can be held in storage by
customers or us for long periods of time. Afier redrying, whole leaves, bundles, strips or stems and scrap are separately
packed in cases, bales, cartons or hogsheads for storage and shipment. Packed flue-cured and burley tobacco generally is
transported in the country of origin by truck or rail, and exports are moved by ship. Prior to and during processing, steps are
taken to ensure consistent quality of the tobacco, including the regrading and removal of undesirable leaves, dirt and other
non-tobacco related material. Customer representatives are frequently present at our facilities to monitor the processing of
their particular orders. Throughout the processing, our technicians use quality control laboratory test equipment to ensure
that the product mects all customer specifications.

During 2005 and in prior years, we processed tobacco acquired by various stabilization cooperatives under the
domestic price support program in the United States. We derived significant revenues from the fees charged for these
processing services, particularly in years when a substantial portion of the domestic tobacco crop is acquired by such
cooperatives under the program. While these revenues were not material to our net sales, they resulted in additional recovery
of fixed costs that may be significant to gross profit. In 2006 and 2007, as a result of the repeal of the federal tobacco price
support and quota programs beginning with the 2005 crops under the “The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, we
processed no stabilization cooperative tobacco.

Customers and Selling Arrangements

Customers

We ship tobacco to manufacturers of cigarettes and other consumer tobacco products located in more than 90 countries
around the world. We ship to international locations designated by these manufacturers. A majority of the shipments of

tobacco are to factories or storage facilitics of these manufacturers that are located outside the United States. In certain
countries we also use commissioned agents to supplement our selling efforts.




Customers and Selling Arrangements {Continued)
Customers (Continued)

The consumer tobacco business is dominated by a relatively small number of large multinational cigarette
manufacturers and by government controlled entities. Of Alliance One’s 2007, 2006 and 2005 sales and other operating
revenues, approximately 19%, 18% and 15%, respectively, were to various tobacco customers which are owned by or under
common control of Japan Tobacco Inc. and approximately 34%, 34% and 28%, respectively, were to various tobacco
customers which are owned by or under common control of Altria Group, Inc. In 2007, Alliance One delivered
approximately 17% of its tobacco sales to customers in the United States, approximately 50% to customers in Europe. One
customer directs shipments to its Belgium storage and distribution center before shipment to its manufacturing facilities in
Europe and Asia. In 2007, these Belgium sales accounted for 35% of sales to customers in Europe. The remaining sales are
to customers located in Asia, Africa and elsewhere.

Selling Arrangements

We typically make most of our leaf tobacco purchases pursuant to customer orders or supply contracts or customer
indications of anticipated need, with most purchases made based on indications. Customers are legally bound to purchase
tobacco purchased by us pursuant to orders, but no contractual obligation exists with respect to tobacco purchased in
response to indications. However, we have done business with most of our customers for many years and have never
experienced a significant failure of customers to purchase tobacco for which they have given indications.

Generally, our agreements with customers establish a framework for pricing our services that is negotiated with respect
to crop year, grade of tobacco leaf or type of service provided based on market prices. The majority of these agreements do
not provide for minimum purchases and are terminable upon reasonable notice. None of the contracts are individually
material to our business as a whole and we have no other significant supply agreements with our customers.

Our normal customer sales terms are either cash against documents, payment against invoice or customer letter of
credit. Most of our sales throughout the world are denominated in U.S. dollars. While we can receive payment for tobacco
sold after we have processed and shipped it, some of the larger customers advance payments to us throughout the buying and
processing season as we purchase and process tobacco for the customers’ accounts.

Seasonality

The purchasing and processing activities of our tobacco business are seasonal. Flue-cured tobacco grown in the U.S. is
purchased, processed and sold generally during the five-month period beginning in July and ending in November. U.S.-
grown burley tobacco is purchased, processed and sold usually from late November through January or February. Tobacco
grown in Brazil is usually purchased, processed and sold from January through July and in Africa from April through
September. Other markets around the world have similar purchasing periods, although at different times of the year.

During the purchasing, processing and sales seasons, inventories of unprocessed tobacco, inventories of redned
tobacco and trade accounts receivable normally reach peak levels in succession. Current liabilities, particularly advances
from customers and short-term notes payable to banks, normally reach their peak in this period as a means of financing the
seasonal expansion of current assets. At March 31, the end of our fiscal year, the seasonal components of our working capital
reflect primarily the operations related to foreign grown tobacco,

Competition

The leaf tobacco industry is highly competitive. Competition among leaf tobacco merchants is based primarily on the price
charged for products and services as well as the merchant’s ability to meet customer specifications in the buying, processing
and financing of tobacco. In addition, there is competition in all countries to buy the available leaf tobacco and in many
areas, total leaf tobacco processing capacity exceeds demand.

In addition to the primary global independent leaf tobacco merchants, the cigarette manufacturers increasingly buy
tobacco directly from farmers, and other independent leaf merchants with low fixed costs and overhead who have entered the
leaf purchasing and processing business on a local basis.

Alliance One is one of only two global independent leaf tobacco merchants, with substantially similar global market
shares, We expect to maintain a major position in most major tobacco growing regions in the world, including the principal
export markets for flug-cured, burley and oriental tobacco and, as a result of our scale, global reach, and financial resources,
we believe we are well-suited 10 serve the needs of all cigarette manufacturers.
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Research and Development

We routinely cooperate with both our customers and the manufacturers of the equipment used in our processing facilities to
improve processing technologies. However, no material amounts are expended for research and development, and we hold
no material patents, licenses, franchises, or concessions.

Alliance One Employees

Alliance One’s consolidated entities employed approximately 4,700 persons, excluding seasonal employees, in our
worldwide operations at March 31, 2007. In the U.S. operations, Alliance One’s consolidated entities employed
approximately 400 employees at March 31, 2007. During processing periods the seasonal employees in the United States
would number approximately 700. Most U.S. seasonal employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements. None of
Alliance One’s full-time employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements with the exception of approximately 150
factory personnel. In the non-U.S. operations, Alliance One’s consolidated entitics employed approximately 4,300 persons,
excluding approximately 11,900 seasonal employees, at March 31, 2007. We consider Alliance One’s employee relations to
be satisfactory.

Government Regulation and Environmental Compliance

See Item 1A. “Risk Factors” for a discussion of government regulation. Currently there are no material estimated capital
expenditures related to environmental control facilities.




EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF ALLIANCE ONE INTERNATIONAL, INC.

The following information is furnished with respect to the Company’s executive officers as of April 1, 2007 and the
capacities in which they serve. These officers serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors and are elected at each annual
organizational meeting of the Board.

NAME AGE TITLE

Robert E. Harrison 53 President and Chief Executive Officer

James A. Cooley 56 Executive Vice President - Chief Financial Officer

Hilton Kappaun 47 Executive Vice President — Global Operations

J. Pieter Sikkel 43 Executive Vice President — Business Strategy and Relationship
Management

Henry C. Babb 62 Senior Vice President - Chief Legal Officer and Secretary

Michael K. McDaniel 57 Senior Vice President - Human Resources

William D. Pappas 54 Senior Vice President - Chief [nformation Officer

The business experience summaries provided below for the Company’s executive officers describe positions held by the
named individuals during the last five years,

Robert E. Harrison has served as President and Chief Executive Officer since January 2007 and served as President and
Chief Operating Officer of Alliance One International, Inc. from May 2005 to January 2007. Previously, he was President
and Chief Executive Officer of Standard Commercial Corporation from August 1996, and its Chairman from August 2003 to
May 2005.

James A. Cooley has served as Executive Vice President - Chief Financial Officer of Alliance One Intemnational, Inc. since
May 2005. Previously, he served as Senior Vice President - Chief Financial Officer of DIMON Incorporated from March
1959 to May 2005,

Hilton Kappaun has served as Executive Vice President — Global Operations since Apri! 2007. Previously, he served as
Regional Director of South America for Alliance One International, Inc from May 2005 to April 2007 and served as Regional
Executive of South America for DIMON Incorporated from January 2002 to May 2005,

J. Pieter Sikkel has served as Executive Vice President — Business Strategy and Relationship Management since April 2007.
Previously, he served as Regional Director of Asia for Alliance One International, Inc from May 2005 to Apnl 2007, Senior
Vice President of Asia for Standard Commercial Corporation from April 2004 to May 2005 and Regional Manager of Asia
from 1999 to April 2004,

Henry C. Babb has served as Senior Vice President - Chief Legal Officer and Secretary of Alliance One International, Inc.
since May 2005. Previously, he served as Senior Vice President - Public Affairs, General Counsel and Secretary of Standard
Commercial Corporation from April 2004 to May 2005 and served as Secretary from June 1998 to April 2004,

Michael K. McDaniel has served as Senior Vice President - Human Resources of Alliance One International, Inc. since May
2005. Previously, he served as Senior Vice President - Human Resources of Standard Commercial Corporation from April
2004 to May 2005 and served as Vice President - Human Resources from June 1997 to April 2004,

William D. Pappas has served as Senior Vice President - Chief Information Officer of Alliance One International, Inc. since
May 2005. Previously, he served as Chief Information Officer of DIMON Incorporated from December 2004 to May 2005
and served as Vice President - Chief Technology Officer from October 2001 to December 2004.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors should be read carefully in connection with evaluating our business and the forward-looking
statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Any of the following risks could materially adversely affect our
business, our operating results, our financial condition and the actual outcome of matters as to which forward-looking
staternents are made in this Annual Report.

We may from time to time make written or oral forward-looking statements, including statements contained in filings
with the SEC, in reports to stockholders and in press releases and investor calls and webcasts. You can identify these
forward-looking statements by use of words such as “strategy,” “‘expects,” “continues,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,”
“will,” “estimates,” “intends,” “projects,” “goals,” “targets” and other words of similar meaning. You can also identify them
by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts.

We cannot guarantee that any forward-looking statement will be realized, although we believe we have been prudent in
our plans and assumptions. Achievement of future results is subject to risks, uncertainties and inaccurate assumptions. Should
known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could
vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Investors should bear this in mind as they consider forward-
looking statements and whether to invest in or remain invested in Alliance One International, Inc. securities. In connection
with the “safe harbor™ provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, we are identifying important risk
factors that, individually or in the aggregate, could cause actual results and outcomes to differ materially from those
contained in any forward-looking statements made by us; any such statement is qualified by reference to the following
cautionary statements. We elaborate on these and other risks we face throughout this document. You should understand that it
is not possible to predict or identify all risk factors. Consequently, you should not consider the following to be a complete
discussion of all potential risks or uncertainties. We do not undertake to update any forward-looking statement that we may
make from time to time.

” s LL IS LERNTY

Risks Relating to Qur Operations

Global shifts in sourcing customer requirements may negatively impact our erganizational structure and asset base.
The global leaf tobacco industry is experiencing shifts in the sourcing of customer requirements for tobacco. For example,
significant tobacco production volume decreases have occurred and may continue to occur in the United States, Zimbabwe
and Western Europe from historical levels. At the same time, production volumes in other sourcing origins, such as Brazil
and other areas of Africa, are stabilizing. A shift in sourcing origins in Europe is influenced by modifications to the tobacco
price support system in the European Union (EU). The Agricultural Counsel of the EU implemented changes in the quota and
volume programs across the EU that may result in material reductions in production volumes in certain EU countries in the
future. The implementation of these new programs will vary significantly by each EU country. Customer requirements are
changing due to these variations in production, therefore influencing our ability to plan effectively for the longer term in
Europe.

We may not be able to timely or efficiently adjust to these shifts in sourcing origins, and adjusting to these shifts may
require changes in our production facilities in certain origins and changes in our fixed asset base. We have incurred, and may
continue to incur, restructuring charges as we continue to adjust to these shifts in sourcing. Adjusting our capacity and
adjusting to these shifts in sourcing may have an adverse impact on our ability to manage our costs, and could have an
adverse effect on our financial performance.

Our financial results will vary according to growing conditions, customer indications and other facters, which reduces
vour ability to gauge our quarterly and annual financial performance.

Our financial results, particularly the quarterly financial results, may be significantly affected by fluctuations in tobacco
growing seasons and crop sizes. The cultivation period for tobacco is dependent upon a number of factors, including the
weather and other natural events, such as hurricanes or tropical storms, and our processing schedule and results of operations
can be significantly altered by these factors. '

Further, the timing and unpredictability of customer indications, orders and shipments cause us to keep tobacco in
inventory, increase our risk and result in variations in quarterly and annual financial results. The timing of shipments can be
materially impacted by shortages of containers and vessels for shipping as well as infrastructure and accessibility issues in
ports we use for shipment. For example, shortages in shipping containers was a major factor in shipping delays in Brazil
during our 2006 fiscal year. In the current fiscal year, infrastructure and accessibility issues have materially delayed
shipments from the African port of Beira, from which we ship much of the tobacco we source in Malawi and other African
origins. We may from time to time in the ordinary course of business keep a significant amount of processed tobacco in
inventory for our customers to accommodate their inventory management and other needs. Sales recognition by us and our
subsidiaries is based on the passage of ownership, usually with shipment of product. Since individual shipments may
represent significant amounts of revenue, our quarterly and annual financial results may vary significantly depending on our
customers’ needs and shipping instructions. These fluctuations result in varying volumes and sales in given periods, which
also reduces your ability to compare our financial results in different periods or in the same periods in different years.
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| ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Risks Relating to Our Operations (Continued)

Our extension of credit to tobacco growers could expose us to losses,

We make advances to tobacco growers in many countries to finance their growing of tobacco for sale to us. Crop advances to
growers are generally secured by the grower’s agreement to deliver green tobacco. In the event of crop failure, recovery of
advances could be delayed until deliveries of future crops or indefinitely. The temporary or permanent loss of these advances
to growers could result in losses.

When we purchase tobacco directly from growers, we bear the risk that the tobacco will not meet our customers’
quality and quantity requirements.

In countries where we contract directly with tobacco growers, including Argentina, Brazil, the United States and certain
African countries, we bear the risk that the tobacco delivered will not meet quality and quantity requirements of our
customers. If the tobacco does not meet such market requirements, we may not be able to sell the tobacco we agreed to buy
and may not be able to meet all of our customers’ orders, which would have an adverse effect on profitability and results of
operations,

Weather and other conditions can affect the marketability of our inventory.
Like other agricultural products, the quality of tobacco is affected by weather and the environment, which can change the
quality or size of the crop. If a weather event is particularly severe, such as a major drought or hurricane, the affected crop
could be destroyed or damaged to an extent that it would be less desirable to our customers, which would result in a reduction
in revenues. If such an event is also widespread, it could affect our ability to acquire the quantity of products required by
customers, In addition, other items can affect the marketability of tobacco, including, among other things, the presence of:

* non-tobacco related matenial;

* genetically modified organisms; and

»  excess residues of pesticides, fungicides and herbicides.

A significant event impacting the condition or quality of a large amount of any of the tobacco crops we buy could

make it difficult for us 1o sell such tobacco or to fill our customers’ orders.

Our reliance on a small number of significant customers may adversely affect our results of operations.
Qur customers are manufacturers of cigarette and other tobacco products, Several of these customers individually account for
a significant portion of our sales in a normal year.

Approximately 19%, 18% and 15%, respectively, of our consolidated tobacco sales in 2007, 2006 and 2005, were to
various tobacco customers which are owned by or under common control of Japan Tobacco Inc. and approximately 34%,
34% and 28%, respectively, were to various tobacco customers which are owned by or under common control of Altria
Group, Inc. No other customer accounts for more than 10% of our sales.

In addition, tobacco product manufacturers are experiencing consolidation and further consolidation among our
customers could decrease such customers’ demand for our leaf tobacco or processing services. The loss of any one or more of
such customers could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

We face increased risks of doing business due to the extent of our international operations.

We do business in more than 45 countries, many of which do not have stable economies or governments. Our international
operations are subject to international business risks, including unsettled political conditions, expropriation, import and
export restrictions, exchange controls, inflationary economies, currency risks and risks related to the restrictions on
repatriation of earnings or proceeds from liquidated assets of foreign subsidiaries. These risks are exacerbated in countries
where we have advanced substantial sums or guaranteed local loans aor tines of credit for the purchase of tobacco from
growers,

We have expanded our international operations in areas where the export of tobacco has increased due to increased
demand for lower priced tobacco. We have significant investments in our purchasing, processing and exporting operations in
Argentina, Brazil, Malawi, Tanzania and Turkey.

In recent years, economic problems in Zimbabwe and Brazil have received wide publicity related to devaluation and
appreciation of the local currency and inflation. Devaluation and appreciation can affect our purchase costs of tobacco and
our processing costs.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Risks Relating to Our Operations (Continued)

We face increased risks of doing business due to the extent of our international operations. (Continued)

Zimbabwe remains in a period of civil unrest and has a deteriorating economy. At March 31, 2006, as a result of the
political environment, economic instability, foreign currency controls and governmental regulations, we deconsolidated our
subsidiaries and recorded an impairment charge of $47.9 million to reduce our investment in Zimbabwe to its estimated fair
value. Governmental authorization is required before any dividends can be paid from a Zimbabwe operation. Qur Zimbabwe
operations had tried unsuccessfully to pay dividends in prior years due to certain unattainable criteria set by the Reserve Bank
of Zimbabwe and the government not granting the necessary authorizations. We do not consider any further dividends from
our Zimbabwe subsidiary in the near fumre a possibility. Current economic and pelitical conditions continued to dechine in
fiscal 2007 as inflation, lending rates and investment rates have deteriorated. General farming operations are being negatively
impacted by the lack of foreign exchange to buy crop inputs and fuel. As a result, several significant operational changes
were made including the closure of the Zimbabwe processing factory, outsourcing the 2006 crop tobacco processing and a
significant reduction in permanent personnel. During fiscal 2007, we evaluated the fair value of the Zimbabwe operations and
determined that the net investment in the Zimbabwe operations exceeded the estimated fair value. Accordingly, we recorded
an additional non-cash impairment charge of $13.2 million to write down the net investment in the Zimbabwe operations to
ZEero.

Farmers in Malawi have recently protested the current crop auction pricing levels. Any disruption in the marketing of
the crop in Malawi would have a significant impact on world supply of burley tobacco and on our financial results.

We are subject to potentially inconsistent actions by the goverments of certain foreign countries in which we operate
which may have significant impact on our financial results. In 2006, our concession to promote tobacco production in the
Chifunde district of Mozambique was terminated by the government. We assessed our remaining Mozambique operations
without the Chifunde district and determined that it was not in our economic interest to remain in Mozambique without this
strategic district. Consequently, we discontinued our operations within Mozambique afier the 2006 crop.

Our exposure to changes in foreign tax regimes could adversely impact our business.

We do business in countries that have tax regimes in which the rules are not clear, are not consistently applied and are subject
to sudden change. This is especialty true with regard to international transfer pricing. Our earnings could be reduced by the
uncertain and changing nature of these tax regimes.

Effective January 1, 2005, the government of Rio Grande do Sul, the state in which our subsidiaries operate in Brazil,
adopted changes in their Imposto Sobre Circulacao de Mercadorias ¢ Servicos (“ICMS”), a tax on the transfer of goods and
services between states within Brazil. Prior to this change, our transfers of leaf tobacco and processed tobacco inventory
between states in Brazil was taxed, but these transfers generated tax credits that were used to offset ICMS tax obligations or
were transferred to third parties. Pursuant to the change, the credits generated from the payment of ICMS taxes could not be
used to reduce the overall tax exposure by third parties by more than 10% of the generating company’s tax liability in any tax
year, severely reducing the ability to sell excess tax credits to others. In conjunction with this change, we recorded a reserve
against the $25.1 million of ICMS credits recorded as a receivable as of March 31, 2006. This reserve remained as we entered
into negotiations with the government of Rio Grande do Sul.

Effective on May 23, 2006, we entered into an agreement with the government of Rio Grande do Sul which provided
for the sale of a certain amount of ICMS credits each month through 201 1. Based on our evaluation of the agrecment and the
ability to sell ICMS credits to third parties each month, the reserve was reversed during the quarter ended June 30, 2006 as it
related to inventory that had already been sold.

On January 1, 2007, a new government took office in the state of Rio Grande do Sul. The govenment requested a
review of the terms to the agreement entered into in May 23, 2006. In March 2007, we renegotiated the terms related to the
ICMS credits that the government will allow to be sold to third parties on a monthly basis.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange and interest rates could adversely affect our results of operations.

We conduct our business in many countries around the world. Qur business is generally conducted in U.S. dollars, as is the
business of the leaf tobacco industry as a whole. However, we generally must purchase tobacco in non-U.S. countries using
local currency. As a result, local country operating costs, including the purchasing and processing costs for tobaccos, are
subject to the effects of exchange fluctuations of the local currency against the U.S. dollar. We attempt to minimize such
currency risks by matching the timing of our working capital borrowing needs against the tobacco purchasing and processing
funds requirements in the currency of the country where the tobacco is grown. Fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies
can significantly affect our operating results.




ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Risks Relating to Our Operations (Continued)

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange and interest rates could adversely affect our results of operations.
{Continued)

In particular, the devaluation of the U.S. dollar against the Brazilian real has recently increased the cost of our
inventory and operating costs generally in Brazil, only a portion of which can be passed on to our customers. As the
international leaf industry continues to place greater emphasis on Brazil, the weakness of the U.S. dollar in relation to the
Brazilian real will increasingly impact our consolidated operating results and operating margins, and we do not foresee a
reversal of this trend occurring in the immediate future. In addition, the historically weak real in relation to the dollar has
tended to offset the normal escalation in crop prices in Brazil, which will have a more significant impact to the extent the real
is stronger against the dollar.

In recent years, economic problems in Zimbabwe have resulted in significant devaluation of the local currency and
inflation. If we are unable to minimize Zimbabwe currency risk by effectively matching the timing of our working capital
borrowing needs against the tobacco purchasing and processing funds requirements in the local currency then devaluation can
have a material affect on our tobacco purchase and processing costs.

In addition, the devaluation of foreign currencies, particularly Asian and Eastern European currencies, has resulted and
may in the future result in reduced purchasing power from customers in these areas. We may incur a loss of business as a
result of the devaluation of these currencies now or in the future.

Competition could erode our earnings.

The leaf tobacco industry is highly competitive. DIMON was one of three global leaf tobacco merchants, and when it
completed the merger with Standard, Alliance One became one of two global competitors in the leaf tobacco industry, each
with approximately equal market share. Competition among leaf tobacco merchants is based primarily on the prices charged
for products and services as well as the merchant’s ability to meet customer specifications in the buying, processing and
financing of tobacco. In addition, there is competition in all countries to buy the available tobacco. The loss or substantial
reduction of any large or significant customer could reduce our earnings.

In addition to the primary global independent leaf tobacco merchants, the cigarette manufacturers increasingly buy
tobacco directly from farmers, and new independent leaf merchants are entering the leaf purchasing and processing business.
We face increasing competition from new local and regional independent leaf merchants with low fixed costs and overhead
and good customer connections at the local level. These new independent merchants are buying an increasing pertion of the
crops in certain international markets, particularly Brazil, where the new entrants have been able to capitalize in the global
transition to that market. In the United States, the Flue-Cured Tobacco Stabilization Cooperative (“FCTSC”) has purchased
the Vector facility in Roxboro, North Carolina. That facility enables the FCTSC to process tobacco and manufacture
cigarettes. The FCTSC also has a specialty products operation at this facility which competes with our specialty products
operations. In addition, the FCTSC and burley stabilization pools received inventory in lieu of cash from the Commodity
Credit Corporation under the congressional quota buyout bill. Any of these sources of new competition may result in less
tobacco available for us to purchase and process in the applicable markets.

Our adoption and application of certain standards in financial accounting could cause our annual and quarterly
financial results to vary and will reduce your ability to gauge our performance, increasing the risk of an investment in
our securities.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes (“FIN 487). FIN 48 prescribes a “more likely than not” threshold for financial statement recognition and measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This Interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition of
income tax assets and liabilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest
and penalties associated with tax positions, accounting for income taxes in interim periods, and income tax disclosures. FIN
48 requires us to establish reserves for uncertain tax positions if it is not “more likely than not” that we will prevail on the
merits if audited and challenged. FIN 48 will be applicable to us beginning Apnl 1, 2007. The effect of FIN 48 is being
reviewed, and it could have a material impact on our financial performance because we do business in countries that do not
have clear tax rules concerning transfer pricing and other tax matters. This lack of clarity in the tax rules creates uncertainty
which cannot be easily analyzed or predicted. As a result, we may have tax presence liabilities that could give rise to accruals
under FIN 48 that will never reverse.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Risks Relating to Our Operations (Continued)

Our adoption and application of certain standards in financial accounting could cause our annual and quarterly
financial results to vary and will reduce your ability to gauge our performance, increasing the risk of an investment in
our securities. (Continued)

In addition, we adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” effective July 1, 2002. As a result of
adoption of SFAS No. 142, we no longer amortize goodwill. However, if we determine that there has been a material
impairment to goodwill, we will recognize the amount of that impairment as a charge to carnings in the applicable reporting
period. As a result of certain reporting units failing Step | during our 2006 annual test for impairment of goodwill, we
measured the impairment loss, if any, by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit with the carrying amount of
goodwill (Step 2). The fair value of the reporting unit was estimated using the expected present value of future cash flows.
Based on this analysis we recorded a total goodwill impairment charge of $256.9 million during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2006 related to the operating segments of North America and South America.

Risks Relating to Our Capital Structure

We may not have access to available capital to finance our local operations in non-U.S. jurisdictions.

We have typically financed our non-U.S. local operations with uncommitted short term operating credit lines at the local
level. These operating lines are typically seasonal in nature, normally extending for a term of 180 to 270 days corresponding
to the tobacco crop cycle in that location. These facilities are typically uncommitted in that the lenders have the right to cease
making loans or demand payment of outstanding loans at any time. In addition, each of these operating lines must be renewed
with each tobacco crop season in that jurisdiction. Although our foreign subsidiaries are the borrowers under these lines,
many of them are guaranteed by us.

As of March 31, 2007, we had approximately $179.1 miilion drawn and outstanding on foreign seasonal lines totaling
$485.2 mitlion. Additionally against these lines there was $12.8 million available in unused letter of credit capacity with
$17.8 million issued but unfunded.

Because the lenders under these operating lines typically have the right to cancel the loan at any time and each line
must be renewed with each crop scason, there can be no assurance that this capital will be available 1o our subsidiaries. If a
number of these lenders cease lending to our subsidiaries or dramatically decrease such lending, it could have a material
adverse affect on our liquidity.

Failure of foreign banks in which our subsidiaries deposit funds or the failure to transfer funds or honor withdrawals
may affect our results of operations.

Funds held by our foreign subsidiaries are often deposited in their local banks. Banks in certain foreign jurisdictions may be
subject to a higher rate of failure or may not honor withdrawals of deposited funds. In addition, the countries in which these
local banks operate may lack sufficient regulatory oversight or suffer from structural weaknesses in the local banking system.
Due to uncertainties and risks relating to the political stability of certain foreign governments, these local banks also may be
subject to exchange controls and therefore unable to perform transfers of certain currencies. If our ability to gain access to
these funds was impaired, it could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Risks Relating to Qur Capital Structure (Continued)

We have substantial debt which may adversely affect us by limiting future sources of financing, interfering with our
ability to pay interest and principal on the notes and subjecting us to additional risks.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness and debt service obligations. As of March 31, 2007, we had approximately
$911.0 million of indebtedness. In addition, the indenture governing the notes allows us to incur additional indebtedness
under certain circumstances. If we add new indebtedness to our current indebtedness levels, the related risks that we now face
could increase.

Our substantial debt will have important consequences, including:

+ that our indebtedness may make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to the notes and our
other obligations;

o that our indebtedness may limit our ability to obtain additional financing on satisfactory terms and to otherwise fund
working capital, capital expenditures, debt refinancing, acquisitions and other general corporate requirements;

e that a significant portion of our cash flow from operations must be dedicated to paying interest on and the repayment
of the principal of our indebtedness. This reduces the amount of cash we have available for making principal and
interest payments under the notes and for other purposes and makes us more vulnerable to a decrease in demand for
leaf tobacco, increases in our operating costs or general economic or industry conditions;

e that our ability to adjust to changing market conditions and to compete with other global leaf tobacco merchants
may be hampered by the amount of debt we owe;
increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;
placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt or are less leveraged,
limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we operate;
and

s restricting us from making strategic acquisitions or exploiting business opportunities.

In addition, the indenture governing the notes and our senior secured credit facility each contain financial and other
restrictive covenants that will limit our ability to engage in activitics that may be in our long-term best interests. Our failure
to comply with those covenants could result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived, could result in the
acceleration of all of our debt. Also, a substantial portion of our debt, including borrowings under our senior secured credit
facility, bears interest at variable rates. If market interest rates increase, variable-rate debt will create higher debt service
requirements, which would adversely affect our cash flow. While we may enter into agreements limiting our exposure to
higher debt service requirements, any such agreements may not offer complete protection from this risk.

Despite current indebtedness levels, we may still be able to incur substantially more debt. This could exacerbate
further the risks associated with our significant leverage.

We may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. The terms of the indenture governing the notes will
restrict, but will not completely prohibit, us from doing so. Our senior secured credit facility provides for a $240.0 million
revolving credit line. There were no borrowings under this facility at March 31, 2007. If new debt is added to our current debt
levels, the related risks we now face could intensify.

The indentures governing the notes and our senior secured credit facility contain, and in the future could contain
additional, covenants and tests that limit our ability to take actions or cause us to take actions we may not normally
take.

The indentures governing the notes and our senior secured credit facility contain a number of significant covenants. These
covenants limit our ability to, among other things:

incur additional indebtedness;

issue preferred stock;

merge, consolidate or dispose of substantially all of our assets;

grant liens on our assets;

pay dividends, redeem stock or make other distributions or restricted payments;

repurchase or redeem capital stock or prepay subordinated debt;

make certain investments;

agree to restrictions on the payment of dividends to us by our subsidiaries;

sell or otherwise dispose of assets, including equity interests of our subsidiaries;

enter into transactions with our affiliates; and

enter into certain sale and leaseback transactions.

* & & & & & & ¢ o 9
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Risks Relating to Our Capital Structure (Continued)

The indentures governing the notes and our senior secured credit facility contain, and in the future could contain
additional, covenants and tests that limit our ability to take actions or cause us to take actions we may not normally
take. (Continued)

Our senior secured credit facility and the indentures require us to meet certain financial tests. Complying with these
covenants and tests may cause us to take actions that we otherwise would not take or not take actions that we otherwise
would take. The failure to comply with these covenants and tests would cause a default under the credit facility and, under the
indenture, would prevent us from taking certain actions, such as incurring additional debt, paying dividends or redeeming
senior notes or subordinated debt. A default, if not waived, could result in the debt under our senior secured credit facility and
the indenture becoming immediately due and payable and could result in a default or acceleration of our other indebtedness
with cross-default provisions. If this occurs, we may not be able to pay our debt or borrow sufficient funds to refinance it.
Even if new financing is available, it may not be on terms that are acceptable to us.

We have had to obtain waivers and amendments under our existing financing arrangements to avoid future defaults
or cure past defaults.

In the recent past, we have sought and obtained waivers and amendments under our existing financing arrangements to avoid
future non-compliance with financial covenants and cure past defaults under restrictive covenants. We also paid significant
fees to obtain these waivers and consents.

From October 28, 2005 to March 31, 2007, we amended our senior secured credit facility on six separate occasions.
We sought these amendments to relax certain financial covenants and negative covenants, to enable us to engage in
previously restricted sales of assets and to refinance our outstanding senior notes.

In October 2004, we determined that defaults had occurred under the limitation on restricted payments covenant in the
indentures relating to both our then outstanding $200.0 million 9 5/8% senior notes due 2011 and $125.0 million 7 3/4%
senior notes due 2013, and that, by definition, the defaults under these indentures created automatic defaults under our $650.0
million syndicated credit facility then in effect and under certain operating lines of credit. The defaults related to the
determination of amounts available to make certain restricted payments under these senior notes indentures. We solicited and,
on November 1, 2004 obtained, consents from the holders of our notes to a waiver of the defaults under the senior notes
indentures and an amendment of the related covenants to allow additional time to bring our operations into compliance.

You should consider the matters described above in evaluating our ability to comply with restrictive covenants in our
debt instruments and the financial costs of our ability to do so.

We will require a significant amount of cash to service our indebtedness. Our ability to generate cash depends on
many factors beyond our control.

Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness, including the notes, and to fund planned capital
expenditures will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future. This is subject to general economic, financial,
competitive and other factors that may be beyond our control. We cannot assure you that our business will gencrate sufficient
cash flow from operations or that future borrowings will be available to us under our senior secured credit facility or
otherwise in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our indebtedness, including the notes, or to fund our other liquidity
needs. We may need to refinance all or a portion of our indebtedness, including the notes, on or before maturity. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to refinance any of our debt, including our senior secured credit facility or the notes, on
commercially reasonable terms or at all. Additionally, to the extent permitted under our senior secured credit agreement and
indentures, we may repurchase, repay or tender for our bank debt, senior notes or scnior subordinated notes, which may place
pressure on future cash requirements 1o the extent that the debt repurchased, repaid or tendered cannot be redrawn.

Risks Relating to the Tobacco Industry
Reductions in demand for consumer tobacco products could adversely affect our results of operations.
The tobacco industry, both in the United States and abroad, continues to face a number of issues that may reduce the

consumption of cigarettes and adversely affect our business, sales volume, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Risks Relating to the Tobacco Industry (Continued)

Reductions in demand for consumer tobacco products could adversely affect our results of operations. (Continued)
These issues, some of which are more fully discussed betow, include:
» governmental actions seeking to ascribe to tobacco product manufacturers liability for adverse health effccts
associated with smoking and exposure to environmental tobacco smoke;
smoking and health litigation against tobacco product manufacturers;
tax increases on consumer tobacco products;
current and potential actions by state attorneys general to enforce the terms of the Master Settlement Agreement, or
MSA, between state governments in the United States and tobacco product manufacturers;
governmental and private bans and restrictions on smoking;
actual and proposed price controls and restrictions on imports in certain jurisdictions outside the United States;
restrictions on tobacco product manufacturing, marketing, advertising and sales;
the diminishing social acceptance of smoking;
increased pressure from anti-smoking groups;
other tobacco product legislation that may be considered by Congress, the states, municipalities and other countries;
and
¢ the impact of consolidation among multinational cigarette manufacturers.

* & & & &

Tobaeco product manufacturer litigation may reduce demand for our services.

Our primary customers, the leading cigarette manufacturers, face thousands of lawsuits brought throughout the United States
and, to a lesser extent, the rest of the world. The effects of the lawsuits on our customers could reduce their demand for
tobacco from us. These lawsuits have been brought by plaintiffs, including (1) individuals and classes of individuals alleging
personal injury and/or misleading advertising, {2) governments (including governmental and quasi-governmental entities in
the United States and abroad) secking recovery of health care costs allegedly caused by cigarette smoking, and (3) other
groups seeking recovery of health care expenditures allegedly caused by cigarette smoking, including third-party health care
payors, such as unions and health maintenance organizations. Damages claimed in some of the smoking and health cases
range into the billions of dollars. The United States Departrnent of Justice is currently engaged in a lawsuit against the
leading cigarette manufacturers, seeking to recover billions of dollars. There have been several jury verdicts in tobacco
product litigation during the past several years. Additional plaintiffs continue to file lawsuits,

In November 1998, certain United States tobacco product manufacturers entered into the MSA with 46 states and
certain territories to settle asserted and unasserted health care cost recovery and other claims. These manufacturers had
previously settled similar claims brought by Mississippi, Florida, Texas and Minnesota and an environmental tobacco smoke
and health class action brought on behalf of airline flight attendants. The MSA has received final judicial approval in all 52
settling jurisdictions.

The MSA and other state settlement agreements include provisions relating to advertising and marketing restrictions,
public disclosure of industry documents, limitations on challenges to tobacco product control and underage use laws,
lobbying activities and other provisions. The provisions of the Master Settlement Agreement and any similar settlement
agreements could have a material adverse impact on our customers’ purchases from us.

Legislative and regulatory initiatives could reduce consumption of consumer tobacco products and demand for our
services.

In recent years, members of Congress have introduced legislation, some of which has been the subject of hearings or floor
debate, that would subject cigarettes to various regulations under the Department of Health and Human Services or regulation
under the Consumer Products Safety Act, establish anti-smoking educational campaigns or anti-smoking programs, provide
additional funding for governmental anti-smoking activities, further restrict the advertising of cigarettes, including requiring
additional warnings on packages and in advertising, provide that the Federal Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act and the
Smoking Education Act could not be used as a defense against liability under state statutory or common law, or allow state
and local governments to restrict the sale and distribution of cigarettes and eliminate or reduce the tax deductibility of
tobacco product advertising. If any or all of the foregoing were to be implemented, our business, volume, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.
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ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Risks Relating to the Tobacco Industry (Continued)

Legislative and regulatory initiatives could reduce consumption of consumer tobacco products and demand for our
services. (Continued)

Reports with respect to the harmful physical effects of cigarette smoking have been publicized for many years, and the
sale, promotion and use of cigarettes continue to be subject to increasing governmental regulation. Since 1964, the Surgeon
General of the United States and the Secretary of Health and Human Services have released a number of reports linking
cigarette smoking with a broad range of health hazards, including various types of cancer, coronary heart disease and chronic
lung disease, and recommending various governmental measures to reduce the incidence of smoking. More recent reports
focus upon the addictive nature of cigarettes, the effects of smoking cessation, the decrease in smoking in the United States,
the economic and regulatory aspects of smoking in the Western Hemisphere, and cigarettc smoking by adolescents,
particularly the addictive nature of cigarette smoking in adolescence.

A number of foreign nations also have taken steps to restrict or prohibit cigarette advertising and promotion, to
increase taxes on cigarettes and to discourage cigarette smoking. In some cases, such restrictions are more onerous than those
in the United States. For example, advertising and promotion of cigarettes has been banned or severely restricted for a
number of years in Australia, Canada, Finland, France, Italy, Singapore and other countries. Further, in May of 2003, the
World Health Organization adopted a treaty, the Framework Convention for Tobacco Control, which requires signatory
nations (o enact legislation that would require, among other things, specific actions to prevent youth smoking; restrict or
prohibit tobacco product marketing; inform the public about the health consequences of smoking and the benefits of quitting;
regulate the content of tobacco products; impose new package warning requirements including the use of pictorial or graphic
images; climinate cigarette smuggling and counterfeit cigarettes; restrict smoking in public places; increase and harmonize
cigarette excise taxes; abolish duty-free tobacco sales; and permit and encourage litigation against tobacco product
manufacturers, The treaty will take effect afier forty countries ratify it and must be implemented by national laws in the
ratifying nations. To date, 168 parties have signed the treaty, and 144 countries are parties to the treaty.

Due to the present regulatory and legislative environment, a substantial risk exists that past growth trends in tobacco
product sales may not continue and that existing sales may decline.

We have been, and continue to be, subject to governmental investigations into, and litigation concerning, leaf tobacco
industry buying practices.

The leaf tobacco industry, from time to time, has been the subject of government investigations regarding trade practices. For
example, in 1998 we were the subject of an investigation by the Antitrust Division of the United States Department of Justice
into certain buying practices alleged to have occurred in the industry. More recently, we were named defendants in the
DeLoach, et al. v. Philip Morris Companies Inc. et al.. antitrust class action litigation alleging a conspiracy o rig bids in the
tobacco auction markets. We, along with all but one of the other defendants, entered into a settlement agreement with the
plaintiffs which received final approval, and which accorded us a full release from all the claims. In exchange for such
settiement, we contributed $13.0 million towards a larger total settiement agreement.

Since October 2001, the Directorate General for Competition (DGCOMP) of the European Commission (EC) has been
conducting an administrative investigation into certain tobacco buying and selling practices alleged to have occurred within
the leaf tobacco industry in some countries within the European Union, including Spain, Italy, Greece and potentially other
countries. Our subsidiaries in Spain, Italy and Greece have been subject to these investigations. In 2004, the EC fined us and
our Spanish subsidiaries €4.4 million ($5.7 million) solely relating to the investigations in Spain. In respect of the Ttalian
investigation, in October 2005, the EC announced that we and Mindo (our former subsidiary) have been assessed a fine in the
aggregate amount of €10.0 million ($12.0 million) and that, in addition, we and Transcatab, a subsidiary of Standard prior 10
its merger into DIMON, have been assessed a fine in the aggregate amount of €14.0 million ($16.8 million). Several tobacco
processors, growers and agricultural associations that were the subject of the investigation in ltaly were assessed fines in
various amounts totaling €56.0 million ($67.0 million), inclusive of the fines imposed on us and our subsidiaries. We, along
with the applicable subsidiaries, have appealed the decisions of the EC with respect to Spain and ltaly to the Court of First
Instance of the EC for the annulment or modification of the decision; but the outcome of the appeals process as to both timing
and results is uncertain.

In March 2005, the EC informed us that it had closed its investigation in relation to the Greek leaf tobacco industry
buying and selling practices. In relation to these investigations into certain tobacco buying and selling practices, the
DGCOMP could decide to pursue investigations into other countrics and additional fines may be assessed in those countries.

We have recently been made aware of a review by the Malawi Government of the operation of its tobacco auction
markets. Although the Government’s preliminary report suggests that there may have been violations by the leaf dealer
industry of certain Malawi competition laws, the review is at an early stage and it is not possible to predict its outcome or its
possible impact on us. We will continue to cooperate with the relevant authorities and are conducting our own internal
investigation.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Risks Relating to the Tobacco Industry (Continued)

We have been, and continue to be, subject to governmental investigations into, and litigation concerning, leaf tobacco
industry buying practices. (Continued)

In March 2004, we discovered potential irregularities with respect to certain bank accounts in southern Europe and
central Asia. The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors engaged an outside law firm to conduct an investigation of
activity relating to these accounts. That investigation revealed that, although the amounts involved were not material and had
no material impact on our historical financial statements, there were payments from these accounts that may have violated the
U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. In May 2004, we voluntarily reported the matter to the U.S. Department of Justice. Soon
thereafter, we closed the accounts in question, implemented personnel changes and other measures designed to prevent
similar situations in the future, including the addition of new finance and internal audit staff and enhancement of existing
training programs, and disclosed these circumstances in our filings with the SEC. In August 2006, we learned that the SEC
has issued a formal order of investigation of us and others to determine if these or other actions may have violated certain
provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and rules thereunder. We are cooperating fully with the SEC with respect
to the investigation. If the U.S. authorities determine that there have been violations of federal laws, they may seek to impose
sanctions on us that may include, among other things, injunctive relief, disgorgement, fines, penalties and modifications to
business practices. It is not possible to predict at this time whether the authorities will determine that violations have
occurred, and if they do, what sanctions they might seek to impose. It is also not possible to predict how the government’s
investigation or any resulting sanctions may impact our business, results of operations or financial performance. Any
monetary penalty assessed may be material to our results of operations in the quarter in which it is imposed.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Following is a description of Alliance One’s material properties as of March 31, 2007.

Corporate
Our corporate headquarters are located in Morrisville, North Carolina.

Facilities
We own a total of 23 processing facilities in 14 countries. We operate each of our tobacco processing plants for seven to nine
months during the year to correspond with the applicable harvesting season. While we believe our processing facilities have
been efficiently utilized, we continually compare our production capacity and organization with the transitions occurring in
global sourcing of tobacco. We also believe our domestic processing facilities and certain foreign processing facilities have
the capacity to process additional volumes of tobacco if required by customer demand.

The following is a listing of the various material properties used in operations all of which arc owned by Alliance One:

AREA [N
LOCATION USE SQUARE FEET
SOUTH AMERICA SEGMENT
SOUTH AMERICA
VENANCIO AIRES, BRAZIL FACTORY/STORAGE 1,378,000
SANTA CRUZ, BRAZIL FACTORY/STORAGE 2,111,000
VERA CRUZ, BRAZIL STORAGE 311,000
EL CARRIL, ARGENTINA FACTORY/STORAGE 389,000
OTHER REGIONS SEGMENT

UNITED STATES
WILSON, N.C. FACTORY/STORAGE 1,618,000
FARMVILLE, N.C. FACTORY/STORAGE 895,000
DANVILLE. VA STORAGE 907,000
AFRICA
LILONGWE, MALAW] FACTORY/STORAGE 1,662,000
MOROGORO, TANZANIA FACTORY/STORAGE 741,000
EUROPE
IZMIR, TURKEY FACTORY/STORAGE 1,431,000
THESSALONIKI, GREECE FACTORY/STORAGE 378,000
KARLSRUHE, GERMANY FACTORY/STORAGE 236,000
ASIA
NGORO, INDONESIA FACTORY/STORAGE 324,000

ITEM 3, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In March 2004, the Company discovered potential irregularities with respect to certain bank accounts in southem Europe and
central Asia. The Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors engaged an outside law firm to conduct an
investigation of activity relating to these accounts. That investigation revealed that, although the amounts involved were not
material and had no material impact on the Company’s historical financial statements, there were payments from these
accounts that may have violated the U.S, Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (the “FCPA™). In May 2004, the Company
voluntarily reported the matter to the U.S. Department of Justice. Soon thereafter, the Company closed the accounts in
question, implemented personnel changes and other measures designed to prevent similar situations in the future, including
the addition of new finance and internal audit staff and enhancement of existing training programs, and disclosed these
circumstances in its filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). In August 2006, the Company
learned that the SEC had issued a formal order of investigation of the Company and others to determine if these or other
actions may have violated certain provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and rules thereunder. The Company is
cooperating fully with the SEC with respect to the investigation.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS (Continued)

If the U.S. authorities determine that there have been violations of federal laws, they may seek to impose sanctions on
the Company that may include, among other things, injunctive relief, disgorgement, fines, penalties and modifications to
business practices. It is not possible to predict at this time whether the authorities will determine that violations have
occurred, and if they do, what sanctions they might seck to impose. [t is also not possible to predict how the government’s
investigation or any resulting sanctions may impact the Company’s business, results of operations or financial performance,
although any monetary penalty assessed may be material to the Company’s results of operations in the quarter in which it is
imposed.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Alliance One’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange, under the ticker symbol "AOL" Prior to our
merger with Standard Commercial Corporation on May 13, 2005, our common stock had been traded on the New York Stock
Exchange under the ticker symbol “DMN" since April 3, 1995.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low reported sales prices of our common stock as
reported by the NYSE and the amount of dividends declared per share for the periods indicated.

Alliance One
Common Stock
Dividends
High Low Declared
~ Year Ended March 31, 2007 _
Fourth Quarter . $9.35 $6.75 $.000
Third Quarter 7.31 397 000
Second Quarter 441 3.57 000
First Quarter 495 3.57 000
Year Ended March 31, 2006
Fourth Quarter $5.06 $3.59 $.000
Third Quarter 7 B 432 2.16 .000
Second Quarter 6.30 328 .030
First Quarter ' 6.80 5.61 075

As of March 31, 2007, there were approximately 7,612 shareholders, including approximately 6,364 beneficial holders
of our common stock.

The payment of dividends by Alliance Onc is subject to the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on
business conditions, compliance with debt agreements, achievement of anticipated cost savings, financial condition and
earnings, regulatory considerations and other factors.
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES (Continued)

Alliance One International, Inc. Comparison of Cumulative Total Return to Shareholders

The following line graph and tabic presents the cumulative total sharcholder return of a $100 investment including
reinvestment of dividends and price appreciation over the last five years in each of the following: Alliance One International,
Inc. {AOI) common stock, the S&P 500 Index, the S&P 600 Small Cap Index and an index of peer companies. The sole
company in the peer group is Universal Corporation (UVYV),

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

AMONG ALLIANCE ONE INTERNATIONAL, INC., S&P 500 INDEX,

S&P SMALLCAP 600 AND CUSTOM PEER GROUP INDEX
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ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON JUNE 30, 2002

ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED

FISCAL YEAR ENDING MAR, 31, 2007

Cumulative Total Return

Fiscal Year Ending

6/30/02 6/30/03 3/31/04 3/31/05 3/31/06 3/31/07
Alliance One International, Inc.  $100.00 3107.97 $110.55 $102.14 $ 80.97 $153.78
Custom Peer Group $100.00 $119.76 $147.53 $137.32 $114.75 $200.07
S&P 500 $100.00 $100.25 $117.39 $125.25 $139.93 $156.49
S&P Small Cap 600 $100.00 $ 96.42 $125.87 $142.34 $176.60 $185.95
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ITEMS5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

(Continued)
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
as of March 31, 2007
Number of Securities
Number of Securities to Weighted-Average Remaining Available for
be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Future Issuance Under
Exercise of Qutstanding Outstanding Equity Compensation Plans
Options, Warrants and Options, Warrants (excluding securities
Rights and Rights reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (ey®
Equity Compensation Plans
Approved by Security
Holders 2,798 831 6.94 1,768,724
Equity Compensation Plans
Not Approved by Security
Holders 0 Not Applicable 0
Total 2,798,831 6.94 1,768,724

™ The 2003 Incentive Plan allows for certain of these shares to be issued in the form of restricted stock grants. Further, the
Number of Securities Remaining Available for Future Issuance as set forth in this column (¢) will increase by the Number of
Securities to be Issued (as reflected in column (a)) which are associated with options, rights and warrants that are forfeited
from time to time.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL STATISTICS
Alliance One International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

The information presented in the table below includes periods ending prior to the completion of our merger with Standard
Commercial Corporation on May 13, 2005. Accordingly, the information presented does not include any results of
operations or other information related to Standard for periods ending March 31, 2005, nine months ended March 31, 2004
and June 30, 2003.

Nine Months
Years Ended March 31, Ended Year Ended
(in thousands, except per share amounts and March 31, June 30,
number of stockholders)} 2007 2006 2005 2004 (5) 2003
Summary of Operations
Sales and other operating revenues $1,979.078 52,112,685 51,300,118 $ 797525 §1,194,960
Goodwill impairment - 256,916 - - -
Restructuring and asset impairment
charges 29,773 85,411 2,836 16,398 -
Debt retirement expense ] 3,860 66,474 - - -
Income (loss) from continuing operations (2,615) (423,342) 24,441 (17,511) 28,482
Loss from discontinued operations (18,730) (24,104) (11,153) (15,357 (425)
Net income (loss) (21,597) (447 446) 13,288 (32,868) 28,057
Per Share Statistics
Basic Eamnings (Loss) Per Share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $(.03) $(5.21) $.55 $(.40) $.04
Loss from discontinued operations (.22) (.30) {.25) (.33) (.01)
Net income (loss) {.25) (5.51) .30 {.73) 63
Diluted Earnings (Loss} Per Share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $(.03) $(5.21) $.54 $(.40) $.63
Loss from discontinued operations (.22) (.30) (.25) (.33) {.0hH)
Net income {loss) (1) {.25) {(5.51) 29 {.73) 62
Cash dividends paid - 105 30 225 275
Book value 2.55 2.46 9.13 9.19 10.16
Balance Sheet Data
Working capital $ 531,983 $ 538913 § 473,063 $ 426,605 $ 444401
Total assets 1,653,872 1,904,124 1,404,059 1,357,404 1,353,152
Long-Term Debt 726,625 744,494 486,412 421,009 424,897
Stockholders’ equity 225,546 214,187 414312 414,885 454,573
Other Data
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (2) 1.12 - 1.65 - 1.75
Common shares outstanding at year end (3) 96,467 94,963 45,368 45,162 44,737
Number of stockholders at year end (4) 7,612 7,658 7,641 5,945 5,946

1) For the year ended March 31, 2005, the nine months ended March 31, 2004 and the year ended June 30, 2003 the assumed conversion
of Convertible Debentures at the beginning of the period has an antidilutive effect on earnings (loss) per share. In connection
with the closing of the merger with Standard many of the Company s financing arrangements were refinanced, including in July of 2005,
the Company’s $73,328 of convertible subordinated debentures due 2007. For the years ended March 31, 2007, March 31, 2006 and
the nine months ended March 31, 2004, all outstanding restricted stock and stock options are excluded because their inclusion would
have an antidilutive effect on the loss per share.

2} In 2006 and 2004, fixed charges exceeded earnings by approximatety $442,087 and $17.312 respectively.

3} The years ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006 include 7.853 shares owned by a wholly-owned subsidiary. This subsidiary does
not receive dividends on these shares and it does not have the right to vote.

4) Includes the number of stockholders of record and nen-objecting beneficial owners.

3) In June 2003, we changed our fiscal year to March 31. As a result of this change, we reported a nine moath transition year ending
March 31, 2004.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

General

Our company was renamed Alliance One International, Inc. on May 13, 2005, concurrent with the merger of Standard
Commercial Cotporation with and into DIMON Incorporated, the third largest and second largest global independent leaf
tobacco merchants, respectively. Accordingly, the information regarding our fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 and for any
other time prior to the completion of our merger in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” relates only to DIMON Incorporated. The progression of functional and operational integration
activities have made differentiation between former DIMON and former Standard results increasingly difficult which impairs
the comparability of fiscal years 2006 and 2005 results.

Executive Overview
The following executive overview is intended to provide significant highlights of the discussion and analysis that follows.

Financial Results

Current year operating results improved significantly from the prior year, although increases in current year gross margin
were eroded by the strength of local currencies against the U.S. dollar and farmer debt costs in certain areas, particularly in
Brazil. Selling, administrative and general expenses continue to benefit from the continued focus on delivering the merger
savings and from the deconsolidation of Zimbabwe operations and remain in line with a normalized run rate for the year. We
had appropriate additional restructuring charges during the year as we completed the merger integration plan and continued to
refine our operational footprint. Additional impairment charges were reflected relative to the deconsolidated Zimbabwe
operations and closure of non-core business in Europe and Asia while we also took material charges to complete our exit
from the Italian market. Overall, our 2007 fiscal year results demonstrated successful execution of our strategy.

Liquidity and Debt Refinancing

During the year we sold non-core assets and used the proceeds to further deleverage the balance sheet, which in turn reduced
interest costs. We will continue these efforts in 2008, with particular attention paid to application of free cash flow for further
debt reduction. We maintain appropriate levels of liquidity throughout the year utilizing long term commitments augmented
by various international banking relationships for our continued seasonal credit needs.

On March 7, 2007 we initiated the first phase of our balance sheet partial refinancing by issuing $150.0 million of new
8.5% Senior Notes due May 15, 2012 with a 0.5% original issue discount to yield 8.625%. Proceeds from the issuance were
utilized to make prepayments on our term loans under the May 13, 2005 $650.0 million Senior Secured Credit Agreement.
Following the 8.5% Senior Note issuance, on March 30, 2007, we completed the final phase, refinancing outstanding term
loans and remaining commitments under our $650.0 million Senior Secured Credit Agreement with a new $385.0 million
Credit Agreement. Under the terms of the new credit agreement, we have a three and one half year $240.0 million revolving
credit facility and a four year $145.0 million Term Loan B. There were no outstanding loans or issued but unfunded letters of
credit under the $240.0 million revolver as of March 31, 2007. The partial refinancing eliminated over $266.8 million in
required amortization over the next three years and reduced our future debt carrying cost with lower pricing. Subsequent to
the year end, we made an additional optional prepayment on the Term Loan B of $50.0 million.

Qutlook

Global demand for our products remains solid and we are well positioned where growth is occurring. We continue to
challenge all of our operations to achieve appropriate return targets and to effect actions which will positively improve future
performance. The strategy behind our merger and the creation of Alliance One is simple, and has not changed: We are
seeking to create the profile of a strategic leaf supply partner with the footprint and scale necessary to drive efficiency,
sustainability and long-term shareholder value in what remains an intensely competitive global industry.

As a result of the merger of DIMON and Standard that we completed in May 2005, we have realized more than $115.0
million in annual pre-tax cost savings through the rationalization of processing capacity and the elimination of duplicative
regional and corporate overhead and we now view the original merger integration plan as complete except for the sale of
certain long-lived assets. In addition to these cost savings, we have realized improved operating efficiencies by leveraging
our expertise and capabilities and spreading combined volumes over a streamlined asset base. The focus on cost savings and
operating efficiencies over the last two years has better positioned us to serve and grow with our customers as they respond to
global industry conditions.
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Executive Overview (Continued)

Qutlook (Continued)

We have now transitioned the combined operations of both predecessor companies and created a truly unified and
integrated Alliance One with an unswerving focus on our core business. We have exerted tremendous efforts in order to
complete the systematic exiting of marginal and/or unprofitable origins or businesses. Most of our initiatives and actions
were begun in fiscal 2006 and the integration process was substantially completed in fiscal 2007. We will continue to refine
our footprint and we are dedicated to further improving the company’s performance in fiscal 2008,

Our focus in fiscal 2007 has been on profit improvement and debt reduction, and we have shown notable success in
both areas. Our focus in fiscal 2008 will be on continued profit improvement and debt reduction. The former will come
from a combination of cost reductions, efficiency improvements and improved pricing, while the latter will be achieved
through aggressive working capital management to reduce the operating cycle, including reduced leaf production in certain
key origins to minimize inventory and investments.

We remain totally committed to our customer-focused strategy, and we are confident that this strategy, with our merger
as its cornerstone, will position us to enhance our already strong customer relationships and allow us to grow with our
customers. As such, we will continue to focus our attention and resources on those origins that are growing in market
irmportance, on delivering outstanding customer service, exercising expense discipline, and above all, delivering the full
benefits of the merger.

Operating Environment

Global

As previously stated, current trends remain toward a balance of supply and demand, though there are indications of increased
demand for better quality burley tobaccos due to weather related crop shortfalls in certain African markets. We expect
additional near term downward production adjustments to be made in the South American markets in response to the higher
than anticipated current yields, achieved this crop cycle. Currency pressures remain a concern in most of the tobacco supply
markets while crop yield and quality issues impacted by uncertain climatological conditions remain a challenge in many of
the offshore markets. Continued attention to market fundamentals, particularly to responsible growing practices, quality
product, service and valued delivery remain a core focus for the Company as we deal with these factors.

South America

We consider this region 10 be a key area in tobacco leaf production with Brazil as our largest source country in terms of
volume and revenue. The Brazil 2006 crop marketed during fiscal 2007 was of poor quality due to adverse weather related
growing conditions which resulted in higher levels of uncommitted inventory remaining at March 31, 2007 and related
market valuation adjustments and a higher provision for grower bad debt. The continued appreciation of the Brazilian real
has increased costs by approximately 20% again this year. While sales prices for the 2006 crop increased, they do not offset
the higher costs of both the 2005 and 2006 crops. The 2007 crop is a better quality crop but it will be impacted by the
continuing currency appreciation as well. We are evaluating various alternatives to mitigate these cost increases. In fiscal
2007, we reached an agreement with the government of Rio Grande do Sul, the state in which our subsidiaries operate in
Brazil in which we recovered a substantial amount of trade taxes that had been recorded as costs in fiscal 2006. These taxes
are not a cost component in fiscal 2007. Argentina remained a stable operating environment even though margins were
negatively impacted by inflation.

Asia

The Asian region experienced several operating challenges this year. All areas experienced diminished volumes but
increased domestic demand. The increased demand resulted in higher prices which were also impacted by strong local
currencies. However, these challenges also provided opportunities including increased oriental trading volumes, new
processing arrangements and increased processing volumes in Indonesia. As a whole, the importance of the Asian region
continues to increase as a supply source for our global customers particularly as they expand their cigarette manufacturing
operations into the region. In Indonesia, Thailand and India, we purchase and process tobacco through our own or joint
venture operations. In other areas of Asia, we supervise the purchase and processing of tobacco in conjunction with
operations owned by governmental and other third parties. We continue to expand the scope of our operations as the demand
for Asian origin leaf continues to rise. Increased oriental crop sizes in China, India and Thailand coupled with a new crop
development project in Indonesia are expected to act as key drivers for future growth in the Asian region,
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Operating Environment: (Continued)

North America

The post-quota buyout era continues to evolve in the U.S. market and it is now virtualty 100% direct contract purchasing as
the traditional! auction system has ali but disappeared, Tobacco production continues to be concentrated in the traditional
growing areas even though controls on volume, location and support price have been removed. The market remains
substantially limited to domestic customers, as traditional foreign buyers have significantly reduced or eliminated U.S. grown

leaf tobaccos from their product blends. As a result, our U.S. operations are increasingly focused on providing processing
services to domestic manufacturers and providing value added products and services as manufacturers outsource segments of
their business. Our Canadian and Guatemalan operations continue to contribute to the region’s profitability.

Africa

Over the last three seasons, low yields in burley and dark-fired tobaccos across the region have resulted in reduced volumes.
As a result, the African markets have opened with strong demand for burley and dark-fired tobaccos. Customer demand is
strong for African flue-cured tobacco for its quality as well as a solution for customer dependency on other origins.
Customer support remains strong throughout the region despite the affect on the business climate of political campaigning for
presidential or local government elections around the region. Poverty, HIV, malaria and malnutrition are the main targets for
eradication and are invariably linked to grower returns for agricultural products, particularly tobacco. In April 2007, we
signed an agreement to sell one of our two factories in Malawi in early 2008. We anticipate that such sale, if consummated,
will serve to futher sireamline our African operations and provide increased efficienctes and cost reductions.

Europe

In the EU flue-cured and burley markets, the reform to the Common Agricultural Policy (CAP) support for tobacco has
effected subsidy payments to growers. As a result, we sold our operations in Spain and closed our processing facility in
Greece. We believe there could be further material reductions in tobaccos grown in Western Europe and we continue to
evaluate our position in these markets. However, we will remain active in the EU flue-cured and burley markets as required
to satisfy our customer requirements. We believe that Turkey continues to be the most important oriental tobacco market.
Due to adverse growing conditions experienced in 2006, the oriental crops grown primarily in the Balkan areas, which are in
the process of being purchased, have been reduced. However, with renewed interest from farmers and customers, we
anticipate a return to reasonable volumes in the coming season. Oriental crop sizes are in alignment with demand and
government-held stocks, in Turkey and in Bulgaria, are declining. Opportunities within our operations in the semi-oriental
market continue to contribute to the development of the region and serve our customers. We believe we have a strong
presence in all the important oriental and semi-oriental markets. Our European operations are continuously evaluated in
order to achieve improved efficiencies and cost reductions.
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Results of Operations

Condensed Consolidated Statement of OQperations

Twelve Months Ended March 31,

Change Change
(in millions) 2007 $ % 2006 (1) $ % 2005 (1)
Sales and other operating revenues $1,979.1 $(133.6) 63) $2,1127 § Bl12.6 62.5 $1,300.1
Gross profit 295.7 71.0 3l.6 224.7 30.1 15.5 194.6
Selling, administrative and general
expenses 158.3 58 (3.5 164.1 19.7 31.9 124.4
Other income 6.1 3.6 2.5 (2.8) 5.3
Goodwill [mpairment - (256.9) 256.9 256.9 -
Restructuring and asset impairment
charges 29.8 (55.6) 854 82.6 28
Debt retirement expense 3.9 (62.6) 66.5 66.5 -
Interest expense 105.6 (3.0) 108.6 55.8 52.8
Interest income 8.6 L5 7.1 2.7 4.4
Derivative financial instruments
income 0.3 {4.8) 51 (8.0) 13.1
Income tax expense (benefit) 16.1 336 (17.5) (30.6) 13.1
Equity in net income of investee
companies 1.0 - 1.0 0.9 0.1
Minority interests (income) 0.7 09 (0.2) (0.1) 0.1)
Loss from discontinued operations {18.7) 5.4 (24.1) (12.9) (11.2)
Cumulative effect of accounting
changes, net of income tax (0.3) 0.3) - - -
Net income (loss) $ {(21.e)* $ 42538 $ (447 4Y  §{460.1)* $ 133
* Amounts do not equal column totals due 1o rounding.
Sales and Other Operating Revenue Supplemental Information
Twelve Months Ended March 31,
Change Change
fin millions, except per kilo amounts) 2007 3 Y 2006 (1) 3 % 2005 (1)
Tobacco sales and other operating
revenues:
Sales and other operating revenues $ 1,909.3 $(147.8) (7.2) $2,057.1  $7893 623 §1,267.8
Kilos 584.9 (80.5) (12.1) 665.4 255.1 62.2 410.3
Average price per kilo $ 320 % 017 5.5 $ 3069 § 000 00 § 309
Processing and other revenues 69.8 14.2 25.5 55.6 23.3 72.1 32.3
Total sales and other operating revenues  § 1,979.1 $(133.6) (6.3) $2,112.7 $812.6 625 §$1,300.1

{1) The merger of DIMON and Standard was completed May 13, 2005, which was during the first quarter of fiscal
2006. As a result, total revenues and expenses for the twelve months ended March 31, 2006 exclude Standard’s
results from April lto May 13, 2005. Total revenues and expenses for the twelve months ended March 31, 2005 are

DIMON only.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, functional and operational integration activities made differentiation between

former DIMON and former Standard results difficult which impairs the comparability of fiscal years 2006 and 2005 results.
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Results of Operations (Continued)

Comparison of the Year Ended March 31, 2007 to the Year Ended March 31, 2006

Sales and other operating revenues. The decrease of 6.3% from $2,112.7 million in 2006 to $1,979.1 million in 2007 is the
result of a 12.1% or 80.5 million kilo decrease in quantities sold, offset by a 5.5% or $0.17 per kilo increase in average sales
prices and a 25.5% or $14.2 million increase in processing and other revenues.

South America region. Tobacco revenues decreased $34.5 million, reflecting a 37.1 million kilo decrease in quantities sold
versus the prior year primarily related to the timing of 2005 shipments that had been delayed to 2006 and a decrease in
demand primarily resulting from the quality of the 2006 crop. This was offset by a $0.36 per kilo increase in average sales
prices, attributable primarily to the increased costs of the 2006 crop.

Other regions. Tobacco revenues decreased $113.3 million due to a 43.4 million kilo decrease in quantities sold, partially
offset by a $0.06 per kilo increase in average sales prices. The decrease in volume resulted primarily from prior year
opportunistic sales in the oriental market as well as the exit from certain European markets during 2007. The decrease in
volume also reflected diminished prior year low margin sales from Thailand and China, and the delay of U.S. shipments into
fiscal year 2008. The increase in average sales prices resulted from the product mix in Asian origin sales as well as higher
costs of 2006 Asian crops. Other region processing and other revenues increased $14.2 million primarily related to greater
quantities of U.S. customer-owned tobacco processed.

Gross profit as a percentage of sales. The $71.0 million increase in gross profit, or 31.6%, from $224.7 million in 2006 to
$295.7 million in 2007, as well as the gross profit percentage increased from 10.6% in 2006 to 14.9% in 2007, is primarily
attributable to two factors:

First, gross profit in the South American region increased approximately $63.5 million. As disclosed in the quarterly
and annual reports for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, gross profit in Brazil was negatively impacted by the poor
quality of the 2005 crop, the strength of the local currency against the U.S. dollar on prices paid to growers and related
processing costs, and increased costs from the absorption of local intrastate trade taxes from a change in local laws. In the
first quarter of 2007 we entered into an agreement with the government of Rio Grande do Sul allowing us to transfer
accumulated intrastate trade tax credits related to the 2005 crop. As a result, intrastate trade taxes related to the 2005 crop of
$19.2 million previously recorded as cost of goods and services sold in fiscal 2006 were reversed during the current year.
The impact of this agreement in the current year coupled with 2006 crop sales price increases resulted in an increase in gross
profit when comparing 2007 with 2006, Partially offsetting the impact of the items noted above which increased the gross
profit in the South American region during 2007, was the quality of the 2006 crop and decreased demand. While the 2006
Brazilian crop had been expected to be of average quality, weather related growing conditions in the latter part of the season
significantly impacted quality and demand declined. As a result, we increased the provision for grower bad debt, impacting
the current year gross profit by $8.3 million compared to the prior year, as well as future quarters relative to 2006 crop sales.

Second, as required by SFAS No. 141, we adjusted Standard’s inventory to its fair value less selling costs. These
purchase accounting adjustments impacting gross profit on sales of inventory acquired in the merger were reduced by $16.6
million from $18.0 million in 2006 compared to $1.4 million in 2007, primarily in the Other Regions reportable segment.
There will be no further impact on gross profit related to purchase accounting adjustments resulting from the merger. This
cost reduction was partially offset by a $6.9 million increase in the tobacco market valuation adjustment recorded in 2007
compared to 2006 that was primarily in the South America reportable segment as a result of poor quality crops.

Selling, administrative and general expenses decreased $5.8 million or 3.5% from $164.1 million in 2006 to $158.3 million
in 2007. The decrease is primarily due to the deconsolidation of Zimbabwe and a significant reduction in merger and
integration related travel expenses.

Other income increased $3.6 million from $2.5 million in 2006 to $6.1 million in 2007. The increase is primarily attributable
to the recovery of receivable previously written off and increased gains on fixed asset sales.

Goodwill impairment is tested for each reporting unit annually as of the first day of the last quarter of the fiscal year and
whenever events or circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. In 2007, there were no indications of
impairment. Based on the impairment analysis in 2006, we recorded a total goodwill impairment charge of $256.9 million
during the fourth quarter related to the reporting units of North America (75.7 million) and South America (181.2 million).
See Note E “Goodwill and Other Intangibles” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further information.
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Results of Operations (Continued)

Comparison of the Year Ended March 31, 2007 to the Year Ended March 31, 2006 (Continued)

Restructuring and asset impairment charges were $29.8 million in 2007 compared to $85.4 million in 2006. At March 31,
2006, in accordance with ARB 51, we deconsolidated our Zimbabwe operations. A non-cash impairment charge of $47.9
million was recorded in 2006 to adjust the investment in those operations to estimated fair value, In 2007, an additional non-
cash impairment charge of $13.2 million was recorded to write down our Zimbabwe investment to zero. Neither of these
charges was deductible for income tax purposes. Other impairment charges in 2006 relate to $22.2 million for employee
severance and other integration charges related to the merger and $15.3 mitlion for asset impairments primarily related to the
decision to sell the dark air-cured tobacco business, including intangibles of the Indonesian dark air-cured operation. Other
impairment charges in 2007 relate to $6.7 million for asset impairments in Greece, Thailand and Turkey, primarily machinery
and equipment, and $9.9 million for employee severance and other integration related charges as a result of the merger. See
Note D “Restructuring and Assets Impairment Charges” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further
information.

Debt retirement expense of $3.9 million in 2007 relates to one time costs of refinancing our senior secured credit facility.
Debt retirement expense of $66.5 million in 2006 relates to one time costs of retiring DHMON debt as a resuit of the merger.
These costs include tender premiums paid for the redemption of senior notes and convertible subordinated debentures, the
expense recognition of debt issuance costs associated with former DIMON debt instruments, termination of certain interest
rate swap agreements and other related costs.

Interest expense decreased $3.0 million from $108.6 million in 2006 to $105.6 million in 2007 due to lower average
borrowings offset by higher average rates.

Interest income increased $1.5 million from $7.1 million in 2006 to $8.6 million in 2007 primarily due to the intcrest income
recetved from the release of Brazilian PIS/Cofins escrow deposits during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007.

Derivative financial instruments resulied in a benefit of $0.3 million in 2007 and $5.1 million in 20806. These items are
derived from changes in the fair value of non-qualifying interest rate swap agreements,

Effective tax rates were an expense of 122.7% in 2007 and a benefit of 4.0% in 2006. Effective tax rates are largely
determined by the distribution of taxable income among various laxing jurisdictions as well as management’s judgment on
the ability to realize the tax benefits of deferred tax assets. The significant unfavorable variance from the statutory rate in
2007 is primarily due to the inability to recognize the benefit of losses in certain jurisdictions and the additional income tax
accrual for the tax audit in Germany. See Note P “Contingencies and Other Information” to the “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements™ for further information. The effective rate was favorably impacted as a result of the reduction in tax
rates in Turkey and a reduction in valuation allowance related to U.S. foreign tax credit carryovers. The difference from the
statutory rate in 2006 is primarily due to significant goodwill impairment charges for which no tax benefit is realized. See
Note L “Income Taxes” to the ‘“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further information.

Losses from discontinued operations were $18.7 million in 2007 and $24.1 million in 2006, The decrease of $5.4 million is
due to a $12.0 million assessment in 2006 related to an administrative investigation into tobacco buying and selling practices
within the leaf tobacco industry in ltaly by the Directorate General for Competition. Also included in the decrease is reduced
losses of $2.7 million from our non-tobacco, Italian and Mozambique tobacco operations as well as our wool operations.
Substantially offsetting this decrease is $9.3 million in charges in 2007 related to finalizing our exit from the Italian market.
See Note C "Discontinued Operations” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further information.
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Comparison of the Year Ended March 31, 2006 to the Year Ended March 31, 2005

The merger of DIMON and Standard was completed during the first quarter of 2006. Total revenues and expenses for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, which includes Standard’s results since May 13, 2005 and DIMON’s results for the full
fiscal year, increased significantly when compared to prior fiscal years as prior fiscal years include only the results of
DIMON.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, functional and operational integration activities made differentiation between
former DIMON and former Standard results difficult which impairs the comparability of fiscal years 2006 and 2005 results.

Sales and other operating revenues. The increase of 62.5% from $1,300.1 million in 2005 to $2,112.7 million in 2006 is
primarily the result of the addition of Standard revenues. The increase is a result of a 62.2% or 255.1 million kilo increase n
quantities sold and a 72.1% or $23.3 million increase in processing and other revenues. Average sales prices remained
constant overall.

South America region. Tobacco revenues increased $291.6 million, reflecting a 92.3 million kilo increase in quantities sold
and a $0.09 per kilo increase in average sales prices. The increase in the South America region is primarily a result of the
inciusion of Standard revenues.

Other regions. Tobacco revenues increased $497.7 million due to a 162.7 million kilo increase in quantities sold, partially
offset by a $0.06 per kilo decrease in average sales prices. The inclusion of Standard revenues significantly increased
revenues in the origins of Turkey, Malawi and the United States. While volumes increased in the United States, average
sales prices per kilo decreased $0.34 per kilo as a result of including Standard’s lower priced cut rag and crushed rolled
expanded stem products in 2006. Average sales prices in Zimbabwe decreased $1.09 per kilo as a result of the continued
decline in the economic and political situation even though volumes increased as a result of direct contract buying. Other
region processing and other revenues increased $23.3 million primarily related to greater quantities of U.S. customer-owned
tobacco processed as a result of the merger.

Gross profit as a percentage of sales. The $30.1 million increase in gross profit, or 15.5%, from $194.6 million in 2005 to
$224.7 million in 2006, as well as the gross profit percentage decrease from 15.0% in 2005 to 10.6% in 2006 is primarily
attributable to two factors:

First, while the inclusion of Standard sales contributed significantly to operating results, gross profit on these sales was
reduced by $18.0 million as a result of non-cash purchase accounting adjustments required to record inventory in the
Standard acquisition at fair value.

Second, a significant decline in gross profit and gross profit percentage in the South America region also negatively
impacted the fiscal 2006 results. The Brazil crop marketed during fiscal 2006 was of a poor quality due to adverse weather
related growing conditions. The result, under contract farming, was that certain tobaccos purchased did not meet customer
quality requirements. The 2005 crop costs in Brazil increased approximately 20% due to a combination of the effect of the
relative strength of the local currency against the U.S. dollar on prices paid to growers for leaf and related processing and
conversion costs, coupled with the absorption of local intrastate trade taxes resulting from a change in local laws. Gross
profit was negatively impacted as sales price increases were insufficient to cover these cost escalations. These factors will
continue to affect operating results in the South America region in future quarters when the remainder of the 2005 crop is
sold.

Selling, administrative and general expenses increased $39.7 million or 31.9% from $124.4 million in 2005 to $164.1
million in 2006. The increase is primarily due to the additional expenses of Standard as a result of the merger. Expenses
were further increased by the impact of expenses denominated in foreign currencies, primarily a greater than 20% increase in
the Brazilian real.

Other income of $2.5 million in 2006 relates primarily to fixed asset sales of $0.9 million and the recovery of $1.6

million of an Iraqi debt previously written off. Other income of $5.3 million in 2005 relates primarily to fixed asset sales and
insurance recoveries.
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Comparison of the Year Ended March 31, 2006 to the Year Ended March 31, 2005 (Continued)

Goodwill impairment is tested for each reporting unit annually as of the first day of the last quarter of the fiscal year
and whenever events or circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. The testing is based on a discounted
cash flow approach for each reporting unit to determine fair value (Step 1). When a possible impairment for a reporting unit
is indicated, the implied fair value of goodwill is tested by comparing the carrying amount of the net assets of the reporting
unit excluding goodwill to the total fair value (Step 2). The fair value of the reporting unit is estimated using the expected
present value of future cash flows. As a result of certain reporting units failing Step 1, we completed Step 2 to measure the
impairment loss, if any. Based on this analysis we recorded a total goodwill impairment charge of $256.9 million during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 related to the reporting units of North America and South America. Of the total goodwill
impairment charge, $75.7 million related to North America. Prior to the merger with Standard, no goodwill was previously
allocated to the former DIMON operating segment in North America. As a result of declines in the U.S. market share due to
unanticipated decreased customer demand and reduced crop size, indicators of impairment were present. Accordingly, Step 2
testing was required resulting in the related goodwill impairment charge. Of the total goodwill impairment charge, $181.2
million related to South America. Prior to the merger, all previous goodwill of $151.8 million was allocated to the South
America operating region. Merger related goodwill of $29.4 million was allocated to South America. As stated above
management completed the annual impairment test for each of the preceding years without any impairment. There are
several changes in the South America region that have significantly impacted operations in 2006. First is the impact of the
absorption of local intrastate trade taxes resulting from a change in local laws. Second is the effect of the strong local
currency on prices paid to growers and related tobacco conversion costs. Third is the impact of the poor quality of the 2005
crop. These factors negatively impacted the operating segment’s future cash flow projections. Some of these factors are
expected to continue to affect cash flow projections. Accordingly, Step 2 was required and the related impairment charge
was recorded. See Note E “Goodwill and Other Intangibles” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further
information.

Restructuring and asset impairment charges were $85.4 million in fiscal 2006 compared to $2.8 miilion in 2005. The
South America segment was $2.4 million and the other segments were $83.0 million. In 1ccordance with ARB 51, when a
parent does not have control of a subsidiary due to severe foreign exchange restrictions or other governmental imposed
uncertainties, the subsidiary should be deconsolidated. As a result, the Company deconsolidated its Zimbabwe operations at
March 31, 2006 and recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $47.9 million to adjust the investment in those operations to
estimated fair value. No income tax benefit was recognized on the charge. The investment is now accounted for using the
cost method and is reported on the balance sheet in Cost Method Investments. Business operations in Zimbabwe were not
impacted by the financial reporting change or the non-cash charge, and the Company intends to continue its operations there.
In 2006, assets impairment of $15.3 million and $22.2 million of employee severance and other integration charges related to
merger. In 2006 we recorded asset impairment charges of $1.2 million, $12.5 million and $1.6 million in connection with the
decision to close the Spanish operations, sell the dark air-cured tobacco business and other, respectively. Sce Note D
“Restructuring and Assets Impairment Charges™ to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further information.

Debt retirement expense of $66.5 million relates to one time costs of retiring DIMON debt as a result of the merger.
These costs include tender premiums of $42.3 million paid for the redemption of senior notes and convertible subordinated
debentures, the non-cash expense recognition of $18.4 million of debt issuance costs associated with former DIMON debt
instruments and $5.8 million related to the termination of certain interest rate swap agreements and other related costs.

Interest expense increased $55.8 million from $52.8 million in 2005 to $108.6 million in 2006 of which, $27.6 million
was due to higher average borrowings of the combined company reflected in the post-merger capital structure and $28.2
million resulted from higher average interest rates.

Interest income increased $2.7 million from $4.4 million in 2005 to $7.1 mitlion in 2006 primarily due to higher
interest rates and average cash balances in the United States, United Kingdom and Zimbabwe.

Derivative financial instruments resulted in a benefit of $5.1 million in 2006 and $13.1 million in 2005. These items

are derived from changes in the fair value of non-qualifying interest rate swap agreements. See Note F “Derivative and Other
Financial Instruments” to the “Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements” for further information.
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Comparison of the Year Ended March 31, 2006 to the Year Ended March 31, 2005 (Continued)

Effective tax rates were a benefit of 4.0% in 2006 and an expense of 35.1% in 2005. The rates are based on the current
estimate of full year results except for any taxes related to specific events which are recerded in the interim period in which
they occur. The tax rate in 2006 was adversely affected by goodwill and other asset impairment charges for which no tax
benefit is realized. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, adjustments of $29.0 million related to deferred tax asset
valuation allowance adjustments were recorded as specific events. The net effect on the 2006 tax provision was to decrease
the effective tax rate from a benefit of 10.5% to 4.0%.

Losses from discontinued operations were $24.1 million in 2006 and $11.2 million in 2005. The increase of $12.9
million is primarily due to a $12.0 million assessment related to an administrative investigation into tobacco buying and
selling practices within the leaf tobacco industry in Italy by the Directorate General for Competition. The remainder is
attributable to the discontinuation of operations in Italy and Mozambique of the combined company, the wool operations of
former Standard and non-tobacco operations of former DIMON. The decision to discontinue operations in Mozambique in
2006 was due to our loss of concession to promote tobacco production in the Chifunde district of Mozambique. Without the
Chifunde district it was not in our economic interest to continue operations in Mozambique. Non-tobacco operations of
former DIMON were acquired in 2004, This was a developmental enterprise and neither emerging markets nor production
expectations met our expectations. The non-tobacco operation was sold in April 2006 after the conclusion of our March 31
fiscal year end. See Note C “Discontinued Operations” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further
information.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Purchasing, processing and selling activities of our business are seasonal. Our need for capital fluctuates with corresponding
peaks and our associated outstanding indebtedness may be significantly greater or less as a result. Historically we have
needed capital in excess of cash flow from operations to finance accounts receivable, inventory and advances to farmers for
pre-financing tobacco crops in foreign countries, including Argentina, Brazil, Guatemala, Malawi, Tanzania, Turkey and
Zambia. Our long-term borrowings consist of senior and subordinated notes as well as senior secured revolving and term
credit facilities. We also have short-term lines of credit available with a number of banks to provide needed working capital
during the seasonal peaks of our business.

Over the last twelve meonths and in line with one of management’s stated areas of focus, we have reduced debt, net of
cash, by $215.8 million from $1,046.5 million as of March 31, 2006 to $830.7 million as of March 31, 2007. Improved
working capital management, as well as both excess cash flow from operations and non-core asset sale proceeds, were the
significant debt reduction drivers. From time to time in the future, we may elect to purchase, redeem, repay, retire or cancel
indebtedness prior to stated maturity under our senior secured credit agreement or indentures, as permitted therein.

On March 30, 2007, we refinanced our existing $650.0 million Senior Secured Credit Facility with a new $385.0
million Senior Secured Credit facility comprised of a three and one half year $240.0 million revolving facility and a four year
$145.0 million Term Loan B, as well as on March 7, 2007, the issuance of $150.0 million of 8.5% Senior Notes due May 15,
2012 and issued at a discounted price of 99.507 with a yield to maturity of 8.625%. Following the fiscal year end, on May 4,
2007, we made an optional $50.0 million prepayment on our $145.0 miltion Term Loan B with excess cash flow from
operations reducing it to $95.0 million, Alse, subsequent to the fiscal year end, on May 25, 2007, we increased the revolver
commitment from $240.0 million to $250.0 million as permitted under the credit agreement.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

At March 31, 2007, we had $80.3 million in cash on our balance sheet, no borrowings under our $240.0 million
revolving credit facility with $240.0 million available and $179.1 million outstanding under foreign lines with $275.5 million
available under those lines and $22.5 million of other debt for a total of $618.3 million of debt availability and cash on hand
around the world, excluding $17.8 million in issued but unfunded letters of credit with $12.8 million of letters of credit
available. Another source of liquidity as of March 31, 2007 was $30.7 million funded under our $55.0 million receivable sale
program. Additionally, customers pre-financed purchases of $125.4 million and it should be noted that we hold substantial
amounts of inventories that are committed to them. To the extent that these customers do not provide advance funding, we
must provide financing for such inventories. Should customers pre-finance less in the future for committed inventories this
action could negatively affect our short-term liquidity. At March 31, 2007, we had no material capital expenditure
commitments. We believe that these sources of funds will be sufficient to fund our anticipated needs for fiscal year 2008.
No cash dividends were paid to stockholders during the twelve months ended March 31, 2007, See Note G “Short-term
Borrowing Arrangements” and Note R *“Sale of Receivables™ to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further
information.

Seasonal liquidity beyond cash flow from operations is provided by our revolving credit facility, seasonal working
capital lings throughout the world, advances from customers and sale of accounts receivable. As of March 31, 2007, we are
in our working capital build and nearing our high point in seasonally adjusted working capital borrowing. Borrowings related
to South America are approaching full utilization as tobacco from the most recent crop is being purchased and processed
while the peak tobacco sales season for South America is at its beginning stages. Africa is also in the middle of its buying,
processing and selling season and is utilizing working capital funding as well. North America and Europe are still selling and
planning for the next crop that i1s now being grown.

Working Capital

Our working capital decreased from $538.9 million at March 31, 2006 to $531.9 million at March 31, 2007. Our current ratio
was 1.9 to 1 at March 31, 2007 compared to 1.6 to ! at March 31, 2006. The decrease in working capital is primarily related
10 decreased inventories and advances on purchases of tobacco partially offset by the corresponding decrease in notes payable
10 banks,

The following table is a summary of items from the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet and Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

As of March 31,
Change Change
(in millions except for current ratio) 2007 $ %o 2006 3 % 2005
Cash and cash equivalents 3 803 $ 543 2087 § 26.0 3.1y 0.7 $29.1
Net trade receivables 217.8 (103.1) (32.1) 3209 101.6 463 2193
Inventories and advances on purchases
of tobacco 730.3 (145.0) (16.6) 8753 3113 552 564.0

Total current assets 1,131.6 (236.6) (17.3) 13682 493.5 56.4 R74.7
Notes payable to banks 179.1 (120.8) (40.3) 299.9 879 415 212.0
Accounts payable 188.0 12.1 6.9 175.9 86.1 95.9 89.8
Advances from customers 1254 (101.0) (44.6) 226.4 177.0 3583 49.4
Total current liabilities 599.7 (229.6) (27.7) 829.3 4277 1065 401.6
Current ratio 19tol 1.6to 22to01
Working capital 531.9 (7.0)  (1.3) 5389 658 139 473.1
Total long term debt 726.6 (179) (24 7445  258.1 53.1 486.4
Stockholders’ equity 2255 11.3 53 2142 (200.1) (48.3) 4143
Net cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities 187.5 95.1 924 86.0 6.4

Investing activities 443 1.0 433 57.5 (14.2)

Financing activities (179.1) (55.4) (123.7) (142.7) 19.0
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Operating Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities increased $95.1 million in 2007 compared to 2006 which increased $86.0 million
compared to 2005. The increase in cash provided in 2007 is primarily due to significantly improved results of operations in
2007 compared to 2006. Decreases in accounts receivable and inventories and advances on purchases of tobacco were offset
by a comesponding decrease in advances from customers. Decreases in accounts payable and accrued expenses were
substantially offset by the change in deferred items. The increase in cash provided in 2006 compared to 2005 is primarily
related to the increased operating cash flows associated with the acquisition of Standard.

Investing Cash Flows

Net cash provided by investing activities increased $1.0 million in 2007 compared to 2006 which increased $57.5 million
compared to 2005, The increase in cash provided in 2007 compared to 2006 is primarily a result of the surrender of life
insurance policies, increased proceeds from the sale of fixed assets identified as part of the merger process to be redundant
and the return of capital from our Zimbabwe operation offset by the cash acquired in the prior year as a result of the purchase
and merger of Standard into Alliance One. The increase in cash provided in 2006 compared to 2005 is primarily due to the
cash acquired as a result of the merger and increased proceeds from the sale of fixed assets identified as part of the merger
process to be redundant.

Financing Cash Flows

Net cash used by financing activities increased $55.4 million in 2007 compared to 2006 which increased $142.8 million
compared to 2005. The increase in cash used in 2007 compared to 2006 is primarily due to lower net proceeds from
borrowings in 2007 as a result of the new debt arrangements entered into in the prior year as a result of the merger. The
increase in cash used in 2006 compared to 2005 is primarily due to the payoff in 2006 of the former DIMON debt
arrangements as a result of the merger which were substantially offset by the proceeds from the new debt arrangements of
Alliance One,
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The following table summarizes our debt financing as of March 31, 2007:

March 31, 2007

CQutstanding Lines and
March 31, Letters Interest Repayment Schedule by Fiscal Year (5)
2006 2007 Available Rate 2008 2009 2010 Later
Senior secured credit facility:
Revolver (1) b3 - 5 - $240.0
Term loan A 142.5 - - 5 - 5 - £ - 5 -
Term loan B 198.0 145.0 - 9.5% 1.5 1.5 1.4 140.6
340.5 145.0 240.0 1.5 1.5 1.4 140.6
Seniot notes:
11% senior notes due 2012 3150 315.0 - 11.0% - - - 315.0
8 4% notes due 2012 - 149.3 - 8.5% (1) (.1) N 149.6
Other (2) 10.2 10.2 - - - - 10.2
3252 474.5 - .1 1) (1) 474.8
12 %% senior subordinated note due 2012 90.7 91.6 - 12.8% (1.0) (1.2) (1.4) 95.2
Other long-term debt 16.2 20.8 225 11.2% (3) 4.3 12.8 1.9 1.3
Notes payable to banks (4) 299.9 179.1 275.5 6.3% (3) - - - -
Total debt §1,072.5 £911.0 538.0 $5.2 $13.0 $1.8 37119
Short term 5 2999 $179.1
Long term:
Long term debt current (5) $ 281 $ 52
Long term debt (5} 744.5 726.7
§ 7726 $731.9
Letters of credit $ 3041 $178 12.8

Total credit available

$550.8
I

(1) Revolver available balance does not reflect the $10.0 million increase effective May 25, 2007

(2) Balance consists of legacy DIMON and Standard Senior Notes with balances and maturities as follows:

$3.5 95/8% Senior Notes due 2011
0.4 7 3/4% Senior Notes due 2013
6.3 8% Senior Notes duc 2012

310.2

(3) Weighted average rate for the year ended March 31, 2007

(4) Primarily foreign seasonal lines of credit

(5) Debit classification and repayment are based on a next twelve months basis and does not reflect the additional $50.0 million paydewn on term

loan B made after the fiscal year end.
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Liguidity and Capital Resources (Continued)

The following summarizes the material terms of each significant component of our debt financing.
Senior Secured Credit Facility

On March 30, 2007, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement™), with a syndicate
of banks that amends and restates the Company’s prior credit agreement and provides for a senior secured credit facility (the
“Credit Facility™) that consists of:

* a three and one-half year $240.0 million revolver (subsequently increased to $250.0 million) (the “Revolver™) which
initially accrues interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.75%; and

e a four-year $145.0 million term loan B (subsequently reduced to $95.0 million) (the “Term Loan B”) which accrues
interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.25%.

The interest rate for the Revolver may increase or decrease according to a consolidated interest coverage ratio pricing
matrix as defined in the Credit Agreement. Effective May 25, 2007, the Company increased the Revolver by $10.0 million to
$250.0 million by adding additional Lenders thereto,

Borrowers and Guarantors. One of our primary foreign holding companies, Intabex Netherlands B.V. (“Intabex™), is co-
borrower under the Revolver, and our portion of the borrowings under the Revolver is limited to $150.0 million outstanding
at any one time. Intabex is the sole borrower under the Term Loan B. One of our primary foreign trading companies, Alliance
One International AG (“AOIAG”), is a guarantor of Intabex’s obligations under the Credit Agreement. Such obligations are
also currently guaranteed by us and must be guaranteed by any of our material direct or indirect domestic subsidiaries.

Coliateral. Our borrowings under the senior secured credit facility are secured by a first priority pledge of:

100% of the capital stock of any material domestic subsidiaries;

e 65% of the capital stock of any material first tier foreign subsidiaries;

e LS. accounts receivable and U.S, inventory owned by us or our material domestic subsidiaries (other than inventory
the title of which has passed to a customer and inventory financed through customer advances); and

» Intercompany notes evidencing loans or advances we make to subsidiaries that are not guarantors.

In addition, Intabex’s borrowings under the Credit Facility are secured by a pledge of 100% of the capital stock of
Intabex, AOIAG, and certain of our and Intabex’s material foreign subsidiaries.

Financial Covenants. The Credit Facility includes certain financial covenants and required financial ratios, including:

+ aminimum consolidated interest coverage ratio of not less than 1.55 to 1.00;

* amaximum conselidated leverage ratio of not more than 6.25 to 1.00;

s amaximum consolidated total senior debt to borrowing base ratio of not more than 0.90 to 1.00; and

s amaximum amount of annual capital expenditures of $40.0 million during any fiscal year of the Company.

Certain of these financial covenants and required financial ratios adjust over time in accordance with schedules in the
Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement also contains certain customary affirmative and negative covenants, including, without
limitation, restrictions on additional indebtedness, guarantees, liens and asset sales,

We continuously monitor our compliance with these covenants and we are not in default as of, or for the quarter ended,
March 31, 2007. On June 20, 2007, the Company entered into a Waiver and Consent o cure any potential defaults under the
Credit Agreement. See Note S “Subsequent Events” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further
information. H we were in default and were unable to obtain the necessary amendments or waivers under our Credit Facility,
the lenders under that facility have the right to accelerate the loans thereby demanding repayment in full and extinguishment
of their commitment to lend. Certain defaults under the Credit Facility would result in a cross default under the indentures
governing our senior notes and senior subordinated notes and could impair access to our seasonal operating lines of credit in
local jurisdictions. A default under our Credit Facility would have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and financial
condition.
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Senior Notes

On May 13, 2005, we issued $315.0 million of 11% senior notes due 2012 and on March 7, 2007 we issued $150.0 million of
8 4% senior notes due 2012 at a 0.5% original issue discount to reflect an 8.6% yield to maturity. The indentures governing
each of the 11% senior notes and the 8 %% senior notes contain certain covenants that, among other things, limit our ability
to incur additional indebtedness; issue preferred stock; merge, consolidate or dispose of substantially all of our assets; grant
liens on our assets; pay dividends, redeem stock or make other distributions or restricted payments; repurchase or redeem
capital stock or prepay subordinated debt; make certain investments; agree to restrictions on the payment of dividends to us
by our subsidiaries; sell or otherwise dispose of assets, including equity interests of its subsidiaries; enter into transactions
with our affiliates; and enter into certain sale and leascback transactions.

Senior Subordinated Notes

On May 13, 2005, we issued $100.0 million of 12 3/4% senior subordinated notes due 2012 at a 10% original issue discount
to reflect a 15% yield to maturity. The indenture governing the senior subordinated notes contains covenants substantially
identical to those contained in the indentures governing the 11% senior notes and the 8 2% senior notes.

Foreign Seasonal Lines of Credit

We have typically financed our non-U.S. operations with uncommitted unsecured short term seasonal lines of credit at the
local level. These operating lines are seasonal in nature, normally extending for a term of 180 to 270 days corresponding to
the tobacco crop cycle in that location. These facilities are typically uncommitted in that the lenders have the right to cease
making loans and demand repayment of loans at any time. These loans are typically renewed at the outset of each tobacco
season. As of March 31, 2007, we had approximately $179.1 million drawn and outstanding on foreign seasonal lines
totaling $485.2 million. Additionally against these lines there was $12.8 million available in unused letter of credit capacity
with $17.8 million issued but unfunded.

Aggregate Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have summarized in the table below our contractual cash obligations and other commercial commitments as of March 31,
2007.

Payments / Expirations by Period

Total Total Years Years After
{(in millions) 2006 2007 2008 2009-2010  2011-2012 2012
Long-Term Debt Obligations* $1.,169.6 $1,112.2 $ 814 $166.3 $278.3 $586.2
Capital Lease Obligations* 0.5 0.5 0.2 03 - -
Operating Lease Obligations 19.1 264 5.7 8.5 18 8.4
Tabacco Purchase Obligations 646.9 567.0 516.0 51.0 - -
Total Contractual Obligations and Other
Commercial Commitments $1,83.1 $1,706.1 $603.3 $226.1 $282.1 $594.6

*  Long-Term Debt Obligations and Capital Lease Obligations include projected interest for both fixed and variable rate debt. We assume that there
will be no drawings on the senior secured revolving credit facility in these calculations. The variable rate used in the projections is the rale that was
being charged on our variable rate debt as of March 31, 2007. These catculations also assume that there is no refinancing of debt during any period.
These calculations are on Long-Term Debt Obligations and Capital Lease Obligations only.

On September 27, 2006, the Company, entered into a revolving trade accounts receivable securitization agreement to
sell receivables to a limited liability company (“LLC”). Under the agreement, the Company has assumed co-insurance equal
to 10% of the value of receivables sold. Based on the closing balance of receivables sold to the LLC, this amount is equal to
$3,128 as of March 31, 2007,

We do not have any other off-balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on
our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources, as defined under the rules of
SEC Release No. FR-67.
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Aggregate Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements (Continued)

Lease Obligations

We have both capital and operating leases. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
operating leases are not reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet. The operating leases are for land,
buildings, automobiles and other equipment; the capital leases are primarily for production machinery and equipment. The
capitalized lease obligations are payable through 2012. Operating assets that are of long-term and continuing benefit are
generally purchased.

Tobacco Purchase Obligations

Tobacco purchase obligations result from contracts with growers, primarily in the United States, Brazil and Turkey, to buy
either specified quantities of tobacco or the grower's total tobacco production. Amounts shown as tobacco purchase
obligations are estimates based on projected purchase prices of the future crop tobacco. Payment of these obligations is net
of our advances to these growers. Our tobacco purchase obligations do not exceed our projected requirements over the related
terms and are in the normal course of business.

Planned Capital Expenditures

We have projected a total of $25.5 million in capital investments for our 2008 fiscal year. We forecast our capital
expenditure needs for routine replacement of equipment as well as investment in asscts that will add value to the customer or
increase efficiency. Included in capital expenditures for 2008 are costs for the initial development and implementation of
SAP, a global financial accounting and reporting system. This system will replace more than 50 systems we are currently
using around the world. Implementation will be phased in during fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010,

Tax and Repatriation Matters

We are subject to income tax laws in each of the countries in which we do business through wholly owned subsidiaries and
through affiliates. We make a comprehensive review of the income tax requirements of each of our operations, file
appropriate returns and make appropriate income tax planning analyses directed toward the minimization of our income tax
obligations in these countries. Appropriate income tax provisions are determined on an individual subsidiary level and at the
corporate level on both an interim and annual basis. These processes are followed using an appropriate combination of
internal staff at both the subsidiary and corporate levels as well as independent outside advisors in review of the various tax
laws and in compliance reporting for the various operations.

We consider unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries operating outside the United States to be invested indefinitely.
No U.S. income taxes or foreign withholding taxes are provided on such permanently reinvested earnings, in accordance with
APB No. 23,”Accounting for Income Taxes, Special Area.” We regularly review the status of the accumulated earnings of
each of our foreign subsidiaries and reassess this determination as part of our overall financing plans. Following this
assessment, we provide deferred income taxes, net of any foreign tax credits, on any earnings that are determined to no longer
be indefinitely invested. See Note L “Income Taxes” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further
information.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
(GAAP) requires the use of estimates and assumptions that have an impact on the assets, liabilities, revenue and expense
amounts reported. These estimates can also affect supplemental disclosures including information about contingencies, risk
and financial condition.
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Critical accounting policies are defined as those that arc reflective of significant judgments and uncertainties and
potentially yield materially different results under different assumptions or conditions. Given current facts and
circumstances, we believe that our estimates and assumptions are reasonable, adhere to GAAP and are consistently applied.
Our selection and disclosure of our critical accounting policies and estimates has been reviewed with our Audit Commitiee.
Following is a review of the more significant assumptions and estimates and the accounting policies and methods used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements,

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Inventories are reviewed and written down for changes in market value
based on assumptions related to future demand and worldwide and local market conditions. [f actual demand and market
conditions vary from those projected by management, additional write-downs to lower of cost or market value may be
required. Inventory write-downs for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 were $14.6 million and $7.7 million,
respectively. See Notc A “Significant Accounting Policies - Inventories” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements™ for further information.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. We periodically assess the
realizability of deferred tax assets and the adequacy of deferred tax liabilities, including the results of local, state, federal or
foreign statutory tax audits or estimates and judgments used.

Realization of deferred tax assets associated with net operating loss and credit carryforwards is dependent upon
generating sufficient taxable income prior to their expiration by tax jurisdiction. We believe that it is more likely than not that
certain of these net operating loss and credit carryforwards may expire unused and, accordingly, have established a valuation
allowance against them. Although realization is not assured for the remaining deferred tax assets, we believe it is more likely
than not the deferred tax assets will be realized through future taxable earnings or alternative tax strategics. However,
deferred tax assets could be reduced in the near term if our estimates of taxable income during the carryforward period are
significantly reduced or alternative tax strategies arc no longer viable.

The amount of income tax that we pay annually is dependent on various factors, including the timing of certain
deductions and ongoing audits by federal, state and foreign tax authorities, which may result in proposed adjustments. We
perform reviews of our income tax positions on a continuous basis and accrue for potential contingencies when we believe a
liability is probable and can be reasonably estimated. Accruals for these contingencies are recorded based on an expectation
as to the timing of when the contingency will be resolved. As events change or resolution occurs, these accruals are adjusted,
such as in the case of audit settlements with taxing authorities. We believe we have adequately provided for any reasonably
foreseeable outcome related to these matters. However, our future results may include favorable or unfavorable adjustments
to our estimated tax liabilities due to closure of income tax examinations, new regulatory or judicial pronouncements, or
other relevant events. See Note L “Income Taxes” and Note P “Contingencies and Other Information™ to the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements™ for additional details regarding certain of our tax contingencies.

Advances on Purchases of Tobacco and Guarantees of Brazilian Rural Credit Financing to Farmers

We provide agronomy services and seasonal crop advances of, or for, seed, fertilizer, and other supplies. These advances are
short term in nature, are repaid upon delivery of tobacco 1o us, and are reported in advances on purchases of tobacco in the
consolidated balance sheet. Primarily in Brazil and certain African countries, we have made long-term advances to tobacco
farmers to finance curing barns and other farm infrastructure. In addition, due to low crop yields and other factors, in some
years individual farmers may not deliver sufficient volumes of tobacco to fully repay their seasonal advances, and we may
extend repayment of those advances into future crop years. In Brazil, we also assist the farmer in obtaining government
subsidized rural credit financing which is guaranteed by the company. Each reporting period, we must make assumptions as
1o the balances of farmer advances that may prove uncollectible. Based on these assumptions, we make estimates resulting in
a valuation allowance for farmers’ advances and accruals for obligations under rural credit financing guarantees.
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Property and Depreciation

Estimating the useful lives of property, plant and equipment requires management judgment, and actual lives may differ from
these estimates. Changes to these initial useful life estimates are made when appropriate. Property, plant and equipment are
tested for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of such long-lived assets may not
be recoverable from future cash flows. Impairment testing requires significant management judgment including estimating
the future sales volumes, growth rates for selling prices and costs, alternative uses for the assets and estimated proceeds from
disposal of the assets. Impairment testing is conducted at the fowest level where cash flows can be measured and are
independent of cash flows of other assets. An asset impairment would be indicated if the sum of the expected future cash
flows from the use of the asset (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the carrying amount of the asset. An
impairment loss would be measured based on the difference between the fair value of the asset and its carrying amount. Fair
value is the amount at which the asset could be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing parties and may be
estimated using a number of techniques, including quoted market prices or valuations by third parties, present value
techniques based on estimates of cash flows, or multiples of earnings or revenue performance measures. The fair value of the
asset could be different using different estimates and assumptions in these valuation techniques which would increase or
decrease the impairment charge. During the years 2007, 2006 and 2003, the Company incurred charges of $19.9 million,
£63.2 million and $0.7 million, respectively, related to the impairment of long-lived assets. See Note D “Restructuring and
Asset Impairment Charges” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further information.

When the Company determines that all of the criteria under SFAS No. 144 have been met to ¢lassify a component of a
business as discontinued operations, its financial position is reported as assets and liabilities of discontinued operations and
its results as discontinued operations. The Company has made such decisions conceming tobacco operations in Italy and
Mozambique, a U.S. non-tobacco processing facility and former Standard’s woo! operations. These operations are reported
as discontinued operations in our financial statements and have resulted in losses of $18.7 million, $24.1 million and $11.2
million in the years 2007, 2006 and 2005 respectively. See Note C “Discontinued Operations™ to the “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements™ for further information.

Pensions and Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits

The valuation of our pension and other postretirement health care and life insurance plans requires the use of assumptions
and estimates that are used to develop actuarial valuations of expenses, assets and liabilities. These assumptions include
discount rates, investment returns, projected salary increases and benefits and mortality rates. In September 2005, the
postretirement healthcare plan was capped resulting in a significant decrease in benefit cost. The significant assumptions
used in the calculation of pension and postretirement obligations are:
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Discount rate: The discount rate is based on investment yields available at the
measurement date on high-quality fixed income obligations, such as those included in
the Moody’s Aa bond index.

Salary increase assumption: The salary increase assumption reflects our expectations
with respect to long-term salary increases of our workforce. Historical pay increases,
expectations for the future, and anticipated inflation and promotion rates are considered
in developing this assumption.

Cash Balance Crediting Rate: Interest is credited on cash balance accounts based on the
yield on one-year Treasury Constant Maturities plus 1%. The assumed crediting rate
thus considers the discount rate, current treasury rates, current inflation rates, and
expectations for the future.

Mortality Rates: Mortality rates are based on gender-distinct group annuity mortality

(GAM) tables.

Expected return on plan assets: The expected return reflects asset allocations,

investment strategy and our historical actual returns.

Termination and Retirement Rates: Termination and retirement rates are based on
standard tables reflecting past experience and anticipated future experience under the
plan. No early retirement rates are used since benefits provided are actuarially

equivalent and there are not early retirement subsidies in the plan.

Health Care Cost Trends: Trends for future increases in medical costs are based on past

experience as well as forecasts of long-term medical cost trends.

Management periodically reviews actual demographic experience as it compares to the actuarial assumptions. Changes
in assumptions are made if there are significant deviations or if future expectations change significantly. Based upon
anticipated changes in assumptions, pension and postretirement expense is expected to decrease by $3.6 million in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2008 as compared to March 31, 2007. We continually evaluate ways to better manage benefits and
control costs. The cash contribution to our employee benefit plans in 2007 was $9.8 million and is expected to be $5.8

million in 2008,

The effect of actual results differing from our assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and,
therefore, generally affect our recognized expense in such future periods. Changes in other assumptions and future
investment returns could potentially have a material impact on our pension and postretirement expenses and related funding

requirements.
The effect of a change in certain assumptions is shown below:

Estimated Change
in Projected
Benefit Obligation
Increase (Decrease)

Estimated Change in
Annual Expense
Increase (Decrease)

(in 000’s) (in 000’s)
Change in Assumption (Pension Plans)

1% increase in discount rate $ (7,269) $ (573)
1% decrease in discount rate $ 8,335 $ 512
1% increase in salary increase assumption 3 546 £ 190
1% decrease in salary increase assumption $ (738) § (141
1% increase in cash balance crediting rate $ 1,239 § 156
1% decrease in cash balance crediting rate $ (1,104) $ (132)
1% increase in rate of return on assets $ (443)
1% decrease in rate of return on assets § 444
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates (Continued)

Pensions and Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits (Continued)

Changes in assumptions for other post retirement benefits are no longer applicable as the benefit is capped and no longer
subject to inflation. See Note M “Employee Benefits” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further
information.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We test the carrying amount of goodwill for each operating segment annually as of the first day of the last quarter of our
fiscal year and whenever events or circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. Impairment testing is
performed in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Impairment testing is based on a
discounted cash flow approach for each operating segment to determine fair value (Step 1). The determination of fair value
requires significant management judgment including estimating future sales volumes, growth rates of selling prices and costs,
changes in working capital, investments in property and equipment and the selection of an appropriate discount rate. We also
test the sensitivitics of these fair value estimates to changes in our earnings growth rate and discount rate.

When a possible impairment for an operating segment is indicated, we estimate the implied fair value of goodwill by
comparing the carrying amount of the net assets of the operating segment excluding goodwill to the total fair value (Step 2).
The fair value of the reporting unit is estimated using the expected present value of future cash flows. During 2006 certain
reporting units failed Step 1, we completed Step 2 to measure the impairment loss. Based on this analysis we recorded a total
goodwill impairment charge of $256.9 miltion during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 related to the operating segments of
North America and South America. See Note E “Goodwill and Other Intangibles™ to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements™ for further information,

We have no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. As of March 31, 2007 we have other intangible assets with a
gross carrying amount of approximately $46.1 million and a net carrying amount of about $30.9 million. These intangibles
are being amortized over their estimated useful lives and are tested for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate
that impairment may have occurred. If the carrying amount of an intangible asset exceeds its fair value based on estimated
future undiscounted cash flows, an impairment loss would be indicated. The amount of the impairment loss to be recorded
would be based on the excess of the carrying amount of the intangible asset over its discounted future cash flows. We use
Jjudgment in assessing whether the carrying amount of our intangible assets is not expected to be recoverable over their
estimated remaining useful lives. The factors considered are similar to those outlined in the goodwill impairment discussion
above. See Note E “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets™ to the ‘Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further
information.

Other Estimates and Assumptions

Other management estimates and assumptions are routinely required in preparing our financial statements, including the
determination of valuation allowances on accounts receivable, value-added tax credits in Brazil and the current year write-
down of our Zimbabwe investment to zero. Changes in market and economic conditions, local tax laws, and other related
factors are considered each reporting period, and adjustments to the accounts are made based on our best judgment.

Accounting Matters

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets - an Amendment of FASB
Statement No 140.” SFAS No. 156 provides guidance on the accounting for servicing assets and liabilities when an entity
undertakes an obligation to service a financial asset by entering into a servicing contract. This statement is effective for the
Company as of April 1, 2007. Prior to fiscal year 2007, we had no servicing obligations that would be subject to this
guidance. In fiscal 2007, certain receivables were sold and under this arrangement, we retained an obligation to service the
financial assets sold. Current levels of receivables sold have resulted in neither a servicing asset or liability as the cost of
servicing approximates the servicing revenue. Therefore, we do not expect the adoption to have any material impact on our
financial condition or results of operations.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Accounting Matters (Continued)

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes (FIN 48). FIN 48 prescribes a more likely than not threshold for financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This Interpretation also provides guidance on de-
recognition of income tax assets and liabilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities,
accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax positions, accounting for income taxes in interim periods, and
income tax disclosures. This Interpretation is effective for the Company as of April 1, 2007. We are currently evaluating the
impact of FIN 48 on our financial statements. See Note P “Contingencies” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” for further discussion,

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements, which enhances existing guidance for measuring assets and liabilities using fair value. SFAS No. 157
provides a single definition of fair value, together with a framework for measuring it, and requires additional disclosure about
the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities. FAS No. 157 also emphasizes that fair value is a market-based
measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and sets out a fair value hicrarchy with the highest priority being quoted
prices in active markets. Under FAS No. 157, fair value measurements are disclosed by level within that hierarchy. SFAS
No. 157 is effective for the Company as of April 1, 2008. We are evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 157 on its financial
condition and resulis of operations.

On September 29, 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretivement Plans ("SFAS 158"), which amends SFAS 87 and SFAS 106 to require recognition of the over funded
or under funded status of pension and other postretirement benefit plans on the balance sheet. Under SFAS 158, gains and
losses, prior service costs and credits, and any remaining transition amounts under SFAS 87 and SFAS 106 that have not yet
been recognized through net periodic benefit cost will be recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax
effects, until they are amortized as a component of net periodic cost. We adopted the balance sheet recognition provisions of
SFAS 158 at March 31, 2007. The adoption of FAS 158 increased stockholders’ equity at March 31, 2007 by $11.5 million.
The Statement did not affect our results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair
value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing companics with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in
reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge
accounting provisions. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Earlier adoption
would also require adoption of all requirements of SFAS No. 157, and could only be done within 120 days of the beginning
of the year of adoption. Given these constraints, we plan to adopt SFAS No. 159 at the beginning of fiscal 2009. We are
evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have on our operating income or net earnings.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108
{(“SAB 108”). SAB 108 provides guidance on the consideration of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year
misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. The staff of the SEC (the “Staff") believes registrants must
guantify the impact of correcting all misstatements, including both carryover and reversing effects of prior year
misstatements, on a company’s current year consolidated financial statements. The Staff prescribes two approaches to
assessing the materiality of misstatements: the “rollover” approach, which quantifies misstatements based on the amount of
error originating in the current year income statement and the “iron curtain approach,” which quantifies misstatements based
on the effects of correcting the cumulative effect existing in the balance sheet at the end of the current year. If under either
approach, misstatements are deemed material, a company is required to adjust its financial staiements, including correcting
prior year financial statements, even if such correction was, and continues to be, immaterial to the prior year financial
statements. Correcting prior year financial statements for immaterial errors would not require a company to amend previously
filed reports, and such corrections may be made the next time the company files its prior year statements. Based upon our
assessment, there were no adjustments resulting from the application of SAB 108.

-4] -



ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT
MARKET RISK

Derivatives Policies: Hedging interest rate exposure using swaps and hedging foreign exchange exposure using forward and
option contracts are specifically contemplated to manage risk in keeping with management’s pelicies. We may use derivative
instruments, such as swaps, forwards and/or options, which are based directly or indirectly upon interest rates and currencies
to manage and reduce the risks inherent in interest rate and currency fluctuations. See also Note F “Derivative and Other
Financial Instruments”™ to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

We do not utilize derivatives for speculative purposes, and we do not enter into market risk sensitive instruments for
trading purposes. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” the
Company recognizes all derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swap contracts and foreign exchange contracts,
in the consolidated financial statements at fair value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the instrument. Changes
in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are either recognized periodically in income or in shareholders’ equity as
a component of comprehensive income depending on whether the derivative financial instrument qualifies for hedge
accounting, and if so, whether it qualifies as a fair value hedge or cash flow hedge. Changes in fair values of derivatives
accounted for as fair value hedges are recorded in income along with the portions of the changes in the fair values of the
hedged items that relate to the hedged risk(s). Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for as cash flow hedges, to the
extent they are effective as hedges, are recorded in other comprehensive income net of deferred taxes. Changes in fair values
of derivatives not qualifying as hedges are reported in income.

Foreign exchange rates: Our business is generally conducted in U.S. dollars, as is the business of the leaf tobacco industry as
a whole. However, local country operating costs, including the purchasing and processing costs for tobaccos, are subject to
the effects of exchange fluctuations of the local currency against the U.S. dollar. We attempt to minimize such currency risks
by matching the timing of our working capital borrowing needs against the tobacco purchasing and processing funds
requirements in the currency of the country where the tobacco is grown. Fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies can
significantly affect our operating results. Alliance One has recognized an exchange loss of $0.2 million in its statement of
Operations for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 and exchange gains in its statement of income of $2.3 million and $0.5
million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In addition, foreign currency fluctuations in the
Euro and (U.K.) Sterling can significantly impact the equity currency conversion compenent of accumulated other
comprehensive income. Alliance One recognized a gain of $9.5 million in 2007 and a loss of $7.5 million in 2006 as a result
of fluctuations in these currencies.

Our consolidated selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses denominated in foreign currencies are subject
to translation risks from currency exchange fluctuations. These foreign denominated expenses are primarily denominated in
the Euro, (U.K.) Sterling and Brazilian real and accounted for approximately $40.3 million of Alliance One’s total SG&A
expenses for the twelve months ended March 31, 2007. A 10% change in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to those
currencies would have caused the reported value of those expenses to increase or decrease by approximately $4.0 million.

Interest rates: We manage our exposure to interest rate risk through the proportion of fixed rate and variable rate debt in our

total debt portfolio. A 10% change in interest rates would increase or decrease Alliance One’s reported interest cost by
approximately $9.6 million. Substantially all of our long-term borrowings are denominated in U.S. dollars,
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ITEMS. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Alliance One International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31,
(in thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005
Sales and other operating revenues $ 1,979,078 2,112,685 $1,300,118
Cost of goods and services sold 1,683,339 1,888,000 1,105,501
Gross profit 295,739 224,685 194,617
Selling, administrative and general expenses 158,342 164,087 124,416
Other income 6,076 2,501 5,285
Goodwill impairment - 256,916 -
Restructuring and asset impairment charges 29,773 85411 2,836
Operating income (loss) 113,700 (279,228) 72,650
Debt retirement expense 3,860 66,474 -
Interest expense 105,635 108,585 52,840
Interest income 8,591 7,107 4,448
Derivative financial instruments income 290 5,092 13,122
Income (loss) before income taxes and other items 13,086 (442,088) 37,380
Income tax expense (benefit) 16,062 (17,531) 13,113
Equity in net income of investee companies 1,014 999 89
Minority interests expense (income) 653 (216) (85)
Income (loss) from continuing operations (2,615) (423,342) 24,441
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (18,730} (24,104) (11,153)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of income taxes (252) - -
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ (21,597) $ (447,446) $ 13,288
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net income (loss) § (21,597) $ (447,446) $ 13,288
Equity currency conversion adjustment 9,521 (7,506) (14)
Additional minimum pension liability adjustment, net of
tax $241 in 2007, $554 in 2006 and $(119) in 20035 639 843 (151)
Reclassification of derivative financial instruments into
earnings, net of tax $0 in 2007 and 2006 and
$(324) in 2005 - - (637)
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ (11,437 $ (454,109) $ 12,486
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Income (loss) from continuing operations $(0.03) $(5.21) $0.55
Loss from discontinued operations (0.22) (0.30) (0.25)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of income taxes - - -
Net Income (Loss) $(0.25) $(5.51) $0.30
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Income (loss) from continuing operations $(0.03) $(5.21) $0.54
Loss from discentinued operations (0.22) (0.30) (0.25)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of income taxes - - - ‘
Net Income (Loss) $(0.25)* $(5.51)* $0.29* ‘

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

* Agsumed conversion of Convertible Debentures at the beginning of the period has an antidilutive effect on eamings (loss) per share. In connection with
the closing of the merger with Standard many of the Company’s financing arrangements were refinanced, including in July of 2003, the Company's
$73,328 of convertible subordinated debentures due 2007. For the years ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006 all outstanding restricted stock and
stock options are excluded because their inclusion would have an antidilutive ¢ffect on the loss per share.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Alliance One International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

March 31, March 31,
(in thousands) 2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 80,258 $ 25985
Trade receivables, net 217,761 320,865
Inventories:
Tobacco 619,468 726,846
Other 31,623 45,294
Advances on purchases of tobacco, net 79,249 103,147
Current deferred and recoverable income taxes 33,254 39,560
Other current assets 57,186 60,444
Assets of discontinued operations 12,835 46,056
Total current assets 1,131,634 1,368,197
Other assets
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates 21,302 44,763
Goodwill and other intangible assets 35,109 37,942
Deferred tax assets 69,002 51,666
Other deferred charges 18,136 20,890
Other noncurrent assets 116,621 93,531
260,170 248,792
Property, plant and equipment
Land 25,802 26,710
Buildings 182,389 184,950
Machinery and equipment 197,565 211,498
Allowances for depreciation (143,688) (136,023)
262,068 287,135
$1,653,872 $1,904,124
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Notes payable to banks § 179,097 $ 299,930
Accounts payable 188,003 175,883
Advances from customers 125,403 226,413
Accrued expenses 65,077 68,265
Income taxes 26,461 22,176
Long-term debt current 5,231 28,091
Liabilities of discontinued operations 10,379 8,526
Total current liabilities 599,651 829.284
Long-term debt 726,625 744,494
Deferred income taxes 10,895 7,405
Pension, postretirement and other long-term labilities 87,730 105,991
825,250 857,890
Minority interest in subsidiaries 3,425 2,763
Commitments and contingencies - -
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock—no par value:
250,000 authorized shares, 96,467 issued and outstanding
(94,963 at March 31, 2006) 459,563 451,388
Unearned compensation — restricted stock - (3,134)
Retained earnings (241,534) {219,937)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 7,317 (14,130)
225,546 214,187
$1,653,872 $£1.904,124

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Alliance One International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Accumulated

Other Comprehensive Income

Additional
Minimum  Derivative
Equity Pension Financial Total

{in thousands, Common Unearned Retained  Currency Liability, Insiruments, Stockholders’
except per share amounis) Stock  Compensation Eamnings Conversions Net of Tax  Net of Tax Equity
Batance, March 31, 2004 5185,527 % (873) $236,896 £(3,343) $(3,959) $ 637 $414,885
Net income for the year - - 13,288 - - - 13,288
Cash dividends -$.30 per share - - (13,578) - - - (13,578)
Issue of 216,500 shares of

restricted stock 1,397 (1,397) - - - - -
Eamned compensation - 623 - - - - 623
Exercise of employee stock

options 144 - - - - - 144
Restricted stock surrendered (284) 36 - - - - {248)
Conversion of foreign currency

financial statements - - - (14} - - (14)
Adjustment in the minimum

pension liability - - - - (151) - (151)
Reclassification of derivative

financial instruments

Into earnings. - - - - - (637) (637)
Balance, March 31, 2005 5186,784 § (1,611) $236,606 $(3,357) $(4,110) 5 - $414,312
Net loss for the year - - (447,446) - - - (447,446)
Cash dividends -3.105 per share - - (9,097} - - - (9,097)
Stock issued in connection with

the merger 261,905 (2,463) - - - - 259,442
Issue of 418,500 shares of

restricted stock 2,039 (2,039) - - - - -
Earned compensation (2301 2,896 - - - - 2,665
Exercise of employee stock

options 913 - - - - - 913
Restricted stock surrendered (83) 83 - - - - -
Deferred stock compensation 61 - - - - - 61
Conversion of foreign cumrency

financial statements - - - (7,506) - - (7,506)
Adjustment in the minimum

pension liability - - - - 843 - 843

__ A

Balance, March 31, 2006 $451,388 §$ (3,134) $(219,937)  $(10,863) $(3,267) £ - $£214,187
Net loss for the year - - (21,597 - - - (21,597)
Adoption of FAS 123R (3,134) 3,134 - - - - -
Restricted stock surrendered (452) - - - - - {452)
Earned compensation 2,965 - - - - - 2,965
Exercise of employee stock

options 7,266 - - - - - 7.266
Stock-based compensation 1,530 - - - - - 1,530
Conversion of foreign currency

financial statements - - - 9,521 - - 9,521
Adjustment in the minimum

pension liability - - - - 639 - 639
Adoption of FAS 158 - - - - 11,487 - 11,487
Balance, March 31, 2007 $459,563 5 - $(241,534)  $(1,342) $ 8,859 5§ - $225,546

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
Alliance One Intemnational, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Years Ended March 31,
(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Operating activities
Net Income (Loss) $(21,597) $(447,446)  $13,288
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities of continuing operations:
Net loss from discontinued operations _ ' 18,730 24,104 9,721
Loss on disposal of discantinued operations - - 1,432
Depreciation and amortization ) 36,293 43,511 32,257
Debt amortization included in interest expense 10,248 5,457 2,447
Restructuring and asset impairment charges ) 22,098 69,243 2,836
Goodwill impairment - 256,916 -
Deferred items (15,910 (67,039) (26,122)
(Gain) loss on foreign currency transactions 168 {2,313) (527)
Gain on disposition of fixed assets (4,885) (888) (4,801)
Bad debt expense (136) 127 240
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 105,584 1,437 (24,114)
Minority interests loss (income} 653 (216) (85)
Decrease (increase) in inventories and advances
on purchases of tobacco 205,611 ~ 59,934 (27,480)
Decrease (increase) in current deferred
and recoverable taxes (5,709) 5,644 3,298
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued expenses (85,420) (12,568) 21,168
Increase (decrease) in advances from customers (103,504) 149,209 (28,899)
Increase in income taxes 7,330 4983 9,742
Other current assets (2,818) (19,513) (7127)
Other 5,388 1,919 {249)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
of continuing operations 172,124 72,501 (16,575)
Net cash provided by operating activities
of discontinued operations 15,349 19,932 23,009
Net cash provided by operating activities 187,473 92,433 6,434
Investing activities )
Purchase of property and equipment (15,224) (19,773) (15,222)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 25,537 17,963 8,086
Cash distributed in disposition of business , (5,204) - -
Cash received in acquisition of business - 42,019 -
Proceeds on sale of discontinued operations - - 484
Payments of merger related capitalized costs - - (6.417)
Return of capital on investments in unconsolidated affiliates 10,049 - -
Surrender of life insurance policies _ 22,421 2,558 190
Redemption of Brazilian escrow deposits 8,760 705 432
Payments for other investments and other assets (3,023) (143) (480)
Net cash provided (used} by investing activities
of continuing operations 43,316 43,329 {12,927)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
of discontinued operations 995 - (1,272)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 44311 43,329 (14,199)
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS (Continued)
Alliance One International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Years Ended March 31,

{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Financing activities
Net change in short-term borrowings $(138,124) $(349,289)  $(38,194)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 563,368 1,220,231 196,672
Repayment of long-term borrowings (603,779) (961,172) (114,087)
Debt issuance cost (7,786) (25,299) (11,884)
Procecds from sale of stock 7,259 905 112
Cash dividends - (9,096) {13,578)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities {179,062) (123,720) 19,041
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 1,551 (8,705) (967)
Cash from deconsolidated Zimbabwe subsidiaries - (6,480) -
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 54,273 (3,143) 10,309
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 25,985 20,128 18,819
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 80,258 $ 25985 $ 29,128
Other information:
Cash paid during the year:
Interest $ 121,068 $ 93,689 $ 49,040
Income taxes 13,483 10,167 7,130

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Alliance One International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(in thousands)

Note A — Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

The Company is principally engaged in purchasing, processing, storing, and selling leaf tobacco. The Company purchases
tobacco primarily in the United States, Africa, Europe, South America and Asia for sale to customers in the United States,
Europe and Asia.

Basis of Presentation

The Company was renamed Alliance One International, Inc. (Alliance One) concurrent with the merger of Standard
Commercial Corporation (Standard} on May 13, 2005 with and into DIMON Incorporated. Because the merger was
completed after the close of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, the information contained in these consolidated financial
statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 includes the operations of Standard since May 13, 2005 and a full twelve
months of results of DIMON Incorporated. See Note B “Merger of DIMON Incorporated and Standard Commercial
Corporation” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further information.

The accounts of the Company and its consolidated subsidiarics are included in the consolidated financial statements
after elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. The Company uses the equity method of accounting for its
investments in affiliates that are owned 50% or less.

As of March 31, 2006, the Company deconsolidated its operations in Zimbabwe under accounting requirements that
apply under certain conditions to foreign subsidiaries that are subject to foreign exchange conirels and other government
restrictions. After the deconsolidation, a non-cash impairment charge was recorded to reduce the net investment in Zimbabwe
operations to estimated fair value. The Company accounted for the investment on the cost method and reported it in
Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates in the March 31, 2006 consolidated balance sheet. As economic and political
conditions continued to decline in fiscal 2007, lending rates and investment rates deteriorated and the investment in the
Zimbabwe operations was written down to zero during fiscal 2007, See Note D “Restructuring and Asset Impairment
Charges™ to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further information.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. These reclassifications
are not corrections of errors and there was no change in current or noncurrent classification within the balance sheet, Notes
receivable, assets held for sale and prepaid expenses were reclassified as other currents assets, Equity in net assets of
investee companies and other investments were reclassified as investments in unconsolidated affiliates. Notes receivable,
pension asset and other assets were reclassified as other noncurrent assets. Goodwill and customer relationship were
reclassified into goodwill and other intangible assets. Deferred taxes and other deferred charges was reclassified into
deferred tax assets and other deferred charges. Accounts payable-trade, officers and employees, and other were reclassified
as accounts payable. Bank credit facility, sentor notes and other long-term debt and subordinated debt were reclassified into
long term debt.

Investments in Uncensolidated Affiliates

The Company’s equity method investments and its cost method investments are non-marketable securities. The Company
reviews such investments for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
an investment may not be recovered. For example, the Company would test such an investment for impairment if the investee
were to lose a significant customer, suffer a large reduction in sales margins, experience a major change in its business
environment, or undergo any other significant change in its normal business. In assessing the recoverability of equity or cost
method investments, the Company uses discounted cash flow models. If the fair value of an equity investee is determined to
be lower than its carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized. The preparation of discounted future operating cash flow
analysis requires significant management judgment with respect to future operating eamings growth rates and the selection of
an appropriate discount rate. The use of different assumptions could incrcase or decrease estimated future operating cash
flows, and the discounted value of those cash flows, and therefore could increase or decrease any impairment charge.
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ITEMS. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Alliance One International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
{in thousands)

Note A — Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Siates
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asscts and habilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates, and changes in these estimates are
recorded when known. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other things, pension and postretirement health care
benefits, inventory market values, allowance for doubtful accounts and advances to bank loan guarantecs to growers, useful
lives for depreciation and amortization, stock options, future cash flows associated with impairment testing for goodwill and
long-lived assets and for determining the primary beneficiary of variable interest entities, deferred tax assets and potential
income tax assessments, value-added tax credits in Brazil, the determination of the fair value of the investment in Zimbabwe
operations, purchase accounting fair value determinations and contingencies. Changes in market and economic conditions,
local tax laws, and other related factors are considered each reporting period, and adjustments to the accounts are made based
on the Company’s best judgment.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the price to the customer is fixed,
collectibility is reasonably assured and title and risk of ownership is passed to the customer, which is usually upon shipment.
However, certain customers traditionally have requested to take title and risk of ownership prior to shipment. Revenue for
these transactions is recognized only when:

{1) Title and risk of ownership have passed to the customer;

(2) The Company has obtained a written fixed purchase commitment,

(3) The customer has requested the transaction be on a bill and hold basis;

(4) The customer has provided a delivery schedule.

(5) All performance obligations related to the sale have been completed;

(6) The tobacco has been processed to the customer’s specifications, accepted by the customer and made
ready for shipment; and

(7) The tobacco is segregated and is not available to fill other orders.

The remittance terms for these “bill and hold” transactions are consistent with all other sales by the Company.
The Company also processes tobacco owned by its customers and revenue is recognized when the processing is
completed. Advances from customers are generally recognized as revenue upon shipment.

Shipping and Handling
Shipping and handling costs arc included in cost of goods and services sold in the Statement of Consolidated Operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as temporary investments of cash with maturities of less than 90 days. At March 31, 2006,
$1,500 was included in cash held on deposit as a compensating balance for short-term borrowings. The 2006 borrowings
matured in the first quarter fiscal 2007. There were no compensating balances as of March 31, 2007.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Inventories are reviewed and adjusted for changes in market value
based on assumptions related to future demand and worldwide and local market conditions. If actual demand and market
conditions vary from those projected by management, adjustments to lower of cost or market value may be required.
Inventory write-downs for the years ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006 were $14,600 and $7,700, respectively.

Costs of tobacco inventories are generally determined by the average cost method while costs of other inventories are
generally determined by the first in, first out method. Costs included in tobacco inventory include both the cost of raw
material as well as direct and indirect costs that are related to the processing of the product. Tobacco inventory is
substantially finished goods. Costs included in other inventories are costs of sparc parts, packing materials, non-tobacco
agricultural products and agricultural supplies including seed, fertilizer, herbicides and pesticides. Interest and other carrying
charges on the inventories are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Note A — Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Advances on Purchases of Tobacco

The Company provides seasonal crop advances of, or for, seed, fertilizer, and other supplies. These advances are short term
in nature, are repaid upon delivery of tobacco to the Company, and are reported in advances on purchases of tobacco in the
consolidated balance sheet. Primarily in Brazil and certain African countries, the Company has made long-term advances to
tobacco farmers to finance curing barns and other farm infrastructure, In addition, due to low crop yields and other factors, in
some years individual farmers may not deliver sufficient volumes of tobacco to fully repay their seasonal advances, and the
Company may extend repayment of those advances into future crop years. Current advances of $79,249 in 2007 and
$103,147 in 2006 are presented as Advances on purchases of tobacco, net in the consolidated balance sheet. The long-term
portion of advances of $44,297 in 2007 and $19,012 in 2006 are included in other non-current assets in the consolidated
balance sheet. Both the current and the long-term portion of advances on purchases of tobacco are reported net of allowances.
Allowances are recorded when the Company determines that amounts outstanding are not likely to be collected. Total
allowances were $35,172 at March 31, 2007, and $34,611 at March 31, 2006, and were estimated based on the Company’s
historical loss information and crop projections. The allowances were increased by provisions for estimated uncollectible
amounts of approximately $40,854 in fiscal year 2007, $18,162 in fiscal year 2006 and $11,923 in fiscal year 2005, Farmer
bad debt provisions are capitalized into inventory and the expense is realized when the inventory is sold. Write-downs
charged against the allowance were $36,010, $2,816 and $3,395 for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 respectively.

In Brazil, farmers obtain government subsidized rural credit financing which is guaranteed by the Company. The
farmers borrow these funds from local banks. Repayment of both Company advances and rural credit financing by the
farmer is concurrent with delivery of tobacco to the Company. Terms of rural credit financing are such that repayment is due
only after tobacco deliveries are complete. At fiscal year end, the Company will generally have accumulated balances from
farmers for repayment to the local banks for the rural credit financing. As of March 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had
balances of $95,064 and $43,806 that were due to locat banks. These amounts are included in Accounts payable in the
consolidated balance sheet. Reserves for uncollectible farmers’ advances in Brazil also include rural credit financing
guaranteed by the Company. As of March 31, 2007, the Company was guarantor for Brazilian loans of $286,527 with an
outstanding amount of $258,687. The fair value of guarantees for rural credit was $14,796 and $10,513 as of March 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill represents costs in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired businesses. Goodwill is
not subject to systematic amortization, but rather is tested for impairment annually and whenever events and circumnstances
indicate that an impairment may have occurred. Impairment testing compares the carrying amount of the goodwill by
reporting unit with its fair value. Fair value is estimated based on discounted cash flows. When the carrving amount of
goodwill exceeds its fair value, an impairment charge is recorded.

In 2006, the Company analyzed data collected and reviewed by its Chief Operating Decision Makers and determined
that it has five geographical operating segments instead of one operating segment as reported in prior years. After
determining that it had five operating segments, the Company reevaluated its previous conclusions on reporting units and
determined that the Company had five reporting units for goodwill evaluation. Goodwill was assigned to certain reporting
units and tested for impairment at the reporting unit level in accordance with SFAS No. 142.

The Company has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. It does have other intangible assets, production and
supply contracts and a customer relationship intangible recorded in connection with the merger. Supply contracts are
amortized primarily on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract ranging from three to five years. Production
contracts are amortized on a straight-line basis ranging from five to ten years. The customer relationship intangible is being
ameortized on a straight-line basis over twenty years. The amortization pertod is the term of the contract or, if no term is
specified in the contract, management’s best estimate of the useful life based on past experience. Events and changes in
circumstance may either result in a revision in the estimated useful life or impairment of the intangible resulting in
revaluation of the asset value to its fair value. See Note E “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” to the “Notes to
Consoclidated Financial Statements” for further information.
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Note A - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Provisions for depreciation are computed on a
straight-line basis at annual rates calculated to amortize the cost of depreciable properties over their estimated useful lives.
Buildings, machinery and equipment and technological equipment are depreciated over ranges of 20 to 30 years, 5 to 10
years and 3 to 5 years, respectively. The consolidated financial statements do not include fully depreciated assets.
Depreciation expense for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $33,399, $39.898, and $27,680,
respectively.

Estimated useful lives are periodically reviewed and, when warranted, changes are made to the estimated useful lives.
Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their cost may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows from the use of the
asset and its eventual disposition are less than its carrying amount. Measurcment of an impairment loss would be based on
the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over its fair value. Fair value is the amount at which the asset could be bought
or sold in a current transaction between willing parties and may be estimated using a number of techniques, including quoted
market prices or valuations, present value techniques based on estimates of cash flows, or multiples of earnings or revenue
performance measures. See Note D “Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” for further information.

Under SFAS No. 144, a component of a business that is either disposed of or held for sale is reported as discontinued
operations if the operations and cash flows have been reclassified from ongoing operations and there will be no significant
involvement in such operations in the future. The Company has made such decisions concerning tobacco operations in Italy
and Mozambique, a U.S. non-tobacco processing facility and former Standard’s wool operations. These operations are
reported as discontinued operations in the financial statements and have resulted in losses of $18,730, $24,104 and $11,153 in
the years 2007, 2006 and 2005 respectively. See Note C “Discontinued Operations™ to the "Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements" for further information.

Assets Held For Sale

The Company reclassifies assets to “Asscts Held For Sale” when the company has committed to a plan to sale the assets,
including the initiation of a plan to locate a buyer, the assets are available for immediate sale, and it is probable that the assets
will be sold within one year based on its current condition and sales price. Upon reclassifying the assets as held for sale, the
assets are recorded at the lower of historical cost or fair value less selling costs and depreciation is discontinued. Assets
reclassified as held for sale were $2,793 and $19,955 at March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and are reported in Other
Current Assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The Company periodically
assesses the realizability of deferred tax assets and the adequacy of deferred tax liabilities, including the results of local, state,
federal or forcign statutory tax audits or estimates and judgments used.

Realization of deferred tax assets associated with net operating loss and credit carryforwards is dependent upon
generating sufficient taxable income prior to their expiration by tax jurisdiction. The Company believes that it is more likely
than not that certain of these net operating loss and credit carryforwards may expire unused and, accordingly, have
established a valuation allowance against them. Although realization is not assured for the remaining deferred tax assets, the
Company believes it is more likely than not the deferred tax assets will be realized through future taxable carnings or
aliernative tax strategies. However, deferred tax assets could be reduced in the near term if its estimates of taxable income
during the carryforward period are significantly reduced or alternative tax strategies are no longer viable.

The amount of income tax that the Company pays annually is dependent on various factors, including the timing of
certain deductions and ongoing audits by federal, state and foreign tax authorities, which may result in proposed adjustments.
The Company performs reviews of its income tax positions on a continuous basis and accrues for potential contingencies
when it believes a liability is probable and can be reasonably estimated. Accruals for these contingencies are recorded based
on an expectation as to the timing of when the contingency will be resolved. As events change or resolution occurs, these
accruals are adjusted, such as in the case of audit settlements with taxing authorities. The Company believes it has
adequately provided for any reasonably foreseeable outcome related to these matters. However, its future results may include
favorable or unfavorable adjustments to its estimated tax liabilities due to closure of income tax examinations, new regulatory
or judicial pronouncements, or other relevant events. See Note L “Income Taxes” and Note P “Contingencies and Other
Information™ to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for additional details regarding certain of its tax
contingencies.
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Note A - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company’s stock based compensation plans are described more fully in Note K “Stock-Based Compensation” to the
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.” On April 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based
Payment.” This statement requires the Company to expense the fair value of grants of various stock-based compensation
programs at fair value over the vesting period of the awards. The Company elected to adopt this statement using the
“Modified Prospective Application” (MPA) transition method which does not result in the restatement of previously issued
financial statements. Application of the MPA transition method requires compensation costs to be recognized beginning on
the effective date for the estimated fair value at date of grant in accordance with the original provision of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” for all stock-based compensatton awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as
of April 1, 2006. Awards granted after April 1, 2006 have been recognized as compensation expense based on the grant-date
fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). The MPA transition method also required that
any unearned or deferred compensation recerded in “contra-equity” accounts be eliminated against the equity accounts that
will be affected by the on-going recognition of stock based compensation. Accordingly, on Aprit 1, 2006, the Company
reclassified $3,134 from Unearned Compensation — Restricted Stock to Common Stock.

Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 136, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets - an Amendment of FASB
Statement No 140.” SFAS No. 156 provides guidance on the accounting for servicing assets and liabilities when an entity
undertakes an obligation to service a financial asset by entering into a servicing contract. This statement is effective for the
Company as of April 1, 2007. Prior to fiscal year 2007, the Company had no servicing obligations that would be subject to
this guidance. In fiscal 2007, certain receivables were seold and under this arrangement, we retained an cbligation to service
the financial assets sold. Current levels of receivables sold have resulted in neither a servicing asset nor liability as the cost
of servicing approximates the servicing revenue. Therefore, the Company does not expect the adoption to have any material
impact on its financial condition or results of operations.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes (FIN 48). FIN 48 prescribes a more likely than not threshold for financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This Interpretation also provides guidance on de-
recognition of income tax assets and labilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities,
accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax positions, accounting for income taxes in interim periods, and
income tax disclosures. This Interpretation is effective for the Company as of April 1, 2007. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on its financial statements. See Note P “Contingencies” to the “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements” for further discussion.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements,
which enhances existing guidance for measuring assets and liabilities using fair value. FAS No. 157 provides a single
definition of fair value, together with a framework for measuring it, and requires additional disclosure about the use of fair
value to measure assets and liabilities. FAS No. 157 also emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and sets out a fair value hierarchy with the highest priority being quoted prices in active
markets. Under FAS No. 157, fair value measurements are disclosed by level within that hierarchy. FAS No. 157 is effective
for the Company as of April 1, 2008, The Company is evaluating the impact of FAS No. 157 on its financial condition and
results of operations.
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Note A — Significant Accounting Policies (Confinued)

Accounting Pronouncements (Confinued)

On September 29, 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Emplovers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension und
Other Postretirement Plans ("SFAS 158"), which amends SFAS 87 and SFAS 106 to require recognition of the over funded
or under funded status of pension and other postretirement benefit plans on the balance sheet. Under SFAS 158, gains and
losses. prior service costs and credits, and any remaining transition aimounts under SFAS 87 and SFAS 106 that have not yet
been recognized through net periodic benefit cost will be recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax
effects, until they are amortized as a component of net periodic cost. The Company adopted the balance sheet recognition
provisions of SFAS 158 at March 31, 2007. The adoption of FAS 158 increased stockholders' equity at March 31, 2007 by
$11,487. The Statement did not affect the Company’s results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other itemns at fair
value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing companies with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in
reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge
accounting provisions. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Earlier adoption
would also require adoption of all requirements of SFAS No. 157, and could only be done within 120 days of the beginning
of the year of adoption. Given these constraints, the Company plans to adopt SFAS No. 159 at the beginning of fiscal 2009.
The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have on its operating income or net
eamings.

In September 2006, the Securitics and Exchange Commission ("SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108
{“SAB 108"). SAB 108 provides guidance on the consideration of prior year misstaternents in quantifying current year
misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. The staff of the SEC (the “Staff”) believes registrants must
quantify the impact of correcting all misstatements, including both carryover and reversing effects of prior year
misstatements, on a company's current year consolidated financial statements. The Staff prescribes two approaches to
assessing the materiality of misstatements: the “rollover” approach, which quantifies misstatements based on the amount of
error originating in the current year income statement and the “iron curtain approach.” which quantifies misstatements based
on the effects of correcting the cumulative effect existing in the balance sheet at the end of the current year. If under either
approach, misstatements are deemed material, a company is required to adjust its financial statements, including correcting
prior year financial statements, even if such correction was, and continues to be, immaterial to the prior year financial
statements. Correcting prior year financial statements for immaterial errors would not require a company to amend previously
filed reports, and such corrections may be made the next time the company files its prior year statermnents. Based upon the
Company's assessment, there were no adjustments resulting from the application of SAB 108,

_53%.




ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Alliance One Intenational, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(in thousands)

. Note A ~ Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

' Computation of Earnings Per Common Share

(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended March 31,
2007 2006 2005

BASIC EARNINGS
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of accounting changes

Net Income (Loss)

 SHARES
Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding

 BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of accounting changes

Net Income (L.oss)

" DILUTED EARNINGS

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Add after tax interest expense applicable to 614%
Convertible Debentures issued April 1, 1997

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of accounting changes

Net Income (Loss) as Adjusted

" SHARES
Weighted average number of commen shares outstanding
Restricted shares issued and shares
applicable to stock aptions, net of shares assumed to

$ (2,615) $(423342)  $ 24,441
(18,730) (24,104)  (11,153)

(252)
$(21,507) _ $(447.446) _$ 13288
86,470 81,220 44,392

$ (003) $ (521) § 55
(.22) (.30) (.25)

$ (025§ (55D 8 30

$(2,615) 5(423,342) § 24441

% * *

(2,615)  (423342) 24,441
(18,730) (24,104)  (11,153)
(252) - -

$(21,597)* $(447,446)*  $(13,288)*

86,470+ 81,220%* 44,892

be purchased from proceeds at average market price -* -* 577
Assuming conversion of 6 4% Convertible

Debentures at the beginning of the period -* -* -*
Average Number of Shares Outstanding 86,470* 81,220* 45,469*

DILUTED EARNINGS (L.OSS) PER SHARE
Income (loss) from continuing operations $(0.03) $(5.21) S .54
Loss from discontinued operations (.22) (.30) (.25)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes - - -
Net Income {Loss) as Adjusted $(0.25)* $(5.51)* S .29*
_ L R I

* Assumed conversion of Convertible Debentures inio 2,549 shares at the beginning of the period and the reduction of after-tax interest

expense by $0, $811 and $2,979 for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, has an antidilutive effect on
camings (loss) per share. In connection with the closing of the merger with Standard many of the Company's financing arrangements
were refinanced, including in July of 2005, the Company’s $73,328 of convertible subordinated debentures due 2007. For the years
ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006 all outstanding restricted stock and stock options of $854 and $2,473, and $1,068 and
$3,763, respectively, are excluded because their inclusion would have an antidilutive effect on the loss per share.

*% The weighted average number of common shares outstanding is reported as the weighted average of the total shares of common stock
outstanding net of shares of common stock owned by a subsidiary, Shares of common stock owned by the subsidiary was 7,853 at
March 31, 2007 and 2006. This subsidiary does not receive dividends on these shares and it does not have the right to vote.
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Note A — Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company may potentially be subject to a concentration of credit risks due to cash and trade receivables relating to
customers in the tobacco industry. Cash is deposited with high-credit-quality financial institutions. Concentration of credit
risks related to receivables is limited because of the diversity of customers and locations.

Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors is authorized to issue shares of Preferred Stock in series with variations as to the number of shares in
any series. The Board of Directors also is authorized to establish the rights and privileges of such shares issued, including
dividend and voting rights. At March 31, 2007, 10,000 shares of preferred stock were authorized and no shares had been
1s5ued.

Note B — Merger of DIMON Incorporated and Standard Commercial Corporation

On November 7, 2004, DIMON and Standard entered into an Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, or merger agreement.
On May 13, 20085, the merger was completed. Upon the consummation of the merger, Standard merged into DIMON, which
simultaneously changed its name to Alliance One International, Inc.

Under the terms of the merger agreement, Standard shareholders received three shares of the Company’s common
stock for cach Standard share owned. Approximately 41,243 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued in
exchange for all outstanding shares of common stock of Standard based on the three-for-one exchange ratio, at an aggregate
value of $264,368 (based on the average closing price of $6.36 of DIMON common stock during the two business days
before and afier the date the merger was announced). The net share value, afier consideration of unearmned compensation —
restricted stock of $2,463, is $261,905. The common stock issuance combined with professional fees and charges incurred to
effect the merger of $12,205 resulted in a total purchase price of $274,110,

The merger has been treated as a purchase business combination for accounting purposes, with the Company as the
acquiring entity. As such, Standard’s assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been recorded at their fair value and the
results of operations after May 13, 2005 are included in the results of the Company. In identifying the Company as the
acquiring entity, the companies took into account the relative share ownership of the surviving entity, the composition of the
governing body of the combined entity and the designation of certain senior management positions. As a result, the historical
financial statements of DIMON become the historical financial statements of the Company. The purchase price for the
acquisition, including transaction costs, has been allocated 1o the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on estimated
fair values at the date of acquisition, May 13, 2005. The purchase price allocation has been completed and as of March 31,
2006 is as follows:
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Note B — Merger of DIMON Incorporated and Standard Commercial Corporation (Continued)

The purchase price allocation, completed as of March 31, 2006, was as follows:

May 13, 2005
Cash § 42,009
Accounts receivable trade 100,781
Inventory 365,110
Advances and deposits suppliers _ . 41,945
Assets of discontinued operations 68,567
Other current assets 22,705
Property, plant and equipment 172,281
Goodwill and intangible assets 143,030
Other 42 281
~ Total assets acquired $ 998,719
~ Notes payable banks and other $ 442,205
Accounts payable 94,818
Other current liabilities 100,997
Long term debt 11,396
Deferred income taxes 48,123
Deferred compensation and other 21,613
Other 2,994
Total liabilities $ 722,146
Total unearned compensation — restricted stock $ 2,463
Net assets acquired $ 274,110

As indicated in the above table, the goodwill and intangible asset balance relative to the merger is $143,030 and is non-
deductible for tax purposes. Included within this balance is a finite lived customer relationship intangible of $33,700, which
is being amortized over a useful life of twenty years.

The Company established reserves for employee separation and operational exit costs related to the integration of
certain Standard functions and operations into the Company. Costs associated with these integration actions do not impact
earnings and are recognized as a component of purchase accounting, resulting in an adjustment to goodwill. See Note D
“Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further disclosure of
the purchase accounting separation and exit costs.

Prior to the merger, DIMON and Standard established a series of integration design teams across each regional and
functional area which, with the assistance of an independent consultant, created a detailed integration plan. These teams
reviewed both companies’ financial and operating statistics, assessed their respective processing facilities and regional and
corporate offices identified potential redundant staffing.

The regional integration design teams have assessed each of DIMON’s and Standard’s processing facilities around the
world and identified countries where there will be duplicative facilities and/or excess of capacity. As a result of the process,
the decision was taken to sell, close or convert to storage a minimum of twelve of the 37 worldwide processing facilities
owned by the Company as of the merger. As of March 31, 2006, processing facilities in the U.S. (3), Turkey, Paraguay,
Brazil and Thailand were closed; processing facility in Russia was sold. As of March 31, 2007, processing facilities in
Macedonia, Zimbabwe and Greece were closed; two processing facilities in Spain were sold. The Thailand facility that was
closed in fiscal 2006 was sold in fiscat 2007. The closing or sales of several processing facilities of dark tobacco operation
are anticipated to be completed in fiscal 2008.

The plan also reviewed regional and corporate offices to identify and eliminate duplicative regional and corporate
overhead. In addition to the elimination of redundant systems and facilities, headcount reduction for the combined company
was significant in 2006.
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Note B — Merger of DIMON Incorporated and Standard Commercial Corporation (Continued)

During 2006, the costs relating to the closure or conversion of former Standard facilities and severance or relocation of
former Standard employees have been recorded as the net purchase price of Standard. Costs associated with closure of former
DIMON facilities and severance or relocation of former DIMON employees have been recorded as expenses in the results of
operations. See Note D “Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges™ to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”
for restructuring and integration costs details.

Many of DIMON’s and Standard’s financing arrangements have been refinanced in connection with the closing of the
merger because (1) change of control clause in agreements governing such financings, or (2) the merged company was not
able to comply with certain of the financial covenants contained in those agreements as of the closing of, or immediately
after, the merger. The specific financing arrangements that were refinanced are detailed in Note H “Long-Term Debt” to the
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Alliance One Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information

The unaudited pro forma information in the table below summarizes the combined results of operations of DIMON and
Standard for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005. The pro forma information is presented for informational purposes
only and is not indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved had the merger taken place at the
beginning of each period or results of future periods. The following information has not been adjusted to reflect any
anticipated cost savings or operating efficiencies that may be realized as a result of the merger.

Alliance One Selected Unaundited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information (Continued)

Unaudited Proforma Twelve Months Ended March 31,

thousands except per share data 2006 (1) (2) 2005
Revenues $2,184,022 $2,196,530
Operating income (loss) (279,391} 106,690
Income (loss) from continuing operations (425,002) 46,550
Loss from discontinued operations {26,282) (43,693)
Net income (loss} $(451,284) 3 2,857
Basic earnings (loss) per share

- from continuing operations $(4.96) $ .54

- from discontinued operations ‘ (0.31) (.31
Basic earnings (loss) per share $(5.27) $ .03

(1) Merger related debt retirement expenses were $66,474 and restructuring, impairment and integratton
charges were $85,411 for fiscal 2006,

{2) Goodwill impainment charge of 256,916 for fiscal 2006.
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Note C — Discontinued Operations

The Company continually evaluates its component operations to assure they are consistent with its business plan. Each
operation that has been identified as discontinued is presented separately following the summary of discontinued operations.

Years Ended March 31,
Summary of Discontinued Operations 2007 2006 2005
“Sales and other revenues $ 25,040 $ 54,754 $ 52,717
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax:
Loss from discontinued operations, before tax (15,981) (25,105) (15,658)
Income tax expense / (benefit) 2,749 {1,001) (4,505)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax $(18,730) $(24,104) 3(11,153)
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Assets of discontinued operations: 7
Cash _ b - 5 1,352
Trade receivables, net of allowances 1,737 9,925
Tobacco inventory and advances 7,147 23,396
Net property, plant and equipment 3,912 7,174
Other assets 39 4,209
Total assets of discontinued operations $ 12,835 $ 46,056
Liabilities of discontinued operations:
Accounts payable $ 7,848 $ 2,625
Accrued expenses 974 5,745
Advances from customers _ . 1,557 156
Total liabilities of discontinued operations $10,379 — 3 8526

Discontinued Italian Operations, Other Regions Segment

On September 30, 2004, concurrent with the sale of the ltalian processing facility, the Company made a decision to
discontinue all of its former DIMON ltalian operations as part of its ongoing plans to rcalign its operations to more closely
reflect worldwide changes in the sourcing of tobacco. The collection of the accounts receivable and the liquidation of the
inventory not inctuded in the sale of the former DIMON operations are continuing. As a result of the merger on May 13,
2005, the remaining net assets of the discontinued Italian operations of Standard were acquired. Due to the merger between
DIMON and Standard these efforts have taken longer than originally anticipated. During the three months ended December
31, 2006, the Company updated their evaluation of the collectibility of the accounts receivable and recorded an additional
allowance of $3,650.

During third quarter of fiscal 2007, due to the unexpected delays in selling the Italian tobacco and to take advantage of
an opportunity to accelerate the disposition of the remaining Italian inventory, the Company has been negotiating the sale of
the remaining uncommitted Italian tobacco inventory. The Company recorded a charge to inventory totaling $5,600 during
the third quarter to adjust the cost of inventory to the sales price being considered as part of this bulk sale transaction. The
Company entered into the sales agreement and sold the tobacco during the fourth quarter. It is anticipated that the sales of
the remaining March 31, 2007 inventory will occur prior to June 30, 2007.
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Note C - Discontinued Operations (Continued)
Discontinued Italian Operations (Continued)

In fiscal 2006, italian operations of both former DIMON and Standard were being investigated by the Directorate
General for Competition (DGCOMP} of the European Commission (EC) into tobacco buying and selling practices within the
leaf tobacco industry in Italy. As a result of this investigation, fines of $12,000 were levied against the former DIMON entity
and $16,800 were levied against the former Standard entity. Fines levied against the former DIMON entity are included in
the summary shown below, while fines levied against the former Standard entity have been recorded as a purchase price
adjustment as the investigation was initiated prior to the combination of the two companies.

Results of operations and the assets and liabilities are reported as discontinued operations as follows;

Years Ended March 31,

2007 2006 2005
Sales and other revenues $ 14,552 $22.825 $41,447
L.oss from discontinued operations, net of tax:
Loss from discontinued operations, before tax $(17,649) $(15,239 $(6,252)
Income tax benefit 401) (177) (538)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax $(17,248) $(15,062) $(5.714)
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Assets of discontinued operations:
Trade receivables, net of allowances $ 917 $ 8,557
Taobacco inventory and advances 5,294 20,325
Other assets 39 280
Total assets of discontinued operations $6,250 $26,162
Liabilities of discontinued operations:
Accounts payable $7.316 $ 1,624
Advances from customers 36 156
Accrued expenses 506 1,348
Total liabilities of discontinued operations $7,858 $ 3,128

Discontinued Wool Operations, Other Regions Segment
As a result of the merger, the Company acquired the remaining net assets of Standard’s discontinued wool operations. The
liquidation of these assets is continuing. The remaining assets are primarily in France and, along with the remaining trading
operations in France, are the subjects of separate sales agreements pending governmental approval. Due 10 unexpected
delays in conjunction with obtaining approval from the French government, the sale of these operations has been delayed.
The Company anticipates completing the liquidation of the assets in fiscal 2008.

Results of operations and the assets and liabilities, other than subsidiary debt guaranteed by the Company, are reported
as discontinued operations. This information is summarized for the appropriate fiscal periods as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2007 2006
Sales and other revenues $ - 3 -
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax:
Loss from discontinued operations, before tax $ (711) $(1,164)
Income tax expense 987 -
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax $(1,698) 3(1,164)
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Note C - Discontinued Operations (Continued)

Discontinued Wool Operations (Continued)

March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Assets of discontinued operations:
Cash $ - $ 1,352
Trade receivables, net of allowances - 556
Net property, plant and equipment 3,899 4,830
Other assets - 3,450
Total assets of discontinued operations $3,899 . $10,188
Liabilities of discontinued operations:
Accounts payable $ - $ 96
Accrued expenses - 2,603
Total liabilities of discontinued operations £ - $2,699
L ]

Discontinued Mozambique Operations, Other Regions Segment
On March 16, 2006, the Board of Directors of the Company made a decision to discontinue operations in Mozambique after
the procurement of the 2006 crop. This decision involves the closure of its three operating entities.

As a result of the merger, the Company’s concession to promote tobacco production in the Chifunde district of
Mozambique was terminated by the government for the fiscal 2006 crop year. In conjunction with the appeal process the
Company received a letter on October 11, 2005 from the Minister of Agriculture of Mozambique referring the case back to
the local government. At that point the Company entered into discussions with the local government of the Chifunde district
to secure the concession for the 2007 crop year. These discussions continued through January 31, 2006 at which time the
Company concluded that it was unlikely that the local government would issue a concession for the crop year in fiscal 2007
to the Company. Due to this decision by the local government the Company initiated a process to evaluate the strategic
alternatives for its remaining Mozambique operations without the Chifunde district and determined that it was not in the
Company’s economic interest to remain in Mozambique without this strategic district. The Company evaluated the criteria of
SFAS No. 144 and concluded that the Mozambique operations qualify to be presented as assets held for sale and accordingly,
the assets have been written down to their fair value less any selling costs. The Company anticipates operation will be
completely liquidated by September 2007.

Results of operations and the assets and liabilities of our businesses reported as discontinued operations were as
foltows:

Years Ended March 31,
2007 2006 2005
Sales and other revenues $10,483 $31,516 $10,815
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, before tax $ 2,337 3(5,769) $(1,790)
Income tax expense / (benefit) (470) 216 -
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 5 2,807 $(5,985) $(1,790)
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Note C — Discontinued Operations (Continued)

Discontinued Mozambique Operations (Continued)

March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Assets of discontinued operations:
Trade receivables, net of allowances $ 820 $ 792
Tobacco inventory and advances 1,853 3,071
Net property, plant and equipment 13 1,244
Other assets - 54
Total assets of discontinued operations $ 2,686 3 5,161
Liabilities of discontinued operations:
Accounts payable 3 532 $ 187
Advances from customers 1,521 -
Accrued expenses 468 1,683
Total liabilities of discontinued operations $2,521 $ 1,870

Discontinued Non-Tobacco Operations, Other Regions Segment
In January 2004, the Company acquired a majority interest in a non-tobacco entity previously reported using the equity
method of accounting. Production cxpectations and the development of emerging markets did not meet management’s
expectations, As a result, the Company began investigating strategic alternatives for its non-tobacco operation in Fiscal
2006, which led to an impairment evaluation in accordance with SFAS No. 144 and recorded asset impairment charges of
$1.764. The Company reevaluated the criteria for classifying the assets as held for sale and reporting the results of operations
as discontinued operation in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 and concluded that the Company now met all of the criteria
prescribed by SFAS No. 144, The assets of the non-tobacco operations were reclassified as held for sale and the results of
operations, including the impairment charge. were presented as discontinued operations. The Company sold the assets on
April 13, 2006.

Results of operations and the assets and liabilities of our business reported as discontinued operations were as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2007 2006 2005
Sales and other revenues b 5 $ 413 $ 455
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax:
Income (loss} from discontinued operations, before tax § 42 $(2.933) $(7,616)
Income tax expense / (benefit) 2,633 (1,040) (3,967)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax $(2,591) 5(1.893) $(3,649)
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Assets of discontinued operations:
Trade receivables, net of allowances s - $ 20
Net property, plant and equipment - 1,100
Other assets - 425
Total assets of discontinued operations 5 - $1,545
Liabilities of discontinued operations:
Accounts payable 3 - $ 718
Accrued expenses - 111
Total hiabilities of discontinued operations 5 - $ 829
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Note D — Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges

As a result of the merger, the Company developed a detailed preliminary integration plan as of the closing of the merger with
Standard that addressed each origin and functional area. Through the use of regional integration teams, assessments were
made of each of DIMON’s and Standard’s processing facilities around the world as well as identification of countries in
which there may be duplicative facilities and/or excess capacity. The plan also reviewed origin and corporate offices. Asa
result of these closures and redundancies, the plan also included a significant reduction in the global workforce. Subsequent
to the acquisition of Standard, the Company has continued assessing relevant information obtained as it relates to markets
and customers that were not available prior to the merger which has resulted in modifications to the preliminary integration
plan. The integration plan specifically identifies all significant actions to be taken to complete the plan, activities of the
acquired company that will not be continued, including the method of disposition and location of those activities, and the
plan's expected date of completion. Actions required by the plan were initiated immediately and have continued throughout
fiscal 2006 and 2007. The Company has completed the planning process and made the necessary adjustments to the
consolidated financial statements.

In fiscal 2006, integration charges resulting from the Company’s decisions had different accounting treatment
depending on whether they were related to former DIMON operations or former Standard operations. In accordance with
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 95-3, Recognition of Liabilities in Conjunction with a Purchase Business Combination,
the Company recorded the costs of a plan to (1) exit an activity of the former Standard operations, (2) involuntarily terminate
employees of the former Standard operations, or (3) relocate employees of the former Standard operations as liabilities
assumed in a purchase business combination and included in the allocation of the acquisition cost resulting in an increase in
goodwill, The Company concluded that these costs were not associated with or were not incurred to generate revenues of the
combined entity after the consummation date, had no future economic benefit to the combined Company, were incremental to
other costs incurred in the conduct of activities prior to the consummation date, and will be incurred as a direct result of the
plan to exit an activity of the Standard. However, all costs of integration actions associated with former DIMON operations
are recorded in earnings as restructuring and asset impairment costs.

In fiscal 2007, all costs of integration actions associated with former DIMON and former Standard operations are
recorded in earnings as restructuring and asset impairment costs only when they are incurred or meet the criteria for recording
in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” or SFAS No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.

Employee related severance costs for 2006 totaled $30,944. Severance and other cash charges for 2006 totaled
$43,805. Related payments of $30,161 were made in 2006 with $13,057 paid in 2007 and $587 to be paid in 2008. During
fiscal 2007, the Company recorded additional restructuring costs of $9,835 related primarily to additional employee
severance costs of which $7,675 were paid in fiscal 2007 with the remaining balance of $2,160 to be paid in 2008.
Restructuring and asset impairment costs of the South American segment and the Other Regions segment were $1,097 and
$28,676, respectively during the year ended March 31, 2007, and $2,376 and $83,035, respectively during the year ended
March 31, 2006. Payments of $1,150 and $1,708 were made for the South American segment during the years ended March
31, 2007 and March 31, 2006, respectively. Payments of $19,582 and of $29,318 were made for the Other Regions segment
during the same respective periods. As of March 31, 2007, there was a balance of $30 and $2,717 to be paid in 2008 for the
South America segment and the Other Regions segment, respectively.

In addition to the above actions, the Company has incurred significant costs primarily related to legal and professional
fees to effect the merger. These costs are $5,367 for the year ended March 31, 2006.
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Note D — Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges (Continued)
The following table summarizes the integration actions as of March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

Years Ended March 31,

Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges 2007 2006 2005
Employee separation and other cash charges:
Beginning balance $ 13,044 $ 865 $ 1,582
Period Charges: .
Severance charges 8,163 14,828 2,146
Spanish operations sale 495 2,000 -
Other cash charges 1,177 5,367 -
Total employee separation and other cash charges 9,835 22,195 2,146
Payments through March 31 (20,732) {(17,033) (2,863)
Ending balance March 31, 2006 of purchase
accounting adjustments to goodwill - 7,617* -
Ending balance March 31 $ 2,747 $13,644 $ 865

Asset impairments and other non-cash charges:
SFAS No. 144 asset impairment — tobacco operations:

CdF operations assets impairment $ - §12,520%* ) -
Spanish operations assets impairment - 1,241 -
Greece machinery and equipment impairment 3,689 - -
Thailand assets impairment 1,143 - -
Other non-cash charges 1,860 1,556 690
Deconsolidated Zimbabwe cost investments 13,246 47,899 -
Total asset impairments and other non-cash charges $ 19,938 $63,216 § 690
Total restructuring and asset impairment charges $ 29,773 385,411 $ 2,836

*  Represents March 31, 2006 ending balances for former Standard Commereial Corporation employees of $7.617.

**  Includes pretax charges of $7,409 and §5,111 for fixed asset and intangible asset impairments, respectively.
Year Ended
Purchase Accounting Adjustments to Goodwill March 31, 2006
Employee separation and other cash charges:
Severance charges $ 16,116
Spanish tobacco operations obligations 3,800
Other cash charges 1,694
Total employee separation and other cash charges 21,610
Payments through March 31, 2006 {13,993)
Ending balance March 31, 2006 , _ $ 7.617*
SFAS No. 144 asset impairment — tobacco operations — Spain 3 3,535
Total severance and exit activity charges $ 25,145
N ——
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Note D — Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges (Continued)

Sale of Spanish tobacco operations

On February 1, 2006, the Company entered into agreement to sell 100% of the stock of Agroexpansion, S.A,, its former
DIMON operation, and World Wide Tobacco Espafia,, S.A. (WWTE), its former Standard operation. In connection with the
decision to close the operations, the Company reviewed its fixed assets for impairment. In the third and fourth quarters of
fiscal 2006, the Company recorded asset impairment and restructuring costs of $10,576. Of this amount, the Company
recognized $3,241 in earnings and an adjustment related to the former Standard operations of $7,335 as an adjustment to the
purchase price of the merger at March 31, 2006 in connection with the pending sale. The Company completed the sale of
Agroexpansion and WWTE on August 1, 2006. Additional restructuring charges of $495 were recorded during the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2007, to complete the transaction.

Zimbabwe Investment Impairment

As of March 31, 2006, the Company deconsolidated its operations in Zimbabwe in accordance with the Accounting Research
Bulletin 51, Consolidated Financial Statements (“ARB 51”). ARB 51 provides that when a parent does not have control over
a subsidiary due to severe foreign exchange restrictions or governmentally imposed uncertainties, the subsidiary should not
be consolidated. A non-cash impairment charge of $47,899 was recorded to reduce the net investment in Zimbabwe
operations to estimated fair value at March 31, 2006 based on a discounted cash fiow model.

Governmental authorization is required before any dividends can be paid from a Zimbabwe operation. The Company’s
Zimbabwe operations had tried unsuccessfully to pay dividends in prior years due to certain unattainable criteria set by the
Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe and the government not granting the necessary authorizations. During the three moenths ended
September 30, 2006, the Company received a $10,000 dividend payment from one of its Zimbabwe subsidiaries that had
been negotiated with the Zimbabwe authorities. The $10,000, which was paid from Zimbabwe dollar devaluation gains for
the year ended December 31, 2005, was permitted as a result of a negotiated prepayment of $20,000 of export funds due into
Zimbabwe at a later date. The dividend was recorded as a reduction in the investment in the Zimbabwe subsidiary. The
Company does not consider the ability to pay dividends in the near future a possibility.

Current economic and political conditions have continued to decline in fiscal 2007 as inflation, lending rates and
investment rates have deteriorated. General farming operations are being negatively impacted by the lack of foreign
exchange to buy crop inputs and fuel. The crop size in Zimbabwe also continues to decline. Due to these continually
declining conditions, the Company decided to reevaluate the Zimbabwe operational structure. As a result, several significant
operational changes were made including the closure of the Zimbabwe processing factory, outsourcing the 2006 crop tobacco
processing and a significant reduction in permanent persennel.

Based on events discussed above, the Company evaluated the fair value of the Zimbabwe operations and again
determined that the net investment in the Zimbabwe operations exceeded the estimated fair value. The Company recorded an
additional non-cash impairment charge of $13,246 during fiscal 2007 to write down the net investment in the Zimbabwe
operations to zero.

SFAS No. 144 - Asset Impairment

SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” requires that long-lived assets be
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable, The Company recognizes the asset impairment when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the sum of the
undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. Realization values for assets
subject to impairment testing are determined primarily by management, taking into consideration various factors including
appraisals, quoted market prices or previous experience. If the asset remains in service at the decision date, the asset is
written down to its fair value and the resulting book value is depreciated over its remaining economic useful life.
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Note D — Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges (Continued)
SFAS No. 144 - Assct Impairment (Continued)

CdF - Sale of dark air-cured operations

As a consequence of the ongoing dark air-cured overcapacity, the Company began tentative negotiations to dispose of these
operations.  In June 2005, the Company reviewed its assets for impairment and a pre-tax impairment charge of $4,548 was
recorded based on a discounted cash flow model which primarily related to intangibles of the dark air —cured tobacco
operation in Indoncsia. On January 23, 2006, the Company entered into a non-binding letter of intent to sell its ownership
interest in Compania General de Tabacos de Filipinas, S.A, (CdF), the owner of the Company’s dark air-cured tobacco
business. In connection with this letter of intent, additional asset impairment charges of $7,972 were recorded during fiscal
2006. In 2007, an additional restructuring charge of $1,033, primarily related to employee severance costs, was recorded.
The Company anticipates the completion of the transaction during the quarter ended December 31, 2007,

Thailand — Asset Impairment

In fiscal 2006, concurrent with the closure of the former DIMON Thailand processing facilities, assets of $5,736 were
reclassified in the Company’s balance sheet to assets held for sale. These assets are primarily land and production facilities
that have become redundant as a result of the merger.

As a result, during the three months ended September 30, 2006, the Company conducted a review of the fair value of
the Thai assets held for sale and recorded an asset impairment charge of $1,333 related to land and buildings based on
contractual sales prices. During the three months ended March 31, 2007, the impairment charge recorded in the prior quarters
was reduced by $190, when the sales transaction was completed.

Greece — Asset Impairment

As a result of the partial and pending full closure of Greek operations, the Company tested the long-lived assets for
impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144. During the three months ended September 30, 2006, the Company recorded
an asset impairment charge of $3,166 related to machinery and equipment based on a discounted cash flow model. In the
quarter ended March 31, 2007, due to the delay of sale an additional impairment charge of $523 was recorded for machinery
and equipment.

Assets Held for Sale

As of March 31, 2007, assets of $2,793 were actively marketed, classified as assets held for sale and reported in Other
Current Assets in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company cvaluated the criteria of SFAS No. 144 and
concluded that these assets qualify as assets held for sale. These assets were primarily production and administrative
facilities that had become redundant as a result of the merger.

Note E - Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Effective July [, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“"SFAS™) No. 141, “Business
Combinations™ and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires the use of the purchase
accounting method for business combinations and broadens the criteria for recording intangible assets separate from
goodwill. SFAS No. 142 stipulates a non-amortization approach to account for purchased goodwill and certain intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives. 1t also requires at least an annual assessment for impairment by applying a fair vaiue based
test. Intangible assets with finite useful lives continue to be amortized over the useful lives.

The Company tests the carrying amount of goodwill for each reporting unit annually as of the first day of the last
quarter of the fiscal year and whenever events or circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. The testing is
based on a discounted cash flow approach for each reporting unit to determine fair value (Step 1}). The Company also tests
the sensitivities of these fair value estimates to changes in our earnings growth rate and discount rate. When a possible
impairment for a reporting unit is indicated, the implied fair value of goodwill is tested by comparing the carrying amount of
the net assets of the reporting unit excluding goodwill to the total fair value (Step 2). When the carrying amount of goodwill
exceeds its implied fair value, an impairment charge is recorded.
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Note E — Goodwill and Other Intangibles (Continued)

In fiscal 2006, the Company changed from one to five operating segments which required the Company to re-gvaluate
its historical SFAS No. 142 assumption of only one reporting unit. SFAS No. 142 states that the reporting unit is considered
as an operating segment or one level below an operating segment (i.e. a component of an operating segment). A component
of an operating segment can be a reporting unit if the component constitutes a business for which discrete financial
information is available and segment management regularly reviews the operating resulis of that component. SFAS No. 142
does provide that two or more components of an operating segment shall be aggregated and deemed a single reporting unit if
the components have similar economic characteristics.

The Company has the foliowing five reporting units of which all goodwill was allocated to North America and South
America: Africa, Asia, Europe, North America and South America. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the company
performed the annual goodwill testing for fiscal 2006 and completed the Step 1 test.

e Asaresult of the North America and South America reporting units failing Step 1 the Company completed Step 2 to
measure the impairment loss, if any, by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit with the carrying
amount of goodwill, The fair value of the reporting unit was estimated using the expected present value of future
cash flows. Based on this analysis the Company recorded a total goodwill impairment charge of $256,916 during
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006.

e  Of the total goodwill impairment charge, $75,742 related to North America. Prior to the merger with Standard, no
goodwill was previously allocated to the former DIMON operating segment in North America. As a result of
declines in the U.S. market share due to unanticipated decreased customer demand and reduced crop size, indicators
of impairment were present in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. Accordingly, Step 2 testing was required resulting
in the related goodwill impairment charge.

e  Of the total goodwill impairment charge, $181,174 related to South America. Prior to the merger, all previous
goodwill of $151,772 was allocated to the South America operating region. Merger related goodwill of $29,402 was
allocated to South America. There were several changes in the South America region that significantly impacted
operations in 2006. First was the impact of the absorption of local intrastate trade taxes resulting from a change in
local taws. Second was the effect of the strong local currency on prices paid to growers and related tobacco
conversion costs. Third was the impact of the poor quality of the 2005 crop. These factors negatively impacted the
reporting unit’s future cash flow projections. Some of these factors are expected to continue to affect cash flow
projections which indicated impairment in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. Accordingly, Step 2 was required and
the related impairment charge was recorded.

Testing for fiscal 2007 found no indication for further impairment. The carrying value of other intangible assets as of
March 31, 2007, after consideration of fully amortized intangibles, is $44,846 gross and $30,923 net and represents customer
relationship and production and supply contracts. These intangible assets were determined by management to meet the
criterion for recognition apart from goodwill and have finite lives. The Company did not have any indefinite-lived intangible
assets, other than goodwill, as of the July 1, 2002 adoption date or the March 31, 2007 balance sheet date. The Company
uses judgment in assessing whether the carrying amount of its intangible assets is not expected to be recoverable over their
estimated remaining useful lives. The factors considered include but are not limited to the expected cash flows generated
from the business or assets, economic factors and changes in the marketplace. Based on test results of all pertinent factors, an
adjustment of $5,111 related to a supply contract was recorded in fiscal 2006, Amortization expense associated with these
intangible assets was $2,833, $3,543 and $2,681 for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Note E — Goodwill and Other Intangibles (Continued)

Goodwill and Intangible Asset Rollforward:

Unamortizable Goodwill

Amortizable Intangibles

Production
South Other Customer and Supply
America Regions Relationship Contract
Segment  Segment Total Intangible Intangibles Total
Weighted average remaining
useful life in years as of
March 31, 2007 - - - 18 |
March 31, 2005 balance:
Gross carrying amount $151,772 3 - $151,772 5 - $ 19,662 $171,434
Accumulated amortization - - - - {(10,952) {(10,952)
Net balance 151,772 - 151,772 - 8,710 160,482
Purchase goodwill and
intangibles* 29,402 79,928 109,330 33,700 - 143,030
Amortization expense - - - (1,474) (2,069) (3,543)
SFAS No. 142 Goodwill
impairment (181,174) (75,742) (256,916) - - (256,916)
SFAS No. 144 Intangible asset
impairment - - - - (5,111) (5,111}
March 31, 2006 balance - 4,186 4,186 32,226 1,530 37,942
Amortization expense - - - {(1,683) (1,148) (2,833)
March 31, 2007 balance 3 - 3 4,186 $ 4.186 $30,541 $ 382 $ 35,109

Sec Note B “Merger of DIMON Incorporated and Standard Commercial Corporation™ to the *Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further information.

Estimated Intangible Asset Amortization Expense:

Production and

Customer Supply
Relationship Contract

Intangible [ntangibles Total
For year ended 2008 $ 1,685 $ 382 $ 2,067
For year ended 2009 1,685 - 1,685
For year ended 2010 1,685 - 1,685
For year ended 2011 1,685 - 1,685
For year ended 2012 1,685 - 1,685
Later years 22,116 - 22,116

$ 30,541 $ 382 $ 30923
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Note F — Derivative and Other Financial Instruments

Fair Value of Derivative Financial Instruments

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” the Company
recognizes all derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swap contracts and foreign exchange contracts, in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the instrument. Changes in the
fair value of derivative financial instruments are either recognized periodically in income or in shareholders’ equity as a
component of comprehensive income depending on whether the derivative financial instrument qualifies for hedge
accounting, and if so, whether it qualifies as a fair value hedge or cash flow hedge. Changes in fair values of derivatives
accounted for as fair value hedges are recorded in income along with the portions of the changes in the fair values of the
hedged items that relate to the hedged risk(s). Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for as cash flow hedges, to the
extent they are effective as hedges, are recorded in other comprehensive income net of deferred taxes. Changes in fair values
of derivatives not qualifying as hedges are reported in income.

The fair value estimates presented herein are based on quoted market prices. During the years ended March 31, 2007
and 2006, there were no qualified cash flow hedges. During the year ended March 31, 2005, accumulated other
comprehensive income decreased by $637, net of deferred taxes of $324, due to the reclassification into earnings, primarily
as cost of goods and services sold, due to the fulfillment of transactions.

The carrying value and estimated fair value of the Company’s long-term debt are $731,856 and $782,048 respectively,
as of March 31, 2007 and $772,585 and $754,146 respectively, as of March 31, 2006.

Floating to Fixed Rate Interest Swaps

Prior to the impiementation of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” the
Company entered into multiple interest rate swaps to convert a portion of its worldwide debt portfolio from floating to fixed
interest rates to reduce its exposure to interest rate volatility. As of June 30, 2006, all instruments of this type had been
terminated. SFAS No. 133 eliminated hedge accounting treatment for these instruments because they do not meet certain
criteria. Accordingly, the Company is required to reflect the full amount of all changes in their fair value, without offset, in
its current earnings. These fair value adjustments have caused substantial volatility in the Company’s reported eamings. For
the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company recognized non-cash income before income taxes of $290 and
$5,092, respectively from the change in fair value of these derivative financial instruments. With the recognition of each
income or expense relating to these instruments, a corresponding amount is recognized in Pension, Postretirement and Other
Long-Term Liabilities.

Forward Currency Contracts

The Company periodically enters into forward or option currency contracts to protect against volatility associated with
certain non-U.S. dollar denominated forecasted transactions. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, when these derivatives
qualify for hedge accounting treatment, they are accounted for as cash flow hedges and are recorded in other comprehensive
income, net of deferred taxes.

The Company has entered into forward currency contracts to hedge cash outflows in foreign currencies around the
world for green tobacco purchases and processing costs. Some of these contracts do not meet the requirements for hedge
accounting treatment under SFAS No. 133, and as such, are reported in income. For the years ended March 31, 2007 and
2006, income of $12,914 and $1,606, respectively, has been recorded in cost of goods and services sold.

Credit Risk

Financial instruments, including derivatives, expose the Company to credit loss in the event of non-performance by
counterparties. The Company manapes its exposure to counterparty credit risk through specific minimum credit standards,
diversification of counterparties, and procedures to monitor concentrations of credit risk. If counterparty fails to meet the
terms of an arrangement, the Company’s exposure is limited to the net amount that would have been received, if any, over the
arrangement’s remaining life. The Company does not anticipate non-performance by the counterparties and no material loss
would be expected from non-performance by any one of such counterparties.
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Nete G — Short-Term Borrowing Arrangements

Excluding all long term credit agreements, the Company has lines of credit arrangements with a number of banks under
which the Company may borrow up to a total of $485,248 at March 31, 2007 ($599,439 at March 31, 2006). The weighted
average variable interest rate for the twelve months ending March 31, 2007 was 6.26%. At March 31, 2007 and 2006,
amounts outstanding under the lines were $179,097 and $299,930, respectively. Unused lines of credit at March 31, 2007
amounted to $275,544 ($232,864 at March 31, 2006), net of $30,607 of letters of credit lines. Certain non-U.S. borrowings
of approximately $9,681 have inventories of approximately $10,955 as collateral. As noted below, there is limited recourse
against certain receivables of the Company if the Company fails to fulfill its contractual obligations. There were no
compensating balance agreements at March 31, 2007.

The Company has entered into a $25,000 limited recourse receivable purchase program with one of its lenders. Under
the program, the lender takes the receivable payment risk of the customer subject to usual and customary covenants, while the
Company fulfills contractual obligations. Funding of the purchased receivable is 80% of the face value, and the Company
retains an interest in the remaining 20%, which is paid at collection. As of March 31, 2007, $2,265 ($19,031 at March 31,
2006) was funded under the program and recorded in short-term borrowings.

Note H — Long-Term Debt
Senior Secured Credit Facility

On March 30, 2007, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”), with a
syndicate of banks that amends and restates the Company’s prior credit agreement and provides for a senior secured credit
facility (the “Credit Facility”) that consists of:

s a three and one-half year $240,000 revolver (the “Revolver™) which initially accrues interest at a rate of LIBOR plus
2.75%; and
o afour-year $145,000 term loan B (the “Term Loan B”) which accrues interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.25%.

The interest rate for the Revolver may increase or decrease according to a consolidated interest coverage ratio pricing
matrix as defined in the Credit Agreement. Effective May 25, 2007, the Company increased the Revolver by $10,000 to
$250,000 by adding additional Lenders thereto.

Borrowers and Guarantors. One of the Company’s primary foreign holding companies, Intabex Netherlands B.V.
(“Intabex™), is co-borrower under the Revolver, and the Company’s portion of the borrowings under the Revolver is limited
to $150,000 outstanding at any one time. Intabex is the sole borrower under the Term Loan B. One of the Company’s primary
foreign trading companies, Alliance One International AG (“AOIAG™), is a guarantor of Intabex’s obligations under the
Credit Agreement. Such obligations are also currently guaranteed by the Company and must be guaranteed by any of its
material direct or indirect domestic subsidiaries.

Collateral. The Company’s borrowings under the senior secured credit facility are secured by a first priority pledge of:

»  100% of the capital stock of any material domestic subsidiaries;

»  65% of the capital stock of any material first tier foreign subsidiaries;

e U.S. accounts receivable and U.S. inventory owned by the Company or its material domestic subsidiaries {other than
inventory the title of which has passed to a customer and inventory financed through customer advances); and

¢ Intercompany notes evidencing loans or advances the Company makes to subsidiaries that are not guarantors.

In addition, Intabex’s borrowings under the Credit Facility are secured by a pledge of 100% of the capital stock of
Intabex, AOIAG, and certain of the Company’s and Intabex’s material foreign subsidiarics.
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Note H — Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Senior Secured Credit Facility (Continued)

Financial Covenants. The Credit Facility includes certain financial covenants and required financial ratios, including:

a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio of not less than 1,55 to 1.00;

a maximum consolidated leverage ratio of not more than 6.25 to 1.00;

a maximum consolidated total senior debt to borrowing base ratio of not more than 0.90 to 1.00; and
a maximum amount of annual capital expenditures of $40,000 during any fiscal year of the Company.

Certain of these financial covenants and required financial ratios adjust over time in accordance with schedules in the
Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement also contains certain customary affirmative and negative covenants, including, without
limitation, restrictions on additional indebtedness, guarantees, liens and asset sales.

The Company continuously monitors its compliance with these covenants and is not in default as of, or for the year
ended, March 31, 2007. If the Company was in default and was unable to obtain the necessary amendments or waivers under
its Credit Facility, the lenders under that facility have the right to accelerate the loans thereby demanding repayment in full
and extinguishment of their commitment to lend. Certain defaults under the Credit Facility would result in a cross default
under the indentures governing the Company’s senior notes and senior subordinated notes and could impair access to its
seasonal operating lines of credit in local jurisdictions. A default under the Company’s Credit Facility would have a material
adverse effect on its liquidity and financial condition.

Senior Notes

On May 13, 2005, the Company issued $315,000 of 11% senior notes due 2012 and on March 7, 2007, the Company issued
$150,000 of 8 2% senior notes due 2012 at a 0.5% original issue discount to reflect an 8.6% yield to maturity. The
indentures governing each of the 11% senior notes and the 8 4% senior notes contain certain covenants that, arnong other
things, limit the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness; issue preferred stock; merge, consolidate or dispose of
substantially all of its assets; grant liens on its assets; pay dividends, redeem stock or make other distributions or restricted
payments; repurchase or redeem capital stock or prepay subordinated debt; make certain investments; agree to restrictions on
the payment of dividends to the Company by its subsidiaries; sell or otherwise dispose of assets, including equity interests of
its subsidiaries; enter into transactions with its affiliates; and enter into certain sale and leaseback transactions.

Senior Subordinated Notes

On May 13, 2005, the Company issued $100,000 of 12 3/4% senior subordinated notes due 2012 at a 10% original issue
discount to reflect a 15% yield to maturity. The indenture governing the senior subordinated notes contains covenants
substantially identical to those contained in the indentures governing the 11% senior notes and the 8 4% senior notes.

Foreign Seasonal Lines of Credit

The Company has typically financed its non-U.S. operations with uncommitted unsecured short term seasonal lines of credit
at the local level. These operating lines are seasonal in nature, normally extending for a term of 180 to 270 days
corresponding to the tobacco crop cycle in that location. These facilities are typically uncommitied in that the lenders have
the right to cease making loans and demand repayment of loans at any time. These loans are typically renewed at the outset
of each tobacco season. As of March 31, 2007, the Company had approximately $179,097 drawn and outstanding on foreign
seasonal lines totaling $485,248. Additicnally against these lines there was $12,765 available in unused letter of credit
capacity with $17,842 issued but unfunded.
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Note H - Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The following table summarizes our debt financing as of March 31, 2007:

March 31§, 2007

Outstanding Lines and
March 31, Letters Interest Repayment Schedule by Fiscal Year (5)
2006 2007 Available Rate 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Later
Senior secured credit facility:
Revolver (1) $ - 5 - $240,000
Term loan A 142,500 - - $ - 5 -5 -3 - 8 - 3 -
Term loan B 198,000 145,000 - 9.5% 1,450 1,450 1,450 140,650 - -
340,500 145,000 240,000 1,450 1,450 1,450 140,650 - -
Senior notes:
11% senior notes due 2012 315,000 315,000 - 11.0% - - - - - 315,000
8 4% notes due 2012 - 149270 - 85% (119 (131 (142) (155)  (169) 149,986
Other (2) 10,157 10,157 - - - - - 3437 6,720
325,157 474,427 - (1%9) (131 (142) (155) 3,268 471,706
12 %% senior subordinated
note due 2012 90,712 91,608 - 12.8% (1,040) (1,206) (1,400 (1,625) (1,885) 98,764
Other long-term debt (3) 16,216 20,821 22456 11.2% 4,940 12,770 1,903 889 29 290
Notes payable to banks (3) (4) 299930 179,097 273,544 6.3% - - - - - -
Total debt $1,072,515 $910,953 538,000 $5,231 $12883 §1,811 $139,759 81412 $570,760
Short term $299,930 $179,097
Long term:
Long term debt current (5)  § 28,091 § 5,231
Long term debt (5) 744,494 726,625
$ 772,585 $731,856
Letters of credit $ 30,072 $ 17,842 12,765
Total credit available $550,765
L ]

(1) Revolver available balance does not reflect the $10,000 increase effective May 25, 2007

(2) Balance consists of legacy DIMON and Standard Senior Notes with balances and maturities as follows:
$3,437 9 5/8% Senior Notes due 2011
435 7 3/4% Senior Notes due 2013
6,285 8% Senior Notes due 2012
$10,157

{3) Weighted average rate for the year ended March 31, 2007

(4) Primarily foreign seasonal lines of credit

(5} Debt classification and repayment are based on a next twelve months basis and does not reflect the additional $50,000 paydown on
term loan B made afier the fiscal year end.
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Note I — Long-Term Leases

The Company has both capital and operating leases. The operating leases are for land, buildings, automobiles and other
equipment; the capital leases are primarily for production machinery and equipment. The capitalized lease obligations are
payable through 2012. Interest rates are imputed at 4.17% to 8.94%. Amortization is included in depreciation expense.
Minimum future obligations and capitalized amounts are as follows:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases

2008 $162 $ 5,717
2009 165 4,608
2010 108 3,909
2011 7 21 2,013
2012 17 1,745
Remaining - 8,410
‘ 473 $26,402
Less interest and deposits 17
Present value of net minimum lease payments 456
Less current portion of obligations under capital leases 156
Long-term obligations under capital leases $300
L ]
Capitalized amounts:
Machinery and equipment, primarily vehicles $692
Accumulated amortization (334)
$358

Note J — Equity in Net Assets of Investee Companies

The Company has equity basis investments in companies located in Asia and South America which purchase and process
tobacco. The investments in Asia were acquired as part of the merger of Standard with and into DIMON, The Asia investees
and ownership percentages are as follows; Transcontinental Leaf Tobacco India Private Ltd. (India) 49%, Siam Tobacco
Export Company (Thailand) 49%, Adams International Ltd. {Thailand) 49%. The information presented in the tables below
includes only the results of those companies after May 13, 2005. Information presented prior to the merger includes the
Company’s 50% owned South America investee, Espinosa (Colombia), Summarized financial information for these
investees for fiscal years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 follows:

Years Ended March 31,

Operations Statement Information 2007 2006 2005
Sales $ 92,271 $66,190 $2,746
Gross Profit 10,501 9,038 699
Net Income 1,821 2,042 178

March 31,
Balance Sheet Information 2007 2006
Current Assets $52,912 $62,384
Property, plant and equipment and other assets 29,990 27,552
Current Liabilities 36,213 45,875
Long-term obligations and other liabilities 9,079 8,273
Interests of other shareholders 19,168 18,231
Company’s interest 18,461 17,557
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Note K - Stock — Based Compensation
Stock — Based Compensation Award Plans

In November 2003, the shareholders of the company approved the Alliance One International. Inc. 2003 Incentive Plan
(formerly known as the DIMON Incorporated 2003 Incentive Plan) (the “2003 Plan”) which incorporated shares remaining
for issuance under the DIMON Incorporated Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (“Prior Plan™) and authorized the addition of
2,200 shares for the 2003 Plan. The amount of shares is subject to increase for shares issued in the event of a stock dividend,
stock split, subdivision or combination or other similar change in the capital structure of the Company, or any other event
that, in the judgment of the Executive Compensation Committee (the “Committee™), necessitates adjustment of the maximum
number of shares available for issuance. The 2003 Plan authorizes the issuance of various stock incentives to any employee
of the Company or any subsidiary and any member of the Board that the Committee determines has contributed to the profits
or growth of the Company or its affiliates, including nonqualified or incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights, shares
of restricted stock, performance shares and incentive awards. As of the closing date of the merger, stock options and
restricted stock awards previously issued by Standard Commercial Corporation to its employees and directors were assumed
by the Company and are included in the shares awarded under the 2003 Plan.

Adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)

The Company currently has three types of stock based compensation awards: Stock Options, Stock Options with Stock
Appreciation Rights, and Restricted Stock. These various types of grants are made in accordance with the Alliance One
International, Inc. 2003 Incentive Plan (the Plan) which was approved by sharcholders of the Company in November 2003.
This plan authorizes the issuance of the various stock based compensation awards to any employce of the Company or any
subsidiary and any member of the Board that the Executive Compensation Committce determines has contributed 10 the
profits or growth of the Company or its affiliates. The Plan amended previous plans dating back 10 1995, Under this plan
and predecessor plans, 6,466 share based compensation awards have been authorized of which 2,800 options and 640 shares
of restricted stock are outstanding and 1,769 shares are available for future awards. Shares issued under the Plan are new
shares which have been authorized and designated for award under the Plan. In addition to the restricted shares outstanding
above, 214 restricted shares remain outstanding under an approved plan of the former Standard Commercial Corporation.
The individual awards are discussed in greater detail below.

On April 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” This statement requircs the
Company to expense the fair value of grants of various stock-based compensation programs at fair value over the vesting
period of the awards. The Company elected to adopt this statement using the “Modified Prospective Application” (MPA)
transition method which does not result in the restatement of previously issued financial statements. Application of the MPA
transition method requires compensation costs to be recognized beginning on the effective date for the cstimated fair valuc at
date of grant in accordance with the original provision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” for
all stock-based compensation awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of April 1, 2006. Awards granted after April 1,
2006 will be recognized as compensation expense based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). The MPA transition method also requires that any unearned or deferred compensation
recorded in “contra-equity” accounts be eliminated against the equity accounts that will be affected by the on-going
recognition of stock based compensation. Accordingly, the Company has reclassified $3,134 from Uneamed Compensation
— Restricted Stock to Common Stock.

Prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), all bencfits of tax deductions resulting from the exercise of share-based
compensation were presented as operating cash flows in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS No.
123(R) requires that bencfits of tax deductions in excess of deductions for compensation cost recognized (excess tax benefits)
be classified as financing cash flows.

For the year ended March 31, 2007, compensation expense for stock-based compensation plans was $3.543, net of tax
of $890.

Stock Option Awards

Stock options allow for the purchase of common stock at a price determined at the time the option is granted. This price has
historically been the stock price on the date of grant. Stock options generally vest at the end of three years or ratably over
four years and generally expire after ten years. The fair value of these options is determined at grant date using the Black-
Scholes valuation model. The fair value is then recognized as compensation expense ratably over the vesting term of the
options. There were 477, 533 and 517 stock options granted during the years ended March 31, 2007, March 31, 2006 and
March 31, 2005 respectively.
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Note K - Stock — Based Compensation (Continued)

Stock Optien Awards (Continued)

The following assumptions were used to determine the fair value of options issued in fiscal years:

2007 2006 2005
Grant Price $3.94 $3.96 36.45
Exercise Price $3.94 $3.96 $6.45
Expected Life in Years 6.25 7.0 7.0
Annualized Volatility 47% 38% 40%
Annual Dividend Rate 0% 3.03% 4.65%
Risk Free Rate - 4.83% 4.08% 4.06%
Fair Value $987 $693 $936
A summary of option activity for stock options follows:
Weighted Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Options Shares Price Term (Years) Value
Quistanding at March 31, 2005 4,145 9.19 5.59 (12,691)
Acquired at merger 740 6.36 6.58 219
Granted 533 3.96 10.00 -
Exercised (200) 313 3.99 (518)
Forfeited (360) 8.54 6.62 (1,211)
Cancelled {(573) 13.89 - (3,560)
Qutstanding at March 31, 2006 4,283 7.55 5.49 (11,137)
Granted 477 3.94 10.00 -
Exercised (1,251) 5.42 488 (3,081)
Forfeited (345) 7.68 5.46 (1,188)
Cancelled (364) 14.77 - (3,560)
Outstanding at March 31, 2007 2,800 6.94 6.00 6,417
Vested and expected to vest at March 31, 2007 2,746 6.97 5.96 6,198
Exercisable at March 31, 2007 1,625 8.56 4.17 1,087

The intrinsic values in the table above represent the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference between the Company’s
closing stock price and the exercise price multiplied by the number of options). The closing price is the share price on the
last trading day of the respective period ending dates, thus the amounts are not additive. In 2005, 34 options were exercised
with an intrinsic value of $115. Cash received from the exercise of options for the year ended March 31, 2007 was $7,259,
As of March 31, 2007, there was $1,324 of remaining unamortized stock-based compensation related to unvested options

which will be expensed over the remaining service period through July 2010,

Shares vested in 2006 and the respective grant date fair values were 599 and $1,399. In 2005, 402 shares vested with a
grant date fair value of $1,586. The table betow shows the movement in unvested shares from March 31, 2006 to March 31,
2007. -

Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair
Shares Value Fair Value
Unvested March 31, 2006 1,427 $1.91 $2,728
~ Granted 477 2.07 988
~ Forfeited (115) 2.10 (243)
Cancelled (29) 2.58 (75
Vested (585) 221 (1,295)
Unvested March 31, 2007 1,175 1.79 $2,103
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Note K - Stock — Based Compensation (Continued)

Stock Options with Stock Appreciation Rights

Stock appreciation rights (SARs) have historically been granted in tandemn with option grants under which the employee may
choose 1o receive in cash the excess of the market price of the share on the exercise date over the market price on the grant
date (the intrinsic value of the share) rather than purchase the shares. The choice to receive cash is limited to five years after
grant. After the fifth year and up to the tenth year afier grant, the employee will continue to be able to purchase shares under
the award but no longer has the choice of receiving the intrinsic value of the shares. Compensation expense for Stock
Options with Stock Appreciation Rights is treated as a liability due to the express ability of the employec to make the choice
of whether to receive cash or purchasc shares. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the intrinsic value of SARs
outstanding was multiplied by the cumulative vesting in each SAR award to determine the liability at each balance sheet date.
Amounts charged to compensation expense resulted from the change in the vested intrinsic value between balance sheet
dates. Following adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the fair value of SARs are determined at each balance sheet date using a
Black-Scholes valuation model multiplied by the cumulative vesting of each SAR award. After consideration for estimated
forfeitures, this change in accounting resulted in a cumulative effect of accounting change adjustment of $252.

Weighted Average Aggregate Aggregate Fair

Options with Attached SARs Shares Exercise Price  SAR Term  Intrinsic Value Value
Outstanding at April 1, 2006 520 $6.72 2.12 $(965) $435
Exercised (12) $6.47 0.94 $20 $(29)
Forfeited 92) $6.68 1.94 $(194) 3(61)
Expired (88) $7.44 - $(307) -
Qutstanding at March 31, 2007 328 $6.54 1.84 $881 51,208
Exercisable at March 31, 2007 196 $6.60 1.16 3514 $512
Vested and Expected to Vest 294 36.53 1.79 $794 $1,076

As of March 31, 2007, there was $329 of remaining unearned compensation expense related to stock options with
attached SARs which will be expensed over the remaining service period through October 2008. However, since actual
compensation expense will be determined by the change in fair value of the SARs from period to period, actual compensation
expense related to these awards may be different from this amount. The Company recognized expensc of $619, $112 and
$390 for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, related to stock options with attached SARs.

The following table shows unvested SAR activity.

Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair Aggregate Grant
Shares Value Date Fair Value
Unvested March 31, 2006 271 $2.19 5594
Forfeited (24) 2.63 (63)
Vested (103) 2.54 (292)
Unvested March 31, 2007 132 1.81 $239
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Note K - Stock — Based Compensation (Continued)
Restricted Stock (Continued)
Assumptions used to determine the fair value of SARs as of March 31 included the following:

2007 2006

Stock Price $9.23 $4.86
Exercise Price $6.54 $6.72
Expected Life in Years 1.6 2.14
Annualized Volatility 42% 44%
Annual Dividend Rate 0% 0%
Discount Rate 4.77% 5.00%

Exercise of a SAR is limited to five years from the date of grant. The expected life of the SARs reflects this fact. The
discount rate used is the risk free treasury bill rate consistent with the expected life. Volatility is based on historical volatility
of the Company.

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock is common stock that is both non-transferable and forfeitable unless and until certain conditions are satisfied.
The fair value of restricted shares is determined on grant date based on market value of the shares and is amortized over the
vesting period which is generally three years.

Weighted Average

Grant Date

Restricted Stock Shares Fair Value
Restricted at March 31, 2005 438 6.50
Acquired at merger 725 6.36
Granted 419 4.87
Vested {480) 591
Forfeited (34) 5.62
Restricted at March 31, 2006 1,068 5.56
Granted 366 3.94
Vested (400) 6.07
Forfeited (180) 4.53
Restricted at March 31, 2007 854 4.84

As of March 31, 2007, there was $1,535 of remaining unamortized deferred compensation associated with restricted
stock awards that will be expensed over the remaining service period through July 2009. Expense recognized due to the
vesting of restricted stock awards was $2,965, $2,665 and $623 for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively with tax benefits of $683, $666 and $156.

Fair Value Disclosures — Prior to Adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to stock-based employee
compensation for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005.
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Note K — Stock — Based Compensation (Continued)

Fair Value Disclosures — Prior to Adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) (Continued)

Y cars Ended March 31,
{in thousands, except per share data) 2006 2005
Net income (loss), as reported $(447,446) $13,288
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense (income)
included in reported net income (loss), net of related tax
effects of $39 and $136 (73) (254)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects of $352 and $368 (654) (684)

Pro forma net income (loss) $(448.173) $12,350
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic — as reported $ (sn $ 030
Basic — pro forma $ (5352) $ 028
Diluted — as reported $ (5.5 $ 029
Diluted ~ pro forma $ (5352 $ 027

Note L — Income Taxes

The components of income (loss) before income taxes, equity in net income of investee companies, minority interests and
discontinued operations consisted of the following:

Years Ended March 31,
2007 2006 2005
U.S. b (952) % (265,207) §(46,051)
Non-U.S. 14,038 (176,881) 83,431
Total $ 13,086 $ (442,088) $ 37,380

The details of the amount shown for income taxes in the Statements of Consolidated Operations and Comprehensive

Income follow:
Years Ended March 31,

2007 2006 2005
Current
Federal $ - $ - $  (665)
State 507 - -
Non-U.S. 18.426 31,505 26,857
$ 18,933 $ 31,505 % 26,192
Deferred
Federal’ $ (9,105) % (28,610) § (6,886)
State (1,068} - -
Non-U.S. 7,302 (20,426) (6,193)
3 (2.871) $ (49,036) $(13,079)
Total $ 16,062 $ (17,531) § 13,113
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Note L - Income Taxes (Continued)

The reasons for the difference between income tax expense based on income (loss) before income taxes, equity in net
income (loss) of investee companies and minority interests and the amount computed by applying the U.S. statutory federal
income tax rate to such income are as follows:
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Years Ended March 31,
2007 2006 20035
Tax expense (benefit) at U.S. statutory rate $4,580 $(154,731) $ 13,083
Effect of non-U.8. income taxes 6,558 (1,560) (9,4006)
U.S. taxes on non-U.S, income, net of tax credits - 51,153 3,380
Goodwill and other asset impairment ) 6,544 102,313 -
Foreign tax credits carryforward _ - (64,390) -
Change in valuation allowance (10,536) 47,860 -
Increase in reserves for tax contingencies 7,664 - -
Changes in tax rates (1,455) - -
Permanent items _ 2,707 1,824 6,056
Actual tax expense (benefit) $16,062 § (17,531) $13,113
The deferred tax liabilities (assets) are comprised of the following:
March 31, March 31,
2007 2006
Deferred tax liabilities:
Non-U.S. taxes $ - $ 428
Unremitted earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries 460 460
Fixed assets 13,162 24,941
Total deferred tax liabilities $ 13,622 $ 25829
Deferred tax assets: )
Reserves and accruals 3 (29,796) $ (39,490)
Restructuring accruals (741) (2,526)
Tax credits ) (64,614) (70,495)
Tax loss carryforwards (51,211) (47.418)
Derivative transactions {475) (58)
Postretirement and other benefits (21,692) (26,151)
Other (1,787) (351)
Gross deferred tax assets (170,316) {186,489)
Valuation allowance 77,937 85,813
Total deferred tax assets 3 (92,379) $(100,676)
Net deferred tax asset $ (78,757 $ (74,847)
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Note L — Income Taxes (Continued)

The following table presents the breakdown between current and non-current {assets) liabilities:

March 31, March 31,
2007 2006
Current asset $(25,143) $(37,003)
Current liability 4,493 7,205
Non current asset (69,002) (52,454)
Non current liability 10,895 7,405
Net deferred tax asset $(78,757) $(74,847)

The current portion of the deferred tax asset is included in “current deferred and recoverable income taxes™ and the
current portion of deferred tax liability is included in “income taxes.”

For the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, the valuation allowance (decreased)/increased by $(7,876) and $54,713,
respectively, based on management’s judgment as to realization of certain deferred tax assets, primarily foreign tax credit
carryovers in the U.S. and state and non-U.S. tax loss carryovers. At March 31, 2007, the Company released $(10,536} of the
valuation allowance through continuing operations and established a valuation allowance of $2,660 through discontinued
operations. At March 31, 2007, the Company has non-U.S. tax loss carryovers of $135,670 and U.S. state tax loss carryovers
of $268,343, respectively. Of the non-U.S. tax loss carryovers, $9,231 will expire in 2008, $9,228 in 2009, $10,781 in 2010,
$8,094 in 2011, $6,413 in 2012 and the remaining $91,923 will expire in later years, Of the U.S. state tax loss carryovers,
$1,757 will expire in 2011 and $266,586 will expire in later years. At March 31, 2007, the Company has foreign tax credit
carryovers in the U.S. of $60,117 that expire in 2016. These tax credits result from taxable remittances of foreign income of
$419,927, plus tax gross-up, during the year ended March 31, 2006. Valuation allowances of $77,937 and $85,813 remain at
March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006, respectively, primarily related to foreign tax credits in the U.S. and state and non-U.S.
tax loss carryovers that begin expiring in 2008.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on generating sufficient taxable income prior to expiration of the loss
carryovers. Although realization is not assured, management believes it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax
assets, net of applicable valuation allowances, will be realized. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable
could be reduced or increased if estimates of future taxable income change during the carryover period.

The Company has provided deferred income taxes of $460 at March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006 for estimated U.S.
income taxes, net of foreign tax credits, for undistributed eamings of foreign subsidiaries that it no longer considers
permanent!ly reinvested overseas. No provision has been made for U.S. or foreign taxes that may result from future
remittances of approximately $81,563 at March 31, 2007 and $111,883 at March 31, 2006 of undistributed eamings of
foreign subsidiarics because management expects that such earnings will be reinvested overseas indefinitely., Determination
of the amount of any unrecognized deferred income tax liability on these unremitted earnings is not practicable.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1097 (“FIN 48™), which is a change in accounting for income taxes. FIN 48 specifies
how tax benefits for uncertain tax positions are to be recognized, measured, and derecognized in financial statements;
requires certain disclosures of uncertain tax matters; specifies how reserves for uncertain tax positions should be classified on
the balance sheet; and provides transition and interim period guidance, among other provisions. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006 and as a result, is effective for the Company on April 1, 2007. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on its consolidated financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. In
addition, since the Company is subject to potentially inconsistent actions by the governments of certain foreign countries in
which it operates, the Company will continue evaluating the material impact of this interpretation concerning transfer pricing,
tax presence liabilities, and other tax matters.

Note M - Employee Benefits

Retirement Benefits
As a result of the merger, the Company had multiple benefit plans across operations at several locations that resulted in
increases in both pension cost and postretirement benefit cost. The Company evaluated alternatives for standardizing
benefits and some plans have been combined. As a result of the integration of DIMON and Standard, the Company
experienced workforce reductions that resulted in curtailment charges and credits, setilement charges and credits and partial
plan terminations for pension and postretirement health plans in various locations.
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Note M — Employee Benefits (Continued)
Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The Company has a defined benefit plan that provides retirement benefits for substantially all U.S. salanied personnel
based on years of service rendered, age and compensation. The Company merged the Standard Commercial Corporation
Defined Benefit Plan into the Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Plan, a cash balance plan, effective January 1, 2006,
Workforce reductions resulting from the merger of DIMON and Standard Commercial Corporations gave rise to a
curtailment and a partial plan termination in the Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Plan. The Company also maintains
various other Excess Benefit and Supplemental Plans that provide additional benefits to (1) certain individuals whose
compensation and the resulting benefits that would have actually been paid are limited by regulations imposed by the Internal
Revenue Code and (2) certain individuals in key positions. The Standard Commercial Corporation Supplemental Employee
Retirement Plan was frozen as of December 31, 2005, Eligible individuals became participants in other Company benefit
plans. The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and the Pension Equity Plan were amended and restated on March 30,
2007. Under the amended and restated plans, the participant’s final average compensation is frozen as of March 31, 2007
while the value of offsetting benefits is not and will not be determined until the employee’s termination of employment.
These plans will be replaced with a Supplemental Retirement Account Plan (SRAP), a defined contribution program.

There were curtailments and special termination benefits recognized for several of these additional executive
retirement plans. In fiscal 2006, pursuant to the merger, certain individuals were granted additional benefits under their
employment agreements valued in excess of $1,300.

Additional non-U.S. plans sponsored by certain subsidiaries cover substantially all of the full-time employees tocated
in Germany, Greece, Turkey, and United Kingdom. The Company froze the plans of Standard Commercial Corporation in
the United Kingdom on March 31, 2006. Eligible employees became participants in other benefit plans,

The Company’s policy is to contribute amounts to the plans sufficient to meet or exceed funding requirements of local
governmental rules and regulations.

Adoption of SFAS Np. 158

On September 29, 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Emplovers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans ("SFAS No. 158"), which amends SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 106 to require recognition of the over
funded or under funded status of pension and other postretirement benefit plans on the balance sheet. Under SFAS No. 158,
gains and losses, prior service costs and credits, and any remaining transition amounts under SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 106
that have not yet been recognized through net periodic benefit cost will be recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income, net of tax effects, until they are amortized as a component of net periodic cost. SFAS No. 158 is effective for
publicly-held companies for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 158, as it relates to recognizing the funded status of its defined benefit pension and
postretirement benefit plans in its statement of financial position and related disclosure provisions, on March 31, 2007. Upon
adoption, the Company recorded an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income representing the recognition of
previously unrecorded pension and postretirement healthcare liabilities related to net unrecognized actuarial losses,
unrecognized prior service costs and unrecognized prior service credits. These amounts will be subsequently recognized as a
component of net periodic pension cost pursuant to the Company’s historical accounting policy for recognizing such
amounts.

The incremental effects of adopting the provisions of SFAS No. 158 on the Company’s statement of financial position
at March 31, 2007 are presented in the following table. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 had no effect on the Company’s
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended March 31, 2007.

At March 31, 2007
Prior to Effect of
Adopting Adopfing
SFAS No. 158 SFAS No. 158  As Reported
Assets
Non-current benefit asset b - 3 6,864 $ 6,864
Intangible asset 244 (244) -
Deferred tax asset 1,813 (3,340) (1,527)
Liabilities
Current benefit liability - 5,922 5,922
Non-current benefit liability 69,753 (14,129} 55,624
Shareholders equity
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (2,628) 11,487 8,859
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Note M — Employee Bencefits (Continued)
Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax, at March 31, 2007 which have not yet been
recognized in net periodic benefit cost are as follows:

U.S. and Postretirement
Non-U.S. Heathcare
Pension Plans Benefits Total

Net actuarial loss (gain) $ 4,462 $(7,225) $(2,763)
Prior service cost 599 12,550 13,149
Deferred taxes 337 (1,864) (1,527)
Amounts to be amortized 5,398 3,461 8,859
Reverse additional minimum pension liability, net of tax 2,628 - 2,628
Initial adoption of SFAS No. 158 $ 8,026 $ 3461 S 11,487

A reconciliation of benefit obligations, plan assets and funded status of the plans at March 31, 2007 and 2006, the
measurement dates, was as follows:

.S, Plans Non-U.S. Plans
March 31, March 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning $80,713 $67,854 $56,446 § 5,831
Service cost 2,576 2,696 331 2,252
Interest cost 4,758 4,503 3,088 2,767
Actuarial (gain} loss 1,764 {3,553) (1,903) (3,389)
Plan amendments/settlements/curtailments (1,433) (857) 2,678 1,041
Effects of currency translation - - 2,749 -
Acquisition - 19,563 - 53,193
Benefits paid (7,445)  (9,493) (9,408) (5,249)
Benefit obligation, ending $80,933 %80,713 $53,981 §56,446
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning 346,258 $32,732 341,858 5 -
Actual return on plan assets 3,524 3,983 3,234 5,673
Acquisition - 15,625 6,321 36,349
Employer contribution 3,517 3,411 - 5,085
Effect of currency translation - - 2,320 -
Benefits paid (7,445)  (9,493) (9,408)  (5,249)
Fair value of plan assets, ending $45854 $46,258 344325 §$41,858
Funded status of plan . $(35,079) $(34,455) $(9,656) $(14,588)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss - (600) - (5,308)
Unrecognized prior service cost - 2,890 - 431
Net amount recognized $(35,079) $(32,165) $(9,656) $(19,465)
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Note M — Employee Benefits (Continued)

Retirement Benefits (Continued)

U.S. Plans Non-U.8. Plans
Match 31, March 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consist of:
Prepaid benefit cost:
Non-current benefit asset $ - 3 - $ 6864 3 -
Accrued current benefit liability (2,138) - (2,843) -
Accrued non-current benefit (32,941) (38,392) (13,677) (20,483)
Intangible asset - 1,873 - 54
Accumulated other comprehensive income - 4,354 - 964
Net amount recognized $(35,079) $(32,165) b (9,656! $E 19.465)
The pension obligations for all defined benefit pension plans:
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
March 31, March 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Information for Pension Plans with Accumulated Benefit
Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets:
Projected benefit obligation $20,933 $80,713 $35,740 $56,446
Accumulated benefit obligation 79,970 79,048 32,977 55,353
Fair value of plan assets 45,854 46,258 21,343 41,858
Net periodic pension costs included the following components:
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
March 31, March 31,
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Service cost $2,576 $269 $2712 $ 331 §$2252 $458
Interest cost 4,758 4,503 3,999 3,089 2,767 358
Expected return on plan assets (3,589) (3,703) (2,732) (3,290) (2,360) -
Amortization of actuarial loss 526 - - - - -
Amortization of prior service cost 1,933 1,729 280 46 43 48
Recognized net actual loss - 713 743 - 106 160
Special termination benefits 286 188 91 495 660 (42)
One-time effects of curtailment 260 (155) - 132 602 -
One-time effects of settlement - (35) - (195) 473 -
Net periodic pension cost — $6,750 $5,936  §$5,093 $ 608 $4,543 $982
U.S. Plans Non-1.S. Plans
March 31, March 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Additional Information:
Increase in minimum liability included in other
comprehensive income $(314) $(1,534) 3(4,747) 3138
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Note M — Employee Benefits (Continued)
Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The following assumptions were used to determine the expense for the pension, postretirement, other postemployment
and employee savings plans for the fiscal years ending March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
March 31, March 31,
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Discount rate 590% 6.00% 5.75% 4.50%t06.00% 4.50%to 6.00% 4.50% to 5.75%
Rate of increase in future compensation 3.75% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%t04.00% 2.00% to 3.00% 3.00%
Expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets 8.25% 8.25% 8.50% 7.25% 7.00% N/A

A March 31 measurement date is used for the pension, postretirement, other postemployment and employee savings
plans. The expected long-term rate of return on assets was determined based upon historical investment performance, current
asset allocation and estimates of future investment performance by asset class,

The following assumptions were used to determine the benefit obligations disclosed for the pension, postretirement,
other postemployment and employee savings plans at March 31, 2007 and 2006:

LJ.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
March 31, March 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Discount rate 6.00% 5.75% 4.50% to 6.00% 4.50% 10 5.75%
Rate of increase in future compensation 3.00% 3.00% 4.00% to 3.00% 3.00%

For 2007 and 2006, the annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits is not applicable as
the Company’s annual cost commitment to the benefits is capped and not adjusted for future medical inflation.

Net loss and prior service credits for the combined U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans expected to be amortized from
accumulated comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost during fiscal 2008 is $650 and $144 respectively.

Plan Assets
The Company’s asset allocations at March 31, 2007 and 2006 by asset category are as foilows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
March 31, March 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Asset Category:
Equity securities 73% 80% 70% 78%
Fixed income 18% 15% 19% 17%
Real estate 9% - - -
Other short term investments - 5% 11% 5%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

The Company’s investment objectives are to generate consistent total investment return to pay anticipated plan
benefits, while minimizing long-term costs. Financial objectives underlying this policy include maintaining plan
contributions at a reasonable level relative to benefits provided and assuring that unfunded obligations do not grow to a level
to adversely aftect the Company’s financial health. The Company’s target asset allocation strategy is a 60%/30%/10%
allocation between equity, fixed income securities and real estate for the domestic plans and 70%20%/10% equity, fixed
income securities and cash for the foreign plans.  The asset allocation at March 31, 2007 reflects the investment allocation
after all funds were transferred and invested by the new investment managers. Manager performance is measured against
investment objectives and objective benchmarks, including: Salomon 90 Day Treasury Bill, Lehman Brothers Intermediate
Govt. Credit, Lehman Aggregate Index, Russell 1000 Value, Russell 1000 Growth, Russeil 2500 Value, Russell 2000
Growth, and MSCI EAFE. The Portfolio Objective is to exceed the actuarial return on assets assumption. Management
regularly reviews portfolio allocations and periodically rebalances the portfolio to the targeted allocations when considered
appropriate. Equity securities do not include the Company’s common stock.
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Note M — Employee Benefits (Continued)
Cash Flows

Contributions
The Company expects to contribute $4,138 to its domestic benefits plans and $1,640 to its foreign benefit plans in 2008.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans U.S. Plans

March 31, March 31, March 31,
2007 2007 2007
2008 $ 5,488 $3,420 $ 941
2009 5,350 3,360 899
2010 5,043 3,382 864
2011 5,474 3,404 838
2012 5,658 3,430 799
Years 2013-2017 37,427 17,990 3,700

The Company also sponsors 401-k savings plans for most of its salaried employees located in the United States. The
Company’s contributions to the plan were $459 in 2007, $498 in 2006, and $354 in 2005,

The DIMON Compensation Deferral Plan was approved by the Board on June 23, 2003. The plan is available to
certain employees and non-employee members of the Board. Eligible participants may elect to defer specified portions of
cash or equity based compensation received and have the deferred amount treated as if invested in specified investment
vehicles. The Compensation Deferral Plan is unfunded with a payable of $189 at March 31, 2007. Withdrawals from the
Plan are not permitted until the termination of a participant’s service. The plan was frozen in 2006. See also Note K “Stock-
Based Compensation™” to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further information regarding equity based
compensation.

Postretirement Health and Life Insurance Benefits
The Company provides certain health and life insurance benefits to retired U.S. employees (and their eligible dependents)
who meet specified age and service requirements. Plan assets consist of cash deposits in a self insured term life insurance
program. Effective February 1, 2006 the self insured term life insurance program was terminated. In 2005 the plan was
amended to exclude new employees from the plan after September 2005 and to cap the Company’s annual cost commitment
to postretirement benefits for retirees. This plan amendment resulted in a reduction of $14,118 to the benefit obligation. The
Company retains the right, subject to existing agreements, to modify or eliminate these postretirement health and life
insurance benefits in the future.

Additional retiree medical benefits are provided to certain individuals in accordance with their employment contracts.
For 2007 the additional cost related to these contracts was $27.

Prior service credits of $1,622 and unrecognized net actuarial tosses of $421 are expected to be amortized from
accumulated comprehensive income into postretirement healthcare benefits net periodic benefit cost during the fiscal year
ending March 31, 2008.
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Note M - Employee Benefits (Continued)

A reconciliation of benefit obligations, plan assets and funded status of the plans was as follows:

March 31, March 31,
2007 2006
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning $9,145 $ 20,682
Service cost 88 234
Interest cost 529 885
Amendments - (14,118)
Actuarial loss 1,083 985
Special termination benefits - (272)
Acquisition - 2,517
Benefits paid (894) (1,768)
Benefit obligation, ending $9,951 $ 9,145
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning 5 24 § 142
Actual return on plan assets - (81)
Employer contribution 870 534
Benefits paid (894) (571)
Fair value of plan assets, ending $ - $ 24
Funded status of plan £(9,951) $ (9.121)
Unrecognized actuarial loss - 6,488
Unrecognized prior service cost - (14,172)
Net amount recognized $(9,951) $ (16,805}
Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet Consist of:
Accrued benefit liability $ (941 $ -
Accrued non-current benefit liability {9,010) (16,805)
Net amount recognized $(9,951) $ (16,805)
Plan Assets
Plan assets were invested in fixed income securities.
Net periodic benefit costs included the following components:
Years Ended March 31,
2007 2006 2005
Service cost $ 88 $ 234 $ 403
Interest cost 529 885 1,203
Expected return on plan assets (1) N 2)
Amortization of prior service cost - (927) {308)
Special termination benefits - 335 -
One-time effect of settlement - (272) -
Prior service credit (1,622) - -
Actuarial loss 347 - 284
Net periodic benefit cost (income) 3 (659) 5 248 $1,580
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Note M - Employee Benefits (Continued)

The Company continues to evaluate ways to better manage these benefits and control their costs, Any changes in the
plan or revisions to assumptions that affect the amount of expected future benefits may have a significant effect on the
amount of the reported obligation and annual expense. The Company expects to contribute $941 to its postretirement benefit
plan in 2008,

Employees in operations located in certain foreign countries are covered by various foreign postretirement life
insurance benefit arrangements. There are no postretirement health benefits due to coverage ceasing at retirement or
coverage continuing through a national health system. For these foreign plans, the cost of benefits charged to income was not
material in 2007, 2006 and 20035,

Note N — Segment Information

The Company purchases, processes, sells, and stores leaf tobacco. Tobacco is purchased in more than 45 countries and
shipped to more than 90 countries. The sales, logistics and billing functions of the Company are primarily concentrated in
service centers outside of the producing areas to facilitate access to our major customers. Within certain quality and grade
constraints, tobacco is fungible and, subject to these constraints, customers may choose to fulfill their needs from any of the
areas where the Company purchases tobacco.

Based upon management’s evaluation of performance using information included in management reports, the
Company believes it has five operating segments. The five operating segments are the geographic segments: Affrica, Asia,
Europe, North America and South America. In reviewing these operations, the Company concluded that the economic
characteristics of South America were dissimilar from the other operating segments. Based on this fact, the Company is
disclosing South America separately and has aggregated the remaining four operating segments, Africa, Asia, Europe and
North America into one reportable segment “Other Regions™. The Company concluded that these operating segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in each of the following areas:

the nature of the products and services;

the nature of the production processes;

the type or class of customer for their products and services;

the methods used to distribute their products or provide their services; and
the nature of the regulatory environment.

o R0 oR

Selling, logistics, billing, and administrative overhead, including depreciation, which originates primarily from the
Company’s corporate and sales offices, are allocated to the segments based upon segment operating income. The Company
reviews performance data from purchase through sale based on the source of the product and all intercompany transactions
are allocated to the region that either purchases or processes the tobacco.
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Note N — Segment Information (Continued)

During the three months ended June 30, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with local government in
Brazil, which provides for realization of accumulated intrastate trade taxes related to the 2005 crop on a monthly basis as
stipulated therein. As a result, intrastate trade taxes related to the 2005 crop of $19,225 previously recorded as expense in

fiscal 2006 were reversed in fiscal 2007.

Years Ended March 31,

Analysis of Segment Operations 2007 2006 2005
Sales and other Operating Revenues:

South America $ 723,739 § 759369 $ 467,615

Other Regions 1,255,339 1,353,316 832,503

Total Revenue $1,979,078 $ 2,112,685 $1,300,118
Operating Income (Loss):

South America $ 73,014 $ (166,561) $ 39,117

Other Regions 40,686 (112,667) 33,533
Total Operating Income (Loss) 113,700 (279,228) 72,650

Debt Retirement Expense 3,860 66,474 -

Interest Expense 105,635 108,585 52,840

Interest Income 8,591 7,107 4,448

Derivative Financial Instruments Income 290 5,092 13,122
Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes and Other Items $ 13,086 $ (442,088) $ 37,380

Years Ended March 31,

Analysis of Segment Assets 2007 2006 2005
Segment Assets:

South America $ 757.861 $ 652,004 $ 538,158

Other Regions 896,011 1,252,120 865,901

Total Assets $1,653,872 $1,904,124 $1,404,059
Goodwill:

South America h) - $ - $ 151,772

Other Regions 4,186 4,186 -

Total Goodwill $ 4,186 S 4,186 $ 151,772
Equity in Net Assets of Investee Companies:

South America b 693 $ 978 $ 918

Other Regions 17,768 16,579 -

Total Investees $ 18,461 $ 17,557 $ 018
Depreciation and Amortization:

South America $ 11,265 $ 12,676 $ 9,149

Other Regions 25,028 30,835 23,108

Total Depreciation and Amortization $ 36,293 $ 43,511 $ 32257
Capital Expenditures:

South America $ 2,733 3 5,215 $ 10,636

Other Regions 12,491 14,558 4,586

Total Capital Expenditures $§ 15,224 $ 19,773 $ 15222
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Note N — Segment Information (Continued)

Geographic information as to sales and other operating revenues is based on the destination of the product shipped.
The Belgium destination represents a storage and distribution center from which the tobacco will be shipped on to
manufacturing facilities.

Years Ended March 31,
Sales by Destination 2007 2006 2005
Sales and Other Operating Revenues: .

Belgium $ 357,368 § 295055 § 67,691
United States 340,772 397,037 223,168
Germany 169,405 181,114 155,583
Netherlands 150,560 99,842 49,293
Other ) 960,973 1,139,637 804,383

$ 1,979,078 $ 2,112,685  $1,300,118

Sales and Other Operating Revenues to Major Customers:
Of the 2007, 2006 and 2005 sales and other operating

revenues, approximately 53%, 52% and 43%, respectively,
were to various tobacco companies which are now owned by
or under the common control of two companies. (The
following tabte summarizes the net sales to each customer for
the periods indicated: )

_ Customer A o $ 679,086 $ 719,051 $ 358,760
Customer B 7 368,087 376,274 195,400

$ 1,047,173 $ 1,095,325 § 554,160
o]

Property, Plant and Equipment:

United States ) $ 43,994 $ 48532 § 18,733
Brazil , 72,403 77,352 54,857
Turkey 41,979 47467 18,039
Malawi 38,567 43,298 22,413
Tanzania 16,407 18,183 20,231
Zimbabwe - - 35,735
Europe 21,824 23,738 29,433
Argentina 12,794 13,983 1,112
Asia 8,780 9,139 7,466
Other 5,320 5,443 8,366
Property, Plant and Equipment $ 262,068 $ 287,135 $ 216,385

Note O - Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of foreign entities included in the consolidated financial statements have been translated to U.S.
dollars in accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.”

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, for which the local currency is the functional currency, are translated
into U.S. dollars using exchange rates in effect at period end for assets and liabilitics and average exchange rates during each
reporting period for results of operations. Adjustments resulting from translation of financial statements are reflected as a
separate component of other comprehensive income.

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, for which the U.S. dollar is the functional currency and which have
certain transactions denominated in a local currency, are remeasured into U.S. dollars. The remeasurement of local
currencies into U.S. dollars creates remeasurement adjustments that are included in net income. Exchange (losses) gains in
2007, 2006 and 2005 were $(168), $2,313 and $527, respectively, and are included in the respective statements of income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Alliance One International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(in thousands)

Nete P — Contingencies and Other Information

Tax
The Company does business in many countries outside the United States in which the tax systems are very unpredictable.

During June 2004, the Company received from Brazilian tax officials notices of proposed adjustments to income tax
returns for the Company’s Brazil operations for tax years 1999 through 2002, inclusive, that total $54,360 as of March 31,
2005. Of these proposed adjustments $39,446 related to disallowance of local currency foreign exchange losses on U.S.
dollar funding. In March 2005, the Taxpayer’s Council dismissed the assessment relating to the disallowance of local
currency foreign exchange losses. The remaining $14,914 related to disallowance of other sales related expenses. As of
March 31, 2007, this amount is valued at $21,864 due to the devaluation of the U.S. dollar to the Brazilian real. The
Company is continuing to argue its position on the disallowance of sales related expenses, and believes it has a defendable
position. This issue is also being reviewed under the rules of FIN 48. No provision has been set up for this issue as the
outcome is not considered probable.

On August 21, 2001, the Company’s subsidiary in Brazil won a claim related to certain excise taxes {“1PT credit
bonus”) for the years 1983 through 1990 and is now pursuing collection. The collection procedures are not clear and the total
realization process could potentially extend over many years. Through March 2005, the Company has utilized $20,377 of 1PI
credit bonus in lieu of cash payments for Brazilian federal income and other taxes. No benefit for this IPI credit bonus has
been recognized, and it has been recorded as deferred revenue, because the Company has been unable to predict whether the
Brazilian Government will require payment of amounts offset. ‘In January 2005, the Company reccived a Judicial Order to
suspend the 1Pl compensation. An appeal was filed and the Company received notification from the tax authorities in March
2005 to present all documentation pertaining to the IPI credit bonus. On April 24, 2006, the Company received an
assessment of $26,600 for federal income taxes in 2005 that were offset by the IPI credit bonus. As of March 31, 2007, this
amount is valued at $28,367 due to devaluation of the U.S. dollar to the Brazilian real. The Company has appealed the
assessment and believes it has properly utilized the IPI credit bonus. No provision has been set up for this issuc as the
outcome is not considered probable.

[n 1998, a tax law was issued in which the taxable basis for PIS/Cofins taxes in Brazil was increased. PIS and Cofins
are taxes paid on sales revenues. The tax law issued in 1998 increased the basis of calculation to include other revenues such
as interest income. The constitutionality of the increase of the tax basis was challenged and on November 10, 2005, the
Brazilian Supreme Court declared the increase of the tax basis unconstitutional. Based on this decision, the Company
reversed the PIS/Cofins tax expense amount of $ 3,933 during the third quarter of fiscal 2006. In November 2006, the
Supreme Court in Brazil rendered a specific decision in favor of the Company. The Company began the administrative
process of requesting the release of the escrow deposits, including unrecognized interest income of approximately $3,065, in
December 2006. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company received the total funds of $7,084 and recognized
interest income of $3,117.

On October 31, 2002, the Company received an assessment from the tax authorities in Germany regarding the taxable
gain from the sale of its flower operations, Florimex, in September 1998. The report concluded the values of the real estate
located in Germany were greater than those arrived at with the buyer of the flower operation. The proposed adjustment to
income tax, including interest, as of December 31, 2006 is equivalent to approximately $4,903 for federal corporate income
tax and $2,758 for local trade income tax, without interest accrued. On January 2, 2007, the Company received notice of the
decision rendered by the Fiscal Tax Court. The Court decided in favor of the tax authorities and denied the Company’s
request for appeal. The Company belicves it has grounds for appeal against this decision and it is now preparing an
application to appeal. The total tax assessed by the German tax authorities, including interest to date, was €7,608 or $10,005
as of December 31, 2006. The Company increased the previous reserve against this contingent exposure by an additional
$7,111, bringing it from $2,894 to $10,005 as of December 31, 2006. As of March 31, 2007, the reserve is $10,224,

In September 2002 and in January 2004, the Company’s Tanzanian operations received assessments for income taxes
equivalent to approximately $1,413 and $4,907, respectively as of March 31, 2007. In September 2005, additional
assessments for 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004 were received. The assessments for 2001, 2002 and 2003 reduce tax loss
carryovers equivalent to $5,616 as of March 31, 2007. The 2004 assessment carries a tax equivalent to $£1,693 as of March
31, 2007. The Company has filed protests and appeals and is currently awaiting replies. The Company has established a
reserve of $921 for this assessment as it is considered probable and estimable.
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Alliance One International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
{in thousands)

Note P — Contingencies and Other Information (Continued)

Tax (Continued)

In September 2006, the Company’s Serbian operations were assessed for VAT and government pension liability for
payments to farmers. In December 2006, one third of the assessment was reduced. The remaining issues are still being
discussed. The Company is contesting these assessments and has established a reserve of $386 for the VAT component of
the assessment.

On August 28, 2006, the Company's South Africa shipping office received an assessment from the South Africa
Revenue Service (SARS) for approximately 40,500 Rand (equivalent to $5,400). The assessments, at that time, had no
explanations. Due to devaluation of the US$ against the Rand, as of March 31, 2007, the U.S. dollar equivalent value of the
assessment was $5,565. On January 31, 2007, the company received the SARS report explaining the assessment. Upon
reviewing the SARS report it is clear the assessment has been based on an inaccurate analysis of the business and contains
significant internal mathematical mistakes. The Company has assembled a team to appeal the assessments and is preparing
its response. Under current South Africa law, the Company may be required to deposit the taxes to continue its appeal. As of
March 31, 2007, the Company has received a deferral of such payment and is currently negotiating to extend that deferral.
No provision has been set up for this issue as the outcome is not considered probable.

As discussed in other footnotes, the Company does business in countries and taxing jurisdictions where the rules are
unclear and the enforcement is inconsistent. These inherent risks are most pronounced in the area of the pricing of
intercompany sales and services. The Company has estimated a reserve for probable transfer pricing issues of $4,000.

While the Company believes it has properly reported its income and provided for taxes in Brazil, Germany, Serbia,
South Africa and Tanzania in accordance with applicable laws, the final resolution of the proposed adjustments is uncertain
and involves unsettled areas of the law. The Company has evaluated each issue described above, based on currently available
information, and has provided for the probable liability associated with these matters. While the resolution of these issues
may result in tax liabilities that may differ from the specific accruals established for the matters, the Company currently
believes that the resolution will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position or liquidity. However, an
unfavorable resolution could have a material adverse effect on its results of operations or cash flows in the quarter and year in
which an adjustment is recorded or the tax is due or paid. As the Company is no further than the initial stages of the appeals
process for any of the above matters, the timing of the ultimate resolution and any payments that may be required for the
above matters cannot be determined at this time.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48), which is a change in accounting for income taxes. FIN 48 specifies
how tax benefits for uncertain tax positions are to be recognized, measured, and derecognized in financial statements;
requires certain disclosures of uncertain tax matters; specifies how reserves for uncertain tax positions should be classified on
the balance sheet; and provides transition and interim period guidance, among other provisions. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006 and as a result, is effective for the Company on April 1, 2007. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on its consolidated financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. In
addition, since the Company is subject to potentially inconsistent actions by the governments of certain foreign countries in
which it operates, the Company will continue evaluating the material impact of this interpretation concerning transfer pricing,
tax presence liabilities, and other tax matters.

Other

The Company has received correspondence from an Italian company, Mindo S.r.l., which was the purchaser, in June,
2004, of the Company’s Italian subsidiary, DIMON Italia S.r.l., alleging that the Company and various of its subsidiaries,
employees and other individuals not employed by the Company, failed to disclose, at the time of Mindo’s purchase, certain
events or circumstances which, if disclosed, woultd have caused Mindo not to purchase the Company’s subsidiary and which
amount to a breach of the purchase agreement. Although no formal legal proceeding has yet been filed, Mindo is apparently
contending that it is entitled to the rescission of the purchase agreement. The Company has investigated the claims, believes
them to be without merit and intends to vigorously defend any legal proceeding which might be brought.
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Note P — Contingencies and Other Information (Continued)

Other (Continued)

In March 2004, the Company discovered potential irregularities with respect to certain bank accounts in southern
Europe and central Asia. The Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors engaged an outside law firm to conduct
an investigation of activity relating to these accounts. That investigation revealed that, although the amounts involved were
not material and had no material impact on the Company’s historical financial statements, there were payments from these
accounts that may have violated the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (the “FCPA”). In May 2004, the Company
voluntarily reported the matter to the U.S. Department of Justice. Soon thereafter, the Company closed the accounts in
question, implemented personnel changes and other measures designed to prevent similar situations in the future, including
the addition of new finance and internal audit staff and enhancement of existing training programs, and disclosed these
circumstances in its filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). In August 2006, the Company
learned that the SEC had issued a formal order of investigation of the Company and others to determine if these or other
actions may have violated certain provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and rules thereunder. The Company is
cooperating fully with the SEC with respect to the investigation.

If the U.S. authorities determine that there have been violations of federal laws, they may seek to impose sanctions on
the Company that may include, among other things, injunctive relicf, disgorgement, fines, penalties and modifications to
business practices. It is not possible to predict at this time whether the authorities will determine that violations have
occurred, and if they do, what sanctions they might seek to impose. It is also not possible to predict how the government’s
investigation or any resulting sanctions may impact the Company’s business, results of operations or financial performance,
although any monetary penalty assessed may be material to the Company’s results of operations in the quarter in which it is
imposed.

The Company and certain of its foreign subsidiaries guarantee bank loans to growers to finance their crop. Under
longer-term arrangements, the Company may also guarantee financing on growers’ construction of curing barns or other
tobacco production assets. The Company also guarantees bank loans to certain tobacco cooperatives to assist with the
financing of their growers’ crops. Guaranteed loans are generally repaid concurrent with the delivery of tobacco to the
Company. The Company is obligated to repay any guaranteed loan should the grower or tobacco cooperative default. If
default occurs, the Company has recourse against the grower or cooperative. At March 31, 2007, the Company was
guarantor of an amount not to exceed $330,484 with $302,644 outstanding under these guarantees. Of these guarantees,
$286,527 relates to Brazilian farmers. The Company has reserved $18,207 for loans under these guarantees. This reserve
approximates the value of the guarantees. Risks of significant loss under the remaining guarantees is considered to be
remote.
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Alliance One Internationai, Inc. and Subsidiaries

{(in thousands)

Note Q - Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Summarized quarterly financial information is as follows:

-92.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Fiscal
Q3@ (1310 Q3@ 23 Year
Year Ended March 31, 2007 ‘ S
Sales and other operating revenue $493,485 $593,630 $458,759 $433,204 $1,979,078
Gross profit 77,504 103,837 60,736 53,662 - 295,739
Income (loss) from continuing 4
operations ] 8,667 9,133 (17,412) (3,003) (2615
Loss from discontinued operations (3,794) (833) (10,926) (3,177) (18,730}
Net income (loss) 4,621 8,300 (28,338) (6,180) (21,597
Per Share of Common Stock: o
Basic Eamnings (Loss) (1) '
[ncome (loss) from continuing
operations .09 .11 2N (.03) {03)
Loss from discontinued operations (.04) (0D (.12) (.04) {22)
Net income (loss) 035 .10 {.33) (.07) (.25)
Diluted Earnings (Loss) ]
Income (loss) from continuing
operations ) 09 A0 (21 (.03) (03
Loss from discontinued operations (.04) (.0 (.12) (.04) (.22)
Net income (loss) ) .05 .09 (.33)* (O7y* (25)*
Cash Dividends per Share - - - - -
Market Price - High 4.95 4.41 7.31 9.35 9.35
- Low 3.57 3.57 3.97 6.75 3.57
Year Ended March 31, 2006 o o ) 7 7 o
Sales and other operating revenue $403,149 $613,157 $515,070 $581,309_ $2,112,685
Gross profit . 43,978 66,882 51,299 - 62,526 _ 224685
Loss from continuing operations (77,986) (6,313) (23,575} (315,468) - (423,342)
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations (2,672) (14,235) 709 (7,906)  (24,104)
Net Loss ] (80,658) {20,548) (22,866) (323,374) ~(447,446)
~ Per Share of Common Stock:
Basic Loss (1) . o
Loss from continuing operations (L.17) “on - (.28) (3.67) (521
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations (.04) (17) .01 (.09) (30)
Net Loss {1.21) {.24) (27) (3.76) (5.51)
Diluted Loss (1) _ _ A
Loss from continuing operations _ (1.17) .07 (28 (3.67) B2y
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations (.04) (17) .01 (.09) (.30}
~ Net Loss {1.21)* (24)* (27)* (3.76)* (5.51)*
" Cash Dividends per Share 075 .030 - - 105
Market Price - High 6.80 6.30 4.32 5.06 680
- Low 5.61 3.28 2.16 3.59 o216




ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Alliance One International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(in thousands)

Note Q — Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) (Continued)
Summarized quarterly financial information notes on the above are as follows:
(1) Does not add due to quarterly change in average shares cutstanding

(2) 2007 includes charges of $1,698, $20,856, $5,545 and $1,674 associated with restructuring and asset impairments in the
first, second, third and fourth quarters, respectively. See Note D “Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges” to the
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further information. In the first quarter, the Company reversed charges
of $19,225 related to Brazilian intrastate taxes. The Company recorded recoveries of Iraqi receivables of $264 and
$2,484 in the first and second quarters, respectively. In the first and second quarters, gross profit was reduced
$1,086 and $341, respectively, due to a fair value of inventory purchase accounting adjustment. Charges of $3,860
associated with debt retirement expense were recorded in the fourth quarter. For more information on Brazilian
intrastate taxes, Iraqi receivables, inventory purchase accounting adjustment and debt retirement expense see
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Results of Operations.

(3) 2006 includes charges of $15,165, $1,798, $13,366 and $55,082 associated with restructuring and asset impairments in
the first, second, third and fourth quarters, respectively. See Note D “Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges” to
the *Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further information. Also, in the fourth quarter, goodwill
impairment charges of $256,916 were recognized. See Note E “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets™ to the “Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further information. Charges of $64,907 and 31,567 associated with debt
retirement expense are included in the first and second quarters, respectively. Gross profit was reduced due to fair
value of inventory purchase accounting adjustments of $9,420, $3,670, $4,374 and $489 in the first, second, third and
fourth quarters, respectively. For more information on debt retirement expense and inventory purchase accounting
adjustments see Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Results of
Operations,

(4) Amounts presented differ from amounts previously reported in our 2006 quarterly reports on Form 10-Q due to the
classification of certain of our businesses as discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS No. 144,

*  Assumed conversion of Convertible Debentures at the beginning of each period has an antidilutive effect on earnings
(loss) per share. In the quarter ended September 30, 2005, the Company retired its Convertible Debentures due 2007 of
$73,328. For the quarters ended December 31, 2006 and March 31, 2007 and all quarters in the year ended March 31,
2006, all outstanding restricted stock and stock options are excluded because their inclusion would have an antidilutive
effect on the loss per share.

Note R — Sale of Receivables

On September 27, 2006, Alliance One International, A.G., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
revolving trade accounts receivable securitization agreement to sell receivables to a limited liability company (“LLC”). The
LLC is funded through loans from a bank-sponsored commercial paper conduit which has committed up to a maximum of
$55,000 in funding at any time. The agreement, which matures September 25, 2009, provides for the periodic, non-recourse
sale of receivables. To the extent that the balance of the receivables sold into the pool is less than $55,000, the Company is
subject to a 0.5% fee on the unused amount. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company retains servicing responsibilities and
subordinated interests in the receivables sold. The Company receives annual servicing fees of 0.5% of the outstanding
balance, which approximates the fair value of services to be rendered under the agreement, and rights to future cash flows in
excess of funds contractually obligated to investors. The value of the subordinated interest is subject to credit and interest
rate risks on the transferred financial assets.
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Note R — Sale of Receivables (Continued)

The Company has recorded the transaction as a sale of receivables and has removed such receivables from its financial
statements and has recorded a receivable for the retained interest in such receivables. In recording the sale of receivables, the
Company has recognized pre-tax losses of $1,707 on sales of receivables through March 31, 2007. In addition, the Company
has recorded charges of $1,320 related to the negotiation of the agreement. As of March 31, 2007, $31,282 receivables were
sold and outstanding under the revolving agreement resulting in cash proceeds of $30,667 and a Company retained interest of
$58. It is the Company’s intention 10 maximize the receivables sold under the revolving agreement meaning that amounts
collected by the pool would be reinvested in the purchase of additional eligible receivables. Since September 27, 2006, the
average outstanding balance of receivables sold has been $29,607 with a minimum outstanding balance of $13,786 and a
maximum of $44,831. During this time, aggregate receivables sold have been $111,858 of which the Company’s cash
receipts have been $81,499 from the current purchase price, $26,807 from deferred purchase price and $74 of service fees.

In valuing the retained interests at the date of the sale of the receivables, the Company assumed a weighted average life
of 67 days and a discount rate of 8.7% as well as an additional 0.5% on the unused balance for the same term. Theoretical
increases in the discount rate by 10% and 20% would have decreased the value of retained interests by $53 and $107
respectively. Historically, credit loss and prepayments on the customer base included in these agreements have been
negligible.

Note S — Subsequent Events

Sale of Malawi Factory

On December 21, 2006, the Company disclosed that it had executed a Letter of Intent with Tribac Leaf Limited (*“Tribac™),
for an anticipated transaction in which the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Alliance One Tobacco (Malawi) Limited
(“AOGI Malawi™), will sell to Tribac (or an affiliate thereof) its Lilongwe North Factory facility, including one threshing line
and other related assets. On April 17, 2007, the Company signed a definitive agreement. Closing on such sale is scheduled
to occur in early 2008; however, such closing is subject to the occurrence of several significant conditions, many of which are
outside of the Company’s or the buyer’s control.

The sale of the Lilongwe North facility is consistent with the Company’s stated strategy, which includes: the ongoing
refinement of its global footprint, enhancing operational efficiencies and meeting customer demands for high quality value
added service.

AOI Malawi will continue to operate the facility and report it as held and used until the closing of the transaction.
Following completion of such transaction, it is anticipated that AQI Malawi will make an additional investment in its
Lilongwe South Factory, reflecting the Company’s continued commitment to and confidence in the Malawi Tobacco
Industry.

Additional Commitment to the Amended and Restated Revolver Agreement
On May 4, 2007, the Company made an optional prepayment of $50 million on its $145 million Term Loan B portion of its
Senior Secured Credit Facility, leaving $95 million outstanding as of that date.

On May 25, 2007, the Company closed the First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated
March, 30 2007. As contemplated by the original credit agreement, the First Amendment expands the aggregate
commitments available from $240 million to $250 million. As of March 31, 2007 and as of the date of the First Amendment,
there were no outstanding loans under the Senior Secured Credit Facility.

On May 29, 2007, the Company closed the Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated
March, 30 2007. The Second Amendment clarifies several definitions used for covenant compliance purposes to better
conform them to the calculations being used by the Company and the lenders.

On June 20, 2007, the Company entered into a Waiver and Consent (the “Waiver and Consent”) by and among Intabex
Netherlands B.V. as Borrowers, Alliance One International AG, as a Guarantor, and Wachovia Bank, National Association,
as Administrative Agent for the Lenders to cure any potential defaults under the Credit Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of
the Waiver and Consent, the lenders under the Credit Agreement (i) waive any prospective event of default relating to the
Company’s restated results for the first three quarters of fiscal year 2007 and the reporting of the associated material
weakness in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting as identified by the Company and (ii) consent to the
extension of the time for delivery of certain financial statements and certificates required to be delivered by the Company to
the lenders. Failure to reach agreement with the lenders on these matters would have triggered a default under the Credit
Agreement and would have allowed the lenders to accelerate payments thereunder, which could have significanily impacted
the Company’s liquidity and access to capital.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Alliance One International, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Alliance One International, Inc. (the “Company”) as of
March 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements of consolidated operations and comprehensive income, stockholders’
equity, and consolidated cash flows for the years then ended. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed
in the Index at Item 15a as it relates to 2007 and 2006. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. The consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2005 were audited by other auditors whose report, dated June 10, 2005,
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as of March 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion,
such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2007, based on the
criteria established in fnternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission, and our report dated June 21, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment
of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

As discussed in Notes A and M to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an
Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) as of March 31, 2007,

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
June 21, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Alliance One International, Inc. (formerly DIMON Incorporated)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2005 of Alliance One International, Inc. and subsidiaries. Our audit also
included the financial statement schedule in the index listed at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated results
of operations and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2005 of Alliance One International, Inc. and subsidiaries in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements take as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Greensboro, North Carolina
June 10, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Alliance One International, Inc.

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that Alliance One International, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in /nternal Control-—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluvating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the
company's board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary (o permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with autherizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on
a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of March 31, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31,
2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended March 31, 2007,
of the Company and our report dated June 21, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule.

/s! Deloitte & Touche LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
June 21, 2007
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ITEMY9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ONACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of March 31, 2007, an evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act (the Act). Based upon this
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file under the Act is
recorded, processed, summarized, and reported by management of the Company on a timely basis in order to comply with the
Company’s disclosure obligations under the Act and the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) rules thereunder.
Disclosures controls and procedures include without limitation controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed is accumulated and communicated to management to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Alliance One’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as that term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Internal control over financial reporting
refers to the processes designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
includes policies and procedures that:

+ pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispaositions of the assets of the company;

s provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

¢ provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any cvaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of internal control can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within Alliance One have been detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on the criteria contained in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (COSOQ) of the Treadway Commission. Based on that evaluation, management has concluded that, as of
March 31, 2007, Alliance One’s internal contrel over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES (Continued)

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Continued)

Alliance One’s independent registered public accounting firm auditors has issued an audit report on our assessment of
the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting. This report appears on page 97 herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the fourth quarter of 2007, management identified a material weakness related to accounting for income taxes.
Specifically, there was insufficient review of the tax workpapers by management on an interim basis.
In connection with the material weakness in internal controls over financial reporting the Company has taken the
following remedial measures:
e Review and approval of effective tax rates and reconciliation of these rates by the local preparers and their
supervisor.
e Review and approval of effective tax rates and reconciliation of these rates by the Corporate Foreign Tax Manager
and their supervisor.
e Increased rate reconciliation procedure, including a checklist of specific steps to be followed by subsidiaries and
reviewers.
e Increase the visibility of statutory writc-offs through changes in local accounting systems.
Other than the changes outlined above, there were no other changes in the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART 1l

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information concerning directors and persons nominated to become directors of Alliance One International, Inc. included
in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Board of Directors - Proposal One-Election of Directors” and “Board of
Directors - Director Biographies” is incorporated herein by reference. The information concerning the executive officers of
the Company included in Part I, Item I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Business - Executive Officers
of Alliance One International, Inc.,” is incorporated herein by reference.

Audit Committee
The information included in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Board of Directors - Board Committees and
Membership” and “Audit Matters” is incorporated herein by reference.

Secrion 16(a) Compliance
The information included in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Ownership of Equity Securities - Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” is incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Business Conduct

The information included in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Governance of the Company - Code of Business
Conduet™ is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 10, DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has adopted corporate governance guidelines and charters for its Audit Committee, Executive
Compensation Committee, Governance and Nominating Cornmittee and Finance Commitiee. These governance documents
are available on our website, www.aointl.com, or by written request, without charge, addressed to: Corporate Secretary,
Alliance One International, Inc., 8001 Aerial Center Parkway, Morrisville, NC 27560-8417.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information contained in the Proxy Statement under the captions “Board of Directors — Compensation of Non-Employee
Directors” and “Executive Compensation” is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The information contained in the Proxy Statement under the caption "Ownership of Equity Securities," together with the
information included in Part II, Item 5 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Market For Registrant's
Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters And Issuer Purchases Of Equity Securities - Equity Compensation Plan
Information,” is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information contained in the Proxy Statement under the captions “Governance of the Company -Determination of

Independence of Directors,” “Board of Directors - Independence” and "Board of Directors - Other Agreements and Business

Relationships” is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information contained in the Proxy Statement under the captions “Audit Matters - Policy for Pre-Approval of Audit and
Non-Audit Services” and “Audit Matters - Audit and Non-Audit Fees” is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)

(b}

(1yand (2)

LIST OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Statements of Consolidated Operations and Comprehensive Income —Y ears

ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Balance Sheet—March 31, 2007 and 2006

Statement of Stockholders' Equity--Years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows-- Years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Report of Emst & Young LLP

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Exhibits

The following documents are filed as exhibits to this Form 10-K pursuant to Item 601 of Regulation

S-K:

3.01

jo2

4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

4.05

4.06

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Alliance One International, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May
19, 2005.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Alliance One International, Inc., incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 19, 2005.

Specimen of Common Stock certificate incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed June 3, 2005.

Indenture, dated October 30, 2001, between DIMON Incorporated as issuer, and
SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to 9 5/8% Senior Notes due 2011, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001, filed November 6, 2001.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2004, between DIMON
Incorporated as issuer and SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to 9 5/8% Senior Notes due
2011, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
November 13, 2004.

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated March 22, 2005, between DIMON Incorporated
as issuer and SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to 9 5/8% Senior Notes due 2011,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May
16, 2005.

Indenture, dated May 30, 2003, between DIMON Incorporated as issuer and SunTrust
Bank as trustee, related to 7 3/4% Senior Notes due 2013, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.7 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2003, filed
August 28, 2003.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2004, between DIMON
Incorporated as issuer and SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to 7 3/4% Senior Notes due
2013, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
November 13, 2004,
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ITEM 15.

(b)

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (Continued)

Exhibits (Continued)

4.07

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

10.0t

10.02

10.03

10.04

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated March 22, 2005, between DIMON Incorporated
as issuer and SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to 7 3/4% Senior Notes due 2013,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May
16, 2005.

Indenture, dated as of April 1, 1997, between DIMON Incorporated and LaSalle National
Bank, relating to 6 '/4% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due March 31, 2007,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April
16, 1997 (Commission File No. 001-13684).

Indenture dated April 2, 2004, among Standard Commercial Corporation, Standard
Commercial Tobacco Corp., Inc. and SunTrust Bank, as trustee, related to 9% Senior
Notes due 2012, Series B, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 of Standard’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2004, filed June 14, 2004,

Supplemental Indenture, dated March 22, 2005, among Standard Commercial
Corporation, Standard Commercial Tobacco Corp., Inc. and SunTrust Bank, as trustee,
related to 9% Senior Notes due 2012, Sertes B, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3
of Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 16, 2005.

Indenture, dated May 13, 20053, between Alliance One International, Inc., Law Debenture
Trust Company of New York, as trustee and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
as registrar and paying agent, relating to 12 %% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May
19, 2005.

Indenture, dated May 13, 2005, between Alliance One International, Inc., Law Debenture
Trust Company of New York, as trustee and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
as registrar and paying agent, relating to 11.0% Senior Notes duve 2012, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 10 the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 19, 2005,

Indenture, dated March 7, 2007, between Alliance One International, Inc., Law
Debenture Trust Company of New York, as trustee and Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas, as registrar and paying agent, relating to 8 1/2% Senior Notes due 2012,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March
8, 2007.

Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Equity Plan, as amended May 24, 2006,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to Alliance One International, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2006, filed June 23, 2006.*

Standard Commercial Corporation Performance Improvement Compensation Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Alliance One International, Inc.’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed June 3, 2005.*

Standard Commercial Corporation 2001 Performance Improvement Compensation Plan,
incorporated by reference to Appendix B to Standard Commercial Corporation’s
definitive proxy statement filed Juiy 16, 2001.*

Early Retirement Agreement, dated May 17, 1999, between DIMON Incorporated and
Claude B. Owen, Jr., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to DIMON
Incorporated’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999, filed
September 28, 1999 (Commission File No. 001-13684).*
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (Continued)

(b)

Exhibits (Continued)

10.05

10.06

10.07

10.08

10.09

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Employment Agreement, dated November 7, 2004, between DIMON Incorporated and
Brian J. Harker, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to DIMON Incorporated’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 8, 2004.*

Employment Agreement, dated November 7, 2004, between DIMON Incorporated and
Robert E. Harrison, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to DIMON Incorporated’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 8, 2004.*

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 13, 1995, effective as of November 1,
1994, between Dibrell Brothers, Incorporated and H.P. Green, I, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Dibrell Brothers, Incorporated’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended December 31, 1994, filed February 13, 1995 (Commission File No. 000-2912).*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated August 29, 1995, between DIMON
Incorporated and H.P. Green, II1 , incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of DIMON
Incorporated’s Annual Report on Form 10-K  for the year ended March 31, 2004, filed
June 10, 2004 .*

DIMON Incorporated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, amended March 1,
2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.09 to Alliance One International, Inc.’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2006, filed June 23, 2006.*

Setticment Agreement, dated May 24, 1999, between DIMON Incorporated and Tabex
(Private) Limited, Folium Inc., Blair Investments (Private) Limited, Tabacalera S.A,
Anthony C. B. Taberer, Paul A.B. Taberer, and Charles M.B. Taberer, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.29 to DIMON Incorporated’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended June 30, 1999, filed September 28, 1999 (Commission File No. 001-
13684}.*

DIMON Incorporated’s Compensation Deferral Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 to DIMON Incorporated’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended June 30, 2003, filed August 28, 2003.*

DIMON Incorporated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.14 of DIMON’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2004,
filed June 10, 2004.*

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 13, 2005, among Alliance One International, Inc., as
borrower, Intabex Netherlands, B.V., as the Dutch borrower, the material domestic
subsidiaries of the borrowers, as domestic guarantors, DIMON International AG, as
foreign guarantor, Wachovia Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, ING
Bank N.V. London Branch, as Syndication agent and certain banks forming the bank
syndicate, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed May 19, 2005.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 13, 2005, among DIMON Incorporated,
Wachovia Capital Markets LLC, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and ING Bank NV,
London Branch, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Alliance One’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed May 19, 2005.

Purchase Agreement between Alliance One International, Inc., formerly known as
DIMON Incorporated, and Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC, Deutsche Bank Securities
Inc. and ING Bank N.V., London Branch, dated May 10, 2005, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 16,
2005.
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| ITEM 15, EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (Continued)

(b)

JPUR—
et e oo L g

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

Exhibits (Continued)

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of October 28, 2005, by and among
Alhance One International, Inc., Intabex Netherlands B.V., DIMON international AG,
the several banks and other financial institutions from time to time party (the “Lenders”™)
and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for the Lenders,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-
K, filed October 31, 2005,

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2005, by and
among Alliance One International, Inc., Intabex Netherlands B.V., DIMON International
AG, the several banks and other financial institutions from time to time party, and
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for the Lenders,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-
K, filed December 1, 2005,

Amendment to DIMON Incorporated Compensation Deferral Plan, dated December 30,
2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed January 5, 2006.*

Amendment to Standard Commercial Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan, dated
December 30, 2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Alliance One’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed January 35, 2006.*

Standard Commercial Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan, dated March 27,
1990, as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Alliance One’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed Januvary 5, 2006.*

Third Amendment To Credit Agreement, dated as of November 8, 2006, by and among
Alliance One International, Inc., Intabex Netherlands B.V., Alliance One International
AG, the several banks and other financial institutions from time to time party hereto (the
“Lenders”) and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for the
Lenders, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ending September 30, 2006, filed November 9,
2006.

Fourth Amendment To Credit Agreement, dated as of January 16, 2007, by and among
Alliance One International, Inc., Intabex Netherlands B.V., Alliance One International
AGQ, the several banks and other financial institutions from time to time party hereto, and
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for the Lenders,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-
K, filed January 17, 2007.

Fifth Amendment To Credit Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2007, by and among
Alliance One International, Inc., Intabex Netherlands B.V., Alliance One International
AG, the several banks and other financial institutions from time to time party hereto, and
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for the Lenders,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-
K, filed February 23, 2007.

Purchase Agreement, dated March 2, 2007, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 8, 2007.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 7, 2007, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 8, 2007.

- 104 -




ITEM 15.

(b)

(<)

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (Continued)

Exhibits (Continued)

10.26 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated March 30, 2007 by and among Alliance
One International, Inc. and Intabex Netherlands B.V., as Borrowers, Alliance One
International AG, as a Guarantor, the Lenders from time to time parties thereto,
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc., as Syndication Agent, and ING Bank N.V., London Branch,
Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A. “Rabobank Nederland”, New
York Branch and Societe Generale, as Documentation Agents, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 5, 2007,

10.27 DIMON Incorporated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 5, 2007.

10.28 Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Equity Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 5, 2007.

10.29 Alliance One International, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Account Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 5, 2007.

10.30 Waiver and Consent, dated June 20, 2007, by and among Intabex Netherlands B.V. as
Borrowers, Alliance One International AG, as a Guarantor, and Wachovia Bank,
National Association, as Administrative Agent for the Lenders (filed herewith).

12 Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges (filed herewith).

21 List of Subsidiaries {filed herewith).

231 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filed herewith).

232 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP (filed herewith).

31.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 {filed herewith).

31.02 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

|L.J
(o]

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

* Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule 11, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts, appears on the following pages. The consolidated
financial statement schedules listed in Item 15(a) appear on the following pages. All other schedules for
which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and Exchange
Commission are not required under the related instructions or are not applicable and, therefore, have been
omitted.
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ALLIANCE ONE INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

|
SCHEDULE II-VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
|
|

COL. A COL.B COL.C COL.D COL.E
ADDITIONS
(1 (2)
Charged to
Balanceat  Charged to Other Balance at
Beginning Costs and Accounts Deductions End of
DESCRIPTION of Period Expenses -Describe -Describe Period
~ Year ended March 31,2005
Deducted from asset accounts;
Allowance for doubtful accounts $2,290,636  $105280  § - $ 681,184 (A) 81,714,732
Total $2,290,636 $105280 % - $ 681,184 $1,714,732
Year ended March 31, 2006
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts 81,714,732 $414,680 $2,371,171(B) § 548,019 (A) $3,952,564
Total $1,714,732 $414,680  $2,371,171 3 548,019 $3,952,564

~ Year ended March 31, 2007
~ Deducted from asset accounts: ,
~ Allowance for doubtful accounts $3,952.564 $1,325472 $ - $1.885922 (A) $3,392,114

Total $3,952,564 $1325472 8 - $1,885,922 $3,392.114

(A) Currency translation and direct write off.

(B) Reserves related to pre-acquisition Standard Commercial Corporation accounts receivable.

- 106 -



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on June 21, 2007.

ALLIANCE ONE INTERNATIONAL, INC. (Registrant)

/s/ Robert E. Harrison
By

Raobert E. Harrison
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on June 21, 2007,

/s/ Robert E. Harrison
By

Robert E. Harrison
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ James A. Cooley
By

James A. Cooley
Executive Vice President-Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Thomas G. Reynolds
By

Thomas G. Reynolds
Vice President-Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Brian J. Harker
By

Brian J. Harker
Chairman and Director

/s! C. Richard Green, Jr.
By

C. Richard Green, Jr.
Director

/s/ John M. Hines
By

John M. Hines
Director

/s/ Nigel G. Howard
By

Nigel G. Howard
Director

/s/ Mark W. Kehaya
By

Mark W. Kehaya
Director

/s/ Gilbert L. Klemann, 11
By

Gilbert L, Klemann, 11
Director

/s/ Joseph L. Lanier, Jr.
By

Joseph L. Lamer, Jr.
Director

/s/ Albert C. Monk 111
By

Albert C. Monk 111
Director

/s/ B. Clyde Preslar
By

B. Clyde Preslar
Director

/s/ Norman A. Scher
By

Norman A. Scher
Director

/s/ William S. Sheridan
By

William S. Sheridan
Director

/s/ Martin R. Wade II1
By

Martin R. Wade III
Director
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Exhibits

3.01

3.02

4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

4.05

4.06

4.07

4.08

4.09

EXHIBIT INDEX

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Alliance One
International, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 19, 2005.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Alliance One International, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Current Report on Form
8-K, filed May 19, 2005.

Specimen of Common Stock certificate incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed June 3,
2005,

Indenture, dated Qctober 30, 2001, between DIMON Incorporated as
issuer, and SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to 9 5/8% Senior Notes due
2011, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001, filed
November 6, 2001.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2004, between
DIMON Incorporated as issuer and SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to
9 5/8% Senior Notes due 2011, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 13, 2004,

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated March 22, 2005, between
DIMON Incorporated as issuer and SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to
9 5/8% Senior Notes due 2011, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 16, 20035,

Indenture, dated May 30, 2003, between DIMON Incorporated as issuer
and SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to 7 3/4% Senior Notes due 2013,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 of the Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended June 30, 2003, filed August 28, 2003,

First Supplementat Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2004, between
DIMON Incorporated as issuer and SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to
7 3/4% Senior Notes due 2013, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2
to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 13, 2004,

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated March 22, 2005, between
DIMON Incorporated as issuer and SunTrust Bank as trustee, related to
7 3/4% Senior Notes due 2013, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2
to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 16, 2005.

Indenture, dated as of April 1, 1997, between DIMON Incorporated and
LaSalle National Bank, relating to 6 '/4% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures due March 31, 2007, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 16, 1997
{Commission File No. 001-13634).

Indenture dated April 2, 2004, among Standard Commercial
Corporation, Standard Commercial Tobacco Corp,, Inc. and SunTrust
Bank, as trustee, related to 9% Senior Notes due 2012, Series B,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 of Standard’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2004, filed June 14, 2004,
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Supplemental Indenture, dated March 22, 2005, among Standard
Commercial Corporation, Standard Commercial Tobacco Corp., Inc. and
SunTrust Bank, as trustee, related to 9% Senior Notes due 2012, Series
B, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Alliance One’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed May 16, 2005,

Indenture, dated May 13, 2005, between Alliance One International, Inc.,
Law Debenture Trust Company of New York, as trustee and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as registrar and paying agent, relating to
12 %% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 19, 2005.

Indenture, dated May 13, 2005, between Alliance One International, Inc.,
Law Debenture Trust Company of New York, as trustee and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as registrar and paying agent, relating to
11.0% Senior Notes due 2012, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 19, 2005.

Indenture, dated March 7, 2007, between Alliance One International,
Inc., Law Debenture Trust Company of New York, as trustee and
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as registrar and paying agent,
relating to 8 1/2% Senior Notes due 2012, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 8§, 2007.

Alliance One International, Inc. Pension Equity Plan, as amended May
24, 2006, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to Alliance One
International, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
March 31, 2006, filed June 23, 2006.*

Standard  Commercial Corporation  Performance Improvement
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Alliance
One International, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed June
3, 2005

Standard Commercial Corporation 2001 Performance Improvement
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference to Appendix B to
Standard Commercial Corporation’s definitive proxy statement filed July
16,2000 .*

Early Retirement Agrecment, dated May 17, 1999, between DIMON
Incorporated and Claude B. Qwen, Jr., incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to DIMON Incorporated’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended June 30, 1999, filed September 28, 1999 (Commission
File No. 001-13684).*

Employment Agreement, dated November 7, 2004, between DIMON
Incorporated and Brian ). Harker, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to DIMON Incorporated’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
November 8, 2004.*

Employment Agreement, dated November 7, 2004, between DIMON
Incorporated and Robert E. Harrison, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to DIMON Incorporated’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed November 8, 2004.*
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10.12
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Employment Agreement, dated as of January 13, 1995, effective as of
November 1, 1994, between Dibrell Brothers, Incorporated and H.P.
Green, 111, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Dibrell Brothers,
Incorporated’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1994,
filed February 13, 1995 (Commission File No. 000-2912).*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated August 29, 1995, between
DIMON Incorporated and H.P. Green, IlI , incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 of DIMON Incorporated’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended March 31, 2004, filed June 10, 2004.*

DIMON Incorporated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan,
amended March 1, 2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.09 to
Alliance One International, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended March 31, 2006, filed June 23, 2006.*

Settlement Agreement, dated May 24, 1999, between DIMON
Incorporated and Tabex (Private) Limited, Folium Inc., Blair Investments
(Private) Limited, Tabacalera S.A., Anthony C. B. Taberer, Paul A.B.
Taberer, and Charles M.B. Taberer, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.29 to DIMON Incorporated’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended June 30, 1999, filed September 28, 1999 (Commission File
No. 001-13684).*

DIMON Incorporated’s Compensation Deferral Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.15 to DIMON Incorporated’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2003, filed August 28, 2003.*

DIMON Incorporated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.14 of DIMON’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended March 31, 2004, filed June 10, 2004.*

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 13, 2005, among Alliance One
International, Inc., as borrower, Intabex Netherlands, B.V., as the Dutch
borrower, the material domestic subsidiaries of the borrowers, as
domestic guarantors, DIMON International AG, as foreign guarantor,
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, ING
Bank N.V. London Branch, as Syndication agent and certain banks
forming the bank syndicate, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 19, 2005.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 13, 2005, among DIMON
Incorporated, Wachovia Capital Markets LLC, Deutsche Bank Securities
Inc, and ING Bank NV, London Branch, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of Aliliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May
19, 2005.

Purchase Agreement between Alliance One International, Inc., formerly
known as DIMON Incorporated, and Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and ING Bank N.V., London Branch,
dated May 10, 2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 16, 2005.
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10.17

10.18

10.19
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10.21

10.22
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First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of October 28, 2005, by
and among Alliance One International, Inc., Intabex Netherlands B.V.,
DIMON International AG, the several banks and other financial
institutions from time to time party (the “Lenders”) and Wachovia Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent for the Lenders,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed October 31, 2005,

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of November 30,
2005, by and among Alliance One International, Inc., Intabex
Netherlands B.V., DIMON International AG, the several banks and other
financial institutions from time to time party, and Wachovia Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent for the Lenders,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed December 1, 20035,

Amendment to DIMON Incorporated Compensation Deferral Plan, dated
December 30, 2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 5, 2006.*

Amendment to Standard Commercial Corporation Supplemental
Retirement Plan, dated December 30, 2005, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
January 5, 2006.*

Standard Commercial Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan, dated
March 27, 1990, as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
of Alliance One’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 5, 2006.*

Third Amendment To Credit Agreement, dated as of November 8, 2006,
by and among Alliance One International, Inc., Intabex Netherlands
B.V., Alliance One Internattonal AG, the several banks and other
financial institutions from time to time party hereto (the “Lenders™) and
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for the
Lenders, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ending
September 30, 2006, filed November 9, 2006.

Fourth Amendment To Credit Agreement, dated as of January 16, 2007,
by and among Alliance One International, Inc., Intabex Netherlands
B.V., Alliance One International AG, the several banks and other
financial institutions from time to time party hereto, and Wachovia Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent for the Lenders,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed January 17, 2007.

Fifth Amendment To Credit Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2007,
by and among Allance One Intemational, Inc., Intabex Netherlands
B.V., Alliance One International AG. the several banks and other
financial institutions from time to time party hereto, and Wachovia Bank,
National Association. as administrative agent for the Lenders,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Alliance One’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed February 23, 2007.

Purchase Agreement, dated March 2, 2007, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Forin 8-K, filed March 8, 2007.
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Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 7, 2007, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March
8, 2007.

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated March 30, 2007 by and
among Alliance One Intenational, Inc. and Intabex Netherlands B.V., as
Borrowers, Alliance One International AG, as a Guarantor, the Lenders
from time to time parties thercto, Wachovia Bank, National Association,
as Administrative Agent, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as Syndication
Agent, and ING Bank N.V., London Branch, Cooperatieve Centrale
Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A. “Rabobank Nederland”, New York
Branch and Societe Generale, as Documentation Agents, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April
5,2007.

DIMON Incorporated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form
8-K, filed April 5, 2007.

Alliance One international, Inc. Pension Equity Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form §-K, filed April
5,2007.

Alliance One International, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Account Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form
8-K, filed April 5, 2007.

Waiver and Consent, dated June 20, 2007, by and among Intabex
Netherlands B.V. as Borrowers, Alliance One International AG, as a

Guarantor, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Administrative
Agent for the Lenders (filed herewith).

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (filed herewith).
List of Subsidiaries (filed herewith).

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filed herewith).
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP (filed herewith).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed
herewith).

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at 10:00
a.m. on Thursday August 16, 2007 at the North Raleigh
Hilton Hotel, Baliroom G, 3415 Wake Forest Road, Raleigh,
Neorth Carolina. Formal notice of the meeting, together
with a proxy statement and proxy, was mailed on or about
July 13, 2007.

COMMON STOCK

Alliance One International, Inc. common stock is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) as ticker symbol AOI.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR FOR THE
COMMON STOCK

American Stock Transfer
Charlotte, Nortp Carolina

Inguiries concerning A}liance One International, Inc,
common stock, including stock transfers, lost or stolen
stock certificates, chqnges of address and dividend
payment, should be directed to:

American S,tlock Transfer
59 Maiden Lane
New York,.NY 10038

Toll-free from within the United States:
B66-627-2656
Qutside the United States: 718-921-8520

“ SEC FILINGS

The Company’s annual report on Form 10-K and other
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) filings are
available without charge through our website at
www.aointl.com or by written request addressed to:

Investor Relations

Alliance One International, Inc.
Boo1 Aerial Center Parkway

P. 0. Box 2009

Morrisville, North Careclina 27560

GOVERNANCE DOCUMENTS

The Company’s governance-related documents, including
our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business
Conduct, and committee charters are available without
charge through our website, www.aointl.com, or by written
request addressed to:

Corporate Secretary

Alliance One International, Inc.
8oo1 Aerial Center Parkway

P. 0. Box 2009

Morrisville, North Carolina 27560

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

Shareholders may communicate with the Board of
Directors in writing. Such communications should be sent
in care of the Corporate Secretary to the address noted
above,

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Alliance One International, Inc's 2007 Annual Report may
include certain “forward-looking” statements. These
forward-looking statements generally are identified by
words such as “expects” or “anticipates” and words or
similar effect and include statements regarding the
Company's financial and operating goals. Actual results
may differ materially from those expressed in any forward-
looking statements due to a variety of factors, including
those discussed in “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations -
Factors That May Affect Future Results” and elsewhere in
the Annual Report and in our filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

CERTIFICATIONS

Alliance One International, Inc’s 2007 annual report en
Form 10-K includes as exhibits the certifications of the
Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer,
which are required to be filed with the SEC by Sections
302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 regarding
the quality of our public disclosure. Alliance One
International, Inc. has also filed with the NYSE the
certification of its Chief Executive Officer confirming that
Alliance One International Inc. has complied with the
NYSE’s corporate governance listing\standards.
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